
 

1 
 

       RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

  District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
August 8, 2017 
 

 

              AGENDA    
      
          

The Rincon Valley Union School District complies with ADA requirements and upon request, 
will attempt to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in appropriate alternative formats (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953.2).  Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting should 
contact the Rincon Valley Union School District at 542-7375, 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
   
 
1. OPEN SESSION:  CALL TO ORDER                  5:30 p.m. 
 PUBLIC COMMMENTS 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are on the closed session agenda. Persons 
 addressing the Board are requested to state their names and whether or not they are a 
 resident of the district. The Board President reserves the right to limit comments from 
 the public as well as limit the total number of minutes used on any one topic.   

 
3. CLOSED SESSION:  Items discussed in closed session are confidential in nature 

and may not be discussed by participants outside of this session.  Any action 
taken by the Board during closed session shall be reported upon in open 
session. 

 
3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 

Gov. Code 54957.6: 
  

3.1 a Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association (represented 
certificated employees) 

 
3.1 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 

Chapter #284 
 

 3.2 Personnel Issues. Gov. Code 54957.6 
 
The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law 



 

2 
 

   
 

4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,    6:00 p.m. 
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 
 (Consent Items a Board Member wishes to discuss will be  
 moved to the Action Item section) 
 

7.1     Minutes of June 8, 2017, Special Board Meeting 
Minutes of June 13, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 

 
7.2  Williams Settlement – Quarterly Report, April 1 – June 30, 2017 
 Board of Trustees will approve the Williams Settlement Quarterly Complaint 

Summary, April 1 – June 30, 2017. 
 

7.3 2017-2018 Consolidated Application Part I, Rincon Valley Union School  
  District 

 Consolidated Application Part I confirms funding for the Rincon Valley   
  Union School District’s state and federally-funded programs. 

 
7.4 Rincon Valley Union School District Auxiliary Rates of Pay 

This represents a revised auxiliary salary schedule for 2017-18. 
 
7.5 Approve Resolution 08-17-02, request to close revolving cash checkbook 

account Exchange Bank for Redwood Consortium for Student Services  
 

7.6 Proclamation of September as Attendance Awareness Month 
 This proclamation certifies that our schools will stand with the nation in 

recognizing September as “Attendance Awareness Month” and will commit to 
improving school attendance and reducing chronic absenteeism.   

 
7.7 2017-2018 Retainer Continuation Agreement for Legal Services with   

  School and College Legal Services of California 
 Authorization for Rincon Valley Union School District to continue its    

  Retainer Agreement with School and College Legal Services of California   
  effective July 1, 2017. 

 
7.8 Approval of 2017-2018 Salary Schedule for the Position of School 

Psychologist 
     
 7.9 Board Policy Updates – May 2017 
  The Board will approve the CSBA policy updates from May, 2017. 



 

3 
 

 
  Adopt Revisions: 
  BP/AR 1312.3, Uniform Complain Procedures 
  BP 1340, Access to District Records 
  BP 2121, Superintendent’s Contract 
  BP/AR 3551, Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
  AR 3580, District Records 
  BP/AR 4127/4227/4327, Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
  BP 4312.1, Contracts 
  AR 5145.3, Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
  BP 6142.93, Science Instruction 
  BP 6145, Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 
  BP/AR 6145.2, Athletic Competition 
  BP 7214, General Obligation Bonds  
  BB 9012, Board Member Electronic Communications 
  BB 9320, Meetings and Notices 
 
 7.10 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  These are purchase orders dated 6/6/17 – 7/31/17. 

 
7.11 Approval of Warrants: 

6/9/17`  - 1571681 – 1571763 
6/16/17 - 1573245 – 1573317 
6/23/17 - 1575041 – 1575125 
7/12/17 - 1577305 – 1577371 
7/21/17 - 1579533 – 1579614 
8/2/17  - 1581206 – 1581270 

 
8.     ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
     

   
 District Welcome Back  August 10, 8:00 – 9:30 a.m.  
      Friedman Center  
 
 Special Board Meeting  August 10, 10:00 a.m. 
      District Office 
  
 Certificated Buyback Day  August 11 
     
 Kindergarten Orientation  August 11 
 Class Postings  
  
 First Day School   August 14 
 

Back to School Night  August 21, Band (Matanzas Campus) 7-8 p.m. 
       (Spanish – 6:00 – 7:00 p.m.) 
 



 

4 
 

     August 22, Band (Whited Campus) 7-8 p.m. 
       (Spanish – 6:00 – 7:00 p.m.) 
 
 

August 23,   RVCS-Sequoia 6:00 – 7:30p.m. 
           RVCS Matanzas, 6:30 – 8:00 p.m. 
 

      August 24,   Matanzas, 6:00-7:00 p.m. 
                 Whited, 5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
  
      August 29,    Spring Creek, 6-7:00 p.m. 
         Austin Creek, 6:00 – 7:30 p.m. 
 
      August 30,  Village, 6:00 – 7:30 p.m.  
         Sequoia, 6:30-8:00 p.m. 
 
 August 31,    Binkley, 5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
      Madrone, 6:00 – 7:30 p.m. 
 
 Agenda Setting   August 31 
      District Office, 8:00 a.m. 
 

Rincon Valley Education  September 11  
Foundation    District Office, 7:00 p.m. 
 
 Regular Board Meeting  September 12  

      District Office, 6:00 p.m. 
 
9. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are not on the agenda.  By law, the Board 
 cannot take action upon or discuss items that are not on the approved agenda, but 
 welcomes your comments.  Persons addressing the Board are requested to state 
 their names and whether or not they are a resident of the district. The Board President 
 reserves the right to limit comments from the public as well as limit the total number of 
 minutes used on any one topic.  

  
If you wish to address the Board on any item on the agenda, please make your request 
at the time the item is being discussed.  Persons wanting to address the Board will be 
recognized and requested to state their name and whether or not they are a resident of 
the district.  The Board President will also reserve the right to limit comments as well as 
limit the total number of minutes used on any agenda item.   

 
10.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
  
11. INFORMATION 

 



 

5 
 

Instruction 
 

11.1 Curriculum & Instruction Update 
Dr. Metzger will give an overview of the following: 

 Professional Development-Before School Activities  
 Professional Development-Summer Opportunities  

--Dr. Terry Metzger 
 

11.2 Student Services Report 
 Mrs. Cathy Myhers will report on the following: 

 Social-Emotional Learning Programs 
--Mrs. Cathy Myhers 

 
Fiscal 
 
11.3 2016-2017 Student Transfers 
 The Board will review a summary of the 2016-2017 Interdistrict and Intradistrict 

student transfers. 
 --Mrs. Cindy Mendenhall 

 
11.4 Facilities Update – Summer Construction 

Dr. Joe Pandolfo will report on the construction work completed over the 
summer, 2017.  
--Dr. Joseph Pandolfo 

 
 11.5 SchoolWorks, Inc. Demographic Study 

The Board of Trustees will review the enrollment projections and demographic 
analysis submitted by SchoolWorks, Inc. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick  

 
 Human Resources 
 
 11.6 District Operations Departments’ Purpose Statements 

The Board will review the purpose statements submitted by the District 
Operations Departments.  
--Dr. Joe Pandolfo 

 
 Governance 
 
 11.7 LCAP Revisions 
  The Board will review revisions to the charter Local Control Accountability Plans. 
  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
 11.8 Board Policy Updates – CSBA July 2017 

The Board will review and discuss the CSBA July 2017 Board Policy updates as 
follows: 
 



 

6 
 

Adopt Revisions: 
BP/AR 0000, Vision 
BP 0100, Philosophy 
E 0420.41, Charter School Oversight 
BP 2140, Evaluation of the Superintendent 
AR 4112.2, Certification 
AR 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
BP E 6161.1, Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
BB 9121, President 
BB 9220, Governing Board Elections 
BB 9230, Orientation 
BB 9400, Board Self-Evaluation 
 
Adopt New 
BP 7212, Mello-Roos Districts 
 

   Delete 
  AR 0000, Vision 

BP 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
  
12.  ACTION 
 
  Fiscal 
 

12.1 Tax Levy Resolution #08-17-01 
 The Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #08-17-01, requesting 

Board of Supervisors of the County of Sonoma to establish tax rate for bonds of 
the Rincon Valley Union School District expected to be sold during fiscal year 
2017-18, and authorizing necessary actions in connection therewith. 

 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 

12.2 Construction Change Orders #5 – Binkley and Madrone 
The Board of Trustees will consider approving Change Orders # 5 for the   
Binkley and Madrone construction projects. 

   --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 

Human Resources 
 
12.3 Contract – Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Board of Trustees will consider ratifying the contract for Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy 
Superintendent for Business. 

   --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
  12.4 Amend Title of Vice Principal to Site Director 

Board of Trustees will consider approving an amendment to the administrative 
title of Vice Principal to Site Director. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 



 

7 
 

12.5 Hiring of a Special Day Class Teacher for the Rincon Valley Partnership on 
the basis of a Provisional Internship Permit 
Board of Trustees will consider approving the hiring of Amy Brent to teach a 1st – 
3rd grade Social Emotional Learning Program (SELP) Special Day Class. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
13.  PERSONNEL 
   
 13.1 Certificated Management – New Hire 

 Kim Craven, Psychologist, RVP, effective August 3, 2017 
 Heidi Mize, Psychologist (60%), District, effective August 3, 2017 

 
13.2 Certificated Management – Leave Request Amendment 

 Heidi Hahn, return to position January, 8, 2018 at .6 FTE 
 

13.3 Rehire of Prior Year Temporary Teacher 
 Sara Furch, Teacher, Village, effective August 10, 2017 

 
13.4 Certificated – New Hires 

 Morgan Brady, Teacher, Austin Creek, effective August 10, 2017 
 Nicole Britton, Teacher, Whited, effective August 10, 2017 
 Jaclyn Fogleman, Teacher, Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 
 Thomas Kimball, RSP Teacher, Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 
 Margo Matthews, Long Term Sub, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 
 Katherine Mazer, SDC Teacher, Whited, effective August 10, 2017 
 Susan Sipe, Speech & Language Therapist, District, effective August 10, 

2017 
 Allison Stuck Speech & Language Therapist (50%), District, effective August 

10, 2017 
 Melanie Teieb, Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 

 
13.5 Moving to Certificated from Classified 

 Amy Brent, SDC Teacher, Madrone, effective August 10, 2017 
 Teresa Mendoza, SDC Teacher, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 

 
13.6 Certificated – Resignations 

 Lynn Martinez, Teacher, Village, effective June 23, 2017 
 Bobbie Schmaus, Teacher, RVP, effective July 3, 2017 
 Janelle Taylor, Teacher, RVP, effective July 23, 2017 

 
13.7 Classified – New Hires 

 Patrick Fay, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVCS – Sequoia, effective August 
10, 2017 

 Emma Millan, Food Service Cashier, Village & Day Care Assistant, Binkley, 
effective August 10, 2017 

 Christine Tholen, SDC Instructional Assistant, Matanzas, effective August 10, 
2017 



 

8 
 

 Carol Watson, SDC Instructional Assistant, Matanzas, effective August 10, 
2017 

 Crystal Worthy, SDC Instructional Assistant, Sequoia, effective August 10, 
2017 

 
13.8 Classified – Resignations 

 Dorothy Estrada, EL Assistant & Kindergarten Aide, Binkley, effective July 3, 
2017 

 Judy Hatfield, Library Clerk, Binkley, effective July 17m 2017 
 Patricia Jacobs, Food Service I, District, effective August 9, 2017 
 Jeni James, Food Service I, Binkley, effective July 14, 2017 
 Cheryl Lambert, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVP, effective August 2, 2017 
 Nikki Marino, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective August 10, 2017 
 Gail Maxwell, Food Service I, Whited, effective September 8, 2017 
 Edward Petitt, Bus Driver, District, effective August 1, 2017 
 Silem Ramirez, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVP, effective August 2, 2017 
 April Robert, Day Care Assistant, Village & Noon Duty II, Matanzas, effective 

July 25, 2017 
 Olga Rodriguez Alvarez, Speech Assistant, RVP, effective July 24, 2017 
 Mackenzie Volkmuth, Day Care Assistant, Whited & Madrone, effective July 

26, 2017 
 

13.9 Classified – Leave of Absence Request 
 Candy Rico Ayala, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVP, August 10 - September 

29, 2017 
 
14. RVUTA/CSEA COMMENTS 
 
15. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 

INFORMATION 
 
16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Summer School Report 
 Student Support Model 
 CAASPP Results 
 Home Study Report 
 PE Testing Results 
 Public Hearing---Assurance of Pupil Textbooks 
 Unaudited Actuals 
 GANN Limit Resolution  
 Professional Development Plan 
 New Teacher Training 
 Biennial Notice – Conflict of Interest Code 
 Rincon Valley Education Foundation Report 

 
17. ADJOURN 



 

1 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Special Board Meeting 

1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa 
June 8, 2017 

 
MINUTES 

 
 
Present:              Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Jeff Gospe 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook – phone conference participation 
 
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

      Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business 
         Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum  
         Mrs. Cathy Myhers. Director Student Service 
 
Others:        Interested Staff and parents  
  
 
1.        OPEN SESSION          
 CALL TO ORDER, PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 Mrs. Wood called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON 

CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
None   

 
3. CLOSED SESSION:   
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to recess to closed session 

at 5:03 p.m. to discuss the following:  Unanimous. 
 

3.1 Public Employee Performance Evaluation Gov. Code 54957 
 -Superintendent 

 
The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters 
that are on the approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to 
reflect the goals and vision of our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 
hours before the Board Meeting and posted at each school site, as required by 
law.   
 



 

2 
 

4.      OPEN SESSION/CALL TO ORDER         6:00 p.m. 
  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/ROLL CALL     

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to adjourn closed session 
and return to open session at 5:59 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

   
5.     ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 

Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
6.    AGENDA APPROVAL 

Mrs. Wood announced that Item 8.1, Boys and Girls Club Report, will be 
tabled until a later date due to Ms. Edward’s illness. 
Mrs. Evers  moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the agenda as 
amended:  Unanimous.   

 
     7.       PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
  The following community members addressed the Board: 
 
  Name: Anthony Mustaro 

 Topic: Opposition to Oak Park Proposal   
 

Name: Karen Sanders 
Topic: Options for combining existing Rincon Valley USD schools 
 
Name: Lisa Brown 
Topic: ED Code 17481 – lease of real property with residence for 

nondistrict purposes 
 
         Governance 
 

8.1 Boys and Girls Clubs of Central Sonoma County Report 
Ms. Edwards was not able to attend due to illness; therefore, this 
item was tabled until a later date. 

  
8.2  Rincon Valley Education Foundation Final Report 

Mrs. Katie Ruppe, Director, gave the Rincon Valley Education 
Foundation final report for 2016-17.  After undergoing an extensive 
strategic plan process, the Foundation will be allocating funds for 
the district’s Science Program and Fine Arts Days in 2017-18. 
RVEF highlights and goals were presented. 

   
8.3      2017-18 Board and District Goals 

The Board discussed and gave input on the 2017-18 Board and 
District goals.  Dr. Roehrick will prepare the document with 
suggested revisions.   

    
   



 

3 
 

 
 8.4 Superintendent/Board Site Visits 

The Superintendent, Board President, and Board Trustee reported 
on their visits to school sites.  The theme for these visits was the 
district’s social-emotional programs.  
The following are a sample of what was observed: 

 A Toolbox lesson in a 1st grade classroom focused on the 
Courage Tool. 

 Drama used in a 3rd grade classroom to build student 
confidence and presentation skills. 

 In middle school, a seminar approach was used for students 
to discuss in-depth significant issues such as child labor in 
China.  In this context, students presenting their views have 
another student coach them in the process.   

 
 8.5 Rincon Valley Charter School Revision Committee Report 

Dr. Roehrick reported on the recommendations and action steps to 
refresh the Rincon Valley Charter School program and to improve 
outcomes for its students. 

 
 8.6 Board Policy Updates – CSBA May 2017.   

The Board reviewed and discussed the following board policy 
updates from CSBA May 2017:  No changes were suggested.  
These policies will be brought back for final approve on August 8. 

 
  Adopt Revisions: 
  BP/AR 1312.3, Uniform Complain Procedures 
  BP 1340, Access to District Records 
  BP 2121, Superintendent’s Contract 
  BP/AR 3551, Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
  AR 3580, District Records 
  BP/AR 4127/4227/4327, Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
  BP 4312.1, Contracts 
  AR 5145.3, Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
  BP 6142.93, Science Instruction 
  BP 6145, Extracurricular and Co-curricular Activities 
  BP/AR 6145.2, Athletic Competition 
  BP 7214, General Obligation Bonds  
  BB 9012, Board Member Electronic Communications 
  BB 9320, Meetings and Notices 
   
         Fiscal 
 

8.7 Rincon Valley Union School District Budget 2017-18 
Dr. Joe Pandolfo summarized the district’s 2017-18 budget.  The 
total District budget of over $54 million provides resources to 



 

4 
 

educate, transport, provide food service, day care, and other 
ancillary programs, as well as build new and maintain and 
modernize existing facilities for approximately 3,400 pre-k through 
6th grade students.  The total budget includes three district schools, 
four elementary charter schools (one spread over two campuses), 
and one 7th-8th grade charter school (spread over two campuses), 
as well as the Rincon Valley Partnership--a special education 
cooperative operated in cooperation with seven other Santa Rosa 
elementary districts. A comprehensive report with the budget is 
available upon request or on the district website, rvusd.org. 

 
 8.8 Update on Second Issuance of Measure F Bond Funds 

Dr. Pandolfo gave an update on the timeline for the second 
issuance of Measure F Bond Funds. The District issued the first 
series of General Obligations (GO) bonds (series A) in the amount 
of $18,000,000 in October of 2014 and have or are being spent on 
the facility program.   These funds will be exhausted this fall; 
therefore, staff is recommending the Board authorize the issuance 
of the remaining $17,000,000 this October. 
RVCS was not improved with bond money and bond money is not 
being used for the proposed Oak Park purchase. 
 

 Instruction 
 

8.9 Curriculum & Instruction Report  
 Dr. Metzger reported on the following: 

 ELA/Math Report 
The Board received Third trimester ELA student 
achievement data.  The format matches our LCAP goals.  
Support Coordinators and teacher teams used this data to 
evaluate their instruction and interventions this year and plan 
jumpstart interventions for the beginning of the school year.  
Findings and recommendations were presented and 
discussed. 

 
The Consulting Teachers (with teacher and principal input) 
created ELA (K-6) and Math (K-8) Curriculum Maps. 
Teachers received these maps at the May District 
Wednesday Inservice, along with our District High Quality 
Instruction (HQI) guidelines and expectations.   The Board 
received a copy of these documents. 

 
8:40 p.m.-    Mr. Mike Cook ended phone conference participation. 
 
 
 

 



 

5 
 

 EL Report 
Dr. Metzger reported that the district developed its 2017-18 
LCAP goals based on the EL Progress Indicators for the new 
California School Dashboard.  California schools are in a 
time of transition and this is particularly true in the area of 
English Learners.  The California English Language 
Development Test (CELDT) will be given for the last time 
this coming fall (2017) and will only be given to students 
entering CA schools for the first time.  The English Learner 
Progress Assessments for California (ELPAC) will be 
administered for the first time in Spring 2018.  
Only portions of the California School Dashboard have been 
rolled out. The EL portion of the Dashboard is based on 
CELDT and reclassification rate.  

 
The district has adopted a new ELA/ELD program and 
teacher training begins in June. Based on the feedback and 
results from the pilot classrooms, we are eager to implement 
the Designated ELD component of the program. 

 
 8.10 Student Services Report 

 Mrs. Myhers reported on the following: 
 

 Student Discipline 
The Student Services Department will focus on supporting 
school sites in creating systems to increase positive 
behaviors for 2017-18.   The district will continue to 
implement the sequence of social emotional learning 
programs that have been introduced over the last two years.  
A 3-year suspension trend was reviewed and discussed. 
 

 Student Attendance 
The district is continuing to see an improvement in student 
attendance.  The efforts of the school counselors and site 
staff have resulted in fewer families taking vacation during 
times that school is in session, and more students coming to 
school on time.  The Board reviewed and discussed a three 
year trend in students who have five or more unexcused 
absences or tardies of more than 30 minutes as well as 
chronic absenteeism.  Through the monitoring of student 
truancies, 12 students have been placed on SARB contracts 
this year.   
 

 RCSS Transition Final Report 
Cathy Myhers reported on the final phases of the RCSS 
transition plan.  We are a little behind on our plans due to a 



 

6 
 

delay in staffing but are very excited to open a SELP (Social-
Emotional Learning Program) class for grades1-3.  If we get 
the right staffing, the class of 6-8 students will be housed in 
Rincon Valley. The majority of RCSS will look the same for 
the Rincon Valley Partnership, but we are enhancing it.  

  
RVUTA COMMENTS - Colette Haldi ---Math training was outstanding – amazing!  
 
9.  CLOSED SESSION 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to return to closed session at 
9:10 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

 
10. OPEN SESSION 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to adjourn closed session 
and return to open session at 9:20 p.m.:  Unanimous. 
 

11. ACION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
12. ADJOURN 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to adjourn the meeting at 
9:21 p.m.:  Unanimous. 



1 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regular Board Meeting 

   1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa       4:30 p.m. 
      900 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa       6:00 p.m. 

June 13, 2017 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
Present:              Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Jeff Gospe 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  
 
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

      Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business 
         Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum  
         Mrs. Cathy Myhers. Director Student Service 
 
Others:        Interested Staff and Community Members 
 
1.        OPEN SESSION    (1000 Yulupa Ave.)    
 CALL TO ORDER, PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 Mrs. Wood called the meeting to order at 4:35 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON 

CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
None  

 
3. CLOSED SESSION:   
 Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Cook seconded to recess to closed session at 4:36 

p.m. to discuss the following:  
 

3.1 Conference with Legal Counsel –Anticipated Litigation, Gov. Code 
54956.9 

  -One potential case 
 

3.2 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, 
regarding Gov. Code 54957.6): 

  
3.2 a  Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association 

(represented certificated employees) 
 

3.2 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association 
(CSEA) Chapter #284 

 



2 
 

 3.3 Personnel issues, Gov. Code 54957 
 
4. OPEN SESSION/CALL TO ORDER    (900 Yulupa Ave.)            
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE     
 Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Cook seconded to adjourn closed session and return to 

open session at 5:45 p.m.:  Unanimous. 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS / ADDITIONS 
 Mr. Gospe requested to move Consent Item 7.3, Retainer Agreement with 
 School and College Legal Services of California, to action Item 12.10. 
 
7.      AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr.Gospe seconded to approve the agenda as modified 
and following consent items with one abstention from Warrant #1561478 by Mrs. 
Evers:  Unanimous. 
 
7.1 Minutes of May 9, 2017, Regular Board Meeting  
 Minutes of May 17, 2017, Special Board Meeting 
 Minutes if May 31, 2017, Special Board Meeting 
  

 7.2 Transfers between Fund Balances and Expenditures Resolution 06-17-28 
 Authorization to make transfers between fund balances and expenditures 

at close of year per E.C. 42601 
 

7.3 Retainer Agreement with School and College Legal Services of 
California 

  (This item is moved to Action 12.10.) 
 

7.4 2017-2018 Retainer Continuation Agreement for Legal Services with 
Dannis Wolver Kelley Attorneys (DWK) 

 Authorization for Rincon Valley Union School District to continue its 
Agreement with DWK, effective July 1, 2017. 

 
7.5 Counseling Field Experience Agreement 2017-18 with Sonoma State 

University 
 Authorization to renew a one-year Agreement with Sonoma State 

University for Counseling Field Experience effective July 1, 2017. 
 

7.6 Memorandum of Understanding between WestEd and Rincon Valley 
Union School District 

 This MOU is effective as of 5/25/17 and sets forth the agreement between 
WestEd and RVUSD to participate in the BrainQuake Implementation 
Study.  

  



3 
 

7.7 Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Sonoma 
Human Services Department and Rincon Valley Union School District 
and Community Child Care Council of Sonoma County-READY 
Program 

 The purpose of this MOU is to establish the roles and responsibilities of 
the parties in the READY program for providing services related to the 
Kindergarten Student Entrance Profile (KSEP) and Parent Survey for the 
term of July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018. 

  
7.8 Board Policy Updates – CSBA March 2017 

The Board will approve the following board policy updates from CSBA 
March 2017. 

  Adopt Revised: 
  BP 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan 
  BP/AR 3260, Fees and Charges 

AR 4112.22, Staff Teaching English Learners 
E 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9, Employee Notifications 
AR 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1, Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
BP 5111, Admission 
BP 5111.1, District Residency 
BP/AR 5113, Absences and Excuses 
BP/AR 5141.52, Suicide Prevention 
E 5145.6, Parental Notifications 
BP 6111, School Calendar 
BP 6117, Year-Round Schedules 
BP/AR 6142.2, World/Foreign Language Instruction 
BP 6144, Controversial Issues 
BP/AR 6174, Education for English Learners 
BP 6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes 

 
Delete: 
BP/AR 5148.2, Before/After School Programs 
E 6174, Education for English Learners 

 
 7.9 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  These are purchase orders dated 05/02/2017 - 06/05/2017. 
 

7.10 Approval of Warrants: 
  04/26/17  - 1561453 – 1561497 
  05/17/17 - 1565857 – 1565945 
  05/24/17 - 1567993 – 1568099 
  05/26/17 - 1568794 – 1568842 
  06/02/17 - 1569508 – 1569588 
  
8.   ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR     
 Mrs. Wood announced the following: 
 



4 
 

August 8, 2017  Regular Board Meeting   
     6:00 p.m. – District Office 
 
 August 10, 2017  District Welcome Back   
     8:00 a.m., Friedman Center 
 
 August 10, 2017  Special Board Meeting 
     10:00 a.m. – District Office 
 
 August 14, 2017  First Day School 
  
 Back to School Nights:   

 August 21, 2017   Band (Matanzas Campus)  
 August 22, 2017  Band (Whited Campus) 
 August 23, 2017  RVCS Sequoia and Matanzas 

  August 24, 2017  Matanzas and Whited 
  August 29, 2017  Austin Creek and Spring Creek  
  August 30, 2017  Village and Sequoia   
  August 31, 2017  Binkley and Madrone 
 
9. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 None 
 
10. SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, 
 CORRESPONDENCE 
 No comments. 
 
11. INFORMATION 
 
 Governance 
 
 11.1.   Community Workshop on Oak Park Property Purchase   
  The Board conducted a community workshop regarding  

the Oak Park Property purchase.  Dr. Roehrick gave an overview of the 
Oak Park purchase process covering the following information:  

 Public meetings and public outreach/Oak Park Property review 
 Why RVUSD is considering purchasing the Oak Park property 
 Historic RVUSD enrollment 
 Growth in the RVUSD Boundaries 
 Cost of land in Sonoma County 
 Sonoma County land costs/Oak Park Property example 
 Funding for the Oak Park purchase 

 
The entire PowerPoint is available at www.rvusd.org 
  



5 
 

Ms. Jamillah Jordan, Project Manager, MIG, Inc. facilitated the workshop.  The 
public’s input was graphically recorded by her assistant and will be made public 
once prepared for the district.   
 
Mrs. Lynn Fitzpatrick announced her protest to the District for not audio recording 
the workshop.   
 
The following members of the community gave their input regarding the District’s 
intent to purchase the Oak Park property stating their reasons why they are 
opposed to the purchase: 
 
Lynn Fitzpatrick  Chaney Delaire  Lee Hoskins 
Gloria Barrios  John Lynch   John Christensen 
Dean Arthur   John Hundt   Diane Pfister   
Greg Hagin   Karen Sanders  Azusa Jansen 
Melissa Chonzena  Crystal McMullen  Lisa Brown 
James Ward 
 
The following community members gave their input regarding the District’s intent 
to purchase the Oak Park property stating their reasons why they are in support 
of the purchase:  
 
Ann Gospe        Brandon Sherron        Katie Ruppe        Diane Moresi 
 
Comment cards were available for public to give written comments and questions 
to submit to the Board.  The questions and responses will be available on the 
rvusd.org website. 

 
The Board and staff responded to the issues and concerns that were presented 
by the public.   
 

12. ACTION 
 
 Fiscal 
 

 12.1 Resolution #06-17-30  Approving Acquisition of Property  
Dr. Pandolfo gave a summary of the steps taken as of this date regarding 
the proposed purchase of the Oak Park property.   The district would 
conduct a CEQA when it is ready to develop the property. 

 
Legal Counsel, Clarissa Canaday, from Dannis Woliver Kelley, presented 
information regarding the acquisition of property by school districts.   Her 
presentation covered the following: 

 Acquisition of Property by School Districts 
 Due diligence for property purchased by school districts 
 RVUSD’s road to purchasing Oak Park property 
 Assessment of Oak Park physical conditions 
 Assessment of Oak Park location 



6 
 

 Coordination with local agencies 
 Funding considerations 
 Next Steps 

 
The entire PowerPoint is available at www.rvusd.org  
 
The Board discussed the information presented by Counsel.   
Dr. Roehrick gave a presentation covering the following information: 

 Property research and due diligence 
 Environmental review 
 Public meetings and public outreach/Oak Park property review 
 Why purchase Oak Park property? 
 Board of Trustees readiness to purchase Oak Park property 

 
The entire PowerPoint is available at www.rvusd.org  
 
The following members of the community gave their input regarding the 
District’s intent to purchase the Oak Park property and response to the 
information presented by counsel and staff: 
 
Chaney Delaire  Lynn Fitzpatrick  Lisa Brown 
John Lynch   Lee Hoskins   Dennis Rogers 
Kristen Gault   Greg Hagin 
 
The Board members gave their final responses to the issues and concerns 
presented by the public.  After consideration of all comments received by 
the public from the various meetings and through correspondence to the 
Board representing public opinion for and against the purchase of the Oak 
Park property, the Board made the following decision: 

 
  Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve the 

Acquisition of Property Resolution #06-17-30, finalizing the purchase of 
the Oak Park Property:  Unanimous. 

   
The Board will provide opportunities for community input when planning 
begins to develop the property. 
 

12.2 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
 Mr. Gospe moved and Mr.Cook seconded to approve 

the Rincon Valley Union School District’s 2016-17 Local Control 
Accountability Plan Annual Update:  Unanimous. 
The Board will discuss ways for parents to be more involved in the LCAP 
process at a future board meeting. 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

 12.3 Local Control Accountability Plans – RVUSD Charter Schools 
Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the Local Control 
Accountability Plans for all Rincon Valley Union School District Charter 
Schools, 2016-17:  Unanimous. 

 
12.4 RVUSD Budget 2017-2018 
  Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve 

adopting the Rincon Valley Union School District Budget 2017-2018:  
Unanimous. 

 
 Human Resources 
 
 12.5 RVUTA Revised Contract Language 
  Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve 

 revised language in the following RVUTA Articles:  Unanimous. 
 Article XV Part 10 and 18 – Teacher Hours  
 Article XVIII Section 1– Leaves of Absence  
 Article XXVII Part 1 and 10– Early Retirement  
 Article XXIV – Support Personnel 

 
 12.6 RVUTA Memorandums of Understanding 
  Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve 

the following MOUs between Rincon Valley Union School District and 
RVUTA:  Unanimous. 

 Teacher Evaluation/Article XI 
 SDC Preschool Hours 
 Classified Support for Pre-K Autism Class 
 Coordinator Stipend for RVCS Marketing Campaign 

 
12.7 Classified Employees Elimination of Positions, Resolution #06-17-29 
 Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to approve  

 Resolution #06-17-29, classified employee elimination of position for the 
following positions:  Unanimous. 

 Kindergarten Aides (3) 
 Adult ESL Instructor 

 
 Governance 
 
 12.8    2017-2018 District Goals 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the 2017-2018 
District goals:  Unanimous.  
The Board will discuss implementation of these goals at their August 10 
special board meeting. 
 
 

   



8 
 

12.9 Approval of Memorandum of Understanding for Special Education 
Services with Rincon Valley Partnership 

 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the MOU for 
special education services with Rincon Valley Partnership: 

  Unanimous. 
 

12.10 2017-2018 Retainer Continuation Agreement for Legal Services with  
  School and College Legal Services of California 

 Authorization for Rincon Valley Union School District to continue its   
  Retainer Agreement with School and College Legal Services of California  
  effective July 1, 2017. 

 
 This item was tabled until a later date. 

 
13. PERSONNEL 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the following personnel 
items:  Unanimous. 
 
13.1 Certificated Management – New Hire 

 Denise Reich, Special Education Program Manager, District, effective 
July 1, 2017 

 
13.2 Certificated Management – Resignation 

 Laurie Gurall, Program Specialist, RCSS, effective June 30, 2017 
 

13.3 Rehire of Current Year Temporary Teachers 
 Leonna Beccio, Teacher, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 
 Ashley Bills, Teacher, Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 
 Randi Clay, Teacher, Village, effective August 10, 2017 
 Chelsea Ferrone, Teacher, Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 
 Lacey Fiddler, Teacher, Whited, effective August 10, 2017 
 Deven Kestler, Teacher, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 
 Megan O’Neill Martens, Teacher, Binkley, effective August 10, 2017 
 Ashley Sanders, Teacher, Village, effective August 10, 2017 
 Andrea Warrick, Teacher, Spring Creek, effective August 10, 2017 
 DiAnne Wilcox, Teacher, Village, effective August 10, 2017 
 Casey Wilson, Teacher, Village, effective August 10, 2017 
 Alyson Wirkkala, SDC Teacher, Madrone, effective August 10, 2017 
 Lea Yap, Teacher, Binkley, effective August 10, 2017 

 
13.3 Classified – New Hires 

 Sandi Rojas, Office Manager, Village, effective May 16, 2017 
 Sayra Mejia Guevara, Substitute Sp. Ed. Inst. Assistant, RCSS, 

effective June 5, 2017 
 Cristal Sanchez, Substitute Sp. Ed. Inst. Assistant, RCSS, effective 

June 5, 2017 
 



9 
 

13.4 Classified – Resignations 
    Dawn Warrick, Inst. Assistant, Austin Creek, effective May 19, 2017 
    Jessica Biddulph, SDC Inst. Assistant, Whited, effective June 3, 2017 
    Melanie Cox, Speech & Language Assistant, RCSS, effective June 3, 

2017 
    Francesca Harrison, Noon Duty I, Madrone, effective June 3, 2017 
    Enrique Rivas Chavez, SDC Inst. Assistant, RCSS, effective June 3, 

2017 
    Kyle Cheney, PE Paraeducator, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective 

June 3, 2017 
 
14. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS 
 

RVUTA:  Mrs. Hamilton thanked the Board for their patience and professionalism 
while going through the Oak Park Property purchase process.  She 
complimented them for modeling everything we want for all our students all the 
time.    

 
CSEA:  Mr. Hagle recognized the Board for how hard their job is.  CSEA knows 
that they are here for our students.  Thank you.   

 
15. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 
 INFORMATION 
 

The Board recognized staff for all their time and patience during the Oak Park 
Property purchase process.   

 
16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Williams Quarterly Report 
 Facility Construction Report 
 Student Transfer Report 
 Back to School Events 
 Policy Updates 

 
17.  ADJOURN 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to adjourn the meeting at 10:33 
p.m.:  Unanimous. 



4/08 
 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Williams Settlement 

Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary 
 

Education Code §35186(d): A school district shall report summarized data on the nature and 
resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the 
governing board of the school district.  The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly 
basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school district.  The report 
shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and 
unresolved complaints.  The complaints and written responses shall be available as public 
records. 
 
Reporting Period: 
 

  January 1 – March 31, 2016  April 1 – June 30, 2017 
  July 1 – September 30, 2015  October 1 – December 31, 2015  

 
No complaints were received during the above time period.  
 
If you received any complaints during the above time period, please complete the 

following table. Enter “0” in any cell that does not apply. 
 

General Subject Area Complaints 
Received 

 

Complaints 
Resolved 

Unresolved 
Complaints 

Instructional Materials 
 

0 0 0 

Facilities 
 

0 0 0 

Teacher Vacancy and/or 
Mis-assignment 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

CAHSEE Intensive 
Instruction and Services 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Total 

 
0   

 
0 

 
0 

 
 
 
Board meeting date: 8/8/17 
Date sent to County Superintendent of Schools: 8/9/17  
Sonoma County Office of Education 
5340 Skylane Blvd.  
Santa Rosa, CA 95403  
 



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2015-16 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 24 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2015 
through June 30, 2017.

CDE Program Contact:
Melissa Flemmer, Educator Excellence Office, mflemmer@cde.ca.gov , 916-324-5689

2015-16 Title II, Part A entitlement $96,512

Professional Development Expenditures

Professional development for teachers $93,357

Professional development for administrators

Subject matter project

Other professional development expenditures

Exams and Test Preparation Expenditures

Exam fees, reimbursement

Test preparation training and or materials

Other exam and test preparation expenditures

Recruitment, Training, and Retaining Expenditures

Recruitment activities

Hiring incentive and or relocation allotment

National Board Certification and or stipend

Verification process for special settings (VPSS)

University course work

Other recruitment training and retaining expenditures

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Class size reduction

Administrative and indirect costs $3,155

Total funds transferred to Title I, Part A

Other allowable expenditures or encumbrances

Total expenditures and encumbrances $96,512

General Comment

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 1 of 3Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2015-16 Title III, Part A Immigrant YTD Expenditure Report, 24 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017.

CDE Program Contact:
Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, gndirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Approved Immigrant Sub-grantee Activities

(e) ACTIVITIES BY AGENCIES EXPERIENCING SUBSTANTIAL INCREASES IN IMMIGRANT CHILDREN 
AND YOUTH- 
(1) IN GENERAL-An eligible entity receiving funds under section 3114(d)(1) shall use the funds to pay for 
activities that provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth, which may include- 
(A) family literacy, parent outreach, and training activities designed to assist parents to become active 
participants in the education of their children; 
(B) support for personnel, including teacher aides who have been specifically trained, or are being trained, to 
provide services to immigrant children and youth; 
(C) provision of tutorials, mentoring, and academic or career counseling for immigrant children and youth
(D) identification and acquisition of curricular materials, educational software, and technologies to be used in the 
program carried out with funds;

(E) basic instruction services that are directly attributable to the presence in  the school district involved of 
immigrant children and youth, including the  payment of costs of providing additional classroom supplies, costs of 
 transportation, or such other costs as are directly attributable to such  additional basic instruction services;
(F) other instruction services that are designed to assist immigrant children and youth to achieve in elementary 
schools and secondary schools in the United States, such as programs of introduction to the educational system 
and civics education; and 
(G) activities, coordinated with community-based organizations, institutions of higher education, private sector 
entities with expertise in working with immigrants, to assist parents of immigrant children and youth by offering 
comprehensive community services.

2015-16 Title III, Part A Immigrant entitlement $5,239

Object Code - Activity

1000-1999 Certificated personnel salaries $0

2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries $4,339

3000-3999 Employee benefits $742

4000-4999 Books and supplies $0

5000-5999 Services and other operating expenditures $0

Administrative and indirect costs $158

Total year-to-date expenditures $5,239

2015-16 Unspent funds $0

General comment

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 3Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2015-16 Title III, Part A LEP YTD Expenditure Report, 24 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017.

CDE Program Contact:
Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, gndirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Required and Authorized LEP Sub-grantee Activities

Required
Section 3115 (c)(1) To increase the English Proficiency by providing high-quality language instruction 
educational programs that are based on scientifically based research demonstrating the effectiveness of the 
programs. 
Section 3115 (c)(2) To provide high quality professional development to classroom teachers (including teachers 
in classroom settings that are not the settings of language instruction educational programs), principals, 
administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel.

Authorized

(1) Upgrading program objectives and effective instruction strategies. 
(2) Improving the instruction program for limited English proficient children by identifying acquiring and upgrading 
curricula, instruction materials, educational software, and assessment procedures.
(3) Providing tutorials and academic or vocational education for limited English proficient children and intensified 
instruction.
(4) Developing and implementing elementary school or secondary school language instruction educational 
programs that are coordinated with other relevant programs and services.
(5) Improving the English proficiency and academic achievement of limited English proficient children.
(6) Providing community participation programs, family literacy services and parent outreach and training 
activities to limited English proficient children and their families.

2015-16 Title III, Part A LEP entitlement $49,739

Object Code - Activity

1000-1999 Certificated personnel salaries $0

2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries $41,074

3000-3999 Employee benefits $7,690

4000-4999 Books and supplies $0

5000-5999 Services and other operating expenditures $0

Administrative and indirect costs $975

Total year-to-date expenditures $49,739

2015-16 Unspent funds $0

General comment

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 3 of 3Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2016-17 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 12 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2016 
through June 30, 2017.

CDE Program Contact:
Melissa Flemmer, Educator Excellence Office, mflemmer@cde.ca.gov , 916-324-5689

2016-17 Title II, Part A entitlement $94,648

Professional Development Expenditures

Professional development for teachers $91,492

Professional development for administrators

Subject matter project

Other professional development expenditures

Exams and Test Preparation Expenditures

Exam fees, reimbursement

Test preparation training and or materials

Other exam and test preparation expenditures

Recruitment, Training, and Retaining Expenditures

Recruitment activities

Hiring incentive and or relocation allotment

National Board Certification and or stipend

Verification process for special settings (VPSS)

University course work

Other recruitment training and retaining expenditures

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Class size reduction

Administrative and indirect costs $3,156

Total funds transferred to Title I, Part A

Other allowable expenditures or encumbrances

Total expenditures and encumbrances $94,648

2016-17 Unspent Funds $0

General Comment

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 1 of 5Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2016-17 Title III, Part A Immigrant YTD Expenditure Report, 12 Months
A report of year-to-date expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017.

CDE Program Contact:
Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, gndirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Approved Immigrant Sub-grantee Activities

(e) ACTIVITIES BY AGENCIES EXPERIENCING SUBSTANTIAL INCREASES IN IMMIGRANT CHILDREN 
AND YOUTH- 
(1) IN GENERAL-An eligible entity receiving funds under section 3114(d)(1) shall use the funds to pay for 
activities that provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth, which may include- 
(A) family literacy, parent outreach, and training activities designed to assist parents to become active 
participants in the education of their children; 
(B) support for personnel, including teacher aides who have been specifically trained, or are being trained, to 
provide services to immigrant children and youth; 
(C) provision of tutorials, mentoring, and academic or career counseling for immigrant children and youth
(D) identification and acquisition of curricular materials, educational software, and technologies to be used in the 
program carried out with funds;

(E) basic instruction services that are directly attributable to the presence in  the school district involved of 
immigrant children and youth, including the  payment of costs of providing additional classroom supplies, costs of 
 transportation, or such other costs as are directly attributable to such  additional basic instruction services;
(F) other instruction services that are designed to assist immigrant children and youth to achieve in elementary 
schools and secondary schools in the United States, such as programs of introduction to the educational system 
and civics education; and 
(G) activities, coordinated with community-based organizations, institutions of higher education, private sector 
entities with expertise in working with immigrants, to assist parents of immigrant children and youth by offering 
comprehensive community services.

2016-17 Title III, Part A Immigrant entitlement $4,362

Object Code - Activity

1000-1999 Certificated personnel salaries $0

2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries $3,427

3000-3999 Employee benefits $835

4000-4999 Books and supplies $0

5000-5999 Services and other operating expenditures $0

Administrative and indirect costs $100

Total year-to-date expenditures $4,362

2016-17 Unspent funds $0

General Comment

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 5Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 10:33 AM

2016-17 Title III, Part A English Learner YTD Expenditure Report, 12 
Months

A report of year-to-date expenditures by activity. Activity period covered is July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017.

CDE Program Contact:
Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, gndirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Required and Authorized English Learners Sub-grantee Activities

Required
Section 3115 (c)(1) To increase the English proficiency by providing high-quality language instruction educational 
programs that are based on scientifically based research demonstrating the effectiveness of the programs. 
Section 3115 (c)(2) To provide high quality professional development to classroom teachers (including teachers 
in classroom settings that are not the settings of language instruction educational programs), principals, 
administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel.

Authorized

(1) Upgrading program objectives and effective instruction strategies. 
(2) Improving the instruction program for English learners by identifying acquiring and upgrading curricula, 
instruction materials, educational software, and assessment procedures.
(3) Providing tutorials and academic or vocational education for English learners and intensified instruction.
(4) Developing and implementing elementary school or secondary school language instruction educational 
programs that are coordinated with other relevant programs and services.
(5) Improving the English language proficiency and academic achievement of English learners.
(6) Providing community participation programs, family literacy services and parent outreach and training 
activities to English learners and their families.

2016-17 Title III, Part A English learner entitlement $48,552

Object Code - Activity

1000-1999 Certificated personnel salaries $0

2000-2999 Classified personnel salaries $36,442

3000-3999 Employee benefits $9,028

4000-4999 Books and supplies $2,482

5000-5999 Services and other operating expenditures $0

Administrative and indirect costs $600

(Amount cannot exceed 2% of the entitlement.)

Total year-to-date expenditures $48,552

2016-17 Unspent funds $0

General comment

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 3 of 5Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2016-17 Homeless Education Policy, Requirements, and Implementation
The purpose of this data collection is to meet federal requirements specified in ESEA Section 722. This collection 
includes 1) monitoring LEAs and their compliance with key provisions of the Education for Homeless Children 
and Youths Act and 2) collecting contact information for each required designated LEA’s homeless liaison.

CDE Program Contact:
Leanne Wheeler, Coordinated School Health and Safety Office, lwheeler@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0383

Homeless Education Certification

The LEA hereby assures that the LEA has met the following requirements: 

1. Designated a staff person as the liaison for homeless children and youths

 

2. Developed a written policy that supports the enrollment and retention of  homeless children and youths in 
schools of the LEA which:

a) Includes policies and practices to ensure that homeless children and youths are not stigmatized or segregated 
on the basis of their status as homeless

b) Includes a dispute resolution process

c) Ensures that transportation is provided for a homeless child or youth to and from the school of origin if 
requested by the parent, guardian or homeless liaison

3. Disseminated public notice of the educational rights of homeless children and youths where such children and 
youths receive services under the provisions of the Education for Homeless Children and Youths Act. 

Homeless Liaison Contact Information

Homeless liaison first name Cathy

Homeless liaison last name Myhers

Homeless liaison title Director of Student Services

Homeless liaison e-mail address cmyhers@rvusd.org

(format: abc@xyz.zyx)

Homeless liaison telephone number (707) 542-7375

(format: 999-999-9999)

Homeless liaison telephone extension 4,122

Has the homeless liaison attended and/or participated in a homeless 
education liaison training within the last two years

Yes

If yes, indicate what level of training was completed. (Check all options 
that apply.)

Local Yes

Page 4 of 5Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2016-17 Homeless Education Policy, Requirements, and Implementation
The purpose of this data collection is to meet federal requirements specified in ESEA Section 722. This collection 
includes 1) monitoring LEAs and their compliance with key provisions of the Education for Homeless Children 
and Youths Act and 2) collecting contact information for each required designated LEA’s homeless liaison.

CDE Program Contact:
Leanne Wheeler, Coordinated School Health and Safety Office, lwheeler@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0383

County No

State No

National No

Homeless Education Policy and Requirements

Does the LEA have a written homeless education policy Yes

No policy comment

Provide an explanation why the LEA does not have a homeless education 
policy. (Maximum 500 characters)

Date LEA’s board approved the homeless education policy 01/10/2017

Does the LEA meet the above federal requirements Yes

Compliance comment

Provide an explanation why the LEA does not comply with federal 
requirements. (Maximum 500 characters)

Title I, Part A Homeless Expenditures

2016-17 Title I, Part A Entitlement $210,966

2016-17 Title I, Part A direct or indirect services to homeless children 
reservation

$408

Amount of 2016-17 Title I, Part A funds expended or encumbered for 
direct or indirect services to homeless children

$408

No expenditures or encumbrances comment

Provide an explanation why there are no Title I, Part A expenditures or 
encumbrances for homeless services. (Maximum 500 characters)

Page 5 of 5Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Jane Liang, District Innovation and Improvement Office, jliang@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0259
Jacqueline Matranga, District Innovation and Improvement Office , jmatranga@cde.ca.gov, 916-445-4905

CDE Program Contact:

School Name School 
Code

Public New Title I, 
Part A 

Funded 
Teachers 

Hired 
Count

Non-ESEA 
Qualified 

Hired 
Count

Title I, 
Part A 

Funded 
Teachers 

Count 
(0.00)

Title I, Part A 
Funded FTE 

Paraprofessionals 
Count (0.00)

ESEA Qualified 
FTE 

Paraprofessionals 
Count (0.00)

ESEA Qualified 
FTE 

Paraprofessionals 
% 

Title I, Part A 
Funded 

Administrators 
Count (0.00)

Title I, Part 
A Funded 
Support 

Staff 
Count 
(0.00)

Other Title I, 
Part A 

Funded 
Staff Count 

(0.00)

Binkley Elementary Charter 6085229 Y 0 0 0.60

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 6052039 Y 0 0 0.86

Village Elementary Charter 6052070 Y 0 0 0.47

Whited Elementary Charter 6052047 Y 0 0 0.37

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017 R17

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2016-17 Title I, Part A School Funded Staff Report

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

To collect school level data, as required by ESEA, about teachers and instructional paraprofessionals in Title I, Part A programs.



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2016-17 Title I, Part A School Program Improvement Activities
Per ESEA Section 1116, LEAs must report school level Program Improvement (PI) activities related to Title I, 
Part A.  This includes, but is not limited to, student participation and PI compliance activities based on the 
number of years a school is in PI status.

CDE Program Contact: 

Jacqueline Matranga, District Innovation and Improvement Office , jmatranga@cde.ca.gov, 916-445-4905
Mindi Yates, Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office, myates@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0789

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter (49 70896 6052039)

PI Year 3

For PI schools in Year 3, the LEA implemented at least one of the 
following (check all that apply)

Replaced school staff relevant to the failure to make adequate yearly 
progress (AYP)

N

Implemented a new curriculum, including appropriate professional 
development

Y

Decreased management authority N

Appointed an outside expert to advise the school on making AYP based 
on its school plan

Y

Extended school year or day N

Restructured the internal organizational structure N

Provide a description of internal organizational restructure activities

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017
R25

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Melissa Flemmer, Educator Excellence Office, mflemmer@cde.ca.gov , 916-324-5689

CDE Program Contact:

School Name School Code Total Class Size 
Reduction Teacher 

Count

ESEA Title II Part A 
Funded Class Size 
Reduction Teacher 

Count

ESEA Teacher 
Count

Austin Creek Elementary 6117907 0 0

Binkley Elementary Charter 6085229 0 0

Madrone Elementary 6052021 0 0

Redwood Consortium for Student Services 0120980 0 0

Rincon Valley Charter 0102525 0 0

Sequoia Elementary 6052054 0 0

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 6052039 0 0

Village Elementary Charter 6052070 0 0

Whited Elementary Charter 6052047 0 0

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017 R18

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2016-17 Title II, Part A School Class Size Reduction Report

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

The ESEA Act of 2001, Title II, Part A, Section 2123(a)(2)(B) allows LEAs to use ESEA Title II, Part A funds to recruit and hire teachers that meet applicable 
State certification and licensure requirements to reduce class size.



Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838

CDE Program Contact:

School Name School Code Enrollment Flagged for English 
Learner Participation

English Learner 
Students Served

Participation Explanation (Max 500 char)

St. Eugene Cathedral School 6983712 285 Y 23

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017 R16

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2016-17 Title III, Part A English Learner Nonprofit Private School Reimbursement

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

The purpose of this data collection is to capture the documentable number of private school English learners who received Title III services during the reported fiscal 
year. 



Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838

CDE Program Contact:

School Name School Code Enrollment Flagged for 
Immigrant 

Participation

Immigrant Students 
Served

Participation Explanation (Max 500 char)

St. Eugene Cathedral School 6983712 285 N 0

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017 R33

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2016-17 Title III, Part A Immigrant Nonprofit Private School Students Served

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

The purpose of this data collection is to capture the documentable number of private school Immigrant students who received Title III Immigrant services during the 
reported fiscal year. 



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:40 AM

2017-18 Certification of Assurances
Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year.  A complete list of legal and program 
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca17asstoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Joy Paull, jpaull@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; 
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I 
agree to have the use of these funds reviewed and/or audited according to the standards and criteria set forth in 
the California Department of Education's Categorical Program Monitoring (CPM) Manual. Legal assurances for 
all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and programs and 
copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those for which a 
waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual ink 
signatures for this form is on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name Joseph V Pandolfo

Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title Deputy Superintendent

Authorized Representative Signature Date 06/16/2017

Page 1 of 6Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2017-18 Protected Prayer Certification
ESSA Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally protected prayer in public 
elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Franco Rozic, Title I Monitoring and Support Office, frozic@cde.ca.gov , 916-319-0269
Mindi Yates, Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office, myates@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0789

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The LEA hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that the LEA has no policy that 
prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in public schools as set forth in the 
"Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy 
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a 
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes

Authorized Representative's Full Name Joseph Pandolfo

Authorized Representative Title Deputy Superintendent

Authorized Representative Signature Date 06/08/2017

Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time an explanation must be 
provided in the Comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 6Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2017-18 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Education Data Office, ConApp@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The LEA is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding selections with their local 
governing board.

Date of approval by local governing board 08/08/2017

District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your district has more than 50 English learners 
the district must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) and involve them in the 
application for funding for programs that serve English learners.

DELAC representative's full name Terry Metzger

DELAC review date 01/27/2017

Meeting minutes web address

Please enter the Web address of DELAC review meeting minutes (format 
http://SomeWebsiteName.xxx). If a Web address is not available, the LEA 
must keep the minutes on file which indicates that the application is 
approved by the committee.

DELAC comment Minutes on file in Curriculum Office

If an advisory committee refused to review the application, or if DELAC 
review is not applicable, enter a comment. (Maximum 500 characters)

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year the LEA must apply for the fund by selecting Yes. Only the 
categorical funds the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I Part A (Basic Grant) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Title II Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

Title III Part A Immigrant Yes

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

Title III Part A English Learner Yes

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

Page 3 of 6Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2017-18 Title III, Part A English Learner Student Program Subgrant Budget
The purpose of this report is to provide a proposed budget for 2017-18 English learner (EL) student program 
subgrant funds only per the Title III, Part A, English Learner Students Program requirements (ESSA, Title III, 
Part A, Sections 3114, 3115, & 3116). 

CDE Program Contact:
Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, gndirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Estimated Entitlement Calculation

Note: If the estimated entitlement amount does not meet the minimum $10,000 program eligibility criteria for 
direct funding status, further action may be required. To receive instructions regarding the consortium application 
process, please contact Patty Stevens by phone at 916-323-5838 or by e-mail at pstevens@cde.ca.gov.

Estimated English learner per student allocation $93.37

Estimated English learner student count 418

Estimated English learner entitlement amount $39,029

Budget

Professional development activities $0

Program and other authorized activities $0

English Proficiency and Academic Achievement $36,528

Parent, family, and community engagement $1,000

Direct administration costs $0

(Amount cannot exceed 2% of the estimated entitlement)

Indirect costs $1,501

(Amount should be calculated using the LEA's approved indirect cost rate) 

Total allocation budget $39,029

Page 4 of 6Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2017-18 Title III, Part A Immigrant Student Program Subgrant Budget
The purpose of this report is to provide a proposed budget for 2017-18 Immigrant Student Program Subgrant 
funds only per the Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student Program requirements (ESSA, Title III, Part A, Sections 
3114, 3115, & 3116). 

CDE Program Contact:
Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, gndirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Estimated Entitlement Calculation

Note: Only LEAs that have 21 or more eligible immigrant students, and that have experienced a significant 
increase of two percent or greater growth in eligible immigrant student enrollment in the current year compared 
with the average of the two preceding fiscal years are eligible for Title III, Part A Immigrant Student Program 
Subgrant funds.  Use your Immigration student count that was provided to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System on census day of October 5, 2016.

Estimated Immigrant per student allocation $80.77

Estimated Immigrant student count 53

Estimated Immigrant entitlement amount $4,281

Budget

Authorized activities $4,116

Direct administration costs $0

(Amount cannot exceed 2% of the estimated entitlement)

Indirect costs $165

(Amount should be calculated using the LEA's approved indirect cost rate) 

Total allocation budget $4,281

Page 5 of 6Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: joseph Pandolfo

Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

2017-18 Substitute System for Time Accounting
This certification may be used by auditors and by CDE oversight personnel when conducting audits and sub-
recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is automatically granted when the LEA 
submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
Julie Brucklacher, Financial Accountability and Info Srv Office, jbruckla@cde.ca.gov, 916-327-0858

 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used 
to document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.  
Additional information on the predetermined schedule substitute system of time accounting can be found at 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/co/timeaccounting2013.asp. Detailed information on documenting salaries and 
wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, are described in Procedure 905 of the California 
School Accounting Manual posted on the Web at http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/.

2017-18 Request for authorization Yes

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known 
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with 
implementing the system

There are no known deficiencies with 
our substitute system or challenges 

with implementing the system.

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 6 of 6Report Date:6/16/2017
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sylvia Hanna, Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office, shanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948

CDE Program Contact:

The LEA must offer to provide equitable services that address the needs of eligible 
students attending nonprofit private school and staff under the programs listed below. 
The enrollment numbers are reported under penalty of perjury by each private school 
on its annual Private School Affidavit. The information field in the Private School 
Affidavit is not verified, and the CDE takes no position as to its accuracy. It is 
expected that districts engaged in private school consultation verify the accuracy of 
student enrollment data if it is being used for the purpose of providing equitable 
services.

Note:

The LEA of residence is responsible for providing Title I, Part A services to all eligible 
students who reside in the LEA’s Title I attendance area but attend a nonprofit private 
school. This includes students who attend nonprofit private schools outside the LEA’s 
boundaries

Results of Consultation Allowable Values

Y1: meaningful consultation occurred
Y2: timely and meaningful consultation did not occur
Y3: the program design is not equitable with respect to eligible private school children
Y4: timely and meaningful consultation did not occur and the program design is not 
equitable with respect to eligible private school children

School Name School Code Enrollment Consultation 
Occurred

Was 
Consultation 

Agreement Met

Signed 
Written 

Affirmation on 
File

Results of 
Consultation

School Added

Brush Creek Montessori School 6993745 24 Y Y Y Y1 N

St. Eugene Cathedral School 6983712 285 Y Y Y Y1 N

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017 R07

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2017-18 Nonprofit Private School Consultation

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

The LEA shall provide, on an equitable basis, special education services or other benefits to eligible children attending a nonprofit private school.



Anie Wilson, Educator Excellence Office, awilson@cde.ca.gov, 916-445-5669
Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838

CDE Program Contact:

Title II, Part A Supporting Effective Instruction

The LEA must offer to provide Title II, Part A equitable services that address the 
needs of nonprofit private school students, teachers and other educational personnel. 
The enrollment numbers are reported under penalty of perjury by each private school 
on its annual Private School Affidavit. The information filed in the Private School 
Affidavit is not verified and the CDE takes no position as to its accuracy. It is 
expected that districts engaged in private school consultation verify nonprofit status 
and the accuracy of student enrollment data if it is being used for the purpose of 
providing equitable services.

Title III, Part A Immigrant and English Learner Student Subgrant Program

On an annual basis, the LEA must consult with all nonprofit private schools within its 
boundaries, as to whether the private school students and teachers will participate in 
the Title III, Part A English Language Acquisition, Language Enhancement, and 
Academic Achievement Program. Consultation with appropriate nonprofit private 
school officials must be done during the design and development of programs and 
before decisions are made that affect the opportunities of students and teachers to 
participate. LEAs may not require documentation that poses an administrative barrier 
that is inconsistent to their responsibility to ensure equitable participation of private 
school students and teachers.

School Name School Code Enrollment Title II, Part A 
Participation

Title III, Part A 
Immigrant 

Participation

Title III, Part A 
English 
Learner 

Participation

School 
Added

St. Eugene Cathedral School 6983712 285 Y N Y N

Brush Creek Montessori 
School

6993745 24 N N N N

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017 R32

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2017-18 Other ESEA Nonprofit Private School Participation

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

The LEA must offer to provide equitable services that address the needs of nonprofit private school students, teachers and other educational personnel under 
the programs listed below.



Sylvia Hanna, Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office, shanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948
Rina DeRose, Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office, RDerose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

CDE Program Contact:

The LEA must offer to provide equitable services that address the needs of eligible 
students attending nonprofit private school and staff under the programs listed below. 
The enrollment numbers are reported under penalty of perjury by each private school 
on its annual Private School Affidavit. The information field in the Private School 
Affidavit is not verified, and the CDE takes no position as to its accuracy. It is 
expected that districts engaged in private school consultation verify the accuracy of 
student enrollment data if it is being used for the purpose of providing equitable 
services.

School Name School 
Code

Enrollment Participating Low Income 
Student 
Count

Direct 
Services

Contract 
Services

School Added

Brush Creek Montessori School 6993745 24 N N N N

St. Eugene Cathedral School 6983712 285 N N N N

Page 1 of 1Report Date:6/16/2017 R07

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2017-18 Title I, Part A Nonprofit Private School Participation

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

The LEA shall provide, on an equitable basis, special educational services or other benefits to nonprofit private school eligible children.



Lana Zhou, Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office, lzhou@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0956
Mindi Yates, Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office, myates@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0789

CDE Program Contact:

If an exception to funding is needed, enter an Exception Reason. Use lower case 
only.

Allowable Exception Reasons 
a - Meets 35% Low Income Requirement 
d - Desegregation Waiver on File 
e - Grandfather Provision 
f - Feeder Pattern 
g - Local Funded Charter Opted Out 
h - Local Funded Charter Opt In 
k - Funded with EIA/SCE

Low income measure FRPM

Group Schools by Grade Span Yes

District-wide Low Income % 35.46%

Grade Span 1 Low Income % 35.46%

Grade Span 2 Low Income % 0.00%

Grade Span 3 Low Income % 0.00%

School Name School 
Code

Grade 
Span 
Group

Projected 
Enrollment

Projected 
Low 

Income 
Students

Low 
Income 

%

Eligible 
for 

Funding

Funding 
Required

Ranking Fund 
Flag

Exception 
Reason

Village Elementary Charter 6052070 1 408 202 49.51 Y N 1 Y

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 6052039 1 581 270 46.47 Y N 2 Y

Binkley Elementary Charter 6085229 1 395 183 46.33 Y N 3 Y

Page 1 of 2Report Date:6/16/2017 R09

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2017-18 Title I, Part A Planned School Allocations

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

Based on information provided in the School Student Counts data collection, the table below provides eligibility and ranking information. For school allocation 
planning, the LEA has indicated to which schools it intended to allocate Title I, Part A funds by entering a check in the Fund Flag column. 



School Name School 
Code

Grade 
Span 
Group

Projected 
Enrollment

Projected 
Low 

Income 
Students

Low 
Income 

%

Eligible 
for 

Funding

Funding 
Required

Ranking Fund 
Flag

Exception 
Reason

Whited Elementary Charter 6052047 1 445 204 45.84 Y N 4 Y

Madrone Elementary 6052021 1 401 172 42.89 Y N 5 N

Rincon Valley Charter 0102525 1 368 97 26.36 N N 6 N

Sequoia Elementary 6052054 1 423 53 12.53 N N 7 N

Austin Creek Elementary 6117907 1 434 44 10.14 N N 8 N

Redwood Consortium for Student Services 0120980 1 0 0 0.00 N N 9 N

Page 2 of 2Report Date:6/16/2017 R09

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary (49 70896 0000000)

2017-18 Title I, Part A Planned School Allocations

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: joseph Pandolfo
Date: 6/16/2017 9:41 AM

Based on information provided in the School Student Counts data collection, the table below provides eligibility and ranking information. For school allocation 
planning, the LEA has indicated to which schools it intended to allocate Title I, Part A funds by entering a check in the Fund Flag column. 





 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO.  08-17-02 

 
Request to close revolving cash checkbook account Exchange Bank for Redwood 

Consortium for Student Services 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  The revolving cash account is used primarily for emergency or small 
disbursements, and is reimbursed periodically through properly documented 
expenditures, which are summarized and charged to proper accounting classifications. 

 
WHEREAS, a revolving account has been established with Exchange Bank the 
Redwood Consortium for Student Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Redwood Consortium for Student Services Program has ended; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following Exchange Bank account be 
closed: 
 
Redwood Consortium Revolving Fund #1050065877 
 

  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Rincon Valley Union School 
District this __th day of August 2017 by the following vote:  

 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Rincon Valley Union School District  



 

 

FROM THE OFFICE OF  
Superintendent, Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
Proclamation of September 2017 as Attendance Awareness Month 

 
 
WHEREAS chronic absence – missing 10 percent or more of school for any reason including 
excused and unexcused absences, or just two of three days a month – is a proven predictor of 
academic trouble and dropout rates, 
 
WHEREAS regular attendance is essential to student achievement and graduation, and we are 
committed to dedicating our resources and attention to reducing absenteeism rates, with a focus 
starting as early as kindergarten, 
 
WHEREAS regular attendance contributes to improved third grade reading proficiency, greater 
high school success and fewer dropouts, thus strengthening our communities and our local 
economy, 
 
WHEREAS excessive absences exacerbate the achievement gap for students of poverty, since 
these students are more likely to miss school and to lack the resources to make up for lost 
academic time, 
 

WHEREAS all students are affected by chronic absenteeism when teachers must spend 
additional time reviewing for those who missed instruction, 
 
WHEREAS schools and districts must accurately track, calculate and share attendance data so 
that interventions are provided to students in a timely manner, 
 
WHEREAS efforts to improve struggling schools are strengthened by high rates of regular 
attendance, 

WHEREAS improving attendance and reducing excessive absences takes commitment, 
collaboration and tailored approaches to the particular challenges and strengths in each 
community, 
 
WHEREAS school attendance can be significantly improved when schools, parents and 
communities work together to monitor and promote good attendance and address the obstacles 
that keep children from getting to school, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that as the Superintendent of Rincon Valley Union 
School District, I proclaim that our schools will stand with the nation in recognizing September 
as “Attendance Awareness Month.” We hereby commit to improving school attendance and 
reducing chronic absenteeism to give all children an equitable opportunity to learn, grow and 
thrive academically, emotionally and socially. 

 







7/17/2017 Rincon Valley Union School District Mail - 2017-2018 Retainer Agreement with Rincon Valley Union School District

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=675cec8257&jsver=XX0XeNfqBWg.en.&view=pt&search=inbox&th=15d52a98e3ee675b&siml=15d52a98e3ee675b 1/2

Tony Roehrick <troehrick@rvusd.org>

20172018 Retainer Agreement with Rincon Valley Union School District 
1 message

Carl Corbin <ccorbin@sclscal.org> Mon, Jul 17, 2017 at 3:27 PM
To: troehrick@rvusd.org
Cc: Kristian Vallee <kvallee@sclscal.org>

Tony,

 

As per our conversation today, I want to again apologize on behalf of my office for any advice your District may have received that

resulted in complications associated with the Oak Park property purchase. 

 

In recognition of the hardship, I am formally offering to add 10 hours of attorney service, at no cost to your District, to your

District’s retainer agreement for the 20172018 school year.  I am “cc”ing our accounting coordinator, Kristian Vallee, on this

email so he can ensure the 10 hours is added to your account.

 

I want to reassure you that my office has a number of attorneys with knowledge of facility and property issues to include Loren

Soukup and Erin Stagg (who joined our office on July 1, 2017, http://www.sclscal.org/staff/erinestagg) who can provide your
District with quality legal services.

 

Please let me know if at any time in the future your District has any concerns with my office.

 

Thank you,

 

Carl

 

Carl D. Corbin

General Counsel

School and College Legal Services of California

5350 Skylane Boulevard

Santa Rosa, Ca 95403

ph: 7075242690

fx: 7075780517

email:  ccorbin@sclscal.org

 



7/17/2017 Rincon Valley Union School District Mail - 2017-2018 Retainer Agreement with Rincon Valley Union School District

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=675cec8257&jsver=XX0XeNfqBWg.en.&view=pt&search=inbox&th=15d52a98e3ee675b&siml=15d52a98e3ee675b 2/2

 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This communication and any documents, files or previous email messages attached to it, constitute an electronic communication

within the scope of the Electronic Communication Privacy Act (18 U.S.C. § 2510).  This communication may contain nonpublic, confidential, or legally privileged

information intended for the sole use of the designated recipient(s).  The unlawful interception, use or disclosure of such information is strictly prohibited under 18

U.S.C. § 2511 and any applicable laws.  If you are not the intended recipient, or have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately by

reply email or by telephone and delete any and all electronic and hard copies of this communication, including attachments, without reading them or saving them

in any form.

 



 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

PSYCHOLOGIST 
 
 

  STEP  BA+45 BA+60 BA+75 STEP 
  

  1  65,930  68,729  71,288  1 
  2  67,708  70,504  73,303  2 
  3  69,482  72,279  75,078  3 
  4  71,261  74,058  76,856  4 
  5  73,038  75,835  78,633  5 
  6  74,812  77,610  80,407  6 
  7    79,388  82,184  7 
  8    81,162  83,962  8 
  9      85,737  9 
  10      87,515  10 
  11      89,292  11 
  12      91,066  12 
  13      92,887  13 
  14      94,475  14 
  15      96,640  15   
 
 
 
 
 Work year: 195 days 
    

Masters  Degree      $1,000 Annually  
National Board Certification: $1,000 Annually 
Doctorate  Degree    $1,000 Annually 

 Car Allowance          $1,300 Annually 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Health Cap Effective: 02/01/2014 
Board Approved:    
2016/17 – 2% on, 2% off (3/14/17) 
2017/18 – 1% increase 



 
Community Relations BP 1312.3(a) 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure 
compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To 
resolve complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform 
system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying 
administrative regulation. 
 
The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve 
the following complaints: 
 
1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or 

regulations governing adult education programs, after school education and safety 
programs, migrant education, career technical and technical education and training 
programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, special 
education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, and any other district-
implemented program which is listed in Education Code 64000(a)  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 

 
2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, 
or other person participating in district programs and activities, including, but not 
limited to, those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit 
from any state financial assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived 
characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, ethnic 
group identification, age, religion, marital, pregnancy, or parental status, physical or 
mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 
220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association 
with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics  
(5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 



(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 BP 1312.3(b) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide 

reasonable accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast 
milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the 
student  (Education Code 222) 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
 
4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring 

students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational 
activities  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
 
5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the 

implementation of the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district 

noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding 
placement decisions, the responsibilities of the district's educational liaison to the 
student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school 
or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed 
graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 
51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
 
7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, 

alleging district noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student 
regarding the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another 
school or district or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation 
requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
 
8. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a former juvenile court school student who 

transfers into the district after his/her second year of high school, alleging district 
noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student regarding the award of 
credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in the juvenile court school or the grant 
of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements  (Education Code 
51225.1, 51225.2) 



 
 BP 1312.3(c) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education 

Code 51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student to a course 
without educational content for more than one week in any semester or to a course the 
student has previously satisfactorily completed, without meeting specified conditions  
(Education Code 51228.3) 

 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 
 
10. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education 

instructional minutes requirement for students in elementary school  (Education Code 
51210, 51223) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
 
11. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the 

complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to 
this policy 

 
12. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 
 
The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature 
of the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to 
all parties. ADR such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more 
than one student and no adult.  However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve 
any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the 
mediation would feel compelled to participate.  The Superintendent or designee shall ensure 
that the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 
 
The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 
confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any 
complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep the identity of the 
complainant, and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the complainant, 
confidential when appropriate and as long as the integrity of the complaint process is 
maintained. 
 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
 



 
 BP 1312.3(d) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district 
shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate 
and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness 
and knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines 
specified in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the 
investigations of those complaints in accordance with applicable law and district policy. 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Non-UCP Complaints 
 
The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the 
specified agency:  (5 CCR 4611) 
 
1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County 

Department of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the 
appropriate law enforcement agency. 

 
2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program 

shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, 
for licensing-exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development 
regional administrator. 

 
3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California 

Department of Fair Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify 
the complainant by first class mail of the transfer. 

 
4. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the California Department of 

Education. 
 
In addition, the district's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used 
to investigate and resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional 
materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety 
of students or staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments.  (Education Code 35186) 
 



 
 BP 1312.3(e) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 
8200-8498  Child care and development programs 
8500-8538  Adult basic education 
18100-18203  School libraries 
32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 
35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 
48853-48853.5  Foster youth 
48985  Notices in language other than English 
49010-49013  Student fees 
49060-49079  Student records 
49069.5  Rights of parents 
49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 
51210  Courses of study grades 1-6 
51223  Physical education, elementary schools 
51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth, homeless children, and former juvenile court school students; course 
credits; graduation requirements 
51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially: 
52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements 
52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 
52300-52490  Career technical education 
52500-52616.24  Adult schools 
54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 
54440-54445  Migrant education 
54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 
56000-56867  Special education programs 
59000-59300  Special schools and centers 
64000-64001  Consolidated application process 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 
PENAL CODE 
422.55  Hate crime; definition 
422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 

 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 



 
 BP 1312.3(f) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3080  Application of section 
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1221  Application of laws 
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
6301-6577  Title I basic programs 
6801-7014  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 
7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 
7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 
7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 
12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 
104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 
106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 

 
 
 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 BP 1312.3(g) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 
Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014 
Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 
Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011 
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 
Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, 
or Third Parties, January 2001 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National 
Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/ocr 
U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 



adopted: May 2017 
Community Relations AR 1312.3(a) 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
 
Except as the Governing Board may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies, 
these uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the 
complaints specified in BP 1312.3. 
 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
Compliance Officers 
 
The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for 
coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal 
civil rights laws. The individual(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 
5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints 
regarding unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying). The individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and 
shall ensure district compliance with law. 
 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

Superintendent 
1000 Yulupa Avenue 

            Santa Rosa  CA  95409 
            (707) 542-7375 
 
The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the 
complainant and respondent, if applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the 
complaint. 
 
In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a 
bias or conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving 
the complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the 
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed 
with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be 
investigated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 AR 1312.3(b) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and 
resolve complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at 
issue in the complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such employees 
shall cover current state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable 
processes for investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful 
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), applicable 
standards for reaching decisions on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures.  
Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent 
or designee. 
 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 9124 - Attorney) 
 
The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine 
whether interim measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If 
interim measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator 
shall consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the 
site principal to implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall remain 
in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the 
district issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first. 
 
Notifications 
 
The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools 
and offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms.  (Education 
Code 234.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's 
UCP, including information regarding unlawful student fees, local control and accountability 
plan (LCAP) requirements, and requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth, 
homeless students, and former juvenile court school students to students, employees, 
parents/guardians, the district advisory committee, school advisory committees, appropriate 
private school officials or representatives, and other interested parties.  (Education Code 
262.3, 48853, 48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622) 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 



 
 AR 1312.3(c) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and 
information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.61 shall be posted 
on the district web site and may be provided through district-supported social media, if 
available. 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including 
students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant 
information provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the 
UCP. 
 
If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single 
primary language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices 
concerning the UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education 
Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all 
relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 
 
The notice shall: 
 
1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints 
 
2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her 

under state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable 
 
3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the 

complainant's right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of 
Education (CDE) or to pursue remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, 
such as the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases 
involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying). 

 
4. Include statements that: 
 

a. The district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. 

 
b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the 

date of receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an 
extension of the timeline. 



 
 AR 1312.3(d) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 

 
c. A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later 
than six months from the date it occurred, or six months from the date the 
complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful 
discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the 
Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the 
complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. 

 
d. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a 

complainant is unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to 
conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in 
the filing of the complaint. 

 
e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the district receives notice of any 

allegation that is subject to the UCP, the district shall take affirmative steps to 
investigate and address the allegations, in a manner appropriate to the 
particular circumstances. 

 
 If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation 
confirms that discrimination has occurred, the district will take steps to 
prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its discriminatory effects on 
the complainant, and on others, if appropriate. 

 
f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for 

his/her participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral 
fundamental part of the district's educational program, including curricular 
and extracurricular activities. 

 
g. The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner 

that includes meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other 
stakeholders in the development and/or review of the LCAP. 

 
h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to 

his/her educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as 
well as the responsibilities of the district liaison for foster youth to ensure and 
facilitate these requirements and to assist the student in ensuring proper 
transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers between 
schools or between the district and another district. 

 



i. A foster youth, homeless student, or former juvenile court school student who 
transfers into a district high school or between district high schools as 
applicable shall be notified of the district's responsibility to: 

 AR 1312.3(e) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 

(1) Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has 
satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court 
school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency, and to issue full 
or partial credit for the coursework completed 

 
(2) Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course 

which he/she has satisfactorily completed in another public school, 
juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency 

 
(3) If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before 

the transfer, provide the student information about district-adopted 
coursework and Board-imposed graduation requirements from which 
he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code 51225.1 

 
j. The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to the CDE by 

filing a written appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's 
decision. 

 
 In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right 
to file an appeal with the CDE in the same manner as the complainant, if 
he/she is dissatisfied with the district's decision. 

 
k. The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the 

district and a copy of the district's decision. 
 

l. Copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge. 
 
District Responsibilities 
 
All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the 
district's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of 
the timeline.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the district shall inform the respondent when the complainant 
agrees to an extension of the timeline for investigating and resolving the complaint. 
 



The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 
actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for 
compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633. 
 
 
 AR 1312.3(f) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a 
decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or 
allegations of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the 
investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the 
integrity of the process.  (5 CCR 4630, 4964) 
 
Filing of Complaints 
 
The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of 
complaints received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp. 
 
All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant.  If a complainant is 
unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district 
staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4600) 
 
Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable: 
 
1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 

governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant 
education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care 
and development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs 
may be filed by any individual, public agency, or organization.  (5 CCR 4630) 

 
2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against 

requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement 
related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or 
information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A 
complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful 
student fees may be filed with the principal of the school or with the Superintendent 
or designee. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from 
the date the alleged violation occurred.  (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4630) 

 
3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she 
personally suffered the unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an 
individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint 
shall be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged unlawful 



discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant first 
obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for 
filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good 
cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the 
extension.  (5 CCR 4630) 

 AR 1312.3(g) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer 
shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the 
specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the 
allegation. 

 
5. When the complainant of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when he/she is not the 
complainant, requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her 
that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate the conduct or take other 
necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the district shall 
nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and resolve/respond to the 
complaint consistent with the request. 

 
Mediation 
 
Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may 
informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be 
offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, 
mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of 
sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel 
compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make 
all arrangements for this process. 
 
Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination 
(such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall 
ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information.  
The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at 
any time. 
 
If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the 
compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint. 
 
The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving 
the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If 
mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the 
actions agreed to through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall then 
continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation. 



 
Investigation of Complaint 
 
Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance 
officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint. 
 AR 1312.3(h) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide 
the complainant and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information 
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or 
his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, 
or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence 
or information may be presented at any time during the investigation. 
 
In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents 
and review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any 
additional evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the 
investigation. He/she shall individually interview all available witnesses with information 
pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location where the 
relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance 
officer shall inform both parties of the status of the investigation. 
 
To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview 
the alleged victim(s), any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, 
separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may 
conduct or support the investigation. 
 
A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other 
evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the 
investigation, or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the 
dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, 
a respondent's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence 
related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, 
or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on 
evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of 
the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and 
other information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct 
the investigation. Failure or refusal of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result 
in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of 
a remedy in favor of the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 



The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in 
determining the veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the 
allegation is more likely to be true than not. 
 
 
 
 AR 1312.3(i) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
Report of Findings 
 
 
Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, a final decision shall be sent to 
the complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. Within 30 
calendar days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the 
complainant a written report, as described in the section "Final Written Decision" below. If 
the complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, he/she may, within five 
business days, file his/her complaint in writing with the Board. 
 
The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board 
meeting convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be 
answered. When required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session.  The 
Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision 
shall be final. 
 
If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the 
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within 
the time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 
4631) 
 
In resolving any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the respondent also shall be sent the district's 
decision and, in the same manner as the complainant, may file a complaint with the Board if 
dissatisfied with the decision. 
 
Final Written Decision 
 
The district's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be 
sent to the complainant and respondent.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision 
may be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may 
be involved in implementing the decision or are affected by the complaint, as long as the  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 AR 1312.3(j) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
privacy of the parties is protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying), notice of the district's decision to the 
alleged victim shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon the 
respondent that relates directly to the alleged victim. 
 
If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the 
student involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single 
primary language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that 
language.  In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant 
information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 
 
For all complaints, the decision shall include:  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual 

determination, the following factors may be taken into account: 
 

a.  Statements made by any witnesses 
 
b.  The relative credibility of the individuals involved 

 
c.  How the complaining individual reacted to the incident 
 
d.  Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct 

 
e.  Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders 
 
f. Past false allegations made by the complainant 

 
2. The conclusion(s) of law 
 
3. Disposition of the complaint 
 
4. Rationale for such disposition 
 

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a 



determination for each allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination 
has occurred. 
 
The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration 
of the following: 

 
a. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education 

 AR 1312.3(k) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 

b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct 
 
c. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s) 
 
d. The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was 

directed 
 

e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they 
occurred 

 
f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals 

 
5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to 

address the allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees 
complaint, a remedy that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600 

 
 For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying), the decision may, as required by law, include: 
 

a. The corrective actions imposed on the respondent 
 

b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the complainant or another person 
who was the subject of the complaint, but this information should not be 
shared with the respondent. 

 
c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment 

and prevent recurrence 
 
6. Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the district's decision to 

the CDE within 15 calendar days, and procedures to be followed for initiating such an 
appeal 

 
The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and 
for reporting any subsequent problems. 
 



For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the 
complainant that: 
 
1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint 

procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private 
interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with the CDE. 
(Education Code 262.3) 

 AR 1312.3(l) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in 

state courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law.  (Education Code 
262.3) 

 
3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, 

disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for 
Civil Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination. 

 
Corrective Actions 
 
When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate 
corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger 
school or district environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district 
policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate 
surveys. 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim 
but not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Counseling 
 
2. Academic support 
 
3. Health services 
 
4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus 
 
5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or 

retaliation 
 
6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation 

does not penalize the victim 
 
7. Restorative justice 



 
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no 

retaliation 
 
9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline 

were related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint 
 
 
 AR 1312.3(m) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student 
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law 
 
2. Parent/guardian conference 
 
3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others 
 
4. Positive behavior support 
 
5. Referral to a student success team 
 
6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges 

as permitted by law 
 
7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law 
 
When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such 
as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and 
collective bargaining agreement. 
 
The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school 
community to ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of 
behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), that the district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond 
to it. 
 
If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and 
other charges, physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or 
any requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a 
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by 
regulation of the State Board of Education.  (Education Code 49013, 51223, 52075) 



 
For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall 
attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all 
affected students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year 
prior to the filing of the complaint.  (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600) 
 
 
 
 AR 1312.3(n) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
Appeals to the California Department of Education 
 
Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision may file an 
appeal in writing with the CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.  
(Education Code 222, 48853, 48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 
52075; 5 CCR 4632) 
 
When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the district's final 
written decision, he/she, in the same manner as the complainant, may file an appeal with the 
CDE. 
 
The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and 
whether the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The appeal shall be 
accompanied by a copy of the locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's decision.  (5 
CCR 4632) 
 
Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant or respondent has appealed the district's 
decision, the Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE:  
(5 CCR 4633) 
 
1. A copy of the original complaint 
 
2. A copy of the written decision 
 
3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the district, if 

not covered by the decision 
 
4. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and 

documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator 
 
5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint 
 
6. A copy of the district's uniform complaint procedures 
 



7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: May 2017 
Community Relations BP 1340(a) 
 
ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the right of citizens to have access to public records of the 
district. The Board intends the district to provide any person reasonable access to the public 
records of the schools and district during normal business hours and within the requirements 
of law. Public access shall not be given to records listed as exempt from public disclosure in 
the California Public Records Act and other state or federal law. 
 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
 
In response to a public records request, the Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable 
efforts to locate the requested records, including, but not limited to, any electronic 
communication substantively related to the records, such as email, text messages, instant 
messages, and other electronic communications, regardless of whether they are transmitted 
through a district-provided device or account or through an employee's or Board member's 
personal device or account. 
 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 
(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 
 

The district may charge for copies of public records or other materials requested by 
individuals or groups.  The charge shall be based on actual costs of duplication, as 
determined by the Superintendent or designee and as specified in administrative regulation. 
 

In order to help maintain the security of district records, members of the public granted 
access shall examine records in the presence of a district staff member. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 



 
 
 
 BP 1340(b) 
 
 
ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35145  Public meetings 
35170  Authority to secure copyrights 
35250  Duty to keep certain records and reports 
41020  Requirement for annual audit 
42103  Publication of proposed budget; hearing 
44031  Personnel file contents and inspections 
44839  Medical certificates; periodic medical examination 
49060-49079  Student records 
49091.10  Parental review of curriculum and instruction 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3547  Proposals relating to representation 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
6275-6276.48  Other exemptions from disclosure 
53262  Employment contracts 
54957.2  Minute book record of closed sessions 
54957.5  Agendas and other writings distributed for discussion or consideration 
81008  Political Reform Act, public records; inspection and reproduction 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 1, Section 3  Right of access to governmental information 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
430-438  Individual student records 
COURT DECISIONS 
City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608 
Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors v. Superior Court (2016) 2 Cal.5th 282 
International Federation of Professional and Technical Engineers v. The Superior Court of Alameda 
County, (2007) 42 Cal.4th 319 
Los Angeles Times v. Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority, (2001) 88 Cal.App.4th 1381 
Kleitman v. Superior Court, (1999) 74 Cal.App. 4th 324 
Fairley v. Superior Court, (1998) 66 Cal.App. 4th 1414 
North County Parents Organization for Children with Special Needs v. Department of Education, 
(1994) 23 Cal.App. 4th 144 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
71 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 235 (1988) 
64 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 186 (1981) 

 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 BP 1340(c) 
 
 
ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act Ruling on Electronic 
Communications, March 2017 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
Summary of the California Public Records Act, 2004 
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS 
The People's Business: A Guide to the California Public Records Act, 2008 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Attorney General's Office:  https://oag.ca.gov 
Institute for Local Government:  http://www.cacities.org 
State Bar of California: http://www.calbar.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 



Administration BP 2121(a) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that the Superintendent's employment contract should outline 
the framework through which the Board and Superintendent are to work together to achieve 
district goals and objectives. When approving the Superintendent's employment contract, the 
Board shall consider the need for stability in district administration and shall ensure the best 
use of district resources. 
 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 2120 - Superintendent Recruitment and Selection) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
The contract shall be reviewed by the district's legal counsel and may include the following: 
 
1. Term of the contract, which shall be for no more than four years pursuant to 

Education Code 35031 
 
2. Length of the work year and hours of work 
 
3. Salary, health and welfare benefits, and other compensation for the position 
 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
4. Reimbursement of work-related expenses, including mileage reimbursement, 

consistent with Board policies, regulations, and guidelines applicable to other 
professional administrative staff 

 
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 
 

The contract may also address payment for professional dues and activities, the 
district's provision of cell phones or other technological devices, and the 
Superintendent's use of his/her personal vehicle. 

 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 
 
5. Vacation, illness and injury leave, and personal leaves 
 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5 - Military Leave) 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
6. General duties and responsibilities of the position 
 
(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 
 



 BP 2121(b) 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT  (continued) 
 
 
7. Criteria, process, and procedure for annual evaluation of the Superintendent 
 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
 
8. A statement that any subsequent increase in the Superintendent's salary shall be at the 

sole discretion of the Board 
 
9. A statement that there shall be no automatic renewal or extension of the contract, 

although the Board can enter into a new contract with the Superintendent prior to the 
expiration of the existing contract 

 
10. Timeline for providing written notice to the Superintendent if the Board does not 

wish to enter into a new contract, which shall be at least 45 calendar days in advance 
of the expiration of the term of the contract pursuant to Education Code 35031, and 
the responsibility of the Superintendent to remind the Board in writing and in a timely 
manner of the requirement to give notice 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
11. Conditions and process for termination of the contract, including the maximum cash 

settlement that the Superintendent may receive if the contract is terminated prior to its 
expiration date 

 
12. Matters related to liability and indemnification against demands, claims, suits, 

actions, and legal proceedings brought against the Superintendent in his/her official 
capacity in the performance of duties related to his/her employment 

 
The Board may deliberate about terms of the contract in closed session at a regular meeting.  
However, discussions regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation may occur 
in the closed session of a regular meeting only between the Board and its designated 
representative(s), as permitted under Government Code 54957.6 (the "labor exception"), for 
the purpose of reviewing the Board's position and/or instructing the designated 
representative(s) prior to or during bona fide negotiations with the current or prospective 
Superintendent. Such deliberations shall not be held during a special meeting. (Government 
Code 54956, 54957, 54957.6) 
 

The Board may consult with district legal counsel prior to holding a closed session with the 
designated representative(s) to discuss compensation to be paid to the current or prospective 
Superintendent. 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 



 BP 2121(c) 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT  (continued) 
 
 
Terms of the contract shall remain confidential until the ratification process commences. 
 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
The Board shall take final action on the Superintendent's contract during an open session of a 
regularly scheduled Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. 
At that meeting, prior to taking action, the Board shall orally report a summary of the 
recommendation for the final action on the Superintendent's salary or compensation in the 
form of fringe benefits. (Government Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953) 
 

Copies of the contract and other public records created or received in the process of 
developing the recommendation related to the Superintendent's salary, benefits, and other 
compensation shall be available to the public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 
54953, 54957.6) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Termination of Contract 
 
Prior to the expiration of the contract, the Board may terminate the Superintendent's 
employment contract in accordance with law and applicable contract provisions. 
 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 
 

In such an event, any cash settlement that the Superintendent may receive upon termination 
of the contract shall not exceed his/her monthly salary multiplied by the number of months 
left on the contract or, if the unexpired term of the contract is more than 18 months and the 
contract was executed prior to January 1, 2016, no greater than the Superintendent's monthly 
salary multiplied by 18. For any contract executed on or after January 1, 2016, any cash 
settlement shall not exceed the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12.  
(Government Code 53260) 
 
The cash settlement shall not include any noncash items other than health benefits, which 
may be continued for the same duration of time as covered in the settlement or until the 
Superintendent finds other employment, whichever occurs first.  (Government Code 53260, 
53261) 
 
However, when the termination of the Superintendent's contract is based upon the Board's 
belief and subsequent confirmation through an independent audit that the Superintendent has 
engaged in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal fiscal practices, no cash or 
noncash settlement of any amount shall be provided.  (Government Code 53260) 
 
 



 BP 2121(d) 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT'S CONTRACT  (continued) 
 
 
In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her office 
or position, he/she shall reimburse the district for payments he/she receives as paid leave 
salary pending investigation or as cash settlement upon his/her termination, and for any funds 
expended by the district in his/her defense against a crime involving his/her office or 
position.  (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35031  Term of employment 
41325-41329.3  Conditions of emergency apportionment 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3511.1-3511.2  Local agency executives 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
53243-53243.4  Abuse of office 
53260-53264  Employment contracts 
54953  Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of superintendent 
54954  Time and place of regular meetings 
54956  Special meetings 
54957  Closed session personnel matters 
54957.1  Closed session, public report of action taken 
54957.6  Closed sessions regarding employee matters 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 
105  Self-insured medical reimbursement plan; definition of highly compensated individual 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
300gg-16  Group health plan; nondiscrimination in favor of highly compensated individuals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS 
1.105-11 Self-insured medical reimbursement plan 
COURT DECISIONS 
San Diego Union v. City Council, (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
57 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 209 (1974) 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Superintendent Contract Template, 2015 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 
California Office of the Attorney General: https://oag.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 



Business and Noninstructional Operations  BP 3551(a) 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 
 
The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit 
program. To ensure program quality and increase cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or 
designee shall centralize and direct the purchasing of foods and supplies, the planning of 
menus, and the auditing of all food service accounts for the district. 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all food service personnel possess the 
required qualifications and receive ongoing professional development related to the effective 
management and implementation of the district's food service program in accordance with 
law. 
 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who 
conduct or oversee administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive 
training provided by the California Department of Education (CDE).  (42 USC 1776) 
 
Meal Sales 
 
Meals may be sold to students, district employees, Board members, and employees or 
members of the fund or association maintaining the cafeteria.  (Education Code 38082) 
 
In addition, meals may be sold to nonstudents, including parents/guardians, volunteers, 
students' siblings, or other individuals, who are on campus for a legitimate purpose. Any 
meals served to nonstudents shall not be subsidized by federal or state reimbursements, food 
service revenues, or U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) foods. 
 
Meal prices, as recommended by the Superintendent or designee and approved by the Board, 
shall be based on the costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 
38084 and 42 USC 1760. 
 
Students who are enrolled in the free or reduced-price meal program shall receive meals free 
of charge or at a reduced price in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative 
regulation. Such students shall not be overtly identified or treated differently from other 
students. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 



 BP 3551(b) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish strategies and procedures for the collection of 
meal payments, including delinquent meal payments, and shall clearly communicate these 
procedures and related district policies to students and parents/guardians. The procedures 
adopted by the Superintendent or designee shall conform with 2 CFR 200.426 and any 
applicable CDE guidance, and shall not overtly identify students with unrecovered or 
delinquent debt or treat them differently than other students. 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's 
general fund. 
 
The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria 
fund.  (Education Code 38103) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through 
school meal programs are allocated only for purposes related to the operation or 
improvement of food services and reasonable and necessary indirect program costs as 
allowed by law. 
 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
Contracts with Outside Services 
 
With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting 
services or management services in one or more district schools.  (Education Code 45103.5; 
42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16) 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
 
Procurement of Foods 
 
To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district 
or by any entity purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. 
Domestic commodity or product means an agricultural commodity that is produced in the  
 
 BP 3551(c) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 



 
United States and a food product that is processed in the United States substantially using 
agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States. (42 USC 1760; 7 CFR 
210.21) 
 
A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the district's food service program 
only as a last resort when the product is not produced or manufactured in the United States in 
sufficient and reasonable quantities of a satisfactory quality, or when competitive bids reveal 
the costs of a United States product are significantly higher than the nondomestic product. In 
such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall retain documentation justifying the 
exception. 
 
Program Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports 
regarding revenues and expenditures related to the food service program. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the 
Administrative Review conducted by the CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food 
service program with federal requirements related to maintenance of the nonprofit school 
food service account, meal charges, paid lunch equity, revenue from nonprogram goods, 
indirect costs, and USDA foods. 
 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 BP 3551(d) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 



 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
38080-38086  Cafeteria, establishment and use 
38090-38095  Cafeterias, funds and accounts 
38100-38103  Cafeterias, allocation of charges 
42646  Alternate payroll procedure 
45103.5  Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions 
49490-49493  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500-49505  School meals 
49554  Contract for services 
49550-49562  Meals for needy students 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
113700-114437  California Retail Food Code 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lunch programs 
1771-1791  Child nutrition, including: 
1773  School breakfast program 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
200.56  Indirect costs, definition 
200.400-200.475  Cost principles 
200 Appendix VII  Indirect cost proposals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 
220.1-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 
250.1-250.70  USDA foods 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, Clarification on Collection of Delinquent Meal 
Payments, and Excess Student Account Balances, Management Bulletin, SNP-03-2017, April 2017 
Clarification for the Use of Alternate Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast 
Programs, Bad Debt Policies, and the Handling of Unpaid Meal Charges, Management Bulletin 
USDA-SNP-06-2015, May 2015 
Cafeteria Funds--Allowable Uses, Management Bulletin NSD-SNP-07-2013, May 2013 
Paid Lunch Equity Requirement, Management Bulletin USDA-SNP-16-2012, October 2012 
Storage and Inventory Management of United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Donated 
Foods, Management Bulletin USDA-FDP-02-2010, August 2010 
Adult and Sibling Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Management 
Bulletin 00-111, July 2000 

 
 
 
Management Resources continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 BP 3551(e) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 



 
Management Resources:  (continued) 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
FAQs About School Meals 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 
Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities SP 60-2016, September 2016 
Overcoming the Unpaid Meal Challenge: Proven Strategies from Our Nation's Schools, September 
2016 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016 
Compliance with and Enforcement of the Buy American Provision in the National School Lunch 
Program, SP 24-2016, February 2016 
Discretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal Programs, SP 17-2014, 
January 2014 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California School Nutrition Association: http://www.calsna.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3551(a) 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 



 
Payments for Meals 
 
With the exception of students who are eligible to receive meals at no cost, students may pay 
on a per-meal basis or may submit payments in advance. The Superintendent or designee 
shall maintain a system for accurately recording payments received and tracking meals 
provided to each student. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
At the beginning of the school year, and whenever a student enrolls during the school year, 
parents/guardians shall be notified of the district's meal payment policies and be encouraged 
to prepay for meals whenever possible. The Superintendent or designee shall communicate 
the district's meal payment policies through multiple methods, including, but not limited to: 
 
1. Explaining the meal charge policy within registration materials provided to 

parents/guardians at the start of the school year 
 
2. Including the policy in print versions of student handbooks, if provided to 

parents/guardians annually 
 
3. Providing the policy whenever parents/guardians are notified regarding the 

application process for free and reduced-price meals, such as in the distribution of 
applications at the start of the school year 

 
4. Posting the policy on the district's web site 
 
5. Establishing a system to notify parents/guardians when a student's meal payment 

account has a low or negative balance 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
In any school that uses a system of meal tickets or other similar medium of exchange rather 
than an electronic point-of-sale system, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a 
process for providing replacement tickets to any student who reports his/her tickets as lost or 
stolen. However, whenever any student reports an excessive number of lost or stolen tickets, 
the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian and may provide an 
alternative method of tracking meal usage for that student. 
 
 
 
 
 AR 3551(b) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 



 
 
In order to avoid potential misuse of a student's food service account by someone other than 
the student in whose name the account has been established, the Superintendent or designee 
shall verify a student's identity when setting up the account and when charging any meal to 
the account. The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any claim that a bill does not 
belong to a student or is inaccurate, shall not require a student to pay a bill that appears to be 
the result of identity theft, and shall open a new account with a new account number for a 
student who appears to be the subject of identity theft. 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Any payments made to a student's food service account shall, if not used within the school 
year, be carried over into the next school year or be refunded to the student's 
parents/guardians. 
 
Unpaid and Delinquent Meal Charges 
 
Students and their parents/guardians shall be notified whenever their account has a low or 
negative balance. Whenever a student's account has an unpaid balance of $50 or more, 
parents/guardians shall be notified in writing that full payment is due within seven school 
days from the date of the notice. 
 
In cases of repeated nonpayment by a student, the Superintendent or designee may contact 
parents/guardians to discuss the reasons for the nonpayment.  The Superintendent or designee 
may evaluate individual circumstances to determine if the student's parents/guardians need 
assistance completing an application for free or reduced-price meals or need referral to social 
services. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may enter into a repayment plan with a student's 
parents/guardians for payment of the student's unpaid meal charge balance over a period of 
time. As necessary, the repayment plan may allow the unrecovered or delinquent debt to 
carry over into the next fiscal year. 
 
The district's efforts to collect debt shall be consistent with district policies and procedures, 
California Department of Education (CDE) guidance, and 2 CFR 200.426. The district shall 
not spend more than the actual debt owed in efforts to recover unpaid meal charges. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the efforts made to collect unpaid 
meal charges and, if applicable, financial documentation showing when the unpaid meal 
balance has become an operating loss. 
 
 
 
 AR 3551(c) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 



 
 
Reimbursement Claims 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the number of meals served each 
day by school site and by category of free, reduced-price, and full-price meals.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall submit reimbursement claims for school meals to the CDE 
using the online Child Nutrition Information and Payment System. 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 
All proceeds from food sales and other services offered by the cafeteria shall be deposited in 
the cafeteria fund as provided by law. The income and expenditures of any cafeteria 
revolving account established by the Governing Board shall be recorded as income and 
expenditures of the cafeteria fund.  (Education Code 38090, 38091) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
 
The cafeteria fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the Board as 
necessary for the operation of school cafeterias in accordance with Education Code 38100-
38103, 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix VII, and the California School Accounting Manual. 
 
Any charges to, or transfers from, a food service program shall be dated and accompanied by 
a written explanation of the expenditure's purpose and basis.  (Education Code 38101) 
 
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds) 
 
Indirect costs charged to the food service program shall be based on either the district's prior 
year indirect cost rate or the statewide average approved indirect cost rate for the second 
prior fiscal year, whichever is less.  (Education Code 38101) 
 
Net cash resources in the nonprofit school food service shall not exceed three months average 
expenditures. (2 CFR 220.14) 
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that foods received through the U.S. Department 
of Agriculture (USDA) are handled, stored, and distributed in facilities which:  (7 CFR 
250.14) 
 
1. Are sanitary and free from rodent, bird, insect, and other animal infestation 
 
2. Safeguard foods against theft, spoilage, and other loss 
 
3. Maintain foods at proper storage temperatures 
 AR 3551(d) 
 
 

FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 



 
 

4. Store foods off the floor in a manner to allow for adequate ventilation 
 

5. Take other protective measures as may be necessary 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain inventories of USDA foods in accordance 
with 7 CFR 250.59 and CDE procedures, and shall ensure that foods are used before their 
expiration dates. 
 

USDA donated foods shall be used in school lunches as far as practicable.  USDA foods also 
may be used in other nonprofit food service activities, including, but not limited to, school 
breakfasts or other meals, a la carte foods sold to students, meals served to adults directly 
involved in the operation and administration of the food service and to other school staff, and 
training in nutrition, health, food service, or general home economics instruction for students, 
provided that any revenues from such activities accrue to the district's nonprofit food service 
account.  (7 CFR 250.59) 
 

Contracts with Outside Services 
 

The term of any contract for food service management or consulting services shall not exceed 
one year. Any renewal of the contract or further requests for proposals to provide such 
services shall be considered on a year-to-year basis.  (Education Code 45103.5; 7 CFR 
210.16) 
 

Any contract for management of the food service operation shall be approved by CDE and 
comply with the conditions in Education Code 49554 and 7 CFR 210.16 as applicable. The 
district shall retain control of the quality, extent, and general nature of its food services, 
including prices to be charged to students for meals, and shall monitor the food service 
operation through periodic on-site visits.  The district shall not enter into a contract with a 
food service company to provide a la carte food services only, unless the company agrees to 
offer free, reduced-price, and full-price reimbursable meals to all eligible students. 
(Education Code 49554; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16) 
 

Any contract for consulting services shall not result in the supervision of food service 
classified staff by the management consultant, nor shall it result in the elimination of any 
food service classified staff or position or have any adverse effect on the wages, benefits, or 
other terms and conditions of employment of classified food service staff or positions. All 
persons providing consulting services shall be subject to applicable employment conditions 
related to health and safety as listed in Education Code 45103.5.  (Education Code 45103.5) 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3515.6 - Criminal Background Checks for Contractors) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 4212 - Appointments and Conditions of Employment) 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: May 2017 
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3580(a) 
 
DISTRICT RECORDS 



 
 
Classification of Records 
 
Records means all records, maps, books, papers, and documents of a school district required 
by law to be prepared or retained as necessary or convenient to the discharge of official duty. 
(5 CCR 16020) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
 
Before January 1, the Superintendent or designee shall review the prior year's records and 
shall classify them as either a Class 1 (Permanent), Class 2 (Optional), or Class 3 
(Disposable) record.  (5 CCR 16022) 
 
Records of continuing nature (active and useful for administrative, legal, fiscal, or other 
purposes over a period of years) shall not be classified until such usefulness has ceased.  (5 
CCR 16022) 
 
An inventory of equipment shall be a continuing record and shall not be classified until the 
inventory is superseded or until the equipment is removed from district ownership.  (5 CCR 
16022) 
 
(cf. 3440 - Inventories) 
 
A student's cumulative record is a continuing record until the student ceases to be enrolled in 
the district.  (5 CCR 16022) 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
When an electronic or photographed copy of a Class 1 (Permanent) record has been made, 
the copy may be classified as Class 1 (Permanent) and the original classified as either Class 2 
(Optional) or Class 3 (Disposable).  However, no original record that is basic to any required 
audit may be destroyed prior to the second July 1st succeeding the completion of the audit.  
(Education Code 35254) 
 
Class 1 - Permanent Records 
 
The original of each of the following records, or one exact copy of it when the original is 
required by law to be filed with another agency, is a Class 1 (Permanent) record and shall be 
retained indefinitely unless microfilmed in accordance with 5 CCR 16022:  (5 CCR 16023) 
 
1. Annual Reports 
 

a. Official budget 
 
b. Financial reports of all funds, including cafeteria and student body funds 
 

 AR 3580(b) 
 
 



DISTRICT RECORDS  (continued) 
 

 
c. Audit of all funds 

 
d. Average daily attendance, including Period 1 and Period 2 reports 

 
e. Other major annual reports, including: 

 
(1) Those containing information relating to property, activities, financial 

condition, or transactions 
 

(2) Those declared by Governing Board minutes to be permanent 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3452 - Student Activity Funds) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 
 
2. Official Actions 
 

a. Minutes of the Board or Board committees, including the text of rules, 
regulations, policies, or resolutions included by reference only 

 
b. The call for and the result of any elections called, conducted, or canvassed by 

the Board 
 

c. Records transmitted by another agency pertaining to its action with respect to 
district reorganization 

 
(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds) 
(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 
 
3. Personnel Records 
 

Class 1 (Permanent) records include all detailed records relating to employment; 
assignment; amounts and dates of service rendered; termination or dismissal of an 
employee in any position; sick leave record; rate of compensation, salaries, or wages 
paid; and deductions or withholdings made and the person or agency to whom such 
amounts were paid.  In lieu of the detailed records, a complete proven summary 
payroll record for each employee containing the same data may be classified as a 
Class 1 (Permanent) record and the detailed records may then be classified as Class 3 
(Disposable) records. 
 
Information of a derogatory nature as defined in Education Code 44031 shall be 
retained as a Class 1 (Permanent) record only when the time for filing a grievance has 
passed or the document has been sustained by the grievance process. 

 AR 3580(c) 
 
 



DISTRICT RECORDS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
 

4. Student Records 
 

The records of enrollment and scholarship for each student required by 5 CCR 432 
and all records pertaining to any accident or injury involving a minor for which a 
claim for damages had been filed as required by law shall be classified as Class 1 
(Permanent) records. These include any related policy of liability insurance, except 
that these records cease to be Class 1 (Permanent) records one year after the claim has 
been settled or the statute of limitations has expired. 

 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 
(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 
 
5. Property Records 
 

Class 1 (Permanent) records include all detailed records relating to land, buildings, 
and equipment.  In lieu of detailed records, a complete property ledger may be 
classified as a Class 1 (Permanent) record. The detailed records may then be 
classified as Class 3 (Disposable) records if the property ledger includes all fixed 
assets; an equipment inventory; and, for each piece of property, the date of 
acquisition, name of previous owner, a legal description, amount paid, and 
comparable data if the unit is disposed of. 

 
(cf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property) 
 
Class 2 - Optional Records 
 
Any records considered temporarily worth keeping, but which are not Class 1 records, may 
be classified as Class 2 (Optional) records and shall be retained until reclassified as Class 3 
(Disposable) records. If, by agreement of the Board and Superintendent or designee, 
classification of the prior year records has not been made before January 1 as specified in 5 
CCR 16022, all records of the prior year may be classified as Class 2 (Optional) records 
pending further review and classification within one year. (5 CCR 16024) 
 
Class 3 - Disposable Records 
 
All records not classified as Class 1 (Permanent) or as Class 2 (Optional) records shall be 
classified as Class 3 (Disposable) records. These include, but are not limited to, detailed 
records basic to audit, including those relating to attendance, average daily attendance, or 
business or financial transactions; detailed records used in preparing another report; teachers'  
 
 AR 3580(d) 
 
 



DISTRICT RECORDS  (continued) 
 
 
registers if all information required by 5 CCR 432 is retained in other records or if the 
General Records pages are removed from the register and classified as Class 1 (Permanent) 
records; and periodic reports, including daily, weekly, and monthly reports, bulletins, and 
instructions. (5 CCR 16025) 
 
All Class 3 (Disposable) records shall be destroyed during the third school year after the 
school year in which the records originated. In addition, Class 3 (Disposable) records shall 
not be destroyed until after the third school year following the completion of any legally 
required audit or the retention period required by any agency other than the State of 
California, whichever is later.  A continuing record shall not be destroyed until the fourth 
year after it has been classified as a Class 3 (Disposable) record.  (5 CCR 16026, 16027) 
 
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 
 
Electronically Stored Information 
 
All electronically stored information related to the conduct of district business, including 
information created, saved, sent, or received on a district employee's or Board member's 
personal account or device, shall be saved as an electronic file to a district-provided account 
or device and retained in accordance with the section "Classification of Records" above. 
Such information includes, but is not limited to, email, text messages, instant messages, 
computer files, and other electronic communications related to district business. In addition, 
when appropriate, the information may be printed and physically filed in a way that allows it 
to be easily retrieved when needed. 
 
(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 
 
Employees shall be required to regularly purge their email accounts and district-issued 
computers, cell phones, and other communication devices of personal electronically stored 
information and other information unrelated to district business. The Superintendent or 
designee may check for appropriate use of any district-owned equipment at any time. 
 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 
 
Any person to whom a district-owned computer, cell phone, or other electronic 
communication device is provided shall be notified about the district's electronic information 
management system and, as necessary, provided training on the effective use of the device. 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: May 2017 
All Personnel BP 4127(a) 
 4227 
TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES 4327 



 
 
The Governing Board desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the district's sports and 
interscholastic athletic programs in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and 
safety of student athletes. 
 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other 
than a substitute employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a 
temporary employee in a limited assignment capacity. (5 CCR 5590) 
 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 
 
When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic team coach, the position shall 
first be made available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district. 
(Education Code 44919) 
 
All coaches shall be subject to Board policies, administrative regulations, and California 
Interscholastic Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct. 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
(cf. 5141.1 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
 
Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591) 
 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
 
Qualifications and Training 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in 
accordance with law and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess 
an appropriate level of competence, knowledge, and skill. 
 
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored 
interscholastic athletic program shall, prior to beginning his/her duties, submit to the 
Superintendent or designee either an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of 
Investigation criminal background clearance. (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 
 
 
 BP 4127(b) 
  4227 
  4327 



 
 
TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES  (continued) 
 
 
Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee 
shall certify to the Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is 
sooner, that the coach meets the qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593.  
By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State Board of Education that the 
provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594) 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the 
extent to which the district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including 
those required pursuant to Education Code 33479.6 and 49032, and by district policy. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 BP 4127(c) 
  4227 
  4327 



 
 
TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35179-35179.7  Interscholastic athletics 
33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
44010  Sex offense 
44011  Controlled substance offense 
44332-44332.5  Temporary certificates 
44424  Conviction of a crime 
44808  Liability when students are not on school property 
44916 Written statement indicating employment status 
44919  Classification of temporary employees 
45125.01  Interagency agreements for criminal record information 
45347  Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff 
45349  Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students 
49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
49030-49034  Performance-enhancing substances 
49406  Examination for tuberculosis 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities 
5590-5596  Duties of temporary athletic team coaches 
COURT DECISIONS 
Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District, (2011) 192 Cal. App. 4th 187 
Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma County Union High School District, (2003) 29 Cal. 4th 911 
CTA v. Rialto Unified School District, (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627San Jose Teachers Association, CTA, 
NEA v. Barozzi, (1991) 230 Cal.App.3d 1376 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Steroids and Students: What Boards Need to Know, Policy Brief, July 2005 
CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 
Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE 
10-11 Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
(ASCC), July 20, 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://ww.csba.org 
California Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.ca-at.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
National Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.nata.org 

 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 
All Personnel AR 4127(a) 
 4227 
TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES 4327 



 
 
Qualifications 
 
Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593) 
 
1. Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency 

procedures, as evidenced by one or more of the following: 
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic 
injuries and possession of a valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card 

 
b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card 
 
c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card 
 
d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic 

Trainers' Association (NATA/CATA) 
 
e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience 

under the supervision of an athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in 
team athletic training and conditioning 

 
2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by 

one or more of the following: 
 

a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques 
 
b. Completion of inservice programs arranged by a school district or county 

office of education 
 

c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game 
being coached 

 
d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being 

coached 
 

e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level 
or above in the sport being coached 

 
3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being 

coached, the league rules, and, at the high school level, regulations of the California 
Interscholastic Federation (CIF) 

 

4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport 
participation, as evidenced by one or more of the following: 

 AR 4127(b) 
 4227 
 4327 



 
 
TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES  (continued) 
 
 

a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary 
school positions and adolescent or sports psychology for secondary school 
positions 

 

b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of 
youth 

 
c. Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program 

 
The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in 
appropriate training courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons 
serve under the direct supervision of a fully qualified coach until the competencies are met.  
(5 CCR 5593) 
 

Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria 
specified in 5 CCR 5593 required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the 
district.  Any volunteer who does not meet such criteria shall serve only under the 
supervision of a fully qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic program. 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
 
Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers 
 

In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer 
assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592) 
 
1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit 

certificated teachers from teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable 
every four years, from a licensed physician or other person approved by the district 

 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
 
2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, 

or 44424, or any offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to 
associate with children 

 
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall 
obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in 
accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
 
 
 AR 4127(c) 
 4227 
 4327 



 
 
TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES  (continued) 
 
 
Code of Ethical Conduct 
 
Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic 
programs and activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596) 
 
1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches 
 
2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials 
 
3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct 
 
4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority 
 
5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times 
 
6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players 
 
7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and 

standards of the game 
 
8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment 
 
9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic 

program at any public or private postsecondary educational institution 
 
10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in 

order to be eligible to participate in athletics 
 
11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, 

anabolic steroids, or any substance to increase physical development or performance 
that is not approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, U.S. Surgeon 
General, or the American Medical Association. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 AR 4127(d) 
 4227 
 4327 



 
 
TEMPORARY ATHLETIC TEAM COACHES  (continued) 
 
 
 
 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
 
12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools 
 
13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by 

the district and the league in which the district participates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: May 2017 
Administrative and Supervisory Personnel BP 4312.1(a) 
 
CONTRACTS 



 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of employing qualified and competent 
individuals to manage district programs and to assist the Superintendent in coordinating 
efforts to achieve district goals and objectives. To that end, the Board may fill certificated 
administrative and supervisory positions and classified senior management positions on a 
contract basis. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
(cf. 4313.2 - Demotion/Reassignment) 
(cf. 4314 - Transfers) 
 
The Board may offer a continuing contract of up to four years to any deputy, associate, or 
assistant superintendent; any certificated employee holding a position requiring a supervision 
or administration credential; or any senior manager of the classified service.  (Education 
Code 35031, 44929.20) 
 
Prior to entering into any such contract, the Board and Superintendent shall consider the 
financial impact of the contract on the district.  The proposed contract shall also be reviewed 
by legal counsel to ensure that all legally required provisions are included in the contract and 
to address any potentially adverse obligations for the district. 
 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
The Board may deliberate in the closed session of a regular meeting about the terms of an 
employment contract for a deputy, associate, or assistant superintendent; other certificated 
employee holding a position requiring a supervision or administration credential; or a senior 
manager of the classified service. Discussions regarding salary, salary schedule, or other 
compensation may occur in the closed session of a regular meeting only between the Board 
and its designated representative(s), as permitted under Government Code 54957.6 (the 
"labor exception") for the purpose of reviewing the Board's position and/or instructing the 
designated representative(s) prior to or during bona fide negotiations with the employee. 
Such deliberations shall not be held during a special meeting.  (Government Code 54956, 
54957, 54957.6) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 
The Board shall take final action on an employment contract during an open session of a 
regularly scheduled Board meeting, and that action shall be reflected in the Board's minutes. 
At that meeting, prior to taking action, the Board shall orally report a summary of the 
recommendation for the final action on salary or compensation in the form of fringe benefits.  
(Government Code 3511.1, 53262, 54953) 
 
 BP 4312.1(b) 
 
 



CONTRACTS  (continued) 
 
 
Copies of any contract and other public records created or received in the process of 
developing the recommendation related to the salary, benefits, and other compensation shall 
be available to the public upon request.  (Government Code 53262, 54953) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 
 
Extension of Contract/Reemployment 
 

A contract shall be extended only by Board action and subsequent to a satisfactory evaluation 
of the employee's performance. No employment contract shall include a provision for 
automatic renewal of the contract. 
 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
 

During the term of the contract and with the consent of the employee involved, the Board 
may reelect or reemploy the employee starting on the next succeeding first day of July and 
based on terms and conditions mutually agreed upon by the Board and the employee.  
(Education Code 35031) 
 
If the Board decides not to reelect or reemploy a deputy, associate, or assistant 
superintendent or a senior manager of the classified service upon the expiration of his/her 
term, it shall notify the employee in writing 45 calendar days prior to the expiration of the 
term of the contract.  (Education Code 35031) 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
Termination of Contract 
 

The Board may terminate an employment contract prior to its expiration date in accordance 
with the conditions and process specified in the contract. 
 
Every employment contract shall include a provision specifying the legal maximum cash 
settlement that the employee may receive in the event that the contract is terminated prior to 
its expiration date.  (Government Code 3511.2, 53260) 
 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 
 
In addition, all employment contracts shall include a provision that, if the employee is 
convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her office or position, he/she shall fully 
reimburse the district for payments he/she receives as paid leave salary pending investigation 
or as cash settlement upon his/her termination and for any funds expended by the district in 
his/her criminal legal defense.  (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 BP 4312.1(c) 
 



 
CONTRACTS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35030  Title of deputy, associate or assistant superintendent for certain positions 
35031  Term of employment 
44842  Automatic declining of employment 
44843  Notice of employment to county superintendent 
44929.20  Continuing contract 
44951  Continuation in position unless notified 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3511.1-3511.2  Local agency executives 
53260-53264  Employment contracts 
54953  Oral summary of recommended salary and benefits of district executive 
54954  Time and place of regular meetings 
54956  Brown Act - Open meeting laws; special meetings 
54957  Closed session, personnel matters 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
57 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 209 (1974) 

 
Management Resources: 

ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 
California Office of the Attorney General: https://oag.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 
Students AR 5145.3(a) 
 



NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT 
 
 
The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for 
coordinating the district's efforts to comply with applicable state and federal civil rights laws, 
including Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Age Discrimination Act 
of 1975, and to answer inquiries regarding the district's nondiscrimination policies. The 
individual(s) shall also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform 
Complaint Procedures as the responsible employee to handle complaints alleging unlawful 
discrimination targeting a student, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying, based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, national origin, 
nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, 
pregnancy, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, or any other legally protected status or association with a person or group 
with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. The coordinator/compliance 
officer(s) may be contacted at:  (Education Code 234.1; 5 CCR 4621) 
 

Superintendent 
1000 Yulupa Avenue 
Santa Rosa  CA  95409 
(707) 542-7375 

 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Measures to Prevent Discrimination 
 
To prevent unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
retaliation, and bullying, of students at district schools or in school activities and to ensure 
equal access of all students to the educational program, the Superintendent or designee shall 
implement the following measures: 
 
1. Publicize the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures, 

including the coordinator/compliance officer's contact information, to students, 
parents/guardians, employees, volunteers, and the general public by posting them on 
the district's web site and other prominent locations and providing easy access to 
them through district-supported social media, when available. 

 
2. Post in a prominent and conspicuous location on the district and school web sites 

information regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a 
student's sex, gender, gender identity, pregnancy, and parental status, including the 
following:  (Education Code 221.61) 

 
 
 
 
 AR 5145.3(b) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 

a. The name and contact information of the district's Title IX coordinator, 
including the phone number and email address 

 
b. The rights of students and the public and the responsibilities of the district 

under Title IX, including a list of rights as specified in Education Code 221.8 
and web links to information about those rights and responsibilities located on 
the web sites of the Office for Equal Opportunity and the U.S. Department of 
Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) 

 
c. A description of how to file a complaint of noncompliance with Title IX in 

accordance with AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures, which shall 
include: 

 
(1) An explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint 

must be filed after an alleged incident of discrimination has occurred 
and how a complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations 

 
(2) An explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the 

complainant may further pursue the complaint, including web links to 
this information on the OCR's web site 

 
(3) A web link to the OCR complaints form and the contact information 

for the office, including the phone number and email address for the 
office 

 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
 
3. Provide to students a handbook that contains age-appropriate information that clearly 

describes the district's nondiscrimination policy, procedures for filing a complaint, 
and resources available to students who feel that they have been the victim of any 
such behavior.  (Education Code 234.1) 

 
4. Annually notify all students and parents/guardians of the district's nondiscrimination 

policy, including its responsibility to provide a safe, nondiscriminatory school 
environment for all students, including transgender and gender-nonconforming 
students.  The notice shall inform students and parents/guardians that they may 
request to meet with the compliance officer to determine how best to accommodate or 
resolve concerns that may arise from the district's implementation of its 
nondiscrimination policies. The notice shall also inform all students and 
parents/guardians that, to the extent possible, the district will address any individual 
student's interests and concerns in private. 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 AR 5145.3(c) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
5. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students and parents/guardians, 

including those with limited English proficiency, are notified of how to access the 
relevant information provided in the district's nondiscrimination policy and related 
complaint procedures, notices, and forms in a language they can understand. 

 
 If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single 

primary language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and 
notices concerning nondiscrimination shall be translated into that language in 
accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district 
shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant information for parents/guardians with 
limited English proficiency. 

 
6. Provide to students, employees, volunteers, and parents/guardians age-appropriate 

training and information regarding the district's nondiscrimination policy; what 
constitutes prohibited discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying; how and to whom a report of an incident should 
be made; and how to guard against segregating or stereotyping students when 
providing instruction, guidance, supervision, or other services to them. Such training 
and information shall include details of guidelines the district may use to provide a 
discrimination-free environment for all district students, including transgender and 
gender-nonconforming students. 

 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
7. At the beginning of each school year, inform school employees that any employee 

who witnesses any act of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, against a student is required to intervene if it is 
safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 

 
8. At the beginning of each school year, inform each principal or designee of the 

district's responsibility to provide appropriate assistance or resources to protect 
students' privacy rights and ensure their safety from threatened or potentially 
discriminatory behavior. 

 
Enforcement of District Policy 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce BP 5145.3 - 
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.  As needed, these actions may include any of the following: 
 
1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti 
 
 AR 5145.3(d) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 
 
2. Providing training to students, staff, and parents/guardians about how to recognize 

unlawful discrimination, how to report it or file a complaint, and how to respond 
 
3. Disseminating and/or summarizing the district's policy and regulation regarding 

unlawful discrimination 
 
4. Consistent with the laws regarding the confidentiality of student and personnel 

records, communicating the school's response to students, parents/guardians, and the 
community 

 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action against students, employees, and anyone 

determined to have engaged in wrongdoing in violation of district policy, including 
any student who is found to have filed a complaint of discrimination that he/she knew 
was not true 

 
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 
 
Process for Initiating and Responding to Complaints 
 
Any student who feels that he/she has been subjected to unlawful discrimination described 
above or in district policy is strongly encouraged to immediately contact the compliance 
officer, principal, or any other staff member. In addition, any student who observes any such 
incident is strongly encouraged to report the incident to the compliance officer or principal, 
whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 
 
Any school employee who observes an incident of unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, or to whom such an incident 
is reported shall report the incident to the compliance officer or principal within a school day, 
whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 
 
Any school employee who witnesses an incident of unlawful discrimination, including 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall immediately intervene 
to stop the incident when it is safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 
 
 AR 5145.3(e) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
When a verbal report of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, is made to or received by the principal or compliance 
officer, he/she shall make a note of the report and encourage the student or parent/guardian to 
file the complaint in writing, pursuant to the provisions in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 
Procedures. Once notified verbally or in writing, the principal or compliance officer shall 
begin the investigation and shall implement immediate measures necessary to stop the 
discrimination and ensure that all students have access to the educational program and a safe 
school environment. Any interim measures adopted to address unlawful discrimination shall, 
to the extent possible, not disadvantage the complainant or a student who is the victim of the 
alleged unlawful discrimination. 
 
Any report or complaint alleging unlawful discrimination by the principal, compliance 
officer, or any other person to whom a report would ordinarily be made or complaint filed 
shall instead be made to or filed with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine 
how the complaint will be investigated. 
 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
 
Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students 
 
Gender identity of a student means the student's gender-related identity, appearance, or 
behavior as determined from the student's internal sense of his/her gender, whether or not 
that gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior is different from that traditionally 
associated with the student's physiology or assigned sex at birth. 
 
Gender expression means a student's gender-related appearance and behavior, whether 
stereotypically associated with the student's assigned sex at birth.  (Education Code 210.7) 
 
Gender transition refers to the process in which a student changes from living and 
identifying as the sex assigned to the student at birth to living and identifying as the sex that 
corresponds to the student's gender identity. 
 
Gender-nonconforming student means a student whose gender expression differs from 
stereotypical expectations. 
 
Transgender student means a student whose gender identity is different from the gender 
he/she was assigned at birth. 
 
Regardless of whether they are sexual in nature, acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical 
aggression, intimidation, or hostility that are based on sex, gender identity, or gender 
expression, or that have the purpose or effect of producing a negative impact on the student's 
academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational  
 
 AR 5145.3(f) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
environment are prohibited. Examples of the types of conduct which are prohibited in the 
district and which may constitute gender-based harassment include, but are not limited to: 
 
1. Refusing to address a student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her 

gender identity 
 
2. Disciplining or disparaging a student or excluding him/her from participating in 

activities for behavior or appearance that is consistent with his/her gender identity or 
that does not conform to stereotypical notions of masculinity or femininity, as 
applicable 

 
3. Blocking a student's entry to the bathroom that corresponds to his/her gender identity 
 
4. Taunting a student because he/she participates in an athletic activity more typically 

favored by a student of the other sex 
 
5. Revealing a student's transgender status to individuals who do not have a legitimate 

need for the information, without the student's consent 
 
6. Use of gender-specific slurs 
 
7. Physical assault of a student motivated by hostility toward him/her because of his/her 

gender, gender identity, or gender expression 
 
The district's uniform complaint procedures (AR 1312.3) shall be used to report and resolve 
complaints alleging discrimination against transgender and gender-nonconforming students. 
 
Examples of bases for complaints include, but are not limited to, the above list, as well as 
improper rejection by the district of a student's asserted gender identity, denial of access to 
facilities that correspond with a student's gender identity, improper disclosure of a student's 
transgender status, discriminatory enforcement of a dress code, and other instances of 
gender-based harassment. 
 
To ensure that transgender and gender-nonconforming students are afforded the same rights, 
benefits, and protections provided to all students by law and Board policy, the district shall 
address each situation on a case-by-case basis, in accordance with the following guidelines: 
 
1. Right to privacy: A student's transgender or gender-nonconforming status is his/her 

private information and the district shall only disclose the information to others with 
the student's prior written consent, except when the disclosure is otherwise required 
by law or when the district has compelling evidence that disclosure is necessary to 
preserve the student's physical or mental well-being.  In any case, the district shall  
 

 AR 5145.3(g) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 only allow disclosure of a student's personally identifiable information to employees 

with a legitimate educational interest as determined by the district pursuant to 34 CFR 
99.31. Any district employee to whom a student's transgender or gender-
nonconforming status is disclosed shall keep the student's information confidential. 
When disclosure of a student's gender identity is made to a district employee by a 
student, the employee shall seek the student's permission to notify the compliance 
officer.  If the student refuses to give permission, the employee shall keep the 
student's information confidential, unless he/she is required to disclose or report the 
student's information pursuant to this administrative regulation, and shall inform the 
student that honoring the student's request may limit the district's ability to meet the 
student's needs related to his/her status as a transgender or gender-nonconforming 
student. If the student permits the employee to notify the compliance officer, the 
employee shall do so within three school days. 

 
 As appropriate given the student's need for support, the compliance officer may 

discuss with the student any need to disclose the student's transgender or gender-
nonconformity status or gender identity or gender expression to his/her 
parents/guardians and/or others, including other students, teacher(s), or other adults 
on campus. The district shall offer support services, such as counseling, to students 
who wish to inform their parents/guardians of their status and desire assistance in 
doing so. 

 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
2. Determining a Student's Gender Identity: The compliance officer shall accept the 

student's assertion of his/her gender identity and begin to treat the student consistent 
with his/her gender identity unless district personnel present a credible and 
supportable basis for believing that the student's assertion is for an improper purpose. 

 
3. Addressing a Student's Transition Needs: The compliance officer shall arrange a 

meeting with the student and, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians to identify and 
develop strategies for ensuring that the student's access to education programs and 
activities is maintained. The meeting shall discuss the transgender or gender-
nonconforming student's rights and how those rights may affect and be affected by 
the rights of other students and shall address specific subjects related to the student's 
access to facilities and to academic or educational support programs, services, or 
activities, including, but not limited to, sports and other competitive endeavors. In 
addition, the compliance officer shall identify specific school site employee(s) to 
whom the student may report any problem related to his/her status as a transgender or 
gender-nonconforming individual, so that prompt action could be taken to address it.  
Alternatively, if appropriate and desired by the student, the school may form a  
 

 AR 5145.3(h) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 support team for the student that will meet periodically to assess whether the 

arrangements for the student are meeting his/her educational needs and providing 
equal access to programs and activities, educate appropriate staff about the student's 
transition, and serve as a resource to the student to better protect the student from 
gender-based discrimination. 

 
4. Accessibility to Sex-Segregated Facilities, Programs, and Activities:  When the 

district maintains sex-segregated facilities, such as restrooms and locker rooms, or 
offers sex-segregated programs and activities, such as physical education classes, 
intermural sports, and interscholastic athletic programs, students shall be permitted to 
access facilities and participate in programs and activities consistent with their gender 
identity. To address any student's privacy concerns in using sex-segregated facilities, 
the district shall offer available options such as a gender-neutral or single-use 
restroom or changing area, a bathroom stall with a door, an area in the locker room 
separated by a curtain or screen, access to a staff member's office, or use of the locker 
room before or after the other students. However, the district shall not require a 
student to utilize these options because he/she is transgender or gender-
nonconforming. In addition, a student shall be permitted to participate in accordance 
with his/her gender identity in other circumstances where students are separated by 
gender, such as for class discussions, yearbook pictures, and field trips. A student's 
right to participate in a sex-segregated activity in accordance with his/her gender 
identity shall not render invalid or inapplicable any other eligibility rule established 
for participation in the activity. 

 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
 
5. Student Records:  A student's legal name or gender as entered on the mandatory 

student record required pursuant to 5 CCR 432 shall only be changed pursuant to a 
court order.  However, at the written request of a student or, if appropriate, his/her 
parents/guardians, the district shall use the student's preferred name and pronouns 
consistent with his/her gender identity on all other district-related documents. Such 
preferred name may be added to the student's record and official documents as 
permitted by law. 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
 
6. Names and Pronouns: If a student so chooses, district personnel shall be required to 

address the student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her gender 
identity, without the necessity of a court order or a change to his/her official district  
 

 AR 5145.3(i) 
 



 
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 record.  However, inadvertent slips or honest mistakes by district personnel in the use 

of the student's name and/or consistent pronouns will, in general, not constitute a 
violation of this administrative regulation or the accompanying district policy. 

 
7. Uniforms/Dress Code: A student has the right to dress in a manner consistent with 

his/her gender identity, subject to any dress code adopted on a school site. 
 
(cf. 5132 - Dress Code) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: May 2017 
Instruction BP 6142.93(a) 
 



SCIENCE INSTRUCTION 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that science education should focus on giving students an 
understanding of the biological and physical aspects of science, key scientific concepts, and 
methods of scientific inquiry and investigation. Students should become familiar with the 
natural world and the interrelationship of science, mathematics, technology, and engineering. 
As part of science instruction, students should learn how to apply scientific knowledge and 
reasoning. 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 5145.8 - Refusal to Harm or Destroy Animals) 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
Philosophical and religious theories that are based, at least in part, on faith and are not 
subject to scientific test and refutation shall not be discussed during science instruction. 
 
(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs) 
 
The district's academic standards for science instruction shall meet or exceed the California 
Next Generation Science Standards (CA-NGSS).  The Superintendent or designee shall 
ensure that curricula used in district schools are aligned with these standards and the state 
curriculum framework. 
 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students have access to and are enrolled in a 
broad course of study including science courses. 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide certificated staff with opportunities to 
participate in professional development activities designed to enhance their knowledge of 
district-adopted academic standards, instructional strategies for teaching science, and 
changes in scientific theories. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement appropriate safety measures for 
science laboratory classes, including, but not limited to, staff and student safety training, use 
of eye safety devices, hearing protection, first aid procedures, regular equipment 
maintenance, safe use of heat sources, safe use and disposal of hazardous chemicals, proper 
ventilation, prevention of exposure to bloodborne pathogens from sharp instruments, fire  
 
 BP 6142.93(b) 
 



 
SCIENCE INSTRUCTION (continued) 
 
 
prevention and control, an emergency response plan, and evacuation procedures. 
Parents/guardians shall be informed of the types of science laboratory activities that will be 
conducted and encouraged to sign consent forms for their child's participation. 
 
(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 
(cf. 4157/4257/4357- Employee Safety) 
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board regarding the 
implementation and effectiveness of the science curriculum at each grade level. At a 
minimum, each report shall address the extent to which the program is aligned with the CA-
NGSS, any applicable student assessment results, and feedback from students, 
parents/guardians, and staff regarding the program. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
8774  Residential outdoor science program 
32030-32034 Eye safety 
32255-32255.6 Student's right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals 
33475-33475.5  Model curriculum on stem cell science 
49340-49341  Hazardous substances education 
51210  Areas of study, grades 1 through 6 
51210.3  Elementary science coach 
51220  Areas of study, grades 7 through 12 
51225.3  High school graduation 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
CODE OF REGULATION, TITLE 5 
14030  Science laboratories, design specifications 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
5191  Occupational exposure to hazardous chemicals in laboratories; chemical hygiene plan 

 
 
 
Management Resources: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 BP 6142.93(c) 
 



 
SCIENCE INSTRUCTION (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Supporting Implementation of the California Next Generation Science Standards (CA-NGSS), 
Governance Brief, November 2016 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Science Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2016 
Next Generation Science Standards Systems Implementation Plan for California, 2014 
California Next Generation Science Standards, 2013 
Science Safety Handbook for California Public Schools, 2012 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Alliance for Next Generation Science Standards: http://cdefoundation.org/stem/ca4ngss 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Science Teachers Association: http://www.cascience.org 
U.S. Department of Education, STEM Education: http://www.ed.gov/stem 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 
Instruction BP 6145(a) 
 



EXTRACURRICULAR AND COCURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that extracurricular and cocurricular activities enrich the 
educational and social development of students and enhance students' feelings of 
connectedness with the schools. The district shall encourage and support student participation 
in extracurricular and cocurricular activities without compromising the integrity and purpose 
of the educational program. 
 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
 
Prerequisites for student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities shall be 
limited to those that have been demonstrated to be essential to the success of the activity. No 
extracurricular or cocurricular program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately 
on the basis of any actual or perceived characteristic listed as a prohibited category of 
discrimination in state or federal law, nor shall any student's participation in an 
extracurricular or cocurricular activity be required or refused on those bases.  (5 CCR 4925) 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 
 
Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination in the district's extracurricular or 
cocurricular programs or activities shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform 
Complaint Procedures. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Unless specifically authorized by law, no student shall be charged a fee for his/her 
participation in educational activities, including extracurricular and cocurricular activities 
and materials or equipment related to such activities. (Education Code 49010, 49011) 
 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 3452 - Student Activity Funds) 
 
Eligibility Requirements 
 
To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 
7-8 must demonstrate satisfactory educational progress in the previous grading period, 
including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
1. Maintenance of a minimum of 2.0 grade point average on a 4.0 scale in all enrolled 

classes 
 
 
 BP 6145(b) 
 



 
EXTRACURRICULAR AND COCURRICULAR ACTIVITIES  (continued) 
 
 
2. Maintenance of minimum progress toward meeting high school graduation 

requirements 
 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may grant ineligible students a probationary period not to 
exceed one semester. Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required 
standards by the end of the probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation. 
(Education Code 35160.5) 
 
Any decision regarding the eligibility of a homeless student, foster youth, or child of an 
active duty military family for extracurricular or cocurricular activities shall be made by the 
Superintendent or designee in accordance with Education Code 48850 and 49701. 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in 
extracurricular and cocurricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious 
enough to warrant loss of this privilege. 
 
Student Conduct at Extracurricular/Cocurricular Events 
 
When attending or participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities on or off 
campus, district students are subject to district policies and regulations relating to student 
conduct. Students who violate district policies and regulations may be subject to discipline 
including, but not limited to, suspension, expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, or 
denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities in accordance with Board 
policy and administrative regulation. When appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall 
notify local law enforcement. 
 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
Annual Policy Review 
 
The Board shall annually review this policy and implementing regulations. (Education Code 
35160.5) 
 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 

 BP 6145(c) 
 



 
EXTRACURRICULAR AND COCURRICULAR ACTIVITIES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35145  Public meetings 
35160.5  District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 
35179  Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 
35181  Students' responsibilities 
48850  Participation of homeless students and foster youth in extracurricular activities and 
interscholastic sports 
48930-48938  Student organizations 
49010-49013  Student fees 
49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
49700-49704  Education of children of military families 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 9, Section 5 Common school system 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
350  Fees not permitted 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state 
financial assistance 
5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
COURT DECISIONS 
Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 
 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 
CALIFORNIA TASK FORCE REPORT TO THE LEGISLATURE 
Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children:  Preliminary Final Report, March 2009 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS 
Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC), 
Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cadal.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 
Instruction BP 6145.2(a) 
 



ATHLETIC COMPETITION 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that the district's athletic program constitutes an integral 
component of the educational program and helps to build a positive school climate.  The 
athletic program also promotes the physical, social, and emotional well-being and character 
development of participating students. The district's athletic program shall be designed to 
meet students' interests and abilities and shall be varied in scope to attract wide participation. 
 
(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
 
All athletic teams shall be supervised by qualified coaches to ensure that student athletes 
receive appropriate instruction and guidance related to safety, health, sports skills, and 
sportsmanship.  Athletic events shall be officiated by qualified personnel. 
 
(cf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 
 
The Board encourages business and community support for district athletic programs, subject 
to applicable district policies and regulations governing advertisements and donations. 
 
(cf. 1260 - Educational Foundation) 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 
(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 
(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests) 
 
Nondiscrimination and Equivalent Opportunities in the Athletic Program 
 
The district's athletic program shall be free from discrimination and discriminatory practices 
prohibited by state and federal law, including, but not limited to, the use of any racially 
derogatory or discriminatory school or athletic team name, mascot, or nickname. The 
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that equivalent athletic opportunities are provided for 
males and females, and that students are permitted to participate in athletic activities 
consistent with their gender identity. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 
Any complaint regarding the district's athletic program shall be filed in accordance with the 
district's uniform complaint procedures. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
 BP 6145.2(b) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
California Interscholastic Federation 
 
Any district school that participates in the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) shall 
conduct its athletic activities in accordance with CIF bylaws and rules and any applicable 
district policy and regulation. The Superintendent or designee shall have responsibility for 
the district's interscholastic athletic program, while the principal or designee at each 
participating school shall be responsible for site-level decisions, as appropriate. 
 
The Board shall annually designate a representative to the local CIF league from each school 
that participates in CIF sports. The Superintendent or designee shall recommend a candidate 
for the position who demonstrates an understanding of the district's goals for student learning 
and interscholastic activities, knowledge of the athletic programs, awareness of the 
implications of league decisions for the school and the district, and interpersonal 
communication and leadership skills. 
 
The designated representative(s) shall vote on issues that impact interscholastic athletics at 
the league and section levels, perform any other duties required by the CIF league, and report 
regularly to the Board on league, section, and statewide issues related to athletic programs. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
Student Eligibility 
 
Eligibility requirements for student participation in the district's interscholastic athletic 
program, including requirements pertaining to academic achievement, shall be the same as 
those set by the district for participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities. 
 
(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students participating in 
interscholastic athletics governed by CIF satisfy CIF eligibility requirements. 
 
Students shall not be charged a fee to participate in an athletic program, including, but not 
limited to, a fee to cover the cost of uniforms, locks, lockers, or athletic equipment. 
 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 
 
 BP 6145.2(c) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
Sportsmanship 
 
The Board values the quality and integrity of the athletic program and the character 
development of student athletes. Student athletes, coaches, parents/guardians, spectators, and 
others are expected to demonstrate good sportsmanship, ethical conduct, and fair play during 
all athletic competitions. They shall also abide by the core principles of trustworthiness, 
respect, responsibility, fairness, caring, and good citizenship, and the Code of Ethics adopted 
by CIF. 
 
Students and staff shall be subject to disciplinary action for improper conduct. 
 
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions) 
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Individuals with Disabilities)) 
 
Health and Safety 
 
The Board desires to give student health and safety the highest consideration in planning and 
conducting athletic activities. 
 
Students shall have a medical clearance before participating in interscholastic athletic 
programs.  Care shall be taken to ensure that all athletic trainings and competitions are 
conducted in a manner that will not overtax the physical capabilities of the participants. 
When appropriate, protective equipment shall be used to prevent or minimize injuries. 
 
(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 
(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 
 
Coaches and appropriate district employees shall take every possible precaution to ensure 
that athletic equipment is kept in safe and serviceable condition.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall ensure that all athletic equipment is cleaned and inspected for safety before the 
beginning of each school year. 
 
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 
 
 
 BP 6145.2(d) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
In the event of an injury or a perceived imminent risk to a student's health, such as a 
concussion or passing out, fainting, or other sign of sudden cardiac arrest, during or 
immediately after an athletic activity, the coach or any other district employee who is present 
shall remove the student athlete from the activity, observe universal precautions in handling 
blood or other bodily fluid, and/or seek medical treatment for the student as appropriate. 
 
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 
(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 
(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 
(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 
 
Whenever an injury is suffered by a student, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 
student's parent/guardian of the date, time, and extent of any injury suffered by the student 
and any actions taken to treat the student. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BP 6145.2(e) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
17578  Cleaning and sterilizing of football equipment 
17580-17581  Football equipment 
32220-32224 Insurance for athletic teams, especially: 
32221.5  Required insurance for athletic activities 
33353-33353.5  California Interscholastic Federation; implementation of policies, insurance program 
33354  California Department of Education authority over interscholastic athletics 
33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
35160.5  District policies; rules and regulations 
35179  Interscholastic athletics 
35179.1 California High School Coaching Education and Training Program 
35179.5  Interscholastic athletics; limitation on full-contact practices 
48850  Interscholastic athletics; students in foster care and homeless students 
48900  Grounds for suspension and expulsion 
48930-48938  Student organizations 
49010-49013 Student fees 
49020-49023  Athletic programs; legislative intent, equal opportunity 
49030-49034  Performance-enhancing substances 
49458  Health examinations, interscholastic athletic program 
49475  Health and safety, concussions and head injuries 
49700-49701  Education of children of military families 
51242  Exemption from physical education for high school students in interscholastic athletic program 
PENAL CODE 
245.6  Hazing 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs, especially: 
4920-4922 Nondiscrimination in intramural, interscholastic, and club activities 
5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of students 
5590-5596  Employment of noncertificated coaches 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.31  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 
106.33  Comparable facilities 
106.41 Nondiscrimination in athletic programs 
COURT DECISIONS 
Mansourian v. Regents of University of California, (2010) 602 F. 3d 957 
McCormick v. School District of Mamaroneck, (2004) 370 F.3d 275 
Kahn v. East Side Union High School District, (2003) 31 Cal. 4th 990 
Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against 
Discrimination, March 2017 

 
 
Management Resources continued: (see next page) 

BP 6145.2(f) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: (continued) 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 
CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 
A Guide to Equity in Athletics 
Guidelines for Gender Identity Participation 
Keep Their Heart in the Game: A Sudden Cardiac Arrest Information Sheet for Athletes and 
Parents/Guardians 
Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 
Heads Up: Concussion in High School Sports, Tool Kit, June 2010 
Heads Up: Concussion in Youth Sports, Tool Kit, July 2007 
Acute Concussion Evaluation (ACE) Care Plan, 2006 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Withdrawal of Dear Colleague Letter on Transgender Students, Dear Colleague Letter, February 22, 
2017 
Intercollegiate Athletics Policy Clarification: The Three-Part Test - Part Three, Dear Colleague 
Letter, April 20, 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Concussion Resources: http://www.cdc.gov/concussion 
National Federation of State High School Associations: http://www.nfhs.org 
National Operating Committee on Standards for Athletic Equipment:  http://www.nocsae.org 
U.S. Anti-Doping Agency: http://www.usada.org 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 
Instruction AR 6145.2(a) 
 



ATHLETIC COMPETITION 
 
 
Nondiscrimination and Equivalent Opportunities in the Athletic Program 
 
No student shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, be denied 
equivalent opportunity in, or otherwise be discriminated against in interscholastic, 
intramural, or club athletics on the basis of actual or perceived sex, sexual orientation, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, ethnic group identification, race, ancestry, 
national origin, religion, color, mental or physical disability, or any other basis specified in 
law.  (Education Code 220, 221.5, 230; 5 CCR 4920; 34 CFR 106.41) 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may provide single-sex teams when selection for the teams is 
based on competitive skills.  (5 CCR 4921; 34 CFR 106.41) 
 
Each student shall be allowed to participate in any single-sex athletic program or activity 
consistent with his/her gender identity and for which he/she is otherwise eligible to 
participate, irrespective of the gender listed on the student's records.  (Education Code 221.5) 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
When a school provides only one team in a particular sport for members of one sex, but 
provides no team in the same sport for members of the other sex, and athletic opportunities in 
the total program for that sex have been previously limited, members of the excluded sex 
shall be allowed to try out and compete with the team.  The same standards for eligibility 
shall be applied to every student trying out for the team, regardless of sex, sexual orientation, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, or other protected group status. (5 CCR 4921; 34 
CFR 106.41) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that equivalent opportunities are available to 
both sexes in athletic programs by considering, among other factors:  (5 CCR 4922; 34 CFR 
106.41) 
 
1. Whether the offered selection of sports and levels of competition effectively 

accommodate the interests and abilities of both sexes 
 

The athletic program may be found to effectively accommodate the interests and 
abilities of both sexes using any one of the following tests:  (Education Code 230) 

 
a. Whether the interscholastic-level participation opportunities for male and 

female students are provided in numbers substantially proportionate to their 
respective enrollments 

 
 
 

 AR 6145.2(b) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 

b. Where the members of one sex have been and are underrepresented among 
interscholastic athletes, whether the district can show a history and a 
continuing practice of program expansion that is demonstrably responsive to 
the developing interests and abilities of the members of that sex 

 
c. Where the members of one sex are underrepresented among interscholastic 

athletes and the district cannot show a history and continuing practice of 
program expansion as required in item #1b above, whether the district can 
demonstrate that the interests and abilities of the members of that sex have 
been fully and effectively accommodated by the present program 

 
2. The provision and maintenance of equipment and supplies 
 
3. Scheduling of games and practice times, selection of the season for a sport, and 

location of the games and practices 
 
4. Travel and per diem allowances 
 
5. Opportunities to receive coaching and academic tutoring 
 
6. Assignment and compensation of coaches and tutors 
 
7. Provision of locker rooms, practice facilities, and competitive facilities 
 
8. Provision of medical and training facilities and services 
 
9. Provision of housing and dining facilities and services 
 
10. Publicity 
 
11. Provision of necessary funds 
 
Each school that offers competitive athletics shall, at the end of the school year, post on its 
school web site, or on the district web site if the school does not have a web site, the 
following information:  (Education Code 221.9) 
 

1. The total enrollment of the school, classified by gender 
 

2. The number of students enrolled at the school who participate in competitive 
athletics, classified by gender 

 

3. The number of boys' and girls' teams, classified by sport and by competition level 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

AR 6145.2(c) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
The data reported for items #1-3 above shall reflect the total number of players on a team 
roster on the official first day of competition. The materials used to compile this information 
shall be retained by the school for at least three years after the information is posted on the 
web site. (Education Code 221.9) 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Concussions and Head Injuries 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually distribute to student athletes and their 
parents/guardians an information sheet on concussions and head injuries. The student and 
parent/guardian shall sign and return the information sheet before the student's initiating 
practice or competition.  (Education Code 49475) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to coaches and/or athletic trainers 
regarding concussion symptoms, prevention, and appropriate response.  (Education Code 
35179.1, 49032) 
 
(cf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 
 
If a student athlete is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury in an athletic 
activity, he/she shall be immediately removed from the activity for the remainder of the day. 
The student shall not be permitted to return to the activity until he/she is evaluated by a 
licensed health care provider trained in the management of concussions and receives the 
health care provider's written clearance to return to the activity.  If the health care provider 
determines that the athlete sustained a concussion or a head injury, the athlete shall also 
complete a graduated return-to-play protocol of no less than seven days in duration under the 
supervision of a licensed health care provider.  (Education Code 49475) 
 
A middle school or high school football team shall not hold a full-contact practice during the 
off-season and shall not conduct more than two full-contact practices per week during the 
preseason and regular season (from 30 days before the commencement of the regular season 
until the completion of the final interscholastic football game of that season). In addition, the 
full-contact portion of a practice shall not exceed 90 minutes in any single day. For these 
purposes, full-contact practice means a practice where drills or live action is conducted that 
involves collisions at game speed, where players execute tackles and other activity that is 
typical of an actual tackle football game.  (Education Code 35179.5) 
 
 
 
 
 

AR 6145.2(d) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
Sudden Cardiac Arrest 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall distribute the California Interscholastic Federation 
(CIF) information sheet on sudden cardiac arrest to all student athletes who will be 
participating in a CIF-governed athletic activity and to their parents/guardians. The student 
and parent/guardian shall sign and return the information sheet prior to the student's 
participation in the athletic activity. If an athletic activity is not covered by the CIF, the 
student and his/her parent/guardian shall, prior to participating in the athletic activity, sign 
and return an acknowledgement that they have received and reviewed the sudden cardiac 
arrest information posted on the California Department of Education's web site. (Education 
Code 33479.2, 33479.3) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to coaches and/or athletic trainers 
regarding the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest.  (Education Code 33479.6, 
33479.7, 35179.1, 49032) 
 
If a student athlete passes out or faints, or is known to have passed out or fainted, while 
participating in or immediately following his/her participation in an athletic activity, the 
student shall be removed from participation at that time. If a student exhibits any other 
symptoms of sudden cardiac arrest, including seizures during exercise, unexplained shortness 
of breath, chest pains, dizziness, racing heart rate, or extreme fatigue, he/she may be removed 
from participation by a coach or other employee who observes these symptoms. If any such 
symptoms are observed, notification shall be given to the student's parent/guardian so that the 
parent/guardian can determine the treatment, if any, the student should seek. A student who 
has been removed from participation shall not be permitted to return until he/she is evaluated 
and given written clearance to return to participation by a health care provider.  (Education 
Code 33479.2, 33479.5) 
 
Additional Parental Notifications 
 
Before a student participates in interscholastic athletic activities, the Superintendent or 
designee shall, in addition to providing his/her parents/guardians with information on the 
signs and symptoms of concussions and sudden cardiac arrest as described above, send a 
notice to the student's parents/guardians which: 
 
1. Contains information about the procedures for filing a discrimination complaint that 

arises out of an interscholastic athletic activity, including the name of the district's 
Title IX Coordinator 

 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
2. Includes a copy of students' Title IX rights pursuant to Education Code 221.8 
 

AR 6145.2(e) 
 



 
ATHLETIC COMPETITION  (continued) 
 
 
3. Explains that there is an element of risk associated with all athletic competitions and 

that the district cannot guarantee that students will not be injured, despite a 
commitment to every participant's health and welfare 

 
(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 
 
4. Provides information about insurance protection pursuant to Education Code 32221.5 
 
(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 
 
5. Requests parental permission for the student to participate in the program and, if 

appropriate, be transported by the district to and from competitions 
 
(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 
 
6. States the district's expectation that students adhere strictly to all safety rules, 

regulations, and instructions, as well as rules and guidelines related to conduct and 
sportsmanship 

 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
7. Includes a copy of the local California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) league rules 
 
8. Includes information about the CIF bylaw and district policy requiring any student 

athlete and his/her parent/guardian to sign a statement that the student will not use 
steroids, unless prescribed by a licensed health care practitioner, or prohibited dietary 
supplements that include substances banned by the U.S. Anti-Doping Agency 

 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: May 2017 
Facilities BP 7214(a) 
 



GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that school facilities are an essential component of the 
educational program and that the Board has a responsibility to ensure that the district's 
facilities needs are met in the most cost-effective manner possible. When the Board 
determines that it is in the best interest of district students, it may order an election on the 
question of whether bonds shall be issued to pay for school facilities. 
 
(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 
 
The Board's decision to order a bond election, as well as its determinations regarding the 
appropriate amount, timing, and structure of the bond issuance, shall be consistent with law 
and the district's debt management policy. 
 
(cf. 3470 - Debt Issuance and Management) 
 
Before ordering a bond election, the Board shall obtain reasonable and informed projections 
of assessed valuations that take into consideration projections of assessed property valuations 
made by the county assessor.  (Education Code 15100) 
 
When any project to be funded by bonds will require state matching funds for any phase of 
the project, the ballot for the bond measure shall include a statement as specified in 
Education Code 15122.5, advising voters that, because the project is subject to approval of 
state matching funds, passage of the bond measure is not a guarantee that the project will be 
completed.  (Education Code 15122.5) 
 
Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters 
 
The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 55 
percent majority of the voters pursuant to Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, 
Section 18(b) of the California Constitution.  If two-thirds of the Board agrees to such an 
election, the Board shall vote to adopt a resolution to incur bonded indebtedness if approved 
by a 55 percent majority of the voters.  (Education Code 15266) 
 
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 
 
The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special 
election, or a regularly scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the district are 
entitled to vote.  (Education Code 15266) 
 
Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district shall be used only for the following purposes: 
(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A)) 
 
1. The construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, 

including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities 
 BP 7214(b) 
 



 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 
 
 
2. The acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities 
 
3. The refunding of any outstanding debt issuance used for the purposes specified in 

items #1-2 above 
 
The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability 
requirements:  (California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)) 
 
1. Certification that proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used only for the 

purposes specified in items #1-2 above, and not for any other purposes including 
teacher and administrative salaries and other school operating expenses 

 
2. A list of specific school facilities projects to be funded and certification that the 

Board has evaluated safety, class size reduction, and information technology needs in 
developing that list 

 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 6151 - Class Size) 
 
3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to 

ensure that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed 
 
4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the 

proceeds from the sale of the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended 
for the school facilities projects 

 
If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, 
the Board shall appoint an independent citizens' oversight committee to inform the public 
concerning the expenditure of bond revenues as specified in Education Code 15278 and the 
accompanying administrative regulation. This committee shall be appointed within 60 days 
of the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes pursuant to Education 
Code 15274.  (Education Code 15278) 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the annual, independent performance and 
financial audits required pursuant to items #3-4 above are issued in accordance with the U.S. 
Comptroller General's Government Auditing Standards and submitted to the citizens' 
oversight committee at the same time they are submitted to him/her and no later than March 
31 of each year. (Education Code 15286) 
 
 
 BP 7214(c) 
 



 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 
 
 
The Board shall provide the citizens' oversight committee with responses to all findings, 
recommendations, and concerns addressed in the performance and financial audits within 
three months of receiving the audits.  (Education Code 15280) 
 
The Board may disband the citizens' oversight committee when the committee has completed 
its review of the final performance and financial audits. 
 
Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters 
 
The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 
66.67 percent majority of the voters pursuant to Education Code 15100 and Article 13A, 
Section 1(b)(2) of the California Constitution.  If a majority of the Board agrees to such an 
election, or upon a petition of the majority of the qualified electors residing in the district, the 
Board shall adopt a resolution ordering an election on the question of whether to incur 
bonded indebtedness if approved by a 66.67 percent majority of the voters.  (Education Code 
15100) 
 
The bond election may be ordered to occur on any Tuesday, except a Tuesday that is a state 
holiday or the day before or after a state holiday, is within 45 days before or after a statewide 
election unless conducted at the same time as the statewide election, or is an established 
election date pursuant to Elections Code 1000 or 1500.  (Education Code 15101) 
 
Subject to limits specified in Article 13A, Section 1 of the California Constitution, bonds 
shall be sold to raise money for any of the following purposes:  (Education Code 15100) 
 
1. Purchasing school lots 
 
2. Building or purchasing school buildings 
 
3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary 

for current maintenance, operation, or repairs 
 
4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed 

by fire or other public calamity 
 
5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary 

apparatus of a permanent nature 
 
6. Permanently improving school grounds 
 
7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or 

state school building aid loans 
 
 BP 7214(d) 
 



 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 
 
 
8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577 
 
9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years 
 
10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another 

school building, whether in the same location or in any other location 
 
Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be 
united and voted upon as a single proposition by an order of the Board entered into the 
minutes.  (Education Code 15100) 
 
The Board may appoint a citizens' oversight committee to review and report to the Board and 
the public as to whether the expenditure of bond revenues complies with the intended 
purposes of the bond. 
 
Certificate of Results 
 
If the certificate of election results received by the Board shows that the appropriate majority 
of the voters is in favor of issuing the bonds, the Board shall record that fact in its minutes.  
The Board shall then certify to the County Board of Supervisors all proceedings it had in 
connection with the election results.  (Education Code 15124, 15274) 
 
Resolutions Regarding Sale of Bonds 
 
Following passage of the bond measure by the appropriate majority of voters, the Board shall 
pass a resolution directing the issuance and sale of bonds. In accordance with law, the 
resolution shall prescribe the total amount of bonds to be sold and may also prescribe the 
maximum acceptable interest rate, not to exceed eight percent, and the time(s) when the 
whole or any part of the principal of the bonds shall be payable.  (Education Code 15140; 
Government Code 53508.6) 
 
In passing the resolution, the Board shall consider each available funding instrument, 
including, but not limited to, the costs associated with each and their relative suitability for 
the project to be financed. 
 
Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall place an agenda item at a public meeting and adopt 
as part of the bond issuance resolution, or in a separate resolution, disclosures of the 
available funding instruments, the costs and sustainability of each, and all of the following 
information: (Education Code 15146; Government Code 53508.9) 
 
1. Express approval of the method of sale (i.e., competitive, negotiated, or hybrid) 
 
2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected 
 BP 7214(e) 
 



 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 
 
 
3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond 

underwriter and the financial adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless 
these individuals have not been selected at the time the resolution is adopted, in 
which case the Board shall disclose their identities at the public meeting occurring 
after they have been selected 

 
4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance, including, but not limited to, 

bond counsel and financial advisor fees, printing costs, rating agency fees, 
underwriting fees, and other miscellaneous costs and expenses of issuing the bonds 

 
When the sale involves bonds that allow for the compounding of interest, such as a capital 
appreciation bond (CAB), the resolution to be adopted by the Board shall include items #1-4 
above as well as the financing term and time of maturity, repayment ratio, and the estimated 
change in the assessed value of taxable property within the district over the term of the 
bonds.  The resolution shall be publicly noticed on at least two consecutive meeting agendas, 
first as an information item and second as an action item. The agendas shall identify that 
bonds that allow for the compounding of interest are proposed.  (Education Code 15146) 
 
Prior to adopting a resolution for the sale of bonds that allow for the compounding of 
interest, the Board shall be presented with the following:  (Education Code 15146) 
 
1. An analysis containing the total overall cost of the bonds that allow for the 

compounding of interest 
 
2. A comparison to the overall cost of current interest bonds 
 
3. The reason bonds that allow for the compounding of interest are being recommended 
 
4. A copy of the disclosure made by the underwriter in compliance with Rule G-17 

adopted by the federal Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
 
At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall 
submit a report of the proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory 
Commission (CDIAC).  (Government Code 8855) 
 
After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual issuance cost information and 
shall disclose that information at the Board's next scheduled meeting. The Board shall ensure 
that an itemized summary of the costs of the bond sale and all necessary information and 
reports regarding the sale are submitted to the CDAIC.  (Education Code 15146; Government 
Code 53509.5) 
 
 
 
 BP 7214(f) 
 



 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 
 
 
Bond Anticipation Notes 
 
Whenever the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, it may, by 
resolution, issue a bond anticipation note, on a negotiated or competitive-bid basis, to raise 
funds that shall be used only for a purpose authorized by a bond that has been approved by 
the voters of the district in accordance with law.  (Education Code 15150) 
 
Payment of principal and interest on any bond anticipation note shall be made at note 
maturity, not to exceed five years, from the proceeds derived from the sale of the bond in 
anticipation of which that note was originally issued or from any other source lawfully 
available for that purpose, including state grants. Interest payments may also be made from 
such sources. However, interest payments may be made periodically and prior to note 
maturity from an increased property tax if the following conditions are met:  (Education 
Code 15150) 
 
1. A resolution of the Board authorizes the property tax for that purpose. 
 
2. The principal amount of the bond anticipation note does not exceed the remaining 

principal amount of the authorized but unissued bonds. 
 
A bond anticipation note may be issued only if the tax rate levied to pay interest on the note 
would not cause the district to exceed the tax rate limitation set forth in Education Code 
15268 or 15270, as applicable. 
 
Deposit of Bond Proceeds 
 
With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in 
the county treasury pool as required by law.  (Education Code 15146) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 BP 7214(g) 
 



 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
7054  Use of district property, campaign purposes 
15100-15254  Bonds for school districts and community college districts 
15264-15288  Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000 
17577  Sewers and drains 
47614  Charter school facilities 
ELECTIONS CODE 
324  General election 
328  Local election 
341  Primary election 
348  Regular election 
356  Special election 
357 Statewide election 
1302  Local election 
15372  Elections official certificate 
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
1125-1129  Incompatible activities 
8855  California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission 
53506-53509.5  General obligation bonds 
53580-53595.5  Bonds 
54952  Definition of legislative body, Brown Act 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation 
Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 
240.10b-5  Prohibition against fraud or deceit 
240.15c2-12  Municipal securities disclosure 
COURT DECISIONS 
San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley Unified 
School District (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016) 
88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005) 
87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004) 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
California's Challenge:  Adequately Funding Education in the 21st Century, December 2015 
Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, Governance Brief, December 2012 
Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and Candidates, Fact Sheet, February 
2011 
GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 2nd Ed., 2016 
Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice, September 2015 
Investment of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, September 2014 
Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014 
Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, October 2012 
Analyzing and Issuing Refunding Bonds, Best Practice, February 2011 
 

Management Resources continued: (see next page) 
 BP 7214(h) 
 



 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  (continued) 

 
 
 

Management Resources: (continued) 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Office of Public School Construction:  http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 
Government Finance Officers Association: http://www.gfoa.org 
Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA): 
http://www.emma.msrb.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 
Board Bylaws BB 9012(a) 
 



BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that electronic communication is an efficient and 
convenient way for Board members to communicate and expedite the exchange of 
information within the district and with members of the public. Board members shall exercise 
caution so as to ensure that electronic communications are not used as a means for the Board 
to deliberate outside of an agendized Board meeting nor to circumvent the public's right to 
access records regarding district business. 
 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 
A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of electronic 
communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take 
action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  (Government 
Code 54952.2) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
Examples of permissible electronic communications concerning district business include, but 
are not limited to, dissemination of Board meeting agendas and agenda packets, reports of 
activities from the Superintendent, and reminders regarding meeting times, dates, and places. 
 
In addition, Board members may use electronic communications to discuss matters that do 
not pertain to district business, regardless of the number of Board members participating in 
the discussion. 
 
Board members shall make every effort to ensure that their electronic communications 
conform to the same standards and protocols established for other forms of communication.  
A Board member may respond, as appropriate, to an electronic communication received from 
a member of the community and should make clear that his/her response does not necessarily 
reflect the views of the Board as a whole. Any complaint or request for information should 
be forwarded to the Superintendent in accordance with Board bylaws and protocols so that 
the issue may receive proper consideration and be handled through the appropriate district 
process.  As appropriate, communication received from the media shall be forwarded to the 
designated district spokesperson. 
 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
(cf. 9121 - President) 
(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority) 
 
 BB 9012(b) 
 



 
BOARD MEMBER ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
To the extent possible, electronic communications regarding any district-related business 
shall be transmitted through a district-provided device or account. When any such 
communication is transmitted through a Board member's personal device or account, he/she 
shall copy the communication to a district electronic storage device for easy retrieval. 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35140  Time and place of meetings 
35145  Public meetings 
35145.5  Agenda; public participation; regulations 
35147  Open meeting law exceptions and applications 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
6250-6270 California Public Records Act 
11135  State programs and activities, discrimination 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 
54952.2  Meeting, defined 
54953  Meetings to be open and public; attendance 
54954.2  Agenda posting requirements, board actions 
COURT DECISIONS 
City of San Jose v. Superior Court (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Legal Alert: Tips for Governing Boards in Response to Public Records Act Ruling on Electronic 
Communications, March 2017 
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
CSBA, Agenda Online: https://www.csba.org/ProductsAndServices/AllServices/AgendaOnline.aspx 
California Attorney General's Office:  https://oag.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: May 2017 



















































Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.1 

Subject:  Curriculum and Instruction Update 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum 

 
Background:   
    

Professional Development – Summer 2017 
 What an amazing summer we’ve had! Our dedicated teachers and support staff participated in 

many opportunities beginning the week after the 2016-17 school year concluded.  
o Engage New York (Eureka) Math training: 83 K-8 teachers and administrators participated 

in summer math training, either in-district or off-site at a Eureka Math institute. 
o Benchmark Advance training: 151 K-6 classroom teachers, long-term subs, home study 

teachers, support coordinators, and special day class assistants have already completed 
their initial training for our new ELA/ELD program. Twenty-seven participants are signed 
up for Aug 11, which will complete our initial trainings. Although principals completed 
their training in the spring, many of them attended one or more days during the summer. 

o Project-Based Learning (PBL) institute: Our middle school teachers and administrators 
attended a three-day PBL institute through the Sonoma County Office of Education that 
was informative and productive. The team is re-energized and continuing to build on the 
work they started during the institute. 

o Summer PD also included full and half-day workshops on topics to support ELA/ELD, 
Math, and Social Emotional Learning. Those workshops had a total of 110 participants 
(some people attended more than one). 

 
 
Professional Development – Before School Activities 
I have included the Before School Activities Calendars for certificated and classified Staff in your 
packet. Not included on those calendars are two additional days of professional development 
provided for our administrative team on August 3 and 4. 

 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Before School Activities Calendars 
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Certificated 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017-18 Before School 
Calendar of Events 

Tue - Thurs 
Aug 1 – Aug 3 

Austin Creek Sci Lab 
Times Vary 

Optional Training Opportunities (sign up on SignUp Genius) 
Aug 1 – SIPPS 
Aug 2 – Designated ELD (am), Toolbox Refresher (pm) 
Aug 3 – First 20 Days in Math (am), Language Obj in Math (pm) 

Wednesday 
August 2 

District Office 
9:00 – noon 

Orientation for Teachers New to RVUSD 
Led  by Human Resources Department 

Monday 
August 7 

Austin Creek Sci Lab 
8:30 – 3:30 

Illuminate Training 
For teachers who have been asked to attend by their principal. We 
will be learning about new tools and features in Illuminate. 
Lunch on your own. 

Mon, Tue, or Wed 
August 7, 8, 9 

Sites 
Contract Day 

Teacher Work Day – 1 day required 
Teachers choose day. 

Thursday 
August 10 

 

8:00 – 9:30 Welcome Back!  Continental Breakfast, Superintendent’s 
Address, Introductions and Recognitions at Friedman Center  
 
10:00 – end of day  Work Time and Staff Meetings at School Sites 
 

Friday 
August 11 

(Elem) Spring Creek  
8:30 – 3:30 

(Middle) RVCS-M 
8:30 – 3:30 

Buyback Day #1 
Elementary teachers who have not completed Benchmark Advance 
training will attend a full-day training (all others may use the day as 
an onsite workday). Lunch on your own. 
 
Middle School teachers will attend English 3D training (am) and 
PBL planning (pm). Lunch on your own. 

Monday 
August 14 

First Day of School 

 

  



Classified 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017-18 Before School 
Calendar of Events 

Monday 
July 31 

Sites 

Office Managers return to work 
School offices open Wednesday, August 2 

Tuesday 
August 1 

District Office 
9:00 – 11:00 

Orientation for New Classified Employees 
Human Resources 

Tuesday 
Aug 1 

Austin Creek Sci Lab 
9:00 – 3:00 

SIPPS Training 
For some classified instructional staff 
*Please check with your principal or supervisor to confirm your attendance.* 

Thursday 
August 10 

Required workday for 
ALL employees 

8:00 – 9:30 Welcome Back!  Continental Breakfast, Superintendent’s 
Address, Introductions and Recognitions at Friedman 
Center  

9:45 – 10:45 Mandatory Meeting for classified employees          
Spring Creek Multipurpose Room 

 
For employees working longer than 2.75 hours: 
11:00 – end of your work day  Work Time at School Sites 
 

Monday 
August 14 

First Day of School 

 

1 day required before school starts (8/10):  District Art Docent Coordinator, Site Daycare Assistant, 

Site Daycare Coordinator, Noon Duty, School Receptionist/Clerk, Physical Education Paraeducator, 

Instructional Assistant, Speech & Language Assistant, Kindergarten Aide, Site Science Facilitator, Full 

Inclusion/Behavioral Assistant, Food Service Cashier, EL Assistant, Bilingual Family Liaison, Instructional 

Paraeducator, Bus Driver 

2 days required before school starts (8/10, 11):  RVP Special Ed Assistant 

3 days required before school starts (8/9, 10, 11):  Library Clerk and Computer Technician 

2 days required before school starts (8/10, 11), plus 1 day after school ends (6/4):  Food Service I 

**There are TWO additional in-service days embedded into 2017-18 calendar:  Sept 22 and Jan 8 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.2 

Subject:  Student Services Report 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Student Services Director 

Background:   
Social-Emotional Learning Programs Update 

The vision of the District’s Social Emotional Learning Plan for students is communicated at every 
professional development opportunity.  There is a continuum of skill building, designed to  
ensure that every student who attends a Rincon Valley School from kindergarten through 6th grade, has  
the social-emotional skills needed to be successful in their community.   
 
Kimochis- Counselors will be providing Kimochi lessons in ALL TK and kindergarten classes this year.  
Students will learn about feelings and emotions, develop the vocabulary to name, and discuss them. 
Toolbox- A Toolbox refresher PD is taking place on August 2nd.  The focus for Toolbox is for teachers to  
teach and incorporate the tools in grades first through third.  Students will learn how to respond to the  
feelings that they are experiencing, through the use of the tools.   
Restorative Practices- There will be Restorative Practices refresher trainings offered this fall along with 
mentoring opportunities and training for classified staff.  Students will learn how to resolve conflict 
with their peers and how to restore relationships when something has happened to harm them. 
 
In addition to the programs listed above the following activities are planned: 

1. School psychologists and counselors will be pairing up to provide five trainings per school 
site for classified staff who work directly with students.   

2. In accordance with AB 2246, RVCS staff will receive training on youth suicide prevention. 
3. The Rincon Valley Partnership is opening a class for students in grades first through third who 

require specialized instruction in social-emotional skill development.   
4. The Parent University will offer sessions on all of the social emotional programs that the 

district is implementing.    
 
 
 
Attachments:   None   
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only. 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.3 

Subject:  Student Transfer Report 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cindy Mendenhall, Assistant to the Superintendent 

Background:  The 2016-17 transfer summary is divided in three parts:  
    
   1. Inter-District Transfer Permits “OUT”  

This is a breakdown of the known transfer permits out of the district representing 
our TK-6 population submitted and approved. Details are on the attached inter-
district transfers “out” list #1. You will see the total transfers out per RVUSD site 
and the total per district requested. 
 
*Note:  It is unknown how many students living in the RVUSD boundaries are 
attending private or charter schools. 

 
   2. Inter-District Transfer Permits “IN” Per Site  
 This is broken down by non-charter and charter schools.  The summary indicates 

the total number of students from outside the district who are attending one of our 
schools.  It also includes the number of new Ks that were approved.  Details are on 
the attached inter-district transfers “in” list #2. 

  
 3. Intra-District Transfers 
 The summary indicates the total number of students attending each of our schools 
 through an intra-district transfer.  It also includes the number of new Ks that were 

approved.  There were 29 intra-district transfer requests denied due to capacity. 
Details are on the attached intra-district transfers list #3. 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: Transfer Summary 2016-2017 
 List of Inter-district Transfers “out” 2016-2017  
 List of Total Inter-district Transfers “in” 2016-2017 per site 
 List of Total Intra-district Transfers 2016-2017 per site  
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only. 
 



 
 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Transfer Summary 

2016-2017 
 
 
 

1. Inter-District Transfer Permits “ Out”  
 

                  Total 
 

Known Inter-district Transfers “Out”            532 
 
*Unknown-- number of RVUSD students attending private or charter schools. 
 
2. Inter-District “In” Transfers Per Site  
Non-Charter           
                  Total per site      Ks  
Austin Creek          36               2 
Madrone           65               8 
Sequoia                              38                 3 
                   Total:   139               13 
 
Charter         
          Total per site      Ks 
Binkley                               72       9 
Matanzas                               92       0 
Spring Creek                            120                31 
Village                                                                                128                16 
Whited                                                                                     81                 7 

    Total:              493                63 
 
                District Total:         632                76 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
3. Intra-District Transfers                                                
Non-Charter           
                    Total per site      Ks 
Austin Creek           91         9 
Madrone          116                13 
Sequoia                             127                   9 
 
              Total:       334       31 
 
Intra District Transfers Denied 2016-17:        29 ( 8 Ks) 
  
Charter         
            Total per site    Ks 
Binkley                             105         8 
Matanzas                               36               N/A 
Spring Creek                              62                  11 
Village                                                                                  52                   2 
Whited                                                                                     69                   5 

      Total:    339                 26 
 
             District Total:            658       57 

 



 
INITIAL INTER DISTRICT TRANSFERS “OUT” 2010‐11 

    From:          To: 
Totals:  Austin Creek  ‐    4    Bellevue  ‐ 3  Riebli    ‐ 4 

Binkley    ‐    3    Oak Grove      ‐1  Hahn    ‐ 1 
Madrone  ‐  13    M. Washburn  ‐ 1  Proctor Terrace ‐ 1 
Matanzas  ‐  23    Gravenstien  ‐ 3  Kenwood  ‐ 2 
Sequoia   ‐    6    Hidden Valley   ‐ 14  Hillcrest  ‐ 1   
Spring creek  ‐    7    JX Wilson  ‐ 1  Windsor  ‐ 2 
Village    ‐  12    Yulupa    ‐ 32  Strawberry   ‐ 9   
Whited   ‐    7                 

                       75                  75   

  INITIAL INTER DISTRICT TRANSFERS “OUT” 2011‐12 

    From:          To: 
Totals:   Austin Creek  ‐    5    Bellevue  ‐ 1  Roseland  ‐ 1 

Binkley    ‐    7    Oak Grove      ‐1  Hahn    ‐ 1 
Madrone  ‐  11    Old Adobe  ‐ 1  Twin Hills  ‐ 4 
Matanzas  ‐  31    Gravenstien  ‐ 2  Kenwood  ‐ 3 
Sequoia   ‐    2    Hidden Valley   ‐ 6  Waugh    ‐ 1   
Spring creek  ‐    3    Mark West  ‐ 6  Windsor  ‐ 1 
Village    ‐  11    Yulupa    ‐ 33  Strawberry  ‐ 10   
Whited   ‐    5    Calistoga  ‐ 1  Schaeffer  ‐ 3   

                       75                  75   

INITIAL INTER DISTRICT TRANSFERS “OUT” 2012‐13 

    From:          To: 
Totals:   Austin Creek  ‐    0    Apple Blossom  ‐ 1          Mark West   ‐ 4 

Binkley    ‐    3    Kenwood  ‐ 4  Oak Grove       ‐1 
Madrone  ‐  10    Calistoga        ‐ 1  Hillcrest   ‐ 1 
Matanzas  ‐  14    Flowery   ‐ 1  Windsor    ‐1 
Sequoia   ‐    7    Gravenstein  ‐ 1  Proctor Terrace  ‐ 1 
Spring creek  ‐  16    Hidden Valley   ‐ 7  Roseland   ‐ 2 
Village    ‐    8    Yulupa    ‐ 37  Strawberry   ‐ 6 
Whited   ‐  10                 

                       68                 68   
                           

INITIAL INTER DISTRICTS TRANSFERS “OUT 2013-14 

Totals: From:    To: 
  Austin Creek  -  0  Monte Vista       - 1  Oak Grove       - 1 
  Binkley  -  6  Brookhill       - 1       
  Madrone - 14  Helen Lehman      - 2        Proctor Terrace     - 1 
  Matanzas - 13  Hidden Valley      - 13     Roseland               - 4 
  Sequoia  -  6  Sheppard              - 2  Windsor         - 2 
  Spring Creek  -  9  Kenwood        - 1  Strawberry             - 5 
  Village  - 15  Loma Vista        - 2     Yulupa       - 32 
  Whited  -   4_________________________________________________  
                67               67 



 

INITIAL INTER DISTRICTS TRANSFERS “OUT 2014-15    

Totals: From:    To: 
  Austin Creek  -  3  Apple Blossom -   2     Proctor Terrace    -  2 
  Binkley   -  3  Burbank  -   2      R L Stevens       -  2 
  Madrone  -  7  Roseland          -  2  Windsor        -  2 
  Matanzas -   2  Hidden Valley  -   3     Monte Vista      -   2 
  Sequoia  -   0  Kawana   -   1  Steele Lane          -  1 
  Spring Creek  - 21  Kenwood   -   1  Strawberry            - 5 
  Village  - 15  Monroe   -   1     Yulupa       - 30 
  Whited  -   6  Waugh    -  1  
                 ____________________________________________________ 

  57              57 
             
INITIAL INTER DISTRICTS TRANSFERS “OUT 2015-16     

Totals: From:    To:    SRACS      -29 
Parkside               - 1 

  Austin Creek  - 10  Brookhill  -   1     Proctor Terrace    - 1 
  Binkley   -   8  R L Stevens   -  2  Windsor       - 1 
  Madrone -  14  M. Hahn  -   1        Roseland              - 1 
  Matanzas -   3  Hidden Valley  -   9     Sheppard             -  2 
  Sequoia  -  11  Jack London  -   2  Oak Grove            - 1 
  Spring Creek  -  21  Kenwood   -   3  Strawberry            - 2 
  Village  -   8             Monroe   -   1     Yulupa      - 28   
  Whited  -  13  Monte Vista  -   2  T. Page       - 1 
                 88              88 
 

INITIAL INTER DISTRICTS TRANSFERS “OUT 2016-17     

Totals: From:    To:    SRACS      -27 
  Austin Creek  -  7  Corona Creek   - 1     Kawana      - 1 
  Binkley   -  7  JX Wilson   - 3  Two Rock       - 2 
  Madrone - 14  M. Hahn   - 2        Parkside               - 1 
  Matanzas -   7  Hidden Valley   - 8     Sun Valley            - 2 
  Sequoia  -   9  McDowell   - 2  Roseland              - 1 
  Spring Creek  - 25  Proctor Terr   -  1  Monte Vista          - 1 
  Village  -   9             Riebli    -  1     RL Stevens           - 1  
  Whited  -  14  Yulupa   - 35  Burbank       - 1 
      Mark West   - 2  Taylor Mt.              -1 
      Kenwood   - 1  LaTercera       - 1 
                 93              93 
 

 

 

 

 



             #1 

Inter-District Transfer Outs 
Representing the 2016-17 TK-6 Totals 

From:      
Austin Creek  - 29         
Binkley   - 38      
Madrone -  83     
Matanzas -  93         
Sequoia  -  41      
Spring Creek  - 102      
Village  -  78                     
Whited  -  59        
    523  
To: 
Bennett Valley USD   Bellevue USD    Calistoga – 2 
    Yulupa     – 227                 Bellevue       – 4 
    Strawberry – 37                 Kawana             - 2 
  264      Taylor Mountain - 1 
               7 
Cotati-Rohnert Park   Gravenstein    Kenwood - 15 
    Hahn    -  6       Gravenstein     - 6                               
    Monte Vista   – 6        Hillcrest           - 2 
    Thomas Page –1            8 
      13 
Mark West    Old Adobe    Oak Grove - 5 
    Mark West   – 12                                Loma Vista      - 2 
     Riebli             - 5        Old Adobe       - 1 
                           17            3   
          
Petaluma    Piner-Olivet    Roseland 
    La Tercera       -1       Jack London    - 2           Roseland - 11 
    McDowell        - 2       Schaeffer       - 3              Sheppard  - 4 
        3                                                     5                 15 

Santa Rosa City   Sonoma Valley   San Rafael - 2 
    Brook Hill           -  2                 Flowery            - 1            
    Burbank             -  3                          
    Helen Lehman - 2   Sebastopol          Two Rock - 2 
    Hidden Valley – 60       Park Side      - 2       
    Monroe            - 2                
    Proctor Terr.    - 7  Twin Hills               Waugh       
    Steele Lane    -  1        Apple Blossom - 3      Corona Creek  - 3 
    SRACS           - 54         Twin Hills        - 4  
        131               
     Windsor    Wright      
        Windsor               – 9               JX Wilson        - 4 
        Mattie Washburn – 1                RL Stevens     - 5 
                                     10                                          9   TOTAL - 523 



Inter District Transfer "IN" Totals Per Site 2016-2017 #2

TOTAL School Home District
2 Binkley Calistoga
19 Binkley Bellevue Union Elementary District Bellevue 132
2 Binkley Bennett Valley Union District Bennet Valley 56
1 Binkley Mark West Union Elementary Calistoga 2
4 Binkley Piner-Olivet Union Elelmentary District Cotati-RP 11
4 Binkley Roseland Elementary District Cloverdale 2
28 Binkley Santa Rosa City Schools Healdsburg 1
2 Binkley Windsor Unified Kenwood 4
10 Binkley Wright Elementary District Mark West 23
72 Piner-Olivet 36

2 Madrone Bennett Valley Union District Roseland 29
8 Madrone Bellevue Union Elementary District Santa Rosa 244
2 Madrone Cotati-Rohnert Park Unified Sebastopol 9
1 Madrone Kenwood Sonoma 2
6 Madrone Mark West Union Elementary Windsor 13
3 Madrone Piner-Olivet Union Elelmentary District Wright 66
8 Madrone Roseland Middletown 1
23 Madrone Santa Rosa City Schools Petaluma 1
1 Madrone Sebastopol
1 Madrone Sonoma TOTAL 632
2 Madrone Windsor Unified
8 Madrone Wright Elementary District

65

26 Matanzas Bellevue Union Elementary District
14 Matanzas Bennett Valley Union District
1 Matanzas Cotati-Rohnert Park Unified
2 Matanzas Kenwood
2 Matanzas Mark West
1 Matanzas Piner-Olivet Union Elelmentary District
5 Matanzas Roseland Elementary District
37 Matanzas Santa Rosa City Schools
1 Matanzas Windsor Unified
2 Matanzas Wright Elementary District
1 Matanzas Sebastopol

92

4 Sequoia Bellevue Union Elementary District
3 Sequoia Bennett Valley Union District
2 Sequoia Mark West Union Elementary
1 Sequoia Piner-Olivet Union Elelmentary District
3 Sequoia Wright Elementary District
22 Sequoia Santa Rosa City Schools
3 Sequoia Windsor Unified
38



Inter District Transfer "IN" Totals Per Site 2016-2017 #2

TOTAL School Home District

1 Spring Creek Middletown
1 Spring Creek Cotati-Rohnert Park Unified
30 Spring Creek Bellevue Union Elementary District
12 Spring Creek Bennett Valley Union District
2 Spring Creek Mark West Union Elementary
4 Spring Creek Piner-Olivet Union Elelmentary District
7 Spring Creek Roseland Elementary District
48 Spring Creek Santa Rosa City Schools
2 Spring Creek Sebastopol Union School District
1 Spring Creek Windsor Unified
12 Spring Creek Wright Elementary District

120
18 Village Bellevue Union Elementary District
13 Village Bennett Valley Union District
4 Village Cotati-Rohnert Park Unified
1 Village Healdsburg
5 Village Mark West Union Elementary
8 Village Piner-Olivet Union Elelmentary District
3 Village Roseland Elementary District
51 Village Santa Rosa City Schools
5 Village Sebastopol Union School District
4 Village Windsor Unified
16 Village Wright Elementary District

128

20 Whited Bellevue Union Elementary District
8 Whited Bennett Valley Union District
3 Whited Cotati-Rohnert Park Unified
12 Whited Wright Elementary District
1 Whited Sonoma
1 Whited Petaluma City Elementary
15 Whited Piner-Olivet Union Elelmentary District
2 Whited Roseland Elementary District
19 Whited Santa Rosa City Schools
81

7 Austin Creek Bellevue Union Elementary District
2 Austin Creek Bennett Valley Union District
2 Austin Creek Cloverdale
1 Austin Creek Kenwood Elementary District
4 Austin Creek Mark West
16 Austin Creek Santa Rosa City Schools
3 Austin Creek Wright Elementary District
1 Austin Creek Healdsburg 
36



Inter District Transfer "IN" Totals Per Site 2016-2017 #2

TOTAL School Home District
632 District Total

   



Intra District Transfer Totals Per Site 2016-2017 # 3

TOTAL Transferred to Home School
2 Binkley Austin Creek Elementary School Tranfers Out
14 Binkley Madrone Elementary School
4 Binkley Matanzas Elementary  School Austin Crk 31
11 Binkley Sequoia Elementary School Binkley 95
8 Binkley Spring Creek Elementary School Madrone 90
4 Binkley Village Elementary School Matanzas 61
62 Binkley Whited Elementary School Sequoia 47

105 Spring Crk 52
Village 107

7 Madrone Austin Creek Elementary School Whited 175
29 Madrone Binkley Elementary School
7 Madrone Sequoia Elementary School Total 658
12 Madrone Matanzas Elementary  School  
6 Madrone Spring Creek Elementary School K Transfers 54
13 Madrone Village Elementary School
42 Madrone Whited Elementary School

116

2 Matanzas Austin Creek Elementary School
6 Matanzas Binkley Elementary School
2 Matanzas Madrone Elementary School
1 Matanzas Sequoia Elementary School
22 Matanzas Village Elementary School
3 Matanzas Whited Elementary School

36

12 Sequoia Austin Creek Elementary School
16 Sequoia Binkley Elementary School
31 Sequoia Madrone Elementary School
12 Sequoia Matanzas Elementary  School
16 Sequoia Spring Creek Elementary School
6 Sequoia Village Elementary School
34 Sequoia Whited Elementary School

127

3 Spring Creek Austin Creek Elementary School
7 Spring Creek Binkley Elementary School
3 Spring Creek Madrone Elementary School
0 Spring Creek Sequoia Elementary School
40 Spring Creek Village Elementary School
9 Spring Creek Whited Elementary School

62



Intra District Transfer Totals Per Site 2016-2017 # 3

TOTAL Transferred to Home School
0 Village Austin Creek Elementary School
3 Village Binkley Elementary School
7 Village Madrone Elementary School
19 Village Matanzas Elementary  School
0 Village Sequoia Elementary School
9 Village Spring Creek Elementary School
14 Village Whited Elementary School

52

5 Whited Austin Creek Elementary School
19 Whited Binkley Elementary School
12 Whited Madrone Elementary School
10 Whited Matanzas Elementary  School
2 Whited Sequoia Elementary School
7 Whited Spring Creek Elementary School
14 Whited Village Elementary School

69

15 Austin Creek Binkley Elementary School
21 Austin Creek Madrone Elementary School
4 Austin Creek Matanzas Elementary  School
26 Austin Creek Sequoia Elementary School
6 Austin Creek Spring Creek Elementary School
8 Austin Creek Village Elementary School
11 Austin Creek Whited Elementary School

91

658 District Total



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.4 

Subject:  Facilities Update – Summer Construction 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Background: The board will be touring the District 4:00 PM on the day of this meeting at which 
time they will be shown all of the District’s major summer construction.   This 
information item has been placed on the agenda to provide the board the 
opportunity to discuss what they will see on the tour and to provide the staff and 
the public comments.     

   
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  None 
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only. 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.5 

Subject:  SchoolWorks, Inc. Demographic Study 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: SchoolWorks, Inc. is a consulting firm specializing in facility planning and 
demographic studies for school districts.  RVUSD has contracted with them for our 
most recent developer fee study.  The firm was asked to prepare a demographic 
study, including projecting enrollment for the District. 

 
 The study’s key findings are: 

1. The District’s facilities will be 98.1% of enrollment capacity within 6 
years.  The District is currently at 95.8% of capacity. 

2. Development of known land planned for residential units and the expansion 
of the city to its sphere of influence, makes it probable that there will be a 
need for one, if not two schools within 10 – 20 years. 
 

Trustees have demonstrated their foresight to plan ahead for future facility needs.  
The Governing Board is asked to review the study and continue to monitor the 
enrollment of students so the District has adequate facilities ready when growth in 
enrollment justifies the construction of a new school. 

 
 
 
Attachments:  SchoolWorks, Inc. Demographic Study for Rincon Valley Union School District 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only. 
 



SchoolWorks, Inc.  

8331 Sierra College Blvd., #221 

Roseville CA, 95661 

Phone: 916-733-0402 

www.SchoolWorksGIS.com 

RINCON VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY   

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

DEMOGRAPHIC STUDY 2016/17 

1000 Yulupa Ave.  

Santa Rosa, CA 95405-7020   

Ph: (707) 542-7375  

July 2017 

Joseph Pandolfo Ed.D, 

Deputy Superintendent, Business  

Dr. Tony Roehrick,  

Superintendent  



 

 

 

 
Page i 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 

2016/17

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
                       Page 
 
INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................................................1 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...................................................................................................................1 
 
 
METHODOLOGY .............................................................................................................................2 
 
 
CLASSROOM COUNTS AND CAPACITY .............................................................................................2 
 
 
HISTORIC BIRTH RATES ...................................................................................................................7 
 
 
NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS .....................................................................................................10 
 
 
HISTORIC ENROLLMENT AND TRENDS .............................................................................................12 
 
 
SCHOOL PROJECTIONS....................................................................................................................13 
 
 
DISTRICT PROJECTIONS ..................................................................................................................37 
 
 
SCHOOL FACILITY UTILIZATION .......................................................................................................40 
 
  



 

 

 

Page ii 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study  

2016/17

CHARTS 
 
                      Page 
 
10 YEAR ENROLLMENT HISTORY AND 6 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS .......................................3 
 
2017/2018 1 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION BY SCHOOL ..............................................................4 
 
KINDERGARTEN PROJECTIONS BASED ON BIRTHS ............................................................................7 
 
KINDERGARTEN ENROLLMENT TO BIRTH RATIO ..............................................................................8 
 
COHORT CHANGE SINCE KINDERGARTEN ........................................................................................9 
 
STUDENT YIELD RATE .....................................................................................................................11 
 
NEW DEVELOPMENT CONSTRUCTION .............................................................................................11 
 
HISTORIC ENROLLMENT AND TRENDS .............................................................................................12 
 
LOADING STANDARD ANALYSIS ......................................................................................................13 
 
CAPACITY & PROJECTED ENROLLMENT 
 
 AUSTIN CREEK ELEM ..........................................................................................................15 
 BINKLEY ELEM CHARTER ....................................................................................................17 
 MADRONE ELEM................................................................................................................19 
 MATANZAS SPRING CREEK CHARTER ..................................................................................21 
 SEQUOIA ELEM ..................................................................................................................23 
 SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER ..................................................................................25 
 VILLAGE ELEM CHARTER ....................................................................................................27 
 WHITED ELEM CHARTER ....................................................................................................29 
 RINCON VALLEY CHARTER MATANZAS ................................................................................31 
 RINCON VALLEY CHARTER SEQUOIA ...................................................................................33 
 REDWOOD CONSORTIUM FOR STUDENT SERVICES .............................................................34 
 
STUDENT ATTENDANCE MATRIX .....................................................................................................35 
 
STUDENT RESIDENCY AND ENROLLMENT COMPARISON ..................................................................36 
 
10 YEAR ENROLLMENT HISTORY & 6 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION .............................................37 
 
ONE YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY ...........................................................................38 
 
ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY BY GRADE ...........................................................................39 
 
ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY BY SCHOOL .........................................................................39 
 
SCHOOL FACILITY UTILIZATION .......................................................................................................40  



 

 

 

Page iii 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study

2016/17 

MAPS 
 
                      Page 
 
DISTRICT MAP WITH STUDENT RESIDENTIAL LOCATION ...................................................................5 
 
ELEMENTARY BOUNDARIES AND SCHOOL SITE LOCATIONS..............................................................6 
 
NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS .....................................................................................................10 
 
SCHOOL BOUNDARY MAP 
 
 AUSTIN CREEK ELEM ..........................................................................................................14 
 BINKLEY ELEM CHARTER ....................................................................................................16 
 MADRONE ELEM................................................................................................................18 
 MATANZAS SPRING CREEK CHARTER ..................................................................................20 
 SEQUOIA ELEM ..................................................................................................................22 
 SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER ..................................................................................24 
 VILLAGE ELEM CHARTER ....................................................................................................26 
 WHITED ELEM CHARTER ....................................................................................................28 
 RINCON VALLEY CHARTER MATANZAS ................................................................................30 
 RINCON VALLEY CHARTER SEQUOIA ...................................................................................32 
 
SCHOOL FACILITY UTILIZATION .......................................................................................................41 
 
 



 

 

 

 

July 2017 
Page 1 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Introduction 
 
This Demographic Study provides a comprehensive enrollment analysis for the Rincon Valley Union 
Elementary School District.  The district-wide and school-specific enrollment projections are meant to serve 
as a planning tool to help with both long and short term planning.  Demographic Studies examine the factors 
that influence school enrollments, namely trends in demographics, birth rates, and housing development.  
They are also used as a tool to identify certain facility planning requirements such as capacity, utilization of 
existing facilities, planning for modernization or new construction, and attendance boundary redistricting.  
This Study provides information based on the 2016/17 District enrollments and programs, City planning 
policies and residential development.  As these factors change and timelines are adjusted, the Demographic 
Study should be revised to reflect the most current information. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District includes eight (8) school sites that operate seven (7) 
elementary schools, one (1) middle school, and one (1) consortium for student services.  One of the 
elementary schools is divided into two (2) sites with grades K-3 at one site and grades 4-6 at the other site.  
The middle school is divided into two (2) sites and are housed on the elementary campuses. 
 
This Study has been prepared using the 2016/17 student enrollment data, current District policies and the 
latest new housing development information available at the time of this Study.  The District has grown over 
the past 10 years from an enrollment with of 2,965 students in the 2007/08 school year to a current 
enrollment of 3,544 students. 
 
Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District is projected to grow in enrollment by 0.45% (or 16 students) 
for the 2017/18 school year.  The District is projected to grow slightly over the next six (6) years, with a 
projected enrollment of 3,630 students in the 2022/23 school year.  This is a total growth of 86 students, 
which is an increase of 2.43%. 
 
The projections are predicated upon information provided by local municipalities on the development of 282 
housing units over the next six (6) years.  If the building rates increase or decrease, then the timeline shown 
in this Study will need to be modified accordingly.  These projected new developments in the District's 
boundary are expected to generate 5 students next year, or a total of 55 students in the next six (6) years. 
 
Based on current District loading standards and classroom space, the District has a total capacity of 3,700 
students, and a current enrollment of 3,544.  This gives the District a current utilization factor of 95.8%.  The 
projected utilization factor in six (6) years will be 98.1%.  This assumes loading standards remain constant and 
no additional facilities are built or removed. 
 
These projections assume the transfers between schools remain consistent.  If changes in facilities, 
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted. 
 
Assuming the District can house a small percentage of students in excess of the current capacity on a 
temporary basis, the results of this study indicate a new school may be needed in the next 10 to 15 years as 
the district enrollment will likely exceed the capacity of the current school facilities. In addition, upon 
buildout of the known land planned for residential units and the expansion of the city to its sphere of 
influence, it is probable there will be a total need for two new schools in the next 10 to 20 years.   
 



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 2 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

Methodology 
 
The enrollment projections for each school are generated using a State standard weighted cohort trend 
analysis.  The basic projections are created by studying the individual geographic areas.  Once the trends are 
analyzed for each area, the base projections are modified using the following procedures: 
 

a) Birth rates are used to project future kindergarten enrollment.  It is assumed if the births 
indicate there was an increase of 4% one year, then there will be a corresponding 4% 
increase in the kindergarten class five (5) years later. 

 
b) New Housing Development rates and yield factors are compared to the historical impact of 

development, and if the future projections exceed the historical values, the projections are 
augmented accordingly. 

 
c) Inter-District student counts are not included in the base geographic trend analysis since 

these students reside outside of the District.  Therefore, the current number of students-
per-school and students-per-grade are added to the base projections. 

 
d) Intra-District students are those who transfer from one school to another.  The number of 

students transferring into and out of each school are calculated and used to determine the 
difference between the projections for students living in each attendance area versus those 
that are projected to attend the school. 

 
e) The projections for special education students and alternative programs are created by 

assuming those programs typically serve a percentage of the total District population.  
Therefore, as the District grows or declines, the enrollment in those programs would 
increase or decrease accordingly. 

 
f) The number of students living in the boundary are used to generate the cohort factors.  The 

weighted average of the three (3) years was determined with the current year weighted 
50%, the prior year 33.3% and the last year 16.7%.  This gives the current trends more value 
in determining the projections.  Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who 
will be residing in each attendance area for the following years. 

 
 

Classroom Counts and Capacity 
 
The classroom counts are shown for each school and are used to determine the capacity.  The classroom 
counts represent the rooms that can be used for teaching purposes at each school site.  The classroom 
counts may not represent the current classrooms being used, as there may be unused rooms on the school 
site.  In some cases, there may be fewer classrooms counted than current teaching stations if some of the 
rooms being used were designed for other purposes but are currently being used as classrooms due to 
overcrowding.   
 
The purpose of the classroom count and capacity are to show what the school capacity should be if all 
teaching spaces are being used in accordance with the educational programs of the District.   
 
     



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 3 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

10 Year Enrollment History and 10 Year Enrollment Projections 
 

 
 
The Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District has grown over the past ten (10) years from an 
enrollment of 2,965 in 2007/08 to the current enrollment of 3,544.  This chart provides a summary of the last 
ten (10) years of historic enrollment and projected enrollment for the next ten (10) years.  The color orange 
represents the historic and projected enrollment for the elementary school grades TK-6.  The color green 
represents the historic and projected enrollment for the middle school grades 7-8.  The entire District 
enrollment is shown at the top of each bar. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2797 2869 2960
3097 3184 3206 3238 3336 3294 3200 3210 3193 3202 3215 3236 3266 3295 3339 3387 3439

168
166

163

167
169 167

251
290 268

344 350 370 374 362 360 364 380 394 392
398

2965
3035

3123

3264
3353 3373

3489
3626

3562 3544 3560 3563 3576 3577 3596 3630 3675
3733 3779

3837

07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27

S
tu

d
e

n
ts

Year

10 Year Enrollment History &
10 Year Enrollment Projection

TK-6 7-8



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 4 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

2017/2018 1 Year Enrollment Projection by School 
 

 
 
Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District has a current enrollment of 3,544 students.  The projected 
enrollment for next year shows an increase of 16 students.  This one (1) year summary analyzes the net 
change between the current District enrollment by school and by grade, and the projected enrollment for 
2017/18. 
 
The cohort change factor indicates the change in the number of students for each grade compared to the 
number of students in the prior grade the previous year.   
 
These projections assume the transfers between schools remain consistent.  If changes in facilities, 
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted.   
 
The students living in the boundary generate the cohort factors which are calculated for the past three (3) 
years and the weighted average is determined.  Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who 
will be residing in each attendance area for the following years.  Next the attendance factor is used to 
determine the net enrollment for each grade.  The attendance factor is determined by analyzing the current 
year of students to see how many Inter- and Intra-district transfers there are. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

School T K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 TOTAL

Austin Creek Elem 0 54 57 75 53 66 70 53 0 0 428

Binkley Elem Charter 19 45 53 54 50 59 59 57 0 0 396

Madrone Elem 33 59 42 55 48 51 53 69 0 0 410

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter 0 0 0 0 0 79 81 82 0 0 242

Sequoia Elem 0 56 53 65 65 62 70 43 0 0 414

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 21 77 79 84 78 0 0 0 0 0 339

Village Elem Charter 0 53 57 49 59 57 54 68 0 0 397

Whited Elem Charter 0 59 80 46 76 60 62 87 0 0 470

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas 0 2 0 3 2 2 2 1 92 83 187

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia 0 2 0 3 1 3 2 1 92 83 187

Redwood Consortium for Student Services 0 31 17 10 11 6 7 8 0 0 90

Totals 73 438 438 444 443 445 460 469 184 166 3,560

Current CBEDS 76 438 435 441 436 460 477 437 182 162 3,544

Net Change -3 0 3 3 7 -15 -17 32 2 4 16

Cohort Change 0 9 2 9 0 -8

YEAR 17/18, 1 Year Proj.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District

Enrollment Projections



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 5 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

District Map with Student Residential Locations  
 

 
 
This map shows the District boundary along with the location of each student based on their residential 
address.  This geographic data is the foundation for our demographic analysis.  Any red dots outside the 
District boundary will represent students attending one of the District schools or programs but have a 
residence outside the District.  This map also identifies different areas of student population density.  

Rincon ValleyRincon ValleyRincon ValleyRincon ValleyRincon ValleyRincon ValleyRincon ValleyRincon ValleyRincon Valley
Union ElementaryUnion ElementaryUnion ElementaryUnion ElementaryUnion ElementaryUnion ElementaryUnion ElementaryUnion ElementaryUnion Elementary

School DistrictSchool DistrictSchool DistrictSchool DistrictSchool DistrictSchool DistrictSchool DistrictSchool DistrictSchool District



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 6 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Elementary Boundaries and School Site Locations  
 

 
 
Id School Site   Grades  Id School Site   Grades 
1 Austin Creek Elementary  K-6  5 Sequoia Elementary  K-8 
2 Binkley Elementary Charter TK-6  6 Spring Creek Elementary Charter TK-3 
3 Madrone Elementary  TK-6  7 Whited Elementary Charter K-6 
4 Matanzas Elementary Charter 4-8  8 Village Elementary Charter K-6 
 

555555555

111111111

222222222

333333333

777777777

888888888 666666666

444444444



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 7 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Historic Birth Rates 
 
The following section is an analysis of the number of births in the Rincon Valley Union Elementary School 
District.  The number of births are compiled by zip code regions and provided by the Department of Health.  
The zip code areas do not exactly match the District boundaries and therefore the zip codes 95404, 95405, 
and 95409, which are in the District, were used for this analysis. 
 

 
 
The above figure illustrates the correlation between births in the District area and the number of 
kindergarten students attending Rincon Valley Union Elementary schools five (5) years later.  The number of 
births between 2000 and 2011 has averaged about 884 per year.  The recent birth rates over the past four (4) 
years (2012 to 2015), which will generate the kindergarten classes for the next four (4) years (2017 to 2020), 
have been between 789 and 848.  We have assumed that the current kindergarten capture rate of 56.15% 
will be maintained in the future.  The kindergarten projections shown here do not account for the impact of 
any additional housing units. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

*Kindergarten Totals  may include some Trans i tional  Kindergarten s tudents  for some of the past years  to more accurately 

correlate a  12-month period of bi rths  to a  12-month period of enrol lment.

416 397 413 427 442 443
509 504 478 478 446 438 443 452 476 467

879 878 874
913 906

827

986

899
932 917

820
780 789 805

848 832

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

School Year (Births are 5 years earlier)

Kindergarten Projections based on Births

K* students Births

Historic K* Enrollment compared to Births K Projections



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 8 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Historic Kindergarten Capture Rates 
 

 
 
This figure shows the kindergarten capture rates for the past 12 years.  Since the birth data is derived from 
zip code areas, which do not exactly match with the District boundaries, the capture rate also accounts for 
differences in the coverage areas.  Low capture rates are common when a district serves only a portion of a 
large zip code area.  A large capture rate is possible when families move into the area after the children were 
born, but before they arrived for kindergarten.  Overall, the District has had a slightly growing capture rate 
with a 12 year average of 50.88%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47.33%
45.22%

47.25% 46.77%
48.79%

53.57%
51.62%

56.06%

51.23% 52.13%
54.39%

56.15%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

2
0

05

2
0

06

2
0

07

2
0

08

2
0

09

2
0

10

2
0

11

2
0

12

2
0

13

2
0

14

2
0

15

2
0

16

School Year (Births are 5 years earlier)

Kindergarten Enrollment to Birth Ratio



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 9 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Retention Rates Since Kindergarten 
  

 
 
This chart compares the original kindergarten class size to the current enrollment for each grade.  For 
example, the current 4th grade class has 460 students and four (4) years ago the kindergarten class had 504 
students.  Overall the class sizes have decreased slightly since kindergarten. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

438 435 441 436
460 477

437

182 162

438
459 470 465

504 509

443

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Current Grade

Cohort Change Since Kindergarten

16/17 Enrollment Original K Class



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 10 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

New Housing Developments 
 

 
 
This view of the District shows the location of the projected new development areas in the next six years.  
The projections used in this report are based on the following number of units projected from these 
developments: 
 

 
 

The reminder of the Greenway project is assumed to be built in years 7 to 10 of the projections. 
 

 

111111111

333333333

666666666

777777777

222222222

444444444

555555555

888888888

Remaining 6 Year Remaining 6 Year

ID Tract Units Projection ID Tract Units Projection

1 Annadale Estates 10 10 6 Rincon Place 32 32

2 Creekside Village 140 140 7 Saraceni Village 7 7

3 Kylie Lane 12 12 8 Southeast Greenway 244 40

4 Mayette Ave TM 6 6

5 Reserves @ SkyHawk 35 35 Totals 486 282



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 11 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Assuming that 282 of the 486 planned units are completed over a six (6) year period, there would be an 
average of 47 new housing units per year.  To determine the impact of the new housing development, each 
new housing unit is multiplied by the student yield rate.  Currently the District student yield rate is 0.194 
students per housing unit when comparing the total district students to the number of housing units in the 
District.  However, after accounting for the number of senior housing units, the actual yield rate of new 
housing units would be 0.242 for grades TK-8.  This breaks down as follows: 
 
 Grade  District  State 
 K-6  0.230  0.40 
 7-8  0.012  0.10 
 Total  0.242  0.50 
 
The yield rate used for new construction eligibility determination in the State building program is 0.50 
students per home for K-8 districts.  The yield rate in the Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District is 
lower than the State average. 
 

 
 
Based on these estimated construction rates, the development will generate 6 students next year and a total 
of 68 students in the next six (6) years.  For years seven through ten, it is assumed development will average 
51 units per year which continues the same rate of development planned for the next several years.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

School Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Totals

Austin Creek Elem 14 15 12 2 2 0 45

Binkley Elem Charter 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Madrone Elem 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter 0 0 2 2 22 20 46

Sequoia Elem 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 0 0 2 2 22 20 46

Village Elem Charter 0 25 25 30 30 30 140

Whited Elem Charter 10 13 13 8 7 0 51

Elementary Totals 24 53 52 42 61 50 282

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas 24 53 52 42 61 50 282

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia 24 53 52 42 61 50 282

Middle Totals 24 53 52 42 61 50 282

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District
New Development Construction

Housing Units per Year



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 12 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Historic Enrollment and Trends 
 

 
 
This chart shows the enrollment by grade level over the past four (4) years.  The cohort values were 
calculated for each grade and each year, along with the weighted average for each grade.  A positive cohort 
value indicates that grade is expected to have more students than the previous grade last year.  A negative 
value would mean that the grade has fewer students compared to the previous grade last year.    
 
In general, a positive cohort is representative of growth and a negative cohort indicates a decline in 
enrollment.  There are some exceptions.  First grade usually has a positive cohort, as there are some students 
that do not attend kindergarten at public schools but arrive in first grade. 
 
Another important item to notice is the current breakdown by grade level of the student population.  
Comparing the number of students in the lower grades to the upper grades can indicate potential increases 
or decreases in future enrollments.  Also, if there is a large class or a small class, it will slowly cause a ripple in 
the enrollments as it advances a grade each year. 
 
Finally, the annual change at the bottom of this chart indicates the net impact of the changes in enrollment 
over the past few years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Weighted

Grade 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average

T K 65 99 74 76

K 445 445 446 438 0 1 -8 -3.7

1 456 466 446 435 21 1 -11 -1.7

2 487 457 460 441 1 -6 -5 -4.3

3 430 516 459 436 29 2 -24 -6.5

4 479 449 508 460 19 -8 1 1.0

5 434 468 435 477 -11 -14 -31 -22.0

6 442 436 466 437 2 -2 2 0.7

7 172 129 148 182

8 79 161 120 162

Totals 3,489 3,626 3,562 3,544 8.7 -3.7 -10.9 -5.2

Annual Change: 137 -64 -18

CBEDS Enrollment Historic Cohorts

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District
Historic Enrollment and Cohorts



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 13 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

School Projections 
 
After the boundary map for each school, there is a chart that shows the projected enrollment for the next six 
(6) years.  These charts indicate the actual enrollment at each school over the past four (4) years along with 
the projected enrollment for the next six (6) years.  In addition, the number of students living in the boundary 
are shown for the same time period.  If there are more students attending than live in the area, then there is 
a net inflow.  If more students live in the boundary than attend the school, then there is a net outflow. 
 
The current capacity is shown on these charts to identify if there will be classroom space available for the 
students.  If space is not available, then the attendance patterns will likely need to change if the additional 
facilities are not provided.  The capacity for each school was determined by using the following loading 
standards for each classroom identified: 
 
Grade  Loading Standard 
TK-K   20 
1-3   20 
4-6   30  
7-8   30 
 
In addition, the District standards and current practices do not allow for combination classes which typically 
accommodate two separate grade levels in a single class.  By not using combo classes, the maximum number 
of classes operated at a K-6 school is limited to 18.  There are 3 classes per grade level for grades K-3 and 2 
classes per grade level for grades 4-6.  This results in a maximum capacity of 60 students per grade level 
which is a total of 420 K-6 students per campus.  Any schools with more than 18 classrooms, would not be 
able to utilize the additional space without creating combo classes.  Therefore, for this report, the maximum 
capacity for each site will not exceed 420 students for a K-6 campus. 
 
These loading standards are based on the current loading factors used this year and may change based on 
the level of funding for schools in the future. 
 
Backup data is provided below each projection chart that shows the calculations of the cohort factors used to 
determine the enrollment projections for each school.   
 
The number of students living in the boundary are shown, which are then used to generate the cohort 
factors.  The weighted average of the three (3) years was determined with the current year weighted 50%, 
the prior year 33.3% and the last year 16.7%.  This gives the current trends more value in determining the 
projections.  Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who will be residing in each attendance 
area for the following years.  The kindergarten enrollment is projected using the birth data instead of the 
cohort factor shown here.   
 
The Attendance Factors were determined by analyzing the current year of students to see how many Inter- 
and Intra-District transfers there are.  Once the baseline projections are calculated for the residents in the 
attendance area, the Intra-District and Inter-District factors are applied to determine the projected 
enrollment for each school.   
 
The last three (3) columns in the chart, Current Enrollment, 17/18 Projection, and Net Change, show the 
current enrollment, next year’s projection and net change in enrollment for next year.  These are compared 
by grade to show the details needed for staffing and classroom needs.  



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 14 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

BinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkley

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Spring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring Creek

MatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzas

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

SequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoia

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

Austin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin Creek

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

Austin Creek Elem

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (38)

Incoming from other schools   (97)

Living in area and attending this school   (301)

Outgoing to other schools   (58)

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

 Inter-District

Binkley Elem Charter

Madrone Elem

Matanzas Spring Creek
Charter

Redwood Consortium
for Student Services

Sequoia Elem

Spring Creek Matanzas
Charter

Village Elem Charter

Whited Elem Charter

38

11

20

5

0

29

4

11

17

0

6

15

0

1

26

2

0

8

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Austin Creek Elem

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 15 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 18

 Grades Served = K - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 434 14 0 420 14 1 1 0

17/18 428 -6 0 420 8 0 0 0 14

18/19 430 2 0 420 10 0 1 0 15
19/20 424 -6 0 420 4 0 0 0 12

20/21 415 -9 0 420 0 0 0 5 2

21/22 420 5 0 420 0 0 0 0 2

22/23 417 -3 0 420 0 0 0 3 0

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 18

Austin Creek Elem

409 
441 

420 434 428 430 424 415 420 417 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 420

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 4 11 3 6 0 0 0

K 53 41 47 47 -12 6 0 1 12.8% 6.4% 56 54 -2

1 57 58 38 49 5 -3 2 1 12.2% 6.1% 58 57 -1

2 51 57 60 44 0 2 6 4 25.0% 25.0% 66 75 9

3 53 53 62 60 2 5 0 2 1.7% 8.3% 66 53 -13

4 41 57 50 59 4 -3 -3 -2 5.1% 6.8% 66 66 0

5 54 37 49 43 -4 -8 -7 -7 25.6% 16.3% 61 70 9

6 35 55 33 51 1 -4 2 0 9.8% 9.8% 61 53 -8

Totals 348 369 342 359 -0.6 -0.7 0.0 -0.1 13.2% 11.2% 434 428 -6

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Austin Creek Elem



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 16 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

SequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoia

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

MadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadrone

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

WhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhited

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

BinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkley

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Binkley Elem Charter

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (80)

Incoming from other schools   (137)

Living in area and attending this school   (182)

Outgoing to other schools   (121)

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

 Inter-District

Austin Creek Elem

Madrone Elem

Matanzas Spring Creek
Charter

Redwood Consortium
for Student Services

Sequoia Elem

Spring Creek Matanzas
Charter

Village Elem Charter

Whited Elem Charter

80

6

21

6

0

21

1

14

68

0

11

38

5

2

24

8

5

28

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Binkley Elem Charter

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 17 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 25

 Grades Served = K - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 395 -23 0 420 0 0 -8 25

17/18 396 1 0 420 0 0 -8 24 0

18/19 392 -4 0 420 0 0 -9 28 0
19/20 395 3 0 420 0 0 -8 25 0

20/21 395 0 0 420 0 0 -8 25 0

21/22 404 9 0 420 0 0 -8 16 0

22/23 401 -3 0 420 0 0 -8 19 0

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 25

Binkley Elem Charter

419 420 418 
395 396 392 395 395 404 401 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 420

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 4 14 10 11 20 19 -1

K 48 31 46 43 -17 15 -3 1 -16.3% 25.6% 47 45 -2

1 35 44 36 48 -4 5 2 2 0.0% 16.7% 56 53 -3

2 40 36 41 32 1 -3 -4 -3 6.3% 21.9% 41 54 13

3 42 41 41 41 1 5 0 2 12.2% 26.8% 57 50 -7

4 47 38 45 40 -4 4 -1 0 0.0% 45.0% 58 59 1

5 49 47 37 46 0 -1 1 0 10.9% 30.4% 65 59 -6

6 52 47 46 42 -2 -1 5 2 -4.8% 26.2% 51 57 6

Totals 317 298 302 303 -3.6 3.4 0.0 0.6 1.2% 27.5% 395 396 1

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Binkley Elem Charter



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 18 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

WhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhited

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

MadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadrone

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

BinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkley

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Madrone Elem

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (78)

Incoming from other schools   (159)

Living in area and attending this school   (170)

Outgoing to other schools   (99)

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

 Inter-District

Austin Creek Elem

Binkley Elem Charter

Matanzas Spring Creek
Charter

Redwood Consortium
for Student Services

Sequoia Elem

Spring Creek Matanzas
Charter

Village Elem Charter

Whited Elem Charter

78

15

38

7

0

19

6

11

63

0

20

21

4

1

30

4

6

13

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Madrone Elem

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 19 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 22

 Grades Served = K - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 402 -16 0 420 0 0 -5 18

17/18 410 8 0 420 0 0 -4 10 0

18/19 401 -9 0 420 0 0 -4 19 0
19/20 404 3 0 420 0 0 -4 16 0

20/21 406 2 0 420 0 0 -4 14 0

21/22 405 -1 0 420 0 0 -4 15 0

22/23 400 -5 0 420 0 0 -5 20 0

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 22

Madrone Elem

389 
418 418 

402 410 401 404 406 405 400 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 420

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 10 5 7 8 32 33 1

K 36 45 44 33 9 -1 -11 1 24.2% 39.4% 54 59 5

1 39 35 40 44 -1 -5 0 -1 -4.5% 27.3% 54 42 -12

2 37 36 38 40 -3 3 0 1 7.5% 17.5% 50 55 5

3 31 46 34 35 9 -2 -3 -1 -5.7% 31.4% 44 48 4

4 51 31 47 36 0 1 2 1 25.0% 16.7% 51 51 0

5 32 50 28 45 -1 -3 -2 -2 4.4% 37.8% 64 53 -11

6 38 34 47 28 2 -3 0 -1 46.4% 42.9% 53 69 16

Totals 274 282 285 269 2.1 -1.4 -2.0 -0.3 13.9% 30.4% 402 410 8

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Madrone Elem



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 20 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

MatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzas

Spring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring Creek

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

WhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhited

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter
Austin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin Creek

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

VillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillage

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (101)

Incoming from other schools   (54)

Living in area and attending this school   (95)

Outgoing to other schools   (54)

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

 Inter-District

Austin Creek Elem

Binkley Elem Charter

Madrone Elem

Redwood Consortium

for Student Services

Sequoia Elem

Village Elem Charter

Whited Elem Charter

101

0

5

4

0

1

30

14

0

5

6

7

4

5

24

3

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 21 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 13

 Grades Served = 4 - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 248 -8 0 390 0 0 -5 142

17/18 242 -6 0 390 0 0 -5 148 0

18/19 230 -12 0 390 0 0 -5 160 0
19/20 224 -6 0 390 0 0 -6 166 2

20/21 229 5 0 390 0 0 -5 161 2

21/22 233 4 0 390 0 0 -5 157 22

22/23 241 8 0 390 0 0 -5 149 20

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 13

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter

259 
236 

256 248 242 230 224 229 233 241 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 390

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 10 9 12 5 0 0 0

K 46 43 37 43 -3 -6 6 1 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0

1 44 44 47 43 -2 4 6 4 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0

2 58 43 41 44 -1 -3 -3 -3 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0

3 40 57 42 36 -1 -1 -5 -3 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0

4 42 44 59 46 4 2 4 3 8.7% 78.3% 86 79 -7

5 41 46 46 56 4 2 -3 0 -1.8% 64.3% 91 81 -10

6 38 44 49 47 3 3 1 2 -10.6% 61.7% 71 82 11

Totals 319 330 333 320 0.6 0.1 0.9 0.6 -1.2% 68.1% 248 242 -6

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 22 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

Austin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin Creek

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

SequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoia

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

WhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhited

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

BinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkley

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Sequoia Elem

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (43)

Incoming from other schools   (153)

Living in area and attending this school   (234)

Outgoing to other schools   (81)

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

 Inter-District

Austin Creek Elem

Binkley Elem Charter

Madrone Elem

Matanzas Spring Creek
Charter

Redwood Consortium
for Student Services

Spring Creek Matanzas
Charter

Village Elem Charter

Whited Elem Charter

43

26

24

30

5

0

16

11

41

0

29

21

19

1

3

0

0

8

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Sequoia Elem

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 23 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 19

 Grades Served = K - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 423 -16 0 420 3 0 -1 0

17/18 414 -9 0 420 0 0 -1 6 0

18/19 424 10 0 420 4 0 -1 0 0
19/20 424 0 0 420 4 0 -1 0 0

20/21 424 0 0 420 4 0 -1 0 0

21/22 421 -3 0 420 1 0 -1 0 0

22/23 419 -2 0 420 0 0 -1 1 0

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 19

Sequoia Elem

441 445 439 
423 414 424 424 424 421 419 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 420

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 2 10 9 13 0 0 0

K 44 41 49 41 -3 8 -8 1 26.8% 9.8% 56 56 0

1 40 44 47 46 0 6 -3 1 17.4% 6.5% 57 53 -4

2 32 42 45 47 2 1 0 1 25.5% 12.8% 65 65 0

3 46 39 44 44 7 2 -1 1 25.0% 13.6% 61 65 4

4 45 50 36 45 4 -3 1 0 33.3% 6.7% 63 62 -1

5 35 40 50 30 -5 0 -6 -4 60.0% 36.7% 59 70 11

6 39 30 45 49 -5 5 -1 0 6.1% 20.4% 62 43 -19

Totals 283 296 325 315 0.0 2.7 -2.6 0.0 27.7% 15.2% 423 414 -9

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Sequoia Elem



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 24 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

Austin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin Creek

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

WhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhited

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Spring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring Creek

MatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzas

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

VillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillage

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (132)

Incoming from other schools   (95)

Living in area and attending this school   (113)

Outgoing to other schools   (58)

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

 Inter-District

Austin Creek Elem

Binkley Elem Charter

Madrone Elem

Redwood Consortium

for Student Services

Sequoia Elem

Village Elem Charter

Whited Elem Charter

132

2

8

4

0

0

48

33

0

4

1

6

3

16

23

5

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 25 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 18

 Grades Served = K - 3

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 333 -10 0 360 0 0 -1 27

17/18 339 6 0 360 0 0 -1 21 0

18/19 340 1 0 360 0 0 -1 20 0
19/20 346 6 0 360 0 0 -1 14 2

20/21 347 1 0 360 0 0 -1 13 2

21/22 352 5 0 360 0 0 0 8 22

22/23 358 6 0 360 0 0 0 2 20

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 18

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter

330 

363 
343 333 339 340 346 347 352 358 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 360

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 10 9 12 5 21 21 0

K 46 43 37 43 -3 -6 6 1 -9.3% 86.0% 76 77 1

1 44 44 47 43 -2 4 6 4 7.0% 67.4% 75 79 4

2 58 43 41 44 -1 -3 -3 -3 27.3% 72.7% 88 84 -4

3 40 57 42 36 -1 -1 -5 -3 8.3% 94.4% 73 78 5

Totals 198 196 179 171 -1.8 -1.5 1.0 -0.3 8.3% 80.2% 333 339 6

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 26 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

Spring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring Creek

MatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzas

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

WhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhited

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

VillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillage

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Village Elem Charter

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (144)

Incoming from other schools   (85)

Living in area and attending this school   (182)

Outgoing to other schools   (135)

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

 Inter-District

Austin Creek Elem

Binkley Elem Charter

Madrone Elem

Matanzas Spring Creek
Charter

Redwood Consortium
for Student Services

Sequoia Elem

Spring Creek Matanzas
Charter

Whited Elem Charter

144

0

5

6

24

0

0

23

27

0

11

14

11

30

1

11

48

9

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Village Elem Charter

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 27 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 17

 Grades Served = K - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 408 -3 0 400 8 0 0 0

17/18 397 -11 0 400 0 0 0 3 0

18/19 388 -9 0 400 0 0 0 12 25
19/20 387 -1 0 400 0 0 -1 13 25

20/21 389 2 0 400 0 0 -1 11 30

21/22 391 2 0 400 0 0 0 9 30

22/23 402 11 0 400 2 1 1 0 30

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 17

Village Elem Charter

425 428 
411 408 397 388 387 389 391 402 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 400

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 7 9 4 10 0 0 0

K 43 40 42 40 -3 2 -2 1 -10.0% 47.5% 55 53 -2

1 50 45 42 35 2 2 -7 -1 2.9% 48.6% 53 57 4

2 51 47 47 45 -3 2 3 2 -26.7% 53.3% 57 49 -8

3 43 52 47 42 1 0 -5 -2 -14.3% 52.4% 58 59 1

4 39 43 53 45 0 1 -2 -1 -8.9% 44.4% 61 57 -4

5 41 41 44 52 2 1 -1 0 -17.3% 34.6% 61 54 -7

6 47 41 38 48 0 -3 4 1 -18.8% 50.0% 63 68 5

Totals 321 318 317 317 -0.1 0.7 -1.4 0.0 -13.3% 47.3% 408 397 -11

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Village Elem Charter



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 28 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 

MadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadroneMadrone

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

BinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkleyBinkley

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Spring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring Creek

MatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzasMatanzas

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

VillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillageVillage

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Austin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin CreekAustin Creek

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

SequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoiaSequoia

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

WhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhitedWhited

ElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementaryElementary

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

Whited Elem Charter

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (112)

Incoming from other schools   (74)

Living in area and attending this school   (263)

Outgoing to other schools   (265)

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

 Inter-District

Austin Creek Elem

Binkley Elem Charter

Madrone Elem

Matanzas Spring Creek
Charter

Redwood Consortium
for Student Services

Sequoia Elem

Spring Creek Matanzas
Charter

Village Elem Charter

112

8

28

13

3

0

8

5

9

0

17

68

63

14

2

41

33

27

Incoming Outgoing

Students

Whited Elem Charter

Transfer Students



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 29 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 18

 Grades Served = K - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 445 -2 0 420 25 1 1 0

17/18 470 25 0 420 50 1 2 0 10

18/19 475 5 0 420 55 0 2 0 13
19/20 483 8 0 420 63 1 3 0 13

20/21 494 11 0 420 74 0 3 0 8

21/22 494 0 0 420 74 0 3 0 7

22/23 508 14 0 420 88 0 3 0 0

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 18

Whited Elem Charter

455 450 447 445 

470 475 483 494 494 508 

Capacity

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 420

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 8 16 16 12 0 0 0

K 66 74 63 77 8 -11 14 2 -33.8% 14.3% 62 59 -3

1 66 66 82 69 0 8 6 6 -29.0% 24.6% 66 80 14

2 81 67 68 81 1 2 -1 0 -44.4% 16.0% 58 46 -12

3 55 83 66 69 2 -1 1 1 -30.4% 21.7% 63 76 13

4 75 58 81 79 3 -2 13 6 -46.8% 27.8% 64 60 -4

5 56 63 58 79 -12 0 -2 -3 -39.2% 21.5% 65 62 -3

6 72 52 68 62 -4 5 4 3 -19.4% 27.4% 67 87 20

Totals 479 479 502 528 -0.3 0.1 5.0 2.1 -34.7% 21.9% 445 470 25

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Whited Elem Charter



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 30 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (96)

Incoming from other schools   (70)



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 31 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 8

 Grades Served = K - 8

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 184 38 0 240 0 0 -2 56

17/18 187 3 0 240 0 0 -2 53 24

18/19 197 10 0 240 0 0 -2 43 53
19/20 199 2 0 240 0 0 -2 41 52

20/21 193 -6 0 240 0 0 -2 47 42

21/22 192 -1 0 240 0 0 -2 48 61

22/23 194 2 0 240 0 0 -2 46 50

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 8

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas

0 0 

146 

184 187 
197 199 193 192 194 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 240

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

K 381 389 389 389 8 0 0 10 0.5% 0.0% 2 2 0

1 331 336 332 334 -45 -57 -55 -27 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0

2 350 328 340 333 -3 4 1 1 0.9% 0.0% 3 3 0

3 310 371 336 327 21 8 -13 0 0.6% 0.0% 2 2 0

4 340 321 371 350 11 0 14 9 0.6% 0.0% 2 2 0

5 308 324 312 351 -16 -9 -20 -16 0.6% 0.0% 2 2 0

6 321 303 326 327 -5 2 15 7 0.3% 0.0% 1 1 0

7 323 316 336 343 -5 33 17 19 0.3% 26.2% 91 92 1

8 317 314 325 340 -9 9 4 4 1.5% 22.4% 81 83 2

Totals 2981 3002 3067 3094 -4.8 -1.1 -4.1 0.8 0.7% 6.1% 184 187 3

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 32 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia

Student Legend

Incoming from other Districts   (70)

Incoming from other schools   (98)



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 33 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 7

 Grades Served = K - 8

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 184 37 0 210 0 0 -1 26

17/18 187 3 0 210 0 0 -1 23 24

18/19 197 10 0 210 0 0 -1 13 53
19/20 199 2 0 210 0 0 -1 11 52

20/21 193 -6 0 210 0 0 -1 17 42

21/22 192 -1 0 210 0 0 -1 18 61

22/23 194 2 0 210 0 0 -1 16 50

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 7

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia

254 

306 

147 

184 187 197 199 193 192 194 

Capacity

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity = 210

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

K 381 389 389 389 8 0 0 10 0.5% 0.0% 2 2 0

1 331 336 332 334 -45 -57 -55 -27 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0

2 350 328 340 333 -3 4 1 1 0.9% 0.0% 3 3 0

3 310 371 336 327 21 8 -13 0 0.3% 0.0% 1 1 0

4 340 321 371 350 11 0 14 9 0.9% 0.0% 3 3 0

5 308 324 312 351 -16 -9 -20 -16 0.6% 0.0% 2 2 0

6 321 303 326 327 -5 2 15 7 0.3% 0.0% 1 1 0

7 323 316 336 343 -5 33 17 19 0.9% 25.7% 91 92 1

8 317 314 325 340 -9 9 4 4 0.3% 23.5% 81 83 2

Totals 2981 3002 3067 3094 -4.8 -1.1 -4.1 0.8 0.6% 6.1% 184 187 3

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 34 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 District Loading Standards

 Traditional School

 All Portables Loaded

 Classroom Count  = 

 Grades Served = K - 6

Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected

Total Annual Spec. Ed. Facility Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing

Year Students* Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units

16/17 88 -29 0 0 88 5 5 0

17/18 90 2 0 0 90 0 5 0 24

18/19 89 -1 0 0 89 0 5 0 53
19/20 91 2 0 0 91 0 5 0 52

20/21 92 1 0 0 92 0 5 0 42

21/22 92 0 0 0 92 0 5 0 61

22/23 96 4 0 0 96 0 5 0 50

* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)

 Classroom Count  = 0

Redwood Consortium For Student Services

108 

119 117 

88 90 89 91 92 92 96 

Capacity
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Capacity & Projected Enrollment

Students attending (History = CBEDS) Students living in attendance area School Capacity =

Weighted Attendance Factors Current 17/18 Net

YEAR: 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 13 to 14 14 to 15 15 to 16 Average Intra Inter Enrollment Projection Change

Grade

T K 0 0 0 0 3 0 -3

K 381 389 389 389 8 0 0 10 0.0% 8.0% 28 31 3

1 331 336 332 334 -45 -57 -55 -27 0.0% 4.8% 16 17 1

2 350 328 340 333 -3 4 1 1 0.0% 3.0% 10 10 0

3 310 371 336 327 21 8 -13 0 0.3% 3.1% 11 11 0

4 340 321 371 350 11 0 14 9 0.3% 1.4% 6 6 0

5 308 324 312 351 -16 -9 -20 -16 0.0% 2.0% 7 7 0

6 321 303 326 327 -5 2 15 7 0.0% 2.1% 7 8 1

Totals 2341 2372 2406 2411 -4.1 -7.4 -8.3 -2.3 0.1% 3.5% 88 90 2

Historic CohortsStudents in boundary

Redwood Consortium For Student Services



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 35 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Student Attendance Matrix 
 

 
 

This chart summarizes the transfers in and out of each school as were seen by the yellow dots and blue dots on 
the school attendance maps.  In addition, the data has been analyzed to determine the total in-flow and out-flow 
rates for each school.  The school with the largest in-flow rate is Spring Creek Matanzas Charter and the school 
with the largest out-flow rate is Whited Elementary Charter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTENDANCE MATRIX

SCHOOL: A
u

st
in

 C
re

ek
 E

le
m

B
in

kl
ey

 E
le

m
 C

h
ar

te
r

M
ad

ro
n

e 
El

em

M
at

an
za

s 
Sp

ri
n

g 
C

re
ek

 C
h

ar
te

r

R
ed

w
o

o
d

 C
o

n
so

rt
iu

m
 F

o
r 

St
u

d
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es

R
in

co
n

 V
al

le
y 

C
h

ar
te

r 
M

at
an

za
s

R
in

co
n

 V
al

le
y 

C
h

ar
te

r 
Se

q
u

o
ia

Se
q

u
o

ia
 E

le
m

Sp
ri

n
g 

C
re

ek
 M

at
an

za
s 

C
h

ar
te

r

V
ill

ag
e 

El
em

 C
h

ar
te

r

W
h

it
ed

 E
le

m
 C

h
ar

te
r

To
ta

l R
e

si
d

in
g

AREA

Inter-District 38 80 78 101 69 96 70 43 132 144 112 963

Austin Creek Elem 301 6 15 0 1 0 0 26 2 0 8 359

Binkley Elem Charter 11 182 38 5 2 0 0 24 8 5 28 303

Madrone Elem 20 21 170 4 1 0 0 30 4 6 13 269

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter 5 6 7 95 4 0 0 5 0 24 3 149

Sequoia Elem 29 21 19 1 3 0 0 234 0 0 8 315

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 4 1 6 0 3 0 0 16 113 23 5 171

Village Elem Charter 11 14 11 30 1 0 0 11 48 182 9 317

Whited Elem Charter 17 68 63 14 2 0 0 41 33 27 263 528

Correction Factor* -2 -4 -5 -2 2 18 16 -7 -7 -3 -4 2

Total Attending 434 395 402 248 88 114 86 423 333 408 445 3,376

Intra-Ins 97 137 159 54 17 0 0 153 95 85 74 871

Inter-Ins 38 80 78 101 69 96 70 43 132 144 112 963

Total In-Flow 135 217 237 155 86 96 70 196 227 229 186 1,834

Intra-Outs 58 121 99 54 0 0 0 81 58 135 265 871

% In Flow Students 31.1% 54.9% 59.0% 62.5% 46.3% 68.2% 56.1% 41.8% 54.3%

% Out Flow Students 16.2% 39.9% 36.8% 36.2% 25.7% 33.9% 42.6% 50.2% 25.8%

* The correction factor represents the difference between the student data download counts and the actual CALPADS counts.

SCHOOL OF ATTENDANCE

R

E

S

I

D

E

N

C

E



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 36 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Student Residency and Enrollment Comparison 
 

 
 
This chart compares each individual elementary school enrollment to the students that reside within the school 
attendance boundary.  Utilizing this data helps make it easy to see which schools have the largest and smallest 
enrollments as well as which boundaries are most populated.  Schools with more students enrolled than those 
living in the boundary have a net transfer into the school.  This is typically found at schools with special programs 
such as Gate or Dual Immersion, schools housing students from overcrowded schools, and schools with more 
capacity than the student population living in the boundary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

359

303

269

149

0 0 0

315

171

317

528

434

395 402

248

88

184 184

423

333

408

445

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

A
u

st
in

 C
re

e
k

E
le

m

B
in

kl
ey

 E
le

m

C
h

a
rt

e
r

M
ad

ro
n

e
 E

le
m

M
at

an
za

s

Sp
ri

n
g 

C
re

e
k

C
h

a
rt

e
r

R
ed

w
o

o
d

C
o

n
so

rt
iu

m

fo
r 

St
u

d
e

n
t…

R
in

co
n

 V
al

le
y

C
h

a
rt

e
r

M
at

an
za

s

R
in

co
n

 V
al

le
y

C
h

a
rt

e
r

Se
q

u
o

ia

Se
q

u
o

ia
 E

le
m

Sp
ri

n
g 

C
re

e
k

M
at

an
za

s

C
h

a
rt

e
r

V
ill

ag
e 

E
le

m

C
h

a
rt

e
r

W
h

it
e

d
 E

le
m

C
h

a
rt

e
r

Elementary Schools
Student Residents & Enrollment

Boundary

Enrollment



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 37 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

District Projections 
 
This graph shows a summary of the projections for the entire District.  It shows the current enrollment for 
2016/17, the historic enrollment for the past nine (9) years, and the projected enrollment for the next ten 
(10) years.  The end result is a total of 3,837 students in the District in 2026/27. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2797 2869 2960
3097 3184 3206 3238 3336 3294 3200 3210 3193 3202 3215 3236 3266 3295 3339 3387 3439

168
166

163

167
169 167

251
290 268

344 350 370 374 362 360 364 380 394 392
398

2965
3035

3123

3264
3353 3373

3489
3626

3562 3544 3560 3563 3576 3577 3596 3630 3675
3733 3779

3837

07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27

S
tu

d
e

n
ts

Year

10 Year Enrollment History &
10 Year Enrollment Projection

TK-6 7-8



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 38 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

One Year Enrollment Projection Summary 
 

 
 
The projection for next year (2017/18) shows an increase of 16 students.  The largest declines will be seen at 
grades 4 and 5.  The largest increase will be in 6th grade. 
 
These projections assume the transfers between schools remain consistent.  If changes in facilities, 
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

School T K K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 TOTAL

Austin Creek Elem 0 54 57 75 53 66 70 53 0 0 428

Binkley Elem Charter 19 45 53 54 50 59 59 57 0 0 396

Madrone Elem 33 59 42 55 48 51 53 69 0 0 410

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter 0 0 0 0 0 79 81 82 0 0 242

Sequoia Elem 0 56 53 65 65 62 70 43 0 0 414

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 21 77 79 84 78 0 0 0 0 0 339

Village Elem Charter 0 53 57 49 59 57 54 68 0 0 397

Whited Elem Charter 0 59 80 46 76 60 62 87 0 0 470

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas 0 2 0 3 2 2 2 1 92 83 187

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia 0 2 0 3 1 3 2 1 92 83 187

Redwood Consortium for Student Services 0 31 17 10 11 6 7 8 0 0 90

Totals 73 438 438 444 443 445 460 469 184 166 3,560

Current CBEDS 76 438 435 441 436 460 477 437 182 162 3,544

Net Change -3 0 3 3 7 -15 -17 32 2 4 16

Cohort Change 0 9 2 9 0 -8

YEAR 17/18, 1 Year Proj.

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District

Enrollment Projections



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 39 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

Enrollment Projection Summary by Grade 
 

 
 

Enrollment Projection Summary by School 
 

 
 
 

Current

Enrollment

Grade 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

TK 76 73 73 74 73 73 73

K 438 438 439 445 440 451 462

1 435 438 436 437 444 439 450

2 441 444 448 446 447 454 450

3 436 443 447 451 448 450 458

4 460 445 453 457 459 457 459

5 477 460 445 454 458 461 459

6 437 469 452 438 446 451 455

7 182 184 202 192 186 190 192

8 162 166 168 182 176 170 172

Total K-6 3,200 3,210 3,193 3,202 3,215 3,236 3,266

Total 7-8 344 350 370 374 362 360 364

District Totals 3,544 3,560 3,563 3,576 3,577 3,596 3,630

Enrollment Projection Summary by Grade

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District

Current

Enrollment

School 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Austin Creek Elem 434 428 430 424 415 420 417

Binkley Elem Charter 395 396 392 395 395 404 401

Madrone Elem 402 410 401 404 406 405 400

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter 248 242 230 224 229 233 241

Sequoia Elem 423 414 424 424 424 421 419

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 333 339 340 346 347 352 358

Village Elem Charter 408 397 388 387 389 391 402

Whited Elem Charter 445 470 475 483 494 494 508

Elementary Totals 3,088 3,096 3,080 3,087 3,099 3,120 3,146

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas 184 187 197 199 193 192 194

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia 184 187 197 199 193 192 194

Middle Totals 368 374 394 398 386 384 388

Redwood Consortium for Student Services 88 90 89 91 92 92 96

Other Totals 88 90 89 91 92 92 96

District Totals 3,544 3,560 3,563 3,576 3,577 3,596 3,630

Annual Change 16 3 13 1 19 34

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District

Enrollment Projection Summary by School



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 40 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

School Facility Utilization 
 
The following chart shows the current and projected utilization rates for each school.  It has been color coded 
with blue representing schools with a utilization rate of under 70%, yellow representing a utilization rate of at 
least 70% but under 80% and red for the schools that have over 100% utilization. 
 

 
 
For 2016, the most under-utilized school is Matanzas Spring Creek Charter and the highest utilization is at 
Whited Elementary Charter.   
 
The ten year projections show an increase of 293 students compared to the current enrollment in 2016/17 of 
3,544 students.  In addition, the ten year projections indicate that six (6) of the elementary schools will be 
overcrowded and exceed their capacity.  The District will need additional classroom space in the next few 
years unless enrollment patterns are shifted to utilize the space available at Binkley.  Within the next 8 to 10 
years the District should plan on adding more classrooms to its inventory.    As the birth rates are currently at 
an all-time low, it is likely there will be additional increases in enrollment once the birth rates trend up 
beyond the ten year projections shown in this report.    
 
The average district school site size is 7.95 acres.  The average site size for most elementary schools in the 
State range between 10 to 12 acres.  The Department of Education recommendation for a K-6 school with 
420 students is 6.7 to 7 acres.  This is about the average size of most sites in the District.  The housing of the 
7th and 8th graders creates a need for even more space at the sites operating those grade levels.  Based on 
this information, the existing District sites would not be good candidates for an expansion of the capacity by 
adding more buildings. 
 
The District currently has 26 portables located on its sites.  This represents 15.8% of the total classrooms in 
the District.  This is just under the State’s maximum guideline of 20% portables.  Therefore, adding more 
portables should only be considered if needed for temporary housing. 
 
 

School Facility Utilization 2016/17 2022/23 2026/27 2016/17 2022/23 2026/27

District Current Projected Projected Current Projected Projected

Elementary Schools Classrooms Capacity Enrollment Enrollment Enrollment Utilization Utilization Utilization

Austin Creek Elem 18 420 434 417 431 103.3% 99.3% 102.6%

Binkley Elem Charter 25 420 395 401 417 94.0% 95.5% 99.3%

Madrone Elem 22 420 402 400 422 95.7% 95.2% 100.5%

Matanzas Spring Creek Charter 13 390 248 241 257 63.6% 61.8% 65.9%

Sequoia Elem 19 420 423 419 436 100.7% 99.8% 103.8%

Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 18 360 333 358 388 92.5% 99.4% 107.8%

Village Elem Charter 17 400 408 402 419 102.0% 100.5% 104.8%

Whited Elem Charter 18 420 445 508 537 106.0% 121.0% 127.9%

Sub-Totals 150 3,250 3,088 3,146 3,307 95.0% 96.8% 101.8%

Middle Schools

Rincon Valley Charter Matanzas 8 240 184 194 212 76.7% 80.8% 88.3%

Rincon Valley Charter Sequoia 7 210 184 194 212 87.6% 92.4% 101.0%

Sub-Totals 15 450 368 388 424 81.8% 86.2% 94.2%

Other Schools

Redwood Consortium for Student Services 0 0 88 96 106

Sub-Totals 0 0 88 96 106

District Totals 165 3,700 3,544 3,630 3,837 95.8% 98.1% 103.7%



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 41 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

The color-coded map below shows the 2026/27 projected utilization for the elementary schools. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Madrone ElemMadrone ElemMadrone ElemMadrone ElemMadrone ElemMadrone ElemMadrone ElemMadrone ElemMadrone Elem

(100.5%)(100.5%)(100.5%)(100.5%)(100.5%)(100.5%)(100.5%)(100.5%)(100.5%)

Spring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring CreekSpring Creek

Matanzas CharterMatanzas CharterMatanzas CharterMatanzas CharterMatanzas CharterMatanzas CharterMatanzas CharterMatanzas CharterMatanzas Charter

(107.8%)(107.8%)(107.8%)(107.8%)(107.8%)(107.8%)(107.8%)(107.8%)(107.8%)

Village ElemVillage ElemVillage ElemVillage ElemVillage ElemVillage ElemVillage ElemVillage ElemVillage Elem

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

(104.3%)(104.3%)(104.3%)(104.3%)(104.3%)(104.3%)(104.3%)(104.3%)(104.3%)

Binkley ElemBinkley ElemBinkley ElemBinkley ElemBinkley ElemBinkley ElemBinkley ElemBinkley ElemBinkley Elem

CharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharterCharter

(99.3%)(99.3%)(99.3%)(99.3%)(99.3%)(99.3%)(99.3%)(99.3%)(99.3%)

Austin Creek ElemAustin Creek ElemAustin Creek ElemAustin Creek ElemAustin Creek ElemAustin Creek ElemAustin Creek ElemAustin Creek ElemAustin Creek Elem

(102.6%)(102.6%)(102.6%)(102.6%)(102.6%)(102.6%)(102.6%)(102.6%)(102.6%)

Sequoia ElemSequoia ElemSequoia ElemSequoia ElemSequoia ElemSequoia ElemSequoia ElemSequoia ElemSequoia Elem

(103.8%)(103.8%)(103.8%)(103.8%)(103.8%)(103.8%)(103.8%)(103.8%)(103.8%)

Whited Elem CharterWhited Elem CharterWhited Elem CharterWhited Elem CharterWhited Elem CharterWhited Elem CharterWhited Elem CharterWhited Elem CharterWhited Elem Charter

(127.9%)(127.9%)(127.9%)(127.9%)(127.9%)(127.9%)(127.9%)(127.9%)(127.9%)

Projected Utilization Map

Elementary Schools

> 100%> 100%> 100%> 100%> 100%> 100%> 100%> 100%> 100%   (6)  (6)  (6)  (6)  (6)  (6)  (6)  (6)  (6)

808080808080808080 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 100100100100100100100100100%%%%%%%%%   (1)  (1)  (1)  (1)  (1)  (1)  (1)  (1)  (1)

707070707070707070 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 808080808080808080%%%%%%%%%   (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)

< 70%< 70%< 70%< 70%< 70%< 70%< 70%< 70%< 70%   (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)  (0)



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 42 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 

 
 
This graph shows just the grade TK-6 population enrolled in the District and the capacity of the 
elementary schools.  The District will exceed its capacity in 2022/23.  However, this assumes every class 
at every grade level at every school is full according to the District loading standards.  As the students 
are not always located at the right school at the right grades, it is common to need additional facilities in 
advance of reaching the capacity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3200 3210 3193 3202 3215 3236 3266 3295 3339 3387
3439

2000

2250

2500

2750

3000

3250

3500

3750

16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27

S
tu

d
e

n
ts

Year

Elementary Schools
10 Year Enrollment Projection

and Capacity

Elementary Enrollment

Capacity : 3,250



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 43 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 
 
This graph shows each of the elementary schools and the corresponding capacity in comparison to the 
current enrollment and the enrollment projected in ten years.  The label above the bars for each school 
identify in which year the school will exceed it capacity.  Two of the schools already exceed their 
capacity while two of the schools are not projected to reach their capacity.  The most impacted school is 
Whited Elementary Charter.  This graph clearly illustrates the fact that the schools are well utilized and 
that additional growth will generate a need for more facilities.  

 
Build-out Projections 
 
Beyond the ten year projections in this study, there are still additional opportunities for additional growth to 
occur within the District boundaries.  In reviewing the city and county planning documents, there are the 
following spaces available for growth: 
 
Description  Area  Units 
Raw Subdivision Land 21.7 acres 108 
Future Apartments 13.7 acres 342 
Undeveloped Lots   213 
Rural Residential    139 
Total units based on current zoning:   802 
 
In addition, there is potential growth anticipated as the city grows to the limits of its sphere of influence.  
There are approximately 866 acres of additional expansion to the north are of the district within the current 
boundaries of Binkley and Whited.  There are also 297 acres to the east of the city within the Austin Creek 
boundary available for future expansion of the city boundaries.  

4
2

0

4
2

0

4
2

0

3
9

0 4
2

0

3
6

0 4
0

0

4
2

0

4
3

4

3
9

5

4
0

2

2
4

8

4
2

3

3
3

3

4
0

8 4
4

5

4
3

1

4
1

7

4
2

2

2
5

7

4
3

6

3
8

8 4
1

9

5
3

7

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

A
u

st
in

 C
re

e
k

E
le

m

B
in

kl
ey

 E
le

m

C
h

a
rt

e
r

M
ad

ro
n

e
 E

le
m

M
at

an
za

s

Sp
ri

n
g 

C
re

e
k

C
h

a
rt

e
r

Se
q

u
o

ia
 E

le
m

Sp
ri

n
g 

C
re

e
k

M
at

an
za

s

C
h

a
rt

e
r

V
ill

ag
e 

E
le

m

C
h

a
rt

e
r

W
h

it
e

d
 E

le
m

C
h

a
rt

e
r

Elementary School Capacity & Enrollment
& Year Reaches Capacity

Capacity Current Enrollment

10 Year Projection

20222016 2018
2022

2016

2023



 

 

 

July2017 
Page 44 

 

Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District 
Demographic Study 
2016/17 

 
This city expansion is estimated to generate an increase in housing units in the neighborhood of 1.6 units per 
acre.  At that rate, there could be a total increase of 1,900 housing units beyond the developments previously 
identified. 
 
Potential increase in student population 
Land zoned for development:    802 units 194 students 
Future city expansion:  1,900 units 460 students 
Total build-out projection:   654 students 
 
The 2026 projections show a total enrollment of 3,837 students.  The additional increase of 654 students in 
the years beyond the ten year projections result in a build-out projection of 4,491 students.  With a current 
capacity of 3,700 students, there is a need to house an additional 791 students.  Assuming the current district 
standards of 420 students per campus, this will generate the need for 2 new school sites.    
 
Based on the projections in this study, the first new school could be needed as early as 2022/23.     
  
Building a new school within the next 10 to 15 years will be the best option to maintain the current school 
sizes and to allow additional space for increases in the student population beyond the ten year projections. 
 
The majority of the future growth is anticipated to occur within the boundaries of Austin Creek, Binkley and 
Whited. 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.6 

Subject:  District Operations Departments’ Purpose Statements 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Background: Several years ago the District developed a mission statement.  In order to better 
define their roles and to aid in planning, the maintenance, operations, 
transportation, technology, food service and business services departments began 
work on a departmental purpose statements.  These purpose statements were 
developed with the entire staff of each department providing input under the 
leadership of the supervisor or manager of the department.   These statements are 
attached. 

 
 The supervisors and managers will use these purpose statements as a springboard 

to develop goals collaboratively with each department.  Goals likely to be on all of 
the plans will address customer service, quality assurance, professional 
development, more efficient use of technology, etc.  Specific plans with 
measurable goals will be developed in these areas.  If the board is in agreement 
with these purpose statements, staff will begin developing the specific goals during 
the opening in-service days next week.  These goals will be brought back to the 
board in the fall with the goal of implementation before the end of the school year. 

 
 
 
Attachments: Operational Departments’ Purpose Statements  
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only. 
 



 

 

 

Business Department  

The purpose of the Rincon Valley Union School District Business Office is to 

provide and ensure sound fiscal management, which supports employees, 

students, and families to achieve the educational and operational goals of the 

District. 

Maintenance Department  

RVUSD Maintenance Department members come together each day with 

determination to maintain & repair our school environment to foster a safe and 

pleasing atmosphere for students, faculty, staff members, and parents.  This is 

accomplished through good communication, a team approach, and a courteous 

positive attitude with every intention to meet any challenge the District may 

present. 

 

Technology Department 

The Information Technology Department will provide high quality technology‐

based services, in the most cost‐effective manner, to facilitate the mission of 

RVUSD as it applies to administration, teaching, learning, and community service. 

 

Food Services Department  

The purpose of the Rincon Valley Union School District Food Services Department 

is to make a significant contribution to the general well‐being and learning ability 

of each student.  This will be achieved by providing students with a healthy, 

nutritious, appetizing meal served courteously in a clean, pleasant and fun 

environment. We help support school values that benefit not only the child, but 

society as a whole. 

 



Custodial Department  

The Rincon Valley Union School District Custodial Services Department's purpose 

is to provide a clean, safe, heathy, friendly environment in which our teachers can 

teach and our students can learn.  We will accomplish this by committing to our 

shared values and by achieving the highest level of customer satisfaction with 

emphasis on teamwork. 

 

Transportation Department 

The Rincon Valley Union School District Transportation Department’s purpose is 

to provide students with courteous, professional and dependable transportation 

to and from school in a consistently fair and friendly environment that focuses on 

student safety. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.7 

Subject:  LCAP Revisions – Charter Schools 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: The Charter LCAPs have been fully revised to reflect site-based metrics and 
outcomes.  They are presented to ensure Trustees have access to the final 
documents.  

 
 
 
Attachments: Local Control Accountability Plan for the following: 

 Binkley Charter School  
 Rincon Valley Charter School 
 Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School 
 Village Charter School            
 Whited Charter School 

 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only. 
 



Page 1 of 89

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.

LEA Name Rincon Valley Union School District

----------Contact Name and
Title

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.
Superintendent

Email and 
Phone

troehrick@rvusd.org
(707) 542-7375

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

This document serves as the key needs assessment resource for the revision of the 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 LCAP.  
The data included comprises that which is required under each of the State's eight priority areas.  Binkley Charter School 
conducted a parent engagement needs assessment using the PTA National Standards for Family-School Partnerships 
Assessment.  The results from each of these needs assessment tools were used as the basis for identifying critical areas 
to address within the new LCAP.        

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

The 2017-18 Binkley Charter School (BCS) LCAP builds upon our prior year goals and initiatives.  We have retained our 
six goals that address the State's eight priority areas.  In doing so, we have made adjustments to our annual measurable 
outcomes to incorporate the new California School Dashboard accountability metrics.  WCS has take the approach to 
weave parent involvement throughout our goals.  We have defined parent involvement to comprise of three components:
1. Parents as leaders (e.g., site council)
2. Parents as partners (e.g., attending parent/teacher conferences)
3. Parents as learners (e.g., parent education)

Goal #1 addresses the foundational aspects of effective schools (Basic Supports) to include:
1. Highly qualified teachers
2. Standards aligned instructional materials
3. Facilities in good repair
4. Deep involvement of parents as leaders

Items 1 - 3 above are required by the State to address.  BCS has added parent leadership as an additional foundational 
pillar because we know that deep involvement by parents in leadership roles is a key indicator of a healthy and vibrant 
learning community.  In the prior LCAP year, our outcome was to ensure each school had a functioning parent 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/49708966085229/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 89

organization, a site council, and an English Learner Advisory Council (ELAC).  This LCAP year requires us to have these 
leadership groups fully constituted as measured by each groups' bylaws.

Goal #2 addresses course access.  As a K-6 grade school, students have access to nearly every curricular or program 
we offer.  The exceptions are our Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) and Special Education programs.  Students 
must meet certain criteria to receive services under these programs.  We spent the prior LCAP year analyzing our 
participation rates in these three options.  Our results have been incorporated in our 2017-18 LCAP with specific 
strategies to close our identified gaps.

Goal #3 addresses safe and positive school environments.  This has been an area of emphasis for the BCS.  In 2015-16, 
we committed extensive fiscal resources to bring full-time counselors to our schools.  We also created an office clerk 
position to assist us better monitor and address attendance issues.  Other efforts include expanding school-wide 
programs that intentionally provide students with the tools they need to be thoughtful and respectful members of our 
society.  We believe we have made tremendous progress in this area.  We are now moving beyond the implementation 
phase of our efforts to fine-tuning how we use our new resources to ensure students continue to experience safe and 
nurturing learning environments.

Goal #4 addresses our expectations concerning language arts achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 3rd grade as our overarching goal.  We have 
done this because of the extensive research clearly linking end of 3rd grade status in reading as an indicator of future 
success as learners.

Goal #5 addresses our expectations concerning mathematics achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 6th grade as our overarching goal.

Goal #6 addresses the progress of our English learners in attaining English proficiency.  In the prior LCAP year, our 
metrics were tied to the former State English learner accountability model.  We have adjusted our metrics to align with 
the California Dashboard.  However, with the change in the State assessment that measures English learner progress in 
attaining English, the California School Dashboard will be in a holding pattern during much of the three years this LCAP 
represents.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, 
what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may 
include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, 
English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

The LCFF Rubrics that are the underpinning of the California School Dashboard were released for the first 
time this year based on the spring 2015 and 2016 results.  At BCS, we are in the Green zone for English 
language arts (ELA) for all students with a Status of High (10.4 pts. above Level 3) and a Change of 
Maintained (+4.0 pts.).  For ELA, English learners Increased (+7.8 pts.) and Students with Disabilities 
Maintained (+0.9 pts.).

Our California School Dashboard results for English learner progress was also promising.  This measure 
the percent of students who have made increased one level on the CELDT from the prior year.  Our Status 
was Medium (70.3%) and our Change was Increased (3%).  This placed us in the Green zone on the LCFF 
Rubric.  Other measures attest to our solid gains in English learner progress.  Our reclassification rate, 
based on the October 2016 census, shows 17.2% of English learners were reclassified.  Our LCAP goal for 
2016-17 was 15%.  This gain is a four year high for our district.  Though the current English learner 
accountability system is going away, we were able to meet two of the three State AMAO goals for this year.

1. 61% of English learners district-wide increased at least one CELDT level (Goal was 63.5%).
2. 35.2% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less reached
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 26.7%).
3. 58.4% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years reached
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 54.7%).

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 3 of 89

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to 
address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

Our greatest area of need is in math performance.  As a district, we are in the Orange zone for 
mathematics for all students with a Status of Low (25.5 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of Declined (-1.9 
pts.).    Our English learner results for math are similar.  We are in the Orange zone English learners with a 
Status of Low (40.7pts. below Level 3) and a Change of Declined (-3.8 pts.).  Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged Students Declined Significantly (-12.9 pts.) and Students with Disabilities Declined (-3.9 
pts.).

BCS is refocusing professional development for teachers in our math program as our primary strategy to 
improve our outcomes.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 4 of 89

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was 
two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

In ELA, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students and Hispanic Students are two levels below 
that of All Students  Both are in the Orange Zone.  Both sub-groups Declined, but are near the 
margin of Maintained.

BCS is adopting a new ELA/ELD program as our primary strategy to improve our outcomes for 
these subgroups of students.

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services 
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
The key improved service for English learners is the provision of a comprehensive and daily designated ELD program that will be 
delivered to English leaners based on their current status on the continuum of acquiring English.  Extensive professional development 
for all teachers is occurring over the summer.   Site and district administrators have also received this training and are therefore, better 
equipped to guide the implementation of this new ELA/ELD curriculum.  We also have two full-time consulting teachers that will assist 
teachers.  Our administrative team will continually review their observations of practice so we understand the success of our 
implementation.  While none of this improved service is funded through supplemental funding, it does demonstrate the District's 
commitment to closing our achievement gap and accelerating reclassification for our English
learners.

        

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $3,019,786.88

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$1,902,923.00

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the 
LCAP.

All of the site's expenditures that support our LCAP goals are embedded with each goal.  Additional General Fund 
expenditures support our core mission as an educational organization.  These include, but are not limited to clerical, 
custodial, maintenance, food service, and other related administrative costs.        

$3,044,564 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 5 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to 
the California State adopted standards as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.
4.  Parent groups have multiple opportunities to advise individual 
schools and the District as evidenced by school and district 
calendared events.
      

1.  Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in all core 
subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections.
4.  Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in leadership groups 
including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District Advisory Committees, 
and ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and advise individual schools and the District.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 6 of 89

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Ensure every student receives all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.       

ACTUAL
Every student received all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $51,298 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $48,210

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $5,769,849 

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $5,746,872

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $206,223 

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $213,220

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

ACTUAL
Every student was provided standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $98,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $80,507

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.         

ACTUAL
Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 8150  LCFF $1,416,277 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 8150  LCFF $1,720,977

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide opportunities for parent participation in leadership 
groups, such as PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and 
District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, that consult 
and advise individual schools and the District.       

ACTUAL
Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in 
leadership groups including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, 
School and District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, 
that consult and advise individual schools and the District.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 7 of 89

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The actions and services for this goal were fully implemented.  Our annual analysis of teacher assignments 
revealed that all teachers are highly qualified and posses the appropriate credentials for their assignments.  
Our annual sufficiency resolution as adopted by the Governing Board verifying that every student was in 
possession of all adopted core instructional materials.  Our annual inspections of individual school facilities 
noted that all campuses were in either good or exceptional condition.  As in past years,  individual schools 
and the district have been successful in garnering parent participation on school and district leadership 
committees and groups.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The district's actions and services to meet this goal and metrics have been fully met, therefore, the stated 
actions and services were highly effective.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Ensure 
every student is provided with standards aligned instructional materials in all core subject areas). The 
District spent $17,493 less than expected (17.9% less). The actual cost for replacement materials was 
lower than budgeted and the District met its obligation to provide every student with standards aligned, 
Board adopted, instructional materials in all core subjects. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 3 (Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet 
the State criteria for being in good repair). The District spent an additional $304,700 than expected (21.5% 
greater). The additional expenses were a result of needed repairs due to water intrusion in classrooms and 
other school buildings due to extensive rain this past winter. The district office also required unexpected 
roof repairs due to a large tree falling over and landing on the roof.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District has met all of the its Williams Act indicators.  As a result, the district can assert that it 
continues to attract and hire highly qualified and appropriately credential teachers for all vacancies.  Core 
adopted instructional materials are available in sufficient supply to ensure each student is provided with all 
core adopted materials.  The district continues to provide school facilities that are in great condition as 
evidenced by our annual site inspections and lack of concern as reported by our greater community.  
Parents continue to be deeply involved in site and district leadership committees and groups.

Change:  Since the District is meeting its Wiliams Act indicators, no changes to the revised LCAP have 
been made.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 8 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Participation of students in the District's GATE and special education 
programs mirror the demographics of the District's students, especially 
for English learner and socio-economically disadvantaged students as 
measured by an audit of the sub-group participation in each program.        

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the demographics of our district as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and 
Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special 
education and related services revealed over representation of two subgroups of 
students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the special 
education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total 
population, 44% of the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 43% of our 
special education population).
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 9 of 89

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Review the District's GATE identification process to ensure 
each component fairly identities students regardless of English 
language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who are identified as gifted 
revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino 
(27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the 
GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged 
students (33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE 
population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Review the District's special education identification process to 
ensure each evaluation fairly identities students regardless of 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who have been identified as 
being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  
English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of 
the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our 
total population, 43% of our special education population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The District actions this year to achieve the goal of equity of access across our Gate and Special 
Education programs was to establish benchmarks of access gaps among our significant subgroups of 
students.

--------

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 10 of 89

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The Districts's actions to meet this goal were effective as we now have baseline data and identified gaps in 
access.  We have identified future actions and/or services to close and eliminate these gaps.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgets and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District determined there are participation gaps within each of the three programs its 
provides that are not offered to all students.  These include lower participation rates for English learners 
and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students in GATE and higher participation rates for English 
learners and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students and lower participation rates for White students 
in Special Education.

Change:  We have amended our expected outcomes, metrics, and actions and services to specifically 
address the gaps we identified in order to close and eventually eliminate the identified gaps among our 
significant subgroups of students.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 11 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase P-2 attendance rate to 96% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
2. Reduce P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged, and special education students.
3. Reduce P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
5. Maintain P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
6. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a 
school where they feel safe to 100% as measured by the district-wide 
local student climate survey (76 percent of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe).

As an elementary district, high school drop-out and graduation rates 
do not apply.
      

1.  The Binkley P-2 attendance rate was 95.6% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  The Binkley P-2 chronic absenteeism rate was 9.0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  The Binkley P-2 pupil suspension rate was 4.1% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
4.  The Binkley P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  The number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the Binkley local student climate survey was 67% of 
students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 73% of students reported 
being happy at school "often/always".
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 12 of 89

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain counseling programs at each school.       

ACTUAL
Counseling resources were maintained at each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $163,519 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $111,232

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       

ACTUAL
Clerical attendance support personnel were maintained at 
each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $230,244 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $227,018

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand school site participation in Restorative Practices.       

ACTUAL
Restorative Practices training was expanded to all schools 
beyond the pilot sites.  Counselors are assisting teachers 
implement the practice.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $25,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $25,000

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $35,001 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $28,587

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand the PlayWorks program to increase student 
participation.        

ACTUAL
Yar Duty II personnel, who deliver the recess activities, are in 
place at all schools.  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as Back to School Night, 
Open House, Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and 
other site-based community events.       

ACTUAL
School-based activities that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events were provided.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 13 of 89

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate district-wide in the Sonoma Leadership Network 
(SLN) which will focus on culturally responsive teaching 
practices.       

ACTUAL
Each school selected a team of two teachers and the site 
administrator to join district personnel in the SLN.  Teams are 
working to bring a coherent, district-wide plan focus on 
equity.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $11,550 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 5200 OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $10,900

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year to improve the overall school climate for students through school counseling programs 
and the implementation/maintenance of social-emotional learning programs.  The result of this would be 
increased attendance and decreased suspension rates.  The implementation of the social emotional 
learning programs has gone well and is beginning to be shared with parents.  Counseling and office 
support have been maintained and contribute to the low chronic absenteeism and truancy rates.  

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Counselors have supported parent education initiatives and have monitored attendance at their school 
sites.  They support the principals in school-wide campaigns to improve peer interactions and build student 
skills.  These have shown a reduction in the number of referrals to the school office for discipline issues, 
however has not decreased the number of overall suspensions.  The specific incidents of  suspension will 
be reviewed to determine if there are trends.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Maintain 
counseling programs at each school). The District spent $54,287 less than expected (33.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to moving the difference in expenses to the MediCal budget.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  Based on the student suspension rate going up slightly, additional analysis will be conducted to 
determine if there is trend that is not being addressed.  Attendance rates will continue to be addressed 
through the school counseling program and the office clerks.

Change:  No significant changes are being recommended at this time.  Further analysis of suspension 
incidents will guide any necessary changes.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 14 of 89

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 15 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
4

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with 
special attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for language arts to 63%.
2. Increase the percent of English learner 3rd students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 37%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language
arts to 52%.
4. 60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each 
trimester.
The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high
school students.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the March 2017 California School Dashboard report 
designates the School as High (10.4 pts. above Level 3) for our Status and 
Maintained (+4 pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric color is Green.  However, these 
results are relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this 
update is intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark (STAR Reading) data:

School-wide:  65% of all students met benchmark; 36% of English learners met 
benchmark; 56% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
Third grade: 72% of all students met benchmark; 33% of English learners met 
benchmark; 56% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.

Early literacy screening (DIBELS) data for K-1:  60% of all students ready for "core" 
instruction, 43% of English learners ready for "core instruction; 46% of economically 
disadvantaged students ready for "core" instruction.

Kindergarten Readiness (READY) data:  43% of all students entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go", 22% of English earners entered Kindergarten "ready to go"; 
(economically disadvantaged status was not tracked for this data.
      

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 16 of 89

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

ACTUAL
Implemented a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand and utilize the Student Support Model for students not 
meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.       

ACTUAL
Expanded and utilized the Student Support Model for 
students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or 
local benchmark assessment targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental  
$237,259  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$153,874

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

ACTUAL
Participated in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for primary grade students 
not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $35,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $35,948

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 17 of 89

MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $6,742 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State ELA/ELD standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State ELA/ELD standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that provides strategies for families 
to support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.        

ACTUAL
Provided school-based parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading skills, such as, 
decoding, fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget   

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish three family library/computer lab evening events per 
school to provide access to these resources among our 
families and to promote home-based literacy support for 
students.         

ACTUAL
Due to fiscal restraints and a need to focus Student Support 
resources, this action was not implemented.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget    

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 18 of 89

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year was solidifying instructional and assessment practices in early literacy and expanding 
our support services for students who are not yet at standard in language arts. The two actions related to 
parent and family support were not implemented (family library time) or not implemented on a large enough 
scale (parent education to support reading) to affect long-term change.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on Trimester 2 data, our actions were effective in meeting our goals. Our next step is to see how 
well our local data matches the CAASPP data.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Expand 
and utilize the Student Support Model for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local 
benchmark assessment targets). The District spent $83,385 less than expected (35.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to personnel savings due to a Support Coordinator vacancy that was only 
partially filled during the school year. There was also a material difference in what was budgeted and the 
actual expenditures for Action 4 (Provide a summer school program for primary grade students not on track 
to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets). The District spent $35,000 less than what was budgeted (100%) 
due to its inability to hold summer school due to extensive summer facility work being conducted on every 
campus.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  Based on local benchmark measure, District student performance is meeting prior year LCAP 
expected outcomes.  Since Spring 2017 CAASPP results will not be available at the time of adoption, these 
measure are not included in the District's analysis of its ability to meet its 2016-17 LCAP goals.  This 
analysis will occur during the Annual update for the 2016-17 school year as part of the development of the 
2018-19 LCAP.

Change:  Since the available measurable outcome show the District exceeding its performance goals, no 
significant changes are proposed.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 19 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
5

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 
6th grade students (as a predictor of 8th grade student success).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 50%.
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 25%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 27%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP standard.

      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report designates the 
School as Low (-25.5 pts. below Level 3) for our Status and Maintained (-1.9 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  However, these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address.

We piloted a new local benchmark this year and our goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved difficult to manage and our Trimester 2 data could not 
be compared to Trimester 1 due to concerns about validity of scores in Trimester 1. If 
we set the benchmark at 70% correct for Trimester 2: School-wide:  35% of all 
students met benchmark; 20% of English learners met benchmark; 23% of 
economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.

      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 20 of 89

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement intervention programs for students not meeting 
CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

ACTUAL
Partial implementation of intervention programs for students 
not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State Math standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State Math standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.       

ACTUAL
Provided limited training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost   

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 21 of 89

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and practices 
embedded within the new California State standards.       

ACTUAL
Schools held a Family Math Night as a tool to strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the new California State 
standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Immaterial cost     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Immaterial cost    

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our implementation of the actions for math was inconsistent across the district, with some schools ready 
and able to begin this work and other schools that needed to focus on building capacity or systems before 
beginning this work.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The local benchmark platform that we piloted this year was not effective. It was cumbersome to create and 
distribute benchmark assessments and the data was not friendly or easily accessible. However, as an 
intervention and practice platform, the program shows promise. Schools who have used the program for 
systematic intervention in math have seen a strong correlation to prior CAASPP scores and have seen 
growth in student achievement in math. The program's placement test seems to be strongly correlated to 
the SmarterBalanced rigor and format.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgeted and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District recognizes the performance of students in mathematics is below our expectations.  
Improvement is necessary and a specific strategy to address performance has been developed and 
implemented.

Change:  We plan to use the end-of-module assessments from our adopted core instructional program 
(Engage New York/Eureka Math) to identify students' "status" in math and use our intervention program 
(MobyMax) placement test to monitor "change" in students' progress toward end of year standards. The 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 22 of 89

data from these two assessments should give us an accurate picture of students' math performance and 
help us predict how well they will do on the state summative assessment.

We will change our focus grade level from 8th grade to 6th grade. Since a large percent of our 8th grade 
students did not attend our elementary schools, it is not accurate to use that group as an indicator of our 
overall system performance. Since most of our students leave our district at the end of 6th grade, it is more 
accurate to evaluate our system performance at that grade level.

We are also strengthening our teachers' capacity to constantly implement math instruction as intended.  
Site administrator monitoring of classroom practices is a key strategy.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 23 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
6

Every English learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. 63.5% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. 
(2016-17 Title III AMAO 1).
2. 26.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years 
or less will meet reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17
Title III target AMAO 2a).
3. 54.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for more 
than 5 years will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17
Title III target AMAO 2b).
4. 15% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).
      

1.  76% of English learners increased at least one CELDT level.
2.  40% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
3.  66.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
4.  18.5% of English learners were reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) in 
the census-to-census count.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Pilot new designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 
school year.       

ACTUAL
Piloted new designated ELD programs and adopted 
Benchmark Advance for the 2017-18 school year.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 24 of 89

Expenditures
BUDGETED
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $21,741 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $50,049

ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $50,031 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $50,031

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
Integrated ELD.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness    

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English learners 
at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their acquisition 
of English toward reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as long-term English learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their 
acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as long-term English learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $23,986 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $24,986

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.       

ACTUAL
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $23,604 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $23,604

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED ACTUAL

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 25 of 89

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.       

Provided instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $16,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $16,000

Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $7,384 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,077

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Integrated ELD and support for ELs in the classroom was a district focus at the beginning of the school 
year, with schools continuing this work based on the numbers and needs of English learners at their sites. 
Our largest-scale action this year was examining, piloting, and adopting a new ELA/ELD program to better 
support Integrated and Designated ELD in the classroom.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on our actual outcomes, our actions and services for English learners in the past two years have 
been effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Pilot new 
designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 school year). The District spent $28,308 more than 
expected (130.12% more). The additional expenses was charged against this account for additional 
support required in this effort by the District's EL Coordinator. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 6 (Provide adult English classes for parents who are 
English learners). The District spent $6,307 less than expected (85.4%). This was due to not being fully 
staffed in the position of English learner Assistants. Therefore, we did not utilize what was budgeted. We 
did end the year fully staffed and are expected to be so at the beginning of the 2017-18 school year. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District met three of its four annual measurable outcomes for the 2016-17 LCAP for this 
goal.  English learners are acquiring English to the level as expected the State.  However, we know we 
have pockets of English learners that are not making annual progress and improved outcomes for these 
students are needed.

Change:  The implementation of the new K-6 ELA/ELD program next year will be a big change and will 
require an examination of the role of our EL Assistants. Extensive professional development for the new 
program will be required for certificated, classified, and administrative staff.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 26 of 89

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 27 of 89

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

Introduction

The Binkley Charter School is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and understand this is an integral part in developing an effective strategic plan.  As such, BCS 
used a variety of site and district-based meetings and events to involve and hear from our stakeholders.  These included a series of site-based meetings for each of our 
stakeholder groups led by our principal throughout the Annual Update, a series of site-based meetings, co-presented by the principal and the superintendent, to review the initial 
draft of the new LCAP, and a series of district-wide meetings with other stakeholder groups, such as employees (CTA, CSEA, non-represented), District English Learner Advisory 
Committee (DELAC), Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and students.
       

Binkley School Site Council met on November 7, 2016.  Binkley held a community session on November 10, 2016.  Binkley's ELAC met on November 16, 2016.  These meetings 
were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for 
modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged.         

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on January 19, 2016.  The group reviewed the site-based feedback 
gathered during October through December 2015 and made recommendations for the 2016-17 LCAP.       

Parent Advisory Committee met on March 2, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and 
actions/services for the next three years.        

Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee met on March 10, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable 
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on March 15, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting 
goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

District English Learner Advisory Council met on February 22, 2017.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable 
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.        

The District held eight community-wide LCAP input meetings on February 15, 2017 (Village), February 21, 2017 (Austin Creek), February 22, 2017 in Spanish (Madrone), 
February 23, 2017 (RVCS-Matanzas), February 27, 2017 (Whited), March 2, 2017 (Binkley), March 6, 2017 (Madrone), and March 7, 2017 (Sequoia). The group reviewed 
progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

The District met with our teachers' association, RVUTA, On February 14, 2017.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, 
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.        

The District met with our classified employees association, CSEA, On March 28, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, 
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

 Governing Board met on April 11, 2017.  Trustees reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for 
the next three years.       

Governing Board met on May 9, 2017.  Trustees held a Public Hearing on the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP.  At the same meeting, there was a public hearing on the 2017-
18 Budget.       

Governing Board met on June 13, 2017.  Trustees approved the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-29 LCAP and 2017-18 Budget.       
Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 28 of 89

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

Binkley stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the expansion of the counseling program in recent years and its positive impact on school climate
• Appreciate the emphasis on family oriented events that bring the community together
• Appreciate access to MobyMax at home, especially for families of EL students
• Appreciate the offering of ELD Academy and its thematic structure
• Appreciate the varied ways teachers and schools use to communicate with parents
• Appreciate the extra support in the office and the positive difference it makes for parents and staff
• Appreciate the expansion of Restorative Practices and its positive impact on school climate
• SIPPS is having a positive impact on students learning to read
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP to include:
• Further embed consistent classroom strategies for EL students across the curriculum and grades
• Increase opportunities for hands-on activities
• Provide parent education that demonstrates how the new State standards are applicable to real life
• Strengthening the PlayWorks program to increase the participation of students who might benefit with more structure during recess
• Ensure that age appropriate activities are available for children during Parent Education events
• Provide opportunities for teachers to observe each other specific to ELD instruction
• Expand intervention options in math
       

Administrative Council stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the focus the LCAP provides and how these goals align to site-based school plans
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Provide site leaders with training on using social media and in strategies to engage the parent community
• Focus the math goal on 6th grade, rather than 8th grade
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Parent Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the progress the district has made in creating social-emotional programs and related services
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to support literacy, especially in the primary grades
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Strengthen parent education efforts, including creating web-based resources rather than just face-to-face presentations
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Student's view counselors as an important resource for themselves individually and for others
• Appreciate restorative circles as a way to resolve problems and get to know more about one another

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 29 of 89

• Appreciated field trips and special school events that bring the community together and make school life more engaging
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Students report having friends at school is a critical aspect of feeling connected and wanting to come to school each day.  Students suggest schools develop strategies to 

foster students getting to know others outside of their friendship groups.
• Suggest math instruction is highly differentiated so high achieving students are continually challenged, while students at other levels have meaningful instruction
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The District English Learner Advisory Council feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the goals in place to support learning for all students, especially EL students
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to strengthen both integrated and designated ELD instruction
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Development of additional strategies to improve communication with parents of EL students, such as the creation of video series to provide specific information on various 

programs such as integrated and designated ELD, ELACs and DELAC, Summer ELD Academy, Latino Family Literacy
All questions were answered at the meetings.  The DELAC did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Community-wide LCAP stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the effort of the district to focus on the whole student, i.e., academic and social emotional programs and support
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Build upon current parent education programs, especially to provide strategies for parents to assist their children with math
• Utilize social media more in communication from the district and from individual schools
• Provide additional options for parent to network with one another
All questions were answered at the various meetings.
       

RVUTA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• RVUTA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

CSEA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• CSEA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

At the April 11, 2017 Regular meeting, Trustees reviewed the draft LCAP for the 20017-18 school year.  Trustees appreciated the incorporation of the California Dashboard into the 
document.       

At the May 9, 2017 Regular meeting, The Governing Board provided an opportunity for community comment.  No member of the public spoke concerning the LCAP.       

At the June 13, 2017 Regular meeting, the Governing Board approved the 2017-18, 2018019, 2019-20 LCAP as presented.       

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 30 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student benefits when they are provided core instruction from highly qualified teachers, are provided standards 

aligned instructional materials, and are housed in facilities in good repair.  The Rincon Valley Union School District 
consistently provides every student with these Basic Supports and is committed to continue to do so.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every student received all 
core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers as defined by 
the State of California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all 
teacher credentials.
2.  Every student was provided 
standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject 
areas as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as 
verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3.  Every student was housed in 
facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair 
as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 31 of 89

4.  Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.
       

4.  Parents were provided 
multiple opportunities to 
participate in leadership groups 
including  PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and District 
Advisory Committees, and 
ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and 
advise individual schools and 
the District.

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of 
officers..

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of officers.

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of officers.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 32 of 89

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.       

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $22,148 Amount $23,000 Amount $24,000

       $22,148Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $22,148Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Amount       $1,674,256 Amount $1,700,000 Amount $1,750,000

       $1,674,256Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source Supplemental

       $1,674,256Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and 
site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 33 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 34 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.         

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 35 of 89

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.       

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners.

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 36 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student in the Rincon Valley Union School District has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.  

As a core K-6 district, courses are provided through grade level classes.  In the charter middle school (grades 7-8), 
every student maintains a similar schedule, differing by elective choice.  Programs such as GATE, advanced coursework 
(grades 7-8), and special education are only offered to students who meet predefined criteria.

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged students 
(33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of the special 
education population).  The examination also identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 
43% of our special education population).

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

An examination of students who 
are identified as gifted revealed 
three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a 
whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 11% of the 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 37 of 89

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.         

GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total 
population, 0% of the GATE 
population), and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who 
have been identified as being 
eligible for special education and 
related services revealed over 
representation of two subgroups 
of students:  English Learners 
(10% of the total population, 
18% of the special education 
population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
the total population, 44% of the 
special education population).  
The examination also identified 
an under represented group: 
White (58% of our total 
population, 43% of our special 
education population).

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.    

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 38 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen the case study process for GATE 
identification by using non-traditional instruments (such 
as a parent interview rather than a written survey for 
English Learner parents) in conjunction with traditional 
instruments (such as the Raven Progressive Matrices).       

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 39 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training for teachers and administrators 
in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of giftedness and 
how to report these observations in the case study 
process.       

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 40 of 89

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training to school sites on pre-referral 
interventions and to assessment teams on characteristics 
of students who are English Learners or who are 
identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  Training will 
focus on language differences and lack of experience 
characteristics as compared to characteristics of a 
disability.         

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.  

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 41 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Rincon Valley Union School District has high attendance rates, low chronic absenteeism rates, and has no history of its 

charter middle school student dropping out of school.  The District also benefits from an extremely low suspension and 
expulsion rates in recent years.  The most recent Student Survey indicates that 67% of students often/always feel safe at 
Binkley School while 73% are often/always happy to be at their school.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
attendance rate at 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  Reduce district-wide P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
charter middle school drop-out 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 

1.  The Binkley P-2 attendance 
rate was 95.6% for all students 
and significant subgroups to 
include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  The Binkley P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate was 9.0% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  The Binkley P-2 pupil 
suspension rate was 4.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.

1. Increase Binkley P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  Reduce Binkley P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  Reduce Binkley P-2 pupil 
suspension rate to below 2.0% 
for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 

1. Increase Binkley P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  Reduce Binkley P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  Reduce Binkley P-2 pupil 
suspension rate to below 2.0% 
for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 

1. Increase Binkley P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  Reduce Binkley P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  Reduce Binkley P-2 pupil 
suspension rate to below 2.0% 
for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 42 of 89

and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4.  Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy at 
school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.
       

4.  The Binkley P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  The number of students who 
self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as 
measured by the Binkley local 
student climate survey was 67% 
of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 73% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
4.  Maintain Binkley P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Binkley local student climate 
survey (84% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 82% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
4.  Maintain Binkley P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Binkley local student climate 
survey (84% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 82% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
4.  Maintain Binkley P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Binkley local student climate 
survey (84% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 82% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 43 of 89

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain counseling programs at each school.       Maintain counseling programs at each school. Maintain counseling programs at each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $76,117 Amount $78,000 Amount $80,000

       $76,117Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $76,117Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 44 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       Maintain clerical attendance support for each school. Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $65,528 Amount $67,500 Amount $69,500

       $65,528Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $65,528Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 45 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.       

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 46 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation.        

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       0 Amount 0 Amount 0

       0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 47 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.       

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 48 of 89

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.       

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 49 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 4 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special 
attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for reading by 3rd grade is a key indicator of subsequent student success in English 

language arts.  Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal that 63% of Binkley 3rd grade students met or exceeded the 
standard for English language arts.  For 6th grade, the last year in the district for most students, 53% of all students met 
the grade level criteria.  For English learners, 43% of 3rd and 9% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For 
socio-economically disadvantaged students, 36% of 3rd and 36% 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
65%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
50%.
4.  60% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
March 2017 California School 
Dashboard report designates the 
School as High (10.4 pts. above 
Level 3) for our Status and 
Maintained (+4 pts.) for our 
Change.  Our rubric color is 
Green.  However, these results 
are relevant to the 2015-16 

1.  Increase the percent of all 
3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 55%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
4.  65% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1.  Increase the percent of all 
3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
4.  70% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1.  Increase the percent of all 
3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
85%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 65%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
4.  75% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 50 of 89

The Academic Performance 
Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, 
AP test participation, and EAP 
do not apply as the district does 
not serve high school students.
       

LCAP year, not the 2016-17 
LCAP year this update is 
intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark 
(STAR Reading) data:

School-wide:  65% of all 
students met benchmark; 36% 
of English learners met 
benchmark; 56% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.
Third grade: 72% of all students 
met benchmark; 33% of English 
learners met benchmark; 56% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 51 of 89

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 52 of 89

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.       

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $47,549 Amount $50,500 Amount $53,500

       $47,549Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $47,549Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Kindergarten 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 53 of 89

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.         

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 54 of 89

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 55 of 89

alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.       

alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children.        

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 56 of 89

Budget 
Reference       Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children.        

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 57 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 5 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 6th 
grade students (as a predictor of 8th grade student success).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for math by 8th grade is a key indicator of student success in high school math 

courses.  Binkley will monitor 6th grade student progress as a predictor to 8th grade success.  Spring 2016 CAASPP 
results reveal that 25% of Binkley 6th grade students met or exceeded the standard for math.  For English learners, 12% 
of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 14% of 6th graders met 
or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 35%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 30%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
30%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the School as 
Low (-25.5 pts. below Level 3) 
for our Status and Maintained (-
1.9 pts.) for our Change.  Our 
rubric color is Orange.  
However, these results are 
relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP 

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 40%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 35%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 45%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 40%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
40%.
4.  Improve growth from the 
previous year for the local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 50%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 45%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
45%.
4.  Improve growth from the 
previous year for the local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 58 of 89

       
year, not the 2016-17 LCAP 
year this update is intended to 
address.

We piloted a new local 
benchmark this year and our 
goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved 
difficult to manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could not be 
compared to Trimester 1 due to 
concerns about validity of scores 
in Trimester 1. If we set the 
benchmark at 70% correct for 
Trimester 2: School-wide:  35% 
of all students met benchmark; 
20% of English learners met 
benchmark; 23% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 59 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 60 of 89

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 61 of 89

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.       

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.       

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 62 of 89

Budget 
Reference       No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.       

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Action    6
Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 63 of 89

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.       

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 64 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 6 Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner assessment (CELDT or ELPAC) and is on target and within timelines, 
as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Based on the 2015-16 administration of the CELDT, 76.0% of English learners increased at least one CELDT level; 

target is 62 (AMAO 1).
Based on the 2015-16 administration of the CELDT, 40.0% of English learners in US schools for 5 years or less reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT: target is 25.5 (AMAO 2a).
Based on the 2015-16 administration of the CELDT, 66.7% of English learners US schools for more than 5 years 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT: target is 52.8 (AMAO 2b).
18.5% of English learners were reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) in the census-to-census count.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  75% or more of English 
learners demonstrate at least 
one level of growth on the 
CELDT (or ELPAC).
2.  15% of English learners will 
be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).
       

1.  76% of English learners 
increased at least one CELDT 
level.
2.  40% of English learners who 
have been in US schools for 5 
years or less reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on 
CELDT.
3.  66.7% of English learners 
who have been in US schools 
for more than 5 years reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on 
CELDT.
4.  18.5% of English learners 
were reclassified as Fluent 

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indicators will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC.  Therefore, the school is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2.  15% of English learners will 
be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indicators will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC.  Therefore, the school is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indicators will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC.  Therefore, the school is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 65 of 89

English Proficient (RFEP) in the 
census-to-census count.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Implement the selected designated ELD program.       Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 66 of 89

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 67 of 89

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long-term English 
learner.       

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 68 of 89

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.       

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Budget 
Reference Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Budget 
Reference Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 69 of 89

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $11,475 Amount $12,000 Amount $13,000

       $11,475Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $11,475Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 70 of 89

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.       

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $5,850 Amount $6,850 Amount $7,850

       $5,850Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $5,850Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 71 of 89

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $64,874 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: 5.82%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or 
quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
BCS does not receive Concentration funds.  Supplemental funds for the 2017-18 school year will be used for our Multi Tiered System of Support (MSTS) 
programs.  The components of our MTSS program funded with supplemental funding include a range of intervention support, an ELD Summer Academy, to 
support a district-wide ELD coordinator, support the district's restorative practices program, fund a summer learning program, fund a portion of our family liaisons, 
and fund a portion of our EL assistants.   (Averill & Rinaldi, 2011; California Department of Education, 2015)

Intervention Programs:  These resources are principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction to students who are not 
meeting grade level CAASPP and/or local assessment targets.  While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups 
comprise the majority of students benefiting from the services.  Intervention services are provided within an extensive MTSS system that includes Student 
Support Coordinators, classroom teachers, and intervention teachers.  Student Support Coordinators provide direct instruction to students, monitor the progress 
of all students being served with support services and meet with grade level teams and principals to review the progress of groups and individuals.  English 
language arts and mathematics are the targeted subjects for identifying and supporting students.  Supplemental funds are used for Student Support Coordinator 
and intervention teachers' salaries and benefits.  (California Department of Education, 2015)

Cost of the Intervention Programs charged to Supplemental Funds: $47,549, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Codes 0652)

Summer ELD Academy:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction and monitoring of student progress 
within our overall system of supports.  Students participating in the Summer ELD Academy are English learners at the Intermediate level as measured by 
CELDT.  The goal of this service is to accelerate English language acquisition so that English learners do not become long term ELs.  Summer EL Academy 
classroom teachers provide the instruction.  Supplemental funds are used for Summer ELD Academy classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and 
benefits and instructional materials. (Ward-Singer, 2007; California Department of Education, ELD Standards Appendix C, 2015)

Cost of the Summer ELD Academy charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Code ELDA)

EL Coordinator:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by coordinating and monitoring of EL student progress within our overall 
system of supports. Supplemental funds are used for EL Coordinator salary and benefits. (Schmoker, 2006)

Cost of the EL Coordinator charged to Supplemental Funds: See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 10000-3000- (Management Code ELDC)

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 72 of 89

Restorative Practices:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used to support the training for certificated and classified personnel in the use of the Restorative Practices protocols.  This effort will result in district-wide 
implementation of this practice.  (International Institute for Restorative Practices, 2007)

Cost of expanding Restorative Practices charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code MAAD)

Summer Learning:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are not 
strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used for Summer Learning classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Smith, ASCD, 2012)

Cost of the Summer Learning program charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 0650)

Family Liaison:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing school-to-home related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Family Liaisons provide 
an important link between our schools and families.  These individuals provide support for families across a wide range of school attendance, social/emotional 
needs, and connecting to community-wide resources.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Breiseth, Robertson & 
Lafond, 2015)

Cost of the Family Liaisons charged to Supplemental Funds:  $11,475, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3999 (Management Code 4201)

EL Assistants:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing instructional services.  EL Assistants provide direction 
instructional support to our EL students.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Robertson & Ford, 2013)

Cost of the EL Assistants charged to Supplemental Funds:  $5,850, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3000 (Management Code 4203)

The District is increasing services by directing all new Supplemental funds to services that are principally directed towards our unduplicated students.  All new 
and ongoing Supplemental funding is directed towards our Multi Tiered System of Support services.  Detailed information concerning the use of these funds are 
included in Section 3:A.  -------
-------

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service
Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Funding Sources 8,428,708.00 8,568,092.00 1,902,923.00 1,937,850.00 1,997,850.00 5,838,623.00
LCFF 8,046,118.00 8,238,631.00 1,838,049.00 1,868,500.00 173,500.00 3,880,049.00
Supplemental 382,590.00 329,461.00 64,874.00 69,350.00 1,824,350.00 1,958,574.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types 8,428,708.00 8,568,092.00 1,902,923.00 1,937,850.00 1,997,850.00 5,838,623.00

1,416,277.00 1,720,977.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted 7,012,431.00 6,847,115.00 1,902,923.00 1,937,850.00 1,997,850.00 5,838,623.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 8,428,708.00 8,568,092.00 1,902,923.00 1,937,850.00 1,997,850.00 5,838,623.00

LCFF 1,416,277.00 1,720,977.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted LCFF 6,629,841.00 6,517,654.00 1,838,049.00 1,868,500.00 173,500.00 3,880,049.00
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 382,590.00 329,461.00 64,874.00 69,350.00 1,824,350.00 1,958,574.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
Goal 1 1,696,404.00 1,723,000.00 1,774,000.00 5,193,404.00

Goal 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 3 141,645.00 145,500.00 149,500.00 436,645.00

Goal 4 47,549.00 50,500.00 53,500.00 151,549.00

Goal 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 6 17,325.00 18,850.00 20,850.00 57,025.00

Goal 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Binkley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 1 of 83

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.

LEA Name Rincon Valley Union School District

----------Contact Name and
Title

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.
Superintendent

Email and 
Phone

troehrick@rvusd.org
(707) 542-7375

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

This document serves as the key needs assessment resource for the revision of the 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 LCAP.  
The data included comprises that which is required under each of the State's eight priority areas.  RVCS conducted a 
parent engagement needs assessment using the PTA National Standards for Family-School Partnerships Assessment.  
The results from each of these needs assessment tools were used as the basis for identifying critical areas to address 
within the new LCAP.        

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

The 2017-18 Rincon Valley Charter School (RVCS) LCAP builds upon our prior year goals and initiatives.  We have 
retained our six goals that address the State's eight priority areas.  In doing so, we have made adjustments to our annual 
measurable outcomes to incorporate the new California School Dashboard accountability metrics.  RVUSD has take the 
approach to weave parent involvement throughout our goals.  We have defined parent involvement to comprise of three 
components:
1. Parents as leaders (e.g., site council)
2. Parents as partners (e.g., attending parent/teacher conferences)
3. Parents as learners (e.g., parent education)

Goal #1 addresses the foundational aspects of effective schools (Basic Supports) to include:
1. Highly qualified teachers
2. Standards aligned instructional materials
3. Facilities in good repair
4. Deep involvement of parents as leaders

Items 1 - 3 above are required by the State to address.  RVCS has added parent leadership as an additional 
foundational pillar because we know that deep involvement by parents in leadership roles is a key indicator of a healthy 
and vibrant learning community.  In the prior LCAP year, our outcome was to ensure each school had a functioning 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/49708960102525/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 83

parent organization and a site council.  This LCAP year requires RVCS to have these leadership groups fully constituted 
as measured by each groups' bylaws.

Goal #2 addresses course access.  As primarily middle grade charter, students have access to nearly every curricular or 
program we offer.  The exceptions are our Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) and Special Education programs.  
Students must meet certain criteria to receive services under these programs.  We also provide advanced language arts 
and mathematic courses.  Students must demonstrate their readiness to participate in either advanced option.  We spent 
the prior LCAP year analyzing our participation rates in these three options.  Our results have been incorporated in our 
2017-18 LCAP with specific strategies to close our identified gaps.

Goal #3 addresses safe and positive school environments.  This has been an area of emphasis for the District.  In 2015-
16, we committed extensive fiscal resources to bring full-time counselors to our schools.  Other efforts include expanding 
school-wide programs that intentionally provide students with the tools they need to be thoughtful and respectful 
members of our society.  We believe we have made tremendous progress in this area.  We are now moving beyond the 
implementation phase of our efforts to fine-tuning how we use our new resources to ensure students continue to 
experience safe and nurturing learning environments.

Goal #4 addresses our expectations concerning language arts achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 3rd grade as our overarching goal.  We have 
done this because of the extensive research clearly linking end of 3rd grade status in reading as an indicator of future 
success as learners.

Goal #5 addresses our expectations concerning mathematics achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 8th grade as our overarching goal.  We know 
that if students are not at grade level by the end of 8th grade, they will be unable to complete all of the required math 
coursework in high school to be eligible for a four year college.

Goal #6 addresses the progress of our English learners in attaining English proficiency.  In the prior LCAP year, our 
metrics were tied to the former State English learner accountability model.  We have adjusted our metrics to align with 
the California Dashboard.  However, with the change in the State assessment that measures English learner progress in 
attaining English, the California School Dashboard will be in a holding pattern during much of the three years this LCAP 
represents.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, 
what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may 
include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, 
English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

The LCFF Rubrics that are the underpinning of the California School Dashboard were released for the first 
time this year based on the spring 2015 and 2016 results.  At RVCS, we are in the Yellow zone for English 
language arts (ELA) for all students with a Status of High (20.4 pts. above Level 3) and a Change of 
Declined (-3.8 pts.).  For ELA, English learners Maintained (+6.9 pts.) and Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged Maintained (+2.6 pts.).  Though overall results for math need to be improved, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students Increased (+5.9 pts.).

Our California School Dashboard results for English learner progress was also promising.  This measure 
the percent of students who have made increased one level on the CELDT from the prior year.  Our Status 
was Medium (70.3%) and our Change was Increased (3%).  This placed us in the Green zone on the LCFF 
Rubric.  Other measures attest to our solid gains in English learner progress.  Our reclassification rate, 
based on the October 2016 census, shows 17.2% of English learners were reclassified.  Our LCAP goal for 
2016-17 was 15%.  This gain is a four year high for our district.  Though the current English learner 
accountability system is going away, we were able to meet two of the three State AMAO goals for this year.

1. 61% of English learners district-wide increased at least one CELDT level (Goal was 63.5%).

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 3 of 83

2.  35.2% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 26.7%).
3.  58.4% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 54.7%).

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to 
address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

Our greatest area of need is in math performance.  At RVCS, we are in the Orange zone for mathematics 
for all students with a Status of Low (25.5 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of Declined (-3.2 pts.).  English 
learners Declined Significantly (-19.5 pts.) and Students with Disabilities Declined (-5.0 pts.).

The District is refocusing professional development for teachers in our math program as our primary 
strategy to improve our outcomes.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 4 of 83

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was 
two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

None of our subgroups were two or more performance levels below the all student performance.  

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services 
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
The key improved service for English learners is the provision of a comprehensive and daily designated ELD program that will be 
delivered to English leaners based on their current status on the continuum of acquiring English.  Extensive professional development 
for all teachers is occurring over the summer.   Site and district administrators have also received this training and are therefore, better 
equipped to guide the implementation of this new ELA/ELD curriculum.  We also have two full-time consulting teachers that will assist 
teachers.  Our administrative team will continually review their observations of practice so we understand the success of our 
implementation.  While none of this improved service is funded through supplemental funding, it does demonstrate the District's 
commitment to closing our achievement gap and accelerating reclassification for our English
learners.

        

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $2,930,474

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$1,558,412.00

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the 
LCAP.

All of the site's expenditures that support our LCAP goals are embedded with each goal.  Additional General Fund 
expenditures support our core mission as an educational organization.  These include, but are not limited to clerical, 
custodial, maintenance, food service, and other related administrative costs.        

$2,756,347 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 5 of 83

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to 
the California State adopted standards as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.
4.  Parent groups have multiple opportunities to advise individual 
schools and the District as evidenced by school and district 
calendared events.
      

1.  Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in all core 
subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections.
4.  Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in leadership groups 
including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District Advisory Committees, 
and ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and advise individual schools and the District.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 6 of 83

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Ensure every student receives all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.       

ACTUAL
Every student received all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $0

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,314,795 

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,238,180

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0 

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

ACTUAL
Every student was provided standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $98,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $80,507

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.         

ACTUAL
Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 8150  LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 8150  LCFF $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide opportunities for parent participation in leadership 
groups, such as PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and 
District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, that consult 
and advise individual schools and the District.       

ACTUAL
Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in 
leadership groups including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, 
School and District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, 
that consult and advise individual schools and the District.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 7 of 83

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The actions and services for this goal were fully implemented.  Our annual analysis of teacher assignments 
revealed that all teachers are highly qualified and posses the appropriate credentials for their assignments.  
Our annual sufficiency resolution as adopted by the Governing Board verifying that every student was in 
possession of all adopted core instructional materials.  Our annual inspections of individual school facilities 
noted that all campuses were in either good or exceptional condition.  As in past years,  individual schools 
and the district have been successful in garnering parent participation on school and district leadership 
committees and groups.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The district's actions and services to meet this goal and metrics have been fully met, therefore, the stated 
actions and services were highly effective.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Ensure 
every student is provided with standards aligned instructional materials in all core subject areas). The 
District spent $17,493 less than expected (17.9% less). The actual cost for replacement materials was 
lower than budgeted and the District met its obligation to provide every student with standards aligned, 
Board adopted, instructional materials in all core subjects. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 3 (Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet 
the State criteria for being in good repair). The District spent an additional $304,700 than expected (21.5% 
greater). The additional expenses were a result of needed repairs due to water intrusion in classrooms and 
other school buildings due to extensive rain this past winter. The district office also required unexpected 
roof repairs due to a large tree falling over and landing on the roof. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District has met all of the its Williams Act indicators.  As a result, the district can assert that it 
continues to attract and hire highly qualified and appropriately credential teachers for all vacancies.  Core 
adopted instructional materials are available in sufficient supply to ensure each student is provided with all 
core adopted materials.  The district continues to provide school facilities that are in great condition as 
evidenced by our annual site inspections and lack of concern as reported by our greater community.  
Parents continue to be deeply involved in site and district leadership committees and groups.

Change:  Since the District is meeting its Wiliams Act indicators, no changes to the revised LCAP have 
been made.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 8 of 83

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Participation of students in the District's GATE, special education, and 
advanced coursework programs mirror the demographics of the 
District's students, especially for English learner and socio-
economically disadvantaged students as measured by an audit of the 
sub-group participation in each program.        

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the demographics of our district as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and 
Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special 
education and related services revealed over representation of two subgroups of 
students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the special 
education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total 
population, 44% of the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 43% of our 
special education population).

An examination of students who were identified for Advanced Coursework in middle 
school revealed two subgroups are underrepresented based on the demographics of 
the school as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 8% of the 
Advanced Coursework population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (27% 
of our total population, 11% of the Advanced Coursework population).
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 9 of 83

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Review the District's GATE identification process to ensure 
each component fairly identities students regardless of English 
language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who are identified as gifted 
revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino 
(27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the 
GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged 
students (33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE 
population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Review the District's special education identification process to 
ensure each evaluation fairly identities students regardless of 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who have been identified as 
being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  
English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of 
the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our 
total population, 43% of our special education population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Review the District's criteria for selecting students as eligible 
for the charter middle school's advanced math and English 
language arts sections to ensure equitable access to students 
regardless of English language proficiency, culture, or socio-
economic background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who were identified for Advanced 
Coursework in middle school revealed two subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the demographics of the school 
as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 8% 
of the Advanced Coursework population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (27% of our total population, 11% of 
the Advanced Coursework population).

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 10 of 83

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The District actions this year to achieve the goal of equity of access across our Gate, Special Education 
and Advanced Coursework programs was to establish benchmarks of access gaps among our significant 
subgroups of students.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The Districts's actions to meet this goal were effective as we now have baseline data and identified gaps in 
access.  We have identified future actions and/or services to close and eliminate these gaps.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgets and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District determined there are participation gaps within each of the three programs its 
provides that are not offered to all students.  These include lower participation rates for English learners 
and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students in GATE, higher participation rates for English learners 
and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students and lower participation rates for White students in Special 
Education, and lower participation rates for Hispanic/Latino students and Socio-economically 
Disadvantaged students in the middle school advanced coursework options.

Change:  We have amended our expected outcomes, metrics, and actions and services to specifically 
address the gaps we identified in order to close and eventually eliminate the identified gaps among our 
significant subgroups of students.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 11 of 83

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase P-2 attendance rate at 96% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
2. Reduce P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students.
3. Maintain P-2 charter middle school drop-out rate at 0% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged, and special education students as 
measured by CALPADS.
4. Reduce P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
5. Maintain P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
6. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a 
school where they feel safe to 100% as measured by the district-wide 
local student climate survey (83 percent of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe)

As an elementary district, high school drop-out and graduation rates 
do not apply.
      

1.  The Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 attendance rate was 96.0% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
2.  The Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 chronic absenteeism rate was 8.1% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
3.  The Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 charter middle school drop-out rate was 
0% for all students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students as measured by 
CALPADS.
4.  The Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 pupil suspension rate was 9.0% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
5.  The Rincon Valley Charter School P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
6.  The number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the Rincon Valley Charter School local student 
climate survey was 82.5% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school 
and 75.5% of students reported being happy at school "often/always".
      

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 12 of 83

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain counseling programs at each school.       

ACTUAL
Counseling resources were maintained at each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $32,375 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $66,908

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       

ACTUAL
Clerical attendance support personnel were maintained at 
each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $126,725 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $125,470

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand school site participation in Restorative Practices.       

ACTUAL
Restorative Practices training was expanded to all schools 
beyond the pilot sites.  Counselors are assisting teachers 
implement the practice.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand the PlayWorks program to increase student 
participation.        

ACTUAL
Yar Duty II personnel, who deliver the recess activities, are in 
place at all schools.  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 13 of 83

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as Back to School Night, 
Open House, Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and 
other site-based community events.       

ACTUAL
School-based activities that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events were provided.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate district-wide in the Sonoma Leadership Network 
(SLN) which will focus on culturally responsive teaching 
practices.       

ACTUAL
Each school selected a team of two teachers and the site 
administrator to join district personnel in the SLN.  Teams are 
working to bring a coherent, district-wide plan focus on 
equity.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,200 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 5200 OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,200

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year to improve the overall school climate for students through school counseling programs 
and the implementation/maintenance of social-emotional learning programs.  The result of this would be 
increased attendance and decreased suspension rates.  The implementation of the social emotional 
learning programs has gone well and is beginning to be shared with parents.  Counseling and office 
support have been maintained and contribute to the low chronic absenteeism and truancy rates.  

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Counselors have supported parent education initiatives and have monitored attendance at their school 
sites.  They support the principals in school-wide campaigns to improve peer interactions and build student 
skills.  These have shown a reduction in the number of referrals to the school office for discipline issues, 
however has not decreased the number of overall suspensions.  The specific incidents of  suspension will 
be reviewed to determine if there are trends.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Maintain 
counseling programs at each school). The District spent $54,287 less than expected (33.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to moving the difference in expenses to the MediCal budget.

--------
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 14 of 83

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  Based on the student suspension rate going up slightly, additional analysis will be conducted to 
determine if there is trend that is not being addressed.  Attendance rates will continue to be addressed 
through the school counseling program and the office clerks.

Change:  No significant changes are being recommended at this time.  Further analysis of suspension 
incidents will guide any necessary changes.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 15 of 83

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
4

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP
English language arts standard with special attention to 8th grade students.
       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase the percent of all 8th grade students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for language arts to 74%.
2. Increase the percent of English learner 8th students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 25%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language
arts to 43%.
4. 60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each 
trimester.
The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high
school students.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report designates the 
School as High (20.4  pts. above Level 3) for our Status and Declined (-3.8 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Yellow.  However, these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark (STAR Reading) data:

District-wide:  68% of all students met benchmark; 29% of English learners met 
benchmark; 53% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
8th grade: 63% of all students met benchmark; 0% of English learners met 
benchmark; 28% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.

      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 16 of 83

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand and utilize the Student Support Model for students not 
meeting local benchmark assessment targets.       

ACTUAL
Expanded and utilized the Student Support Model for 
students not meeting local benchmark assessment targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental   
$9,913 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$10,000

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State ELA/ELD standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State ELA/ELD standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that provides strategies for families 
to support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.        

ACTUAL
Provided school-based parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading skills, such as, 
decoding, fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish three family library/computer lab evening events per 
school to provide access to these resources among our 
families and to promote home-based literacy support for 
students.       

ACTUAL
Due to fiscal restraints and a need to focus Student Support 
resources, this action was not implemented.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 17 of 83

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget    

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
         

ACTUAL

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year was solidifying instructional and assessment practices in early literacy and expanding 
our support services for students who are not yet at standard in language arts. The two actions related to 
parent and family support were not implemented (family library time) or not implemented on a large enough 
scale (parent education to support reading) to affect long-term change.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on Trimester 2 data, our actions were effective in meeting our goals. Our next step is to see how 
well our local data matches the CAASPP data.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Expand 
and utilize the Student Support Model for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local 
benchmark assessment targets). The District spent $83,385 less than expected (35.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to personnel savings due to a Support Coordinator vacancy that was only 
partially filled during the school year. There was also a material difference in what was budgeted and the 
actual expenditures for Action 4 (Provide a summer school program for primary grade students not on track 
to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets). The District spent $35,000 less than what was budgeted (100%) 
due to its inability to hold summer school due to extensive summer facility work being conducted on every 
campus.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  Based on local benchmark measure, District student performance is meeting prior year LCAP 
expected outcomes.  Since Spring 2017 CAASPP results will not be available at the time of adoption, these 
measure are not included in the District's analysis of its ability to meet its 2016-17 LCAP goals.  This 
analysis will occur during the Annual update for the 2016-17 school year as part of the development of the 
2018-19 LCAP.

Change:  Since the available measurable outcome show the District exceeding its performance goals, no 
significant changes are proposed.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 18 of 83

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 19 of 83

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
5

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 
8th grade students.         

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase the percent of all 8th grade students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math to 49%.
2. Increase the percent of English learner 8th students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 25%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 27%.
4. Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP standard.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report designates the 
School as Low (-25.5pts. above Level 3) for our Status and Declined (-3.2 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  However, these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address.

We piloted a new local benchmark this year and our goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved difficult to manage and our Trimester 2 data could not 
be compared to Trimester 1 due to concerns about validity of scores in Trimester 1. If 
we set the benchmark at 70% correct for Trimester 2: District-wide:  37% of all 
students met benchmark; 12% of English learners met benchmark; 22% of 
economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 20 of 83

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement intervention programs for students not meeting 
CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

ACTUAL
Partial implementation of intervention programs for students 
not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State Math standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State Math standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.       

ACTUAL
Provided limited training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost   

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 21 of 83

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and practices 
embedded within the new California State standards.       

ACTUAL
Schools held a Family Math Night as a tool to strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the new California State 
standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Immaterial cost     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Immaterial cost    

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our implementation of the actions for math was inconsistent across the district, with some schools ready 
and able to begin this work and other schools that needed to focus on building capacity or systems before 
beginning this work.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The local benchmark platform that we piloted this year was not effective. It was cumbersome to create and 
distribute benchmark assessments and the data was not friendly or easily accessible. However, as an 
intervention and practice platform, the program shows promise. Schools who have used the program for 
systematic intervention in math have seen a strong correlation to prior CAASPP scores and have seen 
growth in student achievement in math. The program's placement test seems to be strongly correlated to 
the SmarterBalanced rigor and format.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgeted and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District recognizes the performance of students in mathematics is below our expectations.  
Improvement is necessary and a specific strategy to address performance has been developed and 
implemented.

Change:  We plan to use the end-of-module assessments from our adopted core instructional program 
(Engage New York/Eureka Math) to identify students' "status" in math and use our intervention program 
(MobyMax) placement test to monitor "change" in students' progress toward end of year standards. The 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 22 of 83

data from these two assessments should give us an accurate picture of students' math performance and 
help us predict how well they will do on the state summative assessment.

We will change our focus grade level from 8th grade to 6th grade. Since a large percent of our 8th grade 
students did not attend our elementary schools, it is not accurate to use that group as an indicator of our 
overall system performance. Since most of our students leave our district at the end of 6th grade, it is more 
accurate to evaluate our system performance at that grade level.

We are also strengthening our teachers' capacity to constantly implement math instruction as intended.  
Site administrator monitoring of classroom practices is a key strategy.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 23 of 83

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
6

Every English learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  63.5% of English learners district-wide shall increase at least one 
CELDT level. (2016-17 Title III AMAO 1).
2.  26.7% of district-wide English learners who have been in US 
schools for 5 years or less will meet reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on 
CELDT.  (2016-17 Title III target AMAO 2a).
3.  54.7% of district-wide English learners who have been in US 
schools for more than 5 years will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on 
CELDT.  (2016-17 Title III target AMAO 2b).
4.  15% of English learners district wide will be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient (RFEP).
      

1.  78.6% of English learners school-wide increased at least one CELDT level.
2.  33% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or 
less reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
3.  69.2% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for more 
than 5 years reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
4.  13.3% of English learners district wide were reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP) in the census-to-census count.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Pilot new designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 
school year.       

ACTUAL
Piloted new designated ELD programs and adopted English 
3D for the 2017-18 school year.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 24 of 83

Expenditures
BUDGETED
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
Integrated ELD.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness    

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English learners 
at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their acquisition 
of English toward reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as long-term English learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their 
acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as long-term English learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.       

ACTUAL
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

Action    6
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 25 of 83

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.       

ACTUAL
Provided instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $5,107 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $4,700

Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Integrated ELD and support for ELs in the classroom was a district focus at the beginning of the school 
year, with schools continuing this work based on the numbers and needs of English learners at their sites. 
Our largest-scale action this year was examining, piloting, and adopting a new ELA/ELD program to better 
support Integrated and Designated ELD in the classroom.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on our actual outcomes, our actions and services for English learners in the past two years have 
been effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Pilot new 
designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 school year). The District spent $28,308 more than 
expected (130.12% more). The additional expenses was charged against this account for additional 
support required in this effort by the District's EL Coordinator. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 6 (Provide adult English classes for parents who are 
English learners). The District spent $6,307 less than expected (85.4%). This was due to not being fully 
staffed in the position of English learner Assistants. Therefore, we did not utilize what was budgeted. We 
did end the year fully staffed and are expected to be so at the beginning of the 2017-18 school year.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District met three of its four annual measurable outcomes for the 2016-17 LCAP for this 
goal.  English learners are acquiring English to the level as expected the State.  However, we know we 
have pockets of English learners that are not making annual progress and improved outcomes for these 
students are needed.

Change:  The implementation of the new K-6 ELA/ELD program next year will be a big change and will 
require an examination of the role of our EL Assistants. Extensive professional development for the new 
program will be required for certificated, classified, and administrative staff.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 26 of 83

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 27 of 83

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

Introduction

The Rincon Valley Charter School is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and understand this is an integral part in developing an effective strategic plan.  As such, 
the RVCS used a variety of site and district-based meetings and events to involve and hear from our stakeholders.  These included a series of site-based meetings for each of 
our stakeholder groups led by our principals throughout the Annual Update, a series of site-based meetings, co-presented by the principals and the superintendent, to review the 
initial draft of the new LCAP, and a series of district-wide meetings with other stakeholder groups, such as employees (CTA, CSEA, non-represented), District English Learner 
Advisory Committee (DELAC), Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and students.
       

The Rincon Valley Charter School's Executive Committee met on November 1, 2016.  Rincon Valley Charter School Parents met on November 15, 2016,.  Rincon Valley Charter 
School's Leadership Teams met on December 8 & 9, 2016.  These meetings were vice-principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based 
input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged.         

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on January 19, 2016.  The group reviewed the site-based feedback 
gathered during October through December 2015 and made recommendations for the 2016-17 LCAP.       

Parent Advisory Committee met on March 2, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and 
actions/services for the next three years.        

Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee met on March 10, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable 
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on March 15, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting 
goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

District English Learner Advisory Council met on February 22, 2017.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable 
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.         

The District held eight community-wide LCAP input meetings on February 15, 2017 (Village), February 21, 2017 (Austin Creek), February 22, 2017 in Spanish (Madrone), 
February 23, 2017 (RVCS-Matanzas), February 27, 2017 (Whited), March 2, 2017 (Binkley), March 6, 2017 (Madrone), and March 7, 2017 (Sequoia). The group reviewed 
progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

The District met with our teachers' association, RVUTA, On February 14, 2017.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, 
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.         

The District met with our classified employees association, CSEA, On March 28, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, 
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

Governing Board met on April 11, 2017.  Trustees reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for 
the next three years.       

Governing Board met on May 9, 2017.  Trustees held a Public Hearing on the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP.  At the same meeting, there was a public hearing on the 2017-
18 Budget.       

Governing Board met on June 13, 2017.  Trustees approved the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-29 LCAP and 2017-18 Budget.       
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 28 of 83

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

RVCS stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate teacher planning days and recognize their positive impact on the instructional program
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Add additional clerical support for the school offices
• Explore adding a peer mediation program
• Expand summer programs to the middle school to include summer reading lists and math support
• Provide a STEM Family Night for the middle schools
• Expand opportunities for Restorative circles at the middle schools
• Provide middle school students with an after school math homework club
• Provide more resources for parents to better understand the math program
       

Administrative Council stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the focus the LCAP provides and how these goals align to site-based school plans
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Provide site leaders with training on using social media and in strategies to engage the parent community
• Focus the math goal on 6th grade, rather than 8th grade
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Parent Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the progress the district has made in creating social-emotional programs and related services
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to support literacy, especially in the primary grades
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Strengthen parent education efforts, including creating web-based resources rather than just face-to-face presentations
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Student's view counselors as an important resource for themselves individually and for others
• Appreciate restorative circles as a way to resolve problems and get to know more about one another
• Appreciated field trips and special school events that bring the community together and make school life more engaging
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Students report having friends at school is a critical aspect of feeling connected and wanting to come to school each day.  Students suggest schools develop strategies to 

foster students getting to know others outside of their friendship groups.
• Suggest math instruction is highly differentiated so high achieving students are continually challenged, while students at other levels have meaningful instruction
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 29 of 83

The District English Learner Advisory Council feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the goals in place to support learning for all students, especially EL students
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to strengthen both integrated and designated ELD instruction
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Development of additional strategies to improve communication with parents of EL students, such as the creation of video series to provide specific information on various 

programs such as integrated and designated ELD, ELACs and DELAC, Summer ELD Academy, Latino Family Literacy
All questions were answered at the meetings.  The DELAC did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Community-wide LCAP stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the effort of the district to focus on the whole student, i.e., academic and social emotional programs and support
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Build upon current parent education programs, especially to provide strategies for parents to assist their children with math
• Utilize social media more in communication from the district and from individual schools
• Provide additional options for parent to network with one another
All questions were answered at the various meetings.
       

RVUTA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• RVUTA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

CSEA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• CSEA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

At the April 11, 2017 Regular meeting, Trustees reviewed the draft LCAP for the 20017-18 school year.  Trustees appreciated the incorporation of the California Dashboard into the 
document.       

At the May 9, 2017 Regular meeting, The Governing Board provided an opportunity for community comment.  No member of the public spoke concerning the LCAP.       

At the June 13, 2017 Regular meeting, the Governing Board approved the 2017-18, 2018019, 2019-20 LCAP as presented.       

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 30 of 83

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student benefits when they are provided core instruction from highly qualified teachers, are provided standards 

aligned instructional materials, and are housed in facilities in good repair.  The Rincon Valley Union School District 
consistently provides every student with these Basic Supports and is committed to continue to do so.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every student received all 
core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers as defined by 
the State of California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all 
teacher credentials.
2.  Every student was provided 
standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject 
areas as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as 
verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3.  Every student was housed in 
facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair 
as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 31 of 83

4.  Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.
       

4.  Parents were provided 
multiple opportunities to 
participate in leadership groups 
including  PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and District 
Advisory Committees, and 
ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and 
advise individual schools and 
the District.

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of 
officers..

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of officers.

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of officers.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 32 of 83

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.       

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits

Amount       $1,347,750 Amount $1,447,750 Amount $1,547,750

       $1,347,750Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $1,347,750Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and 
site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 33 of 83

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 34 of 83

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.         

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       Resource 8150

Budget 
Reference Resource 8150

Budget 
Reference Resource 8150

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 35 of 83

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.       

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners.

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 36 of 83

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student in the Rincon Valley Union School District has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.  

As a core K-6 district, courses are provided through grade level classes.  In the charter middle school (grades 7-8), 
every student maintains a similar schedule, differing by elective choice.  Programs such as GATE, advanced coursework 
(grades 7-8), and special education are only offered to students who meet predefined criteria.

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged students 
(33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of the special 
education population).  The examination also identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 
43% of our special education population).

An examination of students who were identified for Advanced Coursework in middle school revealed two subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the demographics of the school as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 
8% of the Advanced Coursework population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (27% of our total population, 
11% of the Advanced Coursework population).

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE, special 

An examination of students who 
are identified as gifted revealed 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE, special 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE, special 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE, special 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 37 of 83

education, and advanced 
coursework programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.         

three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a 
whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 11% of the 
GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total 
population, 0% of the GATE 
population), and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who 
have been identified as being 
eligible for special education and 
related services revealed over 
representation of two subgroups 
of students:  English Learners 
(10% of the total population, 
18% of the special education 
population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
the total population, 44% of the 
special education population).  
The examination also identified 
an under represented group: 
White (58% of our total 
population, 43% of our special 
education population).

An examination of students who 
were identified for Advanced 
Coursework in middle school 
revealed two subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the 
demographics of the school as a 
whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 8% of the 
Advanced Coursework 
population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (27% of 
our total population, 11% of the 
Advanced Coursework 
population).

education, and advanced 
coursework programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

education, and advanced 
coursework programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

education, and advanced 
coursework programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 38 of 83

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen the case study process for GATE 
identification by using non-traditional instruments (such 
as a parent interview rather than a written survey for 
English Learner parents) in conjunction with traditional 
instruments (such as the Raven Progressive Matrices).       

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 39 of 83

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training for teachers and administrators 
in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of giftedness and 
how to report these observations in the case study 
process.       

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 40 of 83

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training to school sites on pre-referral 
interventions and to assessment teams on characteristics 
of students who are English Learners or who are 
identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  Training will 
focus on language differences and lack of experience 
characteristics as compared to characteristics of a 
disability.         

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.  

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 41 of 83

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Identify middle school students eligible for advanced 
coursework at the beginning of each school year based 
on quantitative (placement test) and qualitative (prior 
teacher recommendation, observation of student critical 
thinking/problem solving) measures.        

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
criteria for selecting students as eligible for the charter 
middle school's advanced math and English language 
arts sections to ensure equitable access to students 
based on any demographic factor such as English 
language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
criteria for selecting students as eligible for the charter 
middle school's advanced math and English language 
arts sections to ensure equitable access to students 
based on any demographic factor such as English 
language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 42 of 83

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Rincon Valley Union School District has high attendance rates, low chronic absenteeism rates, and has no history of its 

charter middle school student dropping out of school.  The District also benefits from an extremely low suspension and 
expulsion rates in recent years.  The most recent Student Survey indicates that 82.5% of students often/always feel safe 
at Rincon Valley Charter School while 75.5% are often/always happy to be at their school.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
attendance rate at 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  Reduce district-wide P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
charter middle school drop-out 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 

1.  The Rincon Valley Charter 
School P-2 attendance rate was 
96.0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  The Rincon Valley Charter 
School P-2 chronic absenteeism 
rate was 8.1% for all students 
and significant subgroups to 
include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  The Rincon Valley Charter 
School P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate was 0% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 

1.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 attendance 
rate at 96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  Reduce Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 charter 
middle school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 

1.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 attendance 
rate at 96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  Reduce Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 charter 
middle school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 

1.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 attendance 
rate at 96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  Reduce Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 charter 
middle school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 43 of 83

and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4.  Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy at 
school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.
       

disadvantaged, and special 
education students as measured 
by CALPADS.
4.  The Rincon Valley Charter 
School P-2 pupil suspension 
rate was 9.0% for all students 
and significant subgroups to 
include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
5.  The Rincon Valley Charter 
School P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
6.  The number of students who 
self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as 
measured by the Rincon Valley 
Charter School local student 
climate survey was 82.5% of 
students report "often"/"always" 
feeling safe at school and 75.5% 
of students reported being 
happy at school "often/always".

English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4.  Reduce Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 3.0% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Rincon Valley Charter 
School local student climate 
survey (82.5% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 75.5% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4.  Reduce Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 3.0% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Rincon Valley Charter 
School local student climate 
survey (82.5% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 75.5% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4.  Reduce Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 3.0% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Maintain Rincon Valley 
Charter School P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Rincon Valley Charter 
School local student climate 
survey (82.5% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 75.5% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 44 of 83

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain counseling programs at each school.       Maintain counseling programs at each school. Maintain counseling programs at each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $64,766 Amount $65,750 Amount $66,750

       $64,766Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $64,766Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 45 of 83

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       Maintain clerical attendance support for each school. Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $130,128 Amount $140,000 Amount $150,000

       $130,128Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $130,128Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 46 of 83

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.       

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 47 of 83

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation.        

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 48 of 83

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.       

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 49 of 83

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.       

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 50 of 83

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 4 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special 
attention to 8th grade students.         

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for reading by 3rd grade is a key indicator of subsequent student success in English 

language arts.  At the middle school level, we will monitor 8th grade student results. Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal 
that 56% of Rincon Valley Charter School  8th grade students met or exceeded the standard for English language arts. 
For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 44% of 8th graders met or exceeded the standard. For English 
learners, 14% of students school-wide met or exceeded the standard.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
30%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
50%.
4.  60% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates Rincon Valley 
Charter School as High (20.4 
pts. above Level 3) for our 
Status and Declined (-3.8 pts.) 
for our Change.  Our rubric color 
is Yellow.  However, these 
results are relevant to the 2015-

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
65%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
30%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
55%.
4.  65% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
35%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
4.  70% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
75%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
40%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
65%.
4.  75% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 51 of 83

The Academic Performance 
Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, 
AP test participation, and EAP 
do not apply as the district does 
not serve high school students.

       

16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 
LCAP year this update is 
intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark 
(STAR Reading) data:
63% of all 8th grade students 
met benchmark; 0% of English 
learners met benchmark; 28% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 52 of 83

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.       

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $10,127 Amount $11,000 Amount $12,000

       $10,127Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $10,127Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0653)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0653)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0653)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 53 of 83

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.       

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    3
OR

ACTIONS/SERVICES

New Modified Unchanged

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 54 of 83

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 5 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 8th 
grade students.         

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for math by 8th grade is a key indicator of student success in high school math 

courses.  Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal that 35% of all Rincon Valley Charter School 8th grade students met or 
exceeded the standard for math. For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 26% of 8th graders met or exceeded 
this standard. For English learners, 7% of students met or exceeded this standard.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 50%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 35%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 8th grade CAASPP 
standard.

       

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the School as 
Low (25.5 pts. below Level 3) for 
our Status and Declined (-3.2 
pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric 
color is Orange.  However, these 
results are relevant to the 2015-
16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 55%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 40%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
40%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 8th grade CAASPP 
standard.

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 60%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner students meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 45%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
45%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 8th grade CAASPP 
standard.

1.  Increase the percent of all 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 65%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 8th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 50%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 8th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
50%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 8th grade CAASPP 
standard.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 55 of 83

LCAP year this update is 
intended to address.

2016-17 Local Measures

We piloted a new local 
benchmark this year and our 
goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved 
difficult to manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could not be 
compared to Trimester 1 due to 
concerns about validity of scores 
in Trimester 1. If we set the 
benchmark at 70% correct for 
Trimester 2: District-wide:  37% 
of all students met benchmark; 
12% of English learners met 
benchmark; 22% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 56 of 83

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 57 of 83

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.       

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 58 of 83

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.       

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 59 of 83

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 6 Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner assessment (CELDT or ELPAC) and is on target and within timelines, 
as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Because the population of English Learners at Rincon Valley Charter School is so small, the California Dashboard does 

not assign status, change, or color levels for our school. For 2016, 78.5% of Rincon Valley Charter School English 
learners demonstrated at least one level of growth on the CELDT. The percent of English learners reclassified at the 
October 2016 census was 13.3%.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  75% or more of English 
learners demonstrate at least 
one level of growth on the 
CELDT (or ELPAC).
2.  15% of English learners will 
be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).

       

1.  78.5% of English learners 
increased at least one CELDT 
level.
2.  33% of English learners who 
have been in US schools for 5 
years or less reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on 
CELDT.
3.  69.2% of English learners 
who have been in US schools 
for more than 5 years reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on 
CELDT.
4.  13.3% of English learners 
were reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient (RFEP) in the 
census-to-census count.

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indicators will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC.  Therefore, the school is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2.  15% of English learners will 
be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indicators will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC.  Therefore, the school is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indicators will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC.  Therefore, the school is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 60 of 83

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Implement the selected designated ELD program.       Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 61 of 83

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 62 of 83

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Action    4
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 63 of 83

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.       

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $5,641 Amount $6,000 Amount $6,500

       $5,641Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $5,641Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 64 of 83

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 65 of 83

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $72,695 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: 2.71%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or 
quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
RVCS does not receive Concentration funds.  Supplemental funds for the 2017-18 school year will be used for our Multi Tiered System of Support (MSTS) 
programs.  The components of our MTSS program funded with supplemental funding include a range of intervention support, an ELD Summer Academy, to 
support a district-wide ELD coordinator, support the district's restorative practices program, fund a summer learning program, fund a portion of our family liaisons, 
and fund a portion of our EL assistants.   (Averill & Rinaldi, 2011; California Department of Education, 2015)

Intervention Programs:  These resources are principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction to students who are not 
meeting grade level CAASPP and/or local assessment targets.  While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups 
comprise the majority of students benefiting from the services.  Intervention services are provided within an extensive MTSS system that includes Student 
Support Coordinators, classroom teachers, and intervention teachers.  Student Support Coordinators provide direct instruction to students, monitor the progress 
of all students being served with support services and meet with grade level teams and principals to review the progress of groups and individuals.  English 
language arts and mathematics are the targeted subjects for identifying and supporting students.  Supplemental funds are used for Student Support Coordinator 
and intervention teachers' salaries and benefits.  (California Department of Education, 2015)

Cost of the Intervention Programs charged to Supplemental Funds:  $10,127, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Codes 0653)

EL Assistants:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing instructional services.  EL Assistants provide direction 
instructional support to our EL students.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Robertson & Ford, 2013)

Cost of the EL Assistants charged to Supplemental Funds:  $5,641 , Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 4203)

Cost of Counseling:  $64,766, Resource Code 0000 Object 1-3 (Management Code 6150)

The District is increasing services by directing all new Supplemental funds to services that are principally directed towards our unduplicated students.  All new 
and ongoing Supplemental funding is directed towards our Multi Tiered System of Support services.  Detailed information concerning the use of these funds are 
included in Section 3:A.  -------
-------

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 66 of 83

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service
Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Funding Sources 1,588,115.00 1,526,965.00 1,558,412.00 1,670,500.00 1,783,000.00 5,011,912.00
LCFF 1,573,095.00 1,512,265.00 1,542,644.00 1,653,500.00 1,764,500.00 4,960,644.00
Supplemental 15,020.00 14,700.00 15,768.00 17,000.00 18,500.00 51,268.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types 1,588,115.00 1,526,965.00 1,558,412.00 1,670,500.00 1,783,000.00 5,011,912.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted 1,588,115.00 1,526,965.00 1,558,412.00 1,670,500.00 1,783,000.00 5,011,912.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 1,588,115.00 1,526,965.00 1,558,412.00 1,670,500.00 1,783,000.00 5,011,912.00

LCFF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted LCFF 1,573,095.00 1,512,265.00 1,542,644.00 1,653,500.00 1,764,500.00 4,960,644.00
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 15,020.00 14,700.00 15,768.00 17,000.00 18,500.00 51,268.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
Goal 1 1,347,750.00 1,447,750.00 1,547,750.00 4,343,250.00

Goal 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 3 194,894.00 205,750.00 216,750.00 617,394.00

Goal 4 10,127.00 11,000.00 12,000.00 33,127.00

Goal 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 6 5,641.00 6,000.00 6,500.00 18,141.00

Goal 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Rincon Valley Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 1 of 92

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.

LEA Name Rincon Valley Union School District

----------Contact Name and
Title

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.
Superintendent

Email and 
Phone

troehrick@rvusd.org
(707) 542-7375

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

This document serves as the key needs assessment resource for the revision of the 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 LCAP.  
The data included comprises that which is required under each of the State's eight priority areas.  Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School conducted a parent engagement needs assessment using the PTA National Standards for 
Family-School Partnerships Assessment.  The results from each of these needs assessment tools were used as the 
basis for identifying critical areas to address within the new LCAP.        

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

The 2017-18 Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School (SCMCS) LCAP builds upon our prior year goals and initiatives.  
We have retained our six goals that address the State's eight priority areas.  In doing so, we have made adjustments to 
our annual measurable outcomes to incorporate the new California School Dashboard accountability metrics.  WCS has 
take the approach to weave parent involvement throughout our goals.  We have defined parent involvement to comprise 
of three components:
1. Parents as leaders (e.g., site council)
2. Parents as partners (e.g., attending parent/teacher conferences)
3. Parents as learners (e.g., parent education)

Goal #1 addresses the foundational aspects of effective schools (Basic Supports) to include:
1. Highly qualified teachers
2. Standards aligned instructional materials
3. Facilities in good repair
4. Deep involvement of parents as leaders

Items 1 - 3 above are required by the State to address.  SCMCS has added parent leadership as an additional 
foundational pillar because we know that deep involvement by parents in leadership roles is a key indicator of a healthy 
and vibrant learning community.  In the prior LCAP year, our outcome was to ensure each school had a functioning 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/49708966052039/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 92

parent organization, a site council, and an English Learner Advisory Council (ELAC).  This LCAP year requires us to 
have these leadership groups fully constituted as measured by each groups' bylaws.

Goal #2 addresses course access.  As a K-6 grade school, students have access to nearly every curricular or program 
we offer.  The exceptions are our Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) and Special Education programs.  Students 
must meet certain criteria to receive services under these programs.  We spent the prior LCAP year analyzing our 
participation rates in these three options.  Our results have been incorporated in our 2017-18 LCAP with specific 
strategies to close our identified gaps.

Goal #3 addresses safe and positive school environments.  This has been an area of emphasis for the SCMCS.  In 
2015-16, we committed extensive fiscal resources to bring full-time counselors to our schools.  We also created an office 
clerk position to assist us better monitor and address attendance issues.  Other efforts include expanding school-wide 
programs that intentionally provide students with the tools they need to be thoughtful and respectful members of our 
society.  We believe we have made tremendous progress in this area.  We are now moving beyond the implementation 
phase of our efforts to fine-tuning how we use our new resources to ensure students continue to experience safe and 
nurturing learning environments.

Goal #4 addresses our expectations concerning language arts achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 3rd grade as our overarching goal.  We have 
done this because of the extensive research clearly linking end of 3rd grade status in reading as an indicator of future 
success as learners.

Goal #5 addresses our expectations concerning mathematics achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 6th grade as our overarching goal.

Goal #6 addresses the progress of our English learners in attaining English proficiency.  In the prior LCAP year, our 
metrics were tied to the former State English learner accountability model.  We have adjusted our metrics to align with 
the California Dashboard.  However, with the change in the State assessment that measures English learner progress in 
attaining English, the California School Dashboard will be in a holding pattern during much of the three years this LCAP 
represents.
        

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, 
what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may 
include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, 
English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

The LCFF Rubrics that are the underpinning of the California School Dashboard were released for the first 
time this year based on the spring 2015 and 2016 results.  At SCMCS, we are in the Yellow zone for 
English language arts (ELA) for English learners with a Status of Low (52.5 pts. below Level 3) and a 
Change of Maintained (+2.0 pts.).  Socio-economically Disadvantaged also showed modest growth (+0.5 
pts.).  English learners in Math are in the Yellow zone with a Status of Low (82.6 pts. below Level 3) and a 
Change of Increased (+5.3 pts.).

Our California School Dashboard results for English learner progress was also promising.  This measure 
the percent of students who have made increased one level on the CELDT from the prior year.  Our Status 
was Medium (70.3%) and our Change was Increased (3%).  This placed us in the Green zone on the LCFF 
Rubric.  Other measures attest to our solid gains in English learner progress.  Our reclassification rate, 
based on the October 2016 census, shows 17.2% of English learners were reclassified.  Our LCAP goal for 
2016-17 was 15%.  This gain is a four year high for our district.  Though the current English learner 
accountability system is going away, we were able to meet two of the three State AMAO goals for this year.

1.  61% of English learners district-wide increased at least one CELDT level (Goal was 63.5%).
2.  35.2% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 26.7%).
3.  58.4% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 54.7%).

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 3 of 92

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to 
address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

Our greatest area of need is in both ELA math performance.  At SCMCS, we are in the Orange zone for 
English language arts (ELA) for all students with a Status of Low (15.6 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of 
Declined (-1.7 pts.).  While our English learners and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students 
Maintained, Students with Disabilities Declined Significantly (-17.4 pts.).  In math, we are in the Red zone 
for all students with a Status of Low (52.1 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of Declined (-4.4 pts.).  
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students Declined (-3.7 pts.) and Students with Disabilities Declined 
Significantly (-30.9 pts.).

SCMCS is adopting a new ELA/ELD program and is refocusing professional development for teachers in 
our math program as our primary strategies to improve our outcomes.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 4 of 92

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was 
two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

None of our subgroups were two or more performance levels below the all student performance.  

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services 
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
The key improved service for English learners is the provision of a comprehensive and daily designated ELD program that will be 
delivered to English leaners based on their current status on the continuum of acquiring English.  Extensive professional development 
for all teachers is occurring over the summer.   Site and district administrators have also received this training and are therefore, better 
equipped to guide the implementation of this new ELA/ELD curriculum.  We also have two full-time consulting teachers that will assist 
teachers.  Our administrative team will continually review their observations of practice so we understand the success of our 
implementation.  While none of this improved service is funded through supplemental funding, it does demonstrate the District's 
commitment to closing our achievement gap and accelerating reclassification for our English
learners.
        

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $4,486,600

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$2,824,961.00

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the 
LCAP.

All of the site's expenditures that support our LCAP goals are embedded with each goal.  Additional General Fund 
expenditures support our core mission as an educational organization.  These include, but are not limited to clerical, 
custodial, maintenance, food service, and other related administrative costs.        

$4,650,150 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 5 of 92

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to 
the California State adopted standards as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.
4.  Parent groups have multiple opportunities to advise individual 
schools and the District as evidenced by school and district 
calendared events.
      

1.  Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in all core 
subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections.
4.  Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in leadership groups 
including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District Advisory Committees, 
and ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and advise individual schools and the District.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 6 of 92

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Ensure every student receives all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.       

ACTUAL
Every student received all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $51,298 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $48,210

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $5,769,849 

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $5,746,872

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $206,223 

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $213,220

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

ACTUAL
Every student was provided standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $98,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $80,507

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.         

ACTUAL
Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 8150  LCFF $1,416,277 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 8150  LCFF $1,720,977

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide opportunities for parent participation in leadership 
groups, such as PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and 
District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, that consult 
and advise individual schools and the District.       

ACTUAL
Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in 
leadership groups including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, 
School and District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, 
that consult and advise individual schools and the District.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 7 of 92

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The actions and services for this goal were fully implemented.  Our annual analysis of teacher assignments 
revealed that all teachers are highly qualified and posses the appropriate credentials for their assignments.  
Our annual sufficiency resolution as adopted by the Governing Board verifying that every student was in 
possession of all adopted core instructional materials.  Our annual inspections of individual school facilities 
noted that all campuses were in either good or exceptional condition.  As in past years,  individual schools 
and the district have been successful in garnering parent participation on school and district leadership 
committees and groups.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The district's actions and services to meet this goal and metrics have been fully met, therefore, the stated 
actions and services were highly effective.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Ensure 
every student is provided with standards aligned instructional materials in all core subject areas). The 
District spent $17,493 less than expected (17.9% less). The actual cost for replacement materials was 
lower than budgeted and the District met its obligation to provide every student with standards aligned, 
Board adopted, instructional materials in all core subjects. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 3 (Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet 
the State criteria for being in good repair). The District spent an additional $304,700 than expected (21.5% 
greater). The additional expenses were a result of needed repairs due to water intrusion in classrooms and 
other school buildings due to extensive rain this past winter. The district office also required unexpected 
roof repairs due to a large tree falling over and landing on the roof.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District has met all of the its Williams Act indicators.  As a result, the district can assert that it 
continues to attract and hire highly qualified and appropriately credential teachers for all vacancies.  Core 
adopted instructional materials are available in sufficient supply to ensure each student is provided with all 
core adopted materials.  The district continues to provide school facilities that are in great condition as 
evidenced by our annual site inspections and lack of concern as reported by our greater community.  
Parents continue to be deeply involved in site and district leadership committees and groups.

Change:  Since the District is meeting its Wiliams Act indicators, no changes to the revised LCAP have 
been made.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 8 of 92

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Participation of students in the District's GATE and special education 
programs mirror the demographics of the District's students, especially 
for English learner and socio-economically disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of the sub-group participation in each 
program.        

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the demographics of our district as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and 
Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special 
education and related services revealed over representation of two subgroups of 
students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the special 
education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total 
population, 44% of the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 43% of our 
special education population).
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 9 of 92

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Review the District's GATE identification process to ensure 
each component fairly identities students regardless of English 
language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who are identified as gifted 
revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino 
(27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the 
GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged 
students (33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE 
population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Review the District's special education identification process to 
ensure each evaluation fairly identities students regardless of 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who have been identified as 
being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  
English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of 
the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our 
total population, 43% of our special education population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The District actions this year to achieve the goal of equity of access across our Gate and Special 
Education programs was to establish benchmarks of access gaps among our significant subgroups of 
students.

--------

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 10 of 92

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The Districts's actions to meet this goal were effective as we now have baseline data and identified gaps in 
access.  We have identified future actions and/or services to close and eliminate these gaps.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgets and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District determined there are participation gaps within each of the three programs its 
provides that are not offered to all students.  These include lower participation rates for English learners 
and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students in GATE and higher participation rates for English 
learners and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students and lower participation rates for White students 
in Special Education.

Change:  We have amended our expected outcomes, metrics, and actions and services to specifically 
address the gaps we identified in order to close and eventually eliminate the identified gaps among our 
significant subgroups of students.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 11 of 92

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase P-2 attendance rate to 96% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
2. Reduce P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged, and special education students.
3. Reduce P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
5. Maintain P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
6. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a 
school where they feel safe to 100% as measured by the district-wide 
local student climate survey (70 percent of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe).

As an elementary district, high school drop-out and graduation rates 
do not apply.
      

1.  The Spring Creek Matanzas P-2 attendance rate was 95.8% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  The Spring Creek Matanzas P-2 chronic absenteeism rate was 8.4% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
3.  The Spring Creek Matanzas P-2 pupil suspension rate was 4.4% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
4.  The Spring Creek Matanzas P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
5.  The number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the Spring Creek Matanzas local student climate 
survey was 82% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 83% of 
students reported being happy at school "often/always".
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 12 of 92

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain counseling programs at each school.       

ACTUAL
Counseling resources were maintained at each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $163,519 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $111,232

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       

ACTUAL
Clerical attendance support personnel were maintained at 
each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $230,244 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $227,018

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand school site participation in Restorative Practices.       

ACTUAL
Restorative Practices training was expanded to all schools 
beyond the pilot sites.  Counselors are assisting teachers 
implement the practice.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $25,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $25,000

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $35,001 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $28,587

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand the PlayWorks program to increase student 
participation.        

ACTUAL
Yar Duty II personnel, who deliver the recess activities, are in 
place at all schools.  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as Back to School Night, 
Open House, Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and 
other site-based community events.       

ACTUAL
School-based activities that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events were provided.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 13 of 92

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate district-wide in the Sonoma Leadership Network 
(SLN) which will focus on culturally responsive teaching 
practices.       

ACTUAL
Each school selected a team of two teachers and the site 
administrator to join district personnel in the SLN.  Teams are 
working to bring a coherent, district-wide plan focus on 
equity.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $11,550 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 5200 OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $10,900

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year to improve the overall school climate for students through school counseling programs 
and the implementation/maintenance of social-emotional learning programs.  The result of this would be 
increased attendance and decreased suspension rates.  The implementation of the social emotional 
learning programs has gone well and is beginning to be shared with parents.  Counseling and office 
support have been maintained and contribute to the low chronic absenteeism and truancy rates.  

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Counselors have supported parent education initiatives and have monitored attendance at their school 
sites.  They support the principals in school-wide campaigns to improve peer interactions and build student 
skills.  These have shown a reduction in the number of referrals to the school office for discipline issues, 
however has not decreased the number of overall suspensions.  The specific incidents of  suspension will 
be reviewed to determine if there are trends.  

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Maintain 
counseling programs at each school). The District spent $54,287 less than expected (33.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to moving the difference in expenses to the MediCal budget.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  Based on the student suspension rate going up slightly, additional analysis will be conducted to 
determine if there is trend that is not being addressed.  Attendance rates will continue to be addressed 
through the school counseling program and the office clerks.

Change:  No significant changes are being recommended at this time.  Further analysis of suspension 
incidents will guide any necessary changes.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 14 of 92

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 15 of 92

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
4

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with 
special attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for language arts to 51%.
2. Increase the percent of English learner 3rd students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 25%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language
arts to 43%.
4. 60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each 
trimester.
The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high
school students.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the March 2017 California School Dashboard report 
designates the School as Low (15.6 pts. below Level 3) for our Status and Declined 
(-1.7 pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  However, these results are 
relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is 
intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark (STAR Reading) data:

School-wide:  52% of all students met benchmark; 24% of English learners met 
benchmark; 31% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
Third grade: 66% of all students met benchmark; 57% of English learners met 
benchmark; 50% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.

Early literacy screening (DIBELS) data for K-1:  60% of all students ready for "core" 
instruction, 40% of English learners ready for "core instruction; 48% of economically 
disadvantaged students ready for "core" instruction.

Kindergarten Readiness (READY) data:  33% of all students entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go", 15% of English earners entered Kindergarten "ready to go"; 
(economically disadvantaged status was not tracked for this data.
      

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 16 of 92

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

ACTUAL
Implemented a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand and utilize the Student Support Model for students not 
meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.       

ACTUAL
Expanded and utilized the Student Support Model for 
students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or 
local benchmark assessment targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental  
$237,259  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$153,874

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

ACTUAL
Participated in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for primary grade students 
not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $35,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $35,948

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 17 of 92

MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $6,742 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State ELA/ELD standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State ELA/ELD standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that provides strategies for families 
to support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.        

ACTUAL
Provided school-based parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading skills, such as, 
decoding, fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget   

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish three family library/computer lab evening events per 
school to provide access to these resources among our 
families and to promote home-based literacy support for 
students.         

ACTUAL
Due to fiscal restraints and a need to focus Student Support 
resources, this action was not implemented.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget    

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 18 of 92

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year was solidifying instructional and assessment practices in early literacy and expanding 
our support services for students who are not yet at standard in language arts. The two actions related to 
parent and family support were not implemented (family library time) or not implemented on a large enough 
scale (parent education to support reading) to affect long-term change.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on Trimester 2 data, our actions were effective in meeting our goals. Our next step is to see how 
well our local data matches the CAASPP data.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Expand 
and utilize the Student Support Model for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local 
benchmark assessment targets). The District spent $83,385 less than expected (35.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to personnel savings due to a Support Coordinator vacancy that was only 
partially filled during the school year. There was also a material difference in what was budgeted and the 
actual expenditures for Action 4 (Provide a summer school program for primary grade students not on track 
to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets). The District spent $35,000 less than what was budgeted (100%) 
due to its inability to hold summer school due to extensive summer facility work being conducted on every 
campus.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  Based on local benchmark measure, District student performance is meeting prior year LCAP 
expected outcomes.  Since Spring 2017 CAASPP results will not be available at the time of adoption, these 
measure are not included in the District's analysis of its ability to meet its 2016-17 LCAP goals.  This 
analysis will occur during the Annual update for the 2016-17 school year as part of the development of the 
2018-19 LCAP.

Change:  Since the available measurable outcome show the District exceeding its performance goals, no 
significant changes are proposed.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 19 of 92

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
5

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 
8th grade students.         

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math to 40%.
2. Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 25%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 25%.
4. Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP standard.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the March 2017 California School Dashboard report 
designates the School as Low (-52.1 pts. below Level 3) for our Status and Declined 
(-4.4 pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  However, these results are 
relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is 
intended to address.

We piloted a new local benchmark this year and our goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved difficult to manage and our Trimester 2 data could not 
be compared to Trimester 1 due to concerns about validity of scores in Trimester 1. If 
we set the benchmark at 70% correct for Trimester 2: School-wide:  33% of all 
students met benchmark; 8% of English learners met benchmark; 25% of 
economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 20 of 92

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement intervention programs for students not meeting 
CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

ACTUAL
Partial implementation of intervention programs for students 
not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State Math standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State Math standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.       

ACTUAL
Provided limited training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost   

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 21 of 92

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and practices 
embedded within the new California State standards.       

ACTUAL
Schools held a Family Math Night as a tool to strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the new California State 
standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Immaterial cost     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Immaterial cost    

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our implementation of the actions for math was inconsistent across the district, with some schools ready 
and able to begin this work and other schools that needed to focus on building capacity or systems before 
beginning this work.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The local benchmark platform that we piloted this year was not effective. It was cumbersome to create and 
distribute benchmark assessments and the data was not friendly or easily accessible. However, as an 
intervention and practice platform, the program shows promise. Schools who have used the program for 
systematic intervention in math have seen a strong correlation to prior CAASPP scores and have seen 
growth in student achievement in math. The program's placement test seems to be strongly correlated to 
the SmarterBalanced rigor and format.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgeted and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District recognizes the performance of students in mathematics is below our expectations.  
Improvement is necessary and a specific strategy to address performance has been developed and 
implemented.

Change:  We plan to use the end-of-module assessments from our adopted core instructional program 
(Engage New York/Eureka Math) to identify students' "status" in math and use our intervention program 
(MobyMax) placement test to monitor "change" in students' progress toward end of year standards. The 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 22 of 92

data from these two assessments should give us an accurate picture of students' math performance and 
help us predict how well they will do on the state summative assessment.

We will change our focus grade level from 8th grade to 6th grade. Since a large percent of our 8th grade 
students did not attend our elementary schools, it is not accurate to use that group as an indicator of our 
overall system performance. Since most of our students leave our district at the end of 6th grade, it is more 
accurate to evaluate our system performance at that grade level.

We are also strengthening our teachers' capacity to constantly implement math instruction as intended.  
Site administrator monitoring of classroom practices is a key strategy.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 23 of 92

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
6

Every English learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. 63.5% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. 
(2016-17 Title III AMAO 1).
2. 26.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years 
or less will meet reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17
Title III target AMAO 2a).
3. 54.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for more 
than 5 years will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT. (2016-17
Title III target AMAO 2b).
4. 15% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).
      

1.  51.9% of English learners district-wide increased at least one CELDT level.
2.  36.8% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years 
or less reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
3.  40% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for more than 
5 years reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
4.  3% of English learners district wide were reclassified as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP) in the census-to-census count.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Pilot new designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 
school year.       

ACTUAL
Piloted new designated ELD programs and adopted 
Benchmark Advance for the 2017-18 school year.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 24 of 92

Expenditures
BUDGETED
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $21,741 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $50,049

ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $50,031 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $50,031

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
Integrated ELD.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness    

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English learners 
at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their acquisition 
of English toward reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as long-term English learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their 
acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as long-term English learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $23,986 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $24,986

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.       

ACTUAL
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $23,604 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $23,604

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED ACTUAL

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 25 of 92

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.       

Provided instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $16,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $16,000

Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $7,384 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,077

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Integrated ELD and support for ELs in the classroom was a district focus at the beginning of the school 
year, with schools continuing this work based on the numbers and needs of English learners at their sites. 
Our largest-scale action this year was examining, piloting, and adopting a new ELA/ELD program to better 
support Integrated and Designated ELD in the classroom.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on our actual outcomes, our actions and services for English learners in the past two years have 
been effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Pilot new 
designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 school year). The District spent $28,308 more than 
expected (130.12% more). The additional expenses was charged against this account for additional 
support required in this effort by the District's EL Coordinator. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 6 (Provide adult English classes for parents who are 
English learners). The District spent $6,307 less than expected (85.4%). This was due to not being fully 
staffed in the position of English learner Assistants. Therefore, we did not utilize what was budgeted. We 
did end the year fully staffed and are expected to be so at the beginning of the 2017-18 school year.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis:  The District met three of its four annual measurable outcomes for the 2016-17 LCAP for this 
goal.  English learners are acquiring English to the level as expected the State.  However, we know we 
have pockets of English learners that are not making annual progress and improved outcomes for these 
students are needed.

Change:  The implementation of the new K-6 ELA/ELD program next year will be a big change and will 
require an examination of the role of our EL Assistants. Extensive professional development for the new 
program will be required for certificated, classified, and administrative staff.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 26 of 92

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 27 of 92

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

Introduction

The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and understand this is an integral part in developing an effective strategic plan.  
As such, SCMCS used a variety of site and district-based meetings and events to involve and hear from our stakeholders.  These included a series of site-based meetings for 
each of our stakeholder groups led by our principals throughout the Annual Update, a series of site-based meetings, co-presented by the principals and the superintendent, to 
review the initial draft of the new LCAP, and a series of district-wide meetings with other stakeholder groups, such as employees (CTA, CSEA, non-represented), District English 
Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC), Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and students.
       

Spring Creek-Matanzas faculty met on October 27, 2016.  Spring Creek-Matanzas's Student Council met on October 28, 2016.  Spring Creek-Matanzas's ELAC met on October 
28, 2016.  Spring Creek-Matanzas's Classified Staff met on November 7, 2016.  Spring Creek-Matanzas's held a community session on November 16, 20156  These meetings 
were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for 
modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged.         

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on January 19, 2016.  The group reviewed the site-based feedback 
gathered during October through December 2015 and made recommendations for the 2016-17 LCAP.       

Parent Advisory Committee met on March 2, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and 
actions/services for the next three years.         

Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee met on March 10, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable 
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on March 15, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting 
goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

District English Learner Advisory Council met on February 22, 2017.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable 
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.         

The District held eight community-wide LCAP input meetings on February 15, 2017 (Village), February 21, 2017 (Austin Creek), February 22, 2017 in Spanish (Madrone), 
February 23, 2017 (RVCS-Matanzas), February 27, 2017 (Whited), March 2, 2017 (Binkley), March 6, 2017 (Madrone), and March 7, 2017 (Sequoia). The group reviewed 
progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

The District met with our teachers' association, RVUTA, On February 14, 2017.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, 
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.         

The District met with our classified employees association, CSEA, On March 28, 2016.  The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, 
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.       

Governing Board met on April 11, 2017.  Trustees reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for 
the next three years.       

Governing Board met on May 9, 2017.  Trustees held a Public Hearing on the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP.  At the same meeting, there was a public hearing on the 2017-
18 Budget.       

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 28 of 92

Governing Board met on June 13, 2017.  Trustees approved the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-29 LCAP and 2017-18 Budget.       

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

Spring Creek-Matanzas stakeholders feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate counseling services
• Appreciate the many opportunities for site-based community events
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Ensure that translators are available at all site-based events, including PTA meetings
• Survey parents of EL students on topics to include at ELAC meetings
• Expand counseling services to 1.0 FTE per site
• Provide teachers with more print Restorative Practice resources
• Schools need more support to implement the PlayWorks program
• Revise the summer technology institute with more strategies aimed at primary teachers
• Parent groups work more closely with site councils in planning community events that support the LCAP goals
• Provide articulation opportunities for 3rd and 4th grade teachers as students transition to the intermediate grades
• Revise website to provide information and training for parents, especially for math
• Provide headsets at parent events/meetings to improve the way translation is provided
• Include classified employees in district-wide efforts such was Sonoma Leadership Network
• Provide daycare for employees on professional development days
       

Administrative Council stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the focus the LCAP provides and how these goals align to site-based school plans
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Provide site leaders with training on using social media and in strategies to engage the parent community
• Focus the math goal on 6th grade, rather than 8th grade
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Parent Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the progress the district has made in creating social-emotional programs and related services
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to support literacy, especially in the primary grades
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Strengthen parent education efforts, including creating web-based resources rather than just face-to-face presentations

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 29 of 92

All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Student's view counselors as an important resource for themselves individually and for others
• Appreciate restorative circles as a way to resolve problems and get to know more about one another
• Appreciated field trips and special school events that bring the community together and make school life more engaging
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Students report having friends at school is a critical aspect of feeling connected and wanting to come to school each day.  Students suggest schools develop strategies to 

foster students getting to know others outside of their friendship groups.
• Suggest math instruction is highly differentiated so high achieving students are continually challenged, while students at other levels have meaningful instruction
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The District English Learner Advisory Council feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the goals in place to support learning for all students, especially EL students
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to strengthen both integrated and designated ELD instruction
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Development of additional strategies to improve communication with parents of EL students, such as the creation of video series to provide specific information on various 

programs such as integrated and designated ELD, ELACs and DELAC, Summer ELD Academy, Latino Family Literacy
All questions were answered at the meetings.  The DELAC did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Community-wide LCAP stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the effort of the district to focus on the whole student, i.e., academic and social emotional programs and support
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Build upon current parent education programs, especially to provide strategies for parents to assist their children with math
• Utilize social media more in communication from the district and from individual schools
• Provide additional options for parent to network with one another
All questions were answered at the various meetings.
       

RVUTA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• RVUTA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

CSEA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• CSEA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 30 of 92

At the April 11, 2017 Regular meeting, Trustees reviewed the draft LCAP for the 20017-18 school year.  Trustees appreciated the incorporation of the California Dashboard into the 
document.       

At the May 9, 2017 Regular meeting, The Governing Board provided an opportunity for community comment.  No member of the public spoke concerning the LCAP.       

At the June 13, 2017 Regular meeting, the Governing Board approved the 2017-18, 2018019, 2019-20 LCAP as presented.       

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 31 of 92

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student benefits when they are provided core instruction from highly qualified teachers, are provided standards 

aligned instructional materials, and are housed in facilities in good repair.  The Rincon Valley Union School District 
consistently provides every student with these Basic Supports and is committed to continue to do so.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every student received all 
core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers as defined by 
the State of California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all 
teacher credentials.
2.  Every student was provided 
standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject 
areas as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as 
verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3.  Every student was housed in 
facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair 
as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1.  Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2.  Every student is provided 
core instructional materials that 
align to the California State 
adopted standards as supported 
by the State textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order 
Form submitted by each 
teacher.
3.  Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 32 of 92

4.  Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.
       

4.  Parents were provided 
multiple opportunities to 
participate in leadership groups 
including  PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and District 
Advisory Committees, and 
ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and 
advise individual schools and 
the District.

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of 
officers..

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of officers.

4.  Each school has an active 
parent group with a full slate of 
officers, an active site council 
with the full number of parent 
representatives elected, and for 
those schools with 50 or more 
English learners, an active 
ELAC with a full slate of officers.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 33 of 92

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.       

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $21,275 Amount $23,275 Amount $24,275

       $21,275Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $21,275Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Amount       $2,443,119 Amount $2,500,000 Amount $2,600,000

       $2,443,119Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $2,443,119Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and 
site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3)

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 34 of 92

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 35 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.         

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 36 of 92

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.       

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners.

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 37 of 92

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student in the Rincon Valley Union School District has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.  

As a core K-6 district, courses are provided through grade level classes.  In the charter middle school (grades 7-8), 
every student maintains a similar schedule, differing by elective choice.  Programs such as GATE, advanced coursework 
(grades 7-8), and special education are only offered to students who meet predefined criteria.

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged students 
(33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of the special 
education population).  The examination also identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 
43% of our special education population).

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

An examination of students who 
are identified as gifted revealed 
three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a 
whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 11% of the 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 38 of 92

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.         

GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total 
population, 0% of the GATE 
population), and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who 
have been identified as being 
eligible for special education and 
related services revealed over 
representation of two subgroups 
of students:  English Learners 
(10% of the total population, 
18% of the special education 
population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
the total population, 44% of the 
special education population).  
The examination also identified 
an under represented group: 
White (58% of our total 
population, 43% of our special 
education population).

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

measured by an annual audit of 
the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 39 of 92

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen the case study process for GATE 
identification by using non-traditional instruments (such 
as a parent interview rather than a written survey for 
English Learner parents) in conjunction with traditional 
instruments (such as the Raven Progressive Matrices).       

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 40 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training for teachers and administrators 
in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of giftedness and 
how to report these observations in the case study 
process.       

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 41 of 92

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training to school sites on pre-referral 
interventions and to assessment teams on characteristics 
of students who are English Learners or who are 
identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  Training will 
focus on language differences and lack of experience 
characteristics as compared to characteristics of a 
disability.         

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.  

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    4
OR

ACTIONS/SERVICES

New Modified Unchanged New Modified Unchanged

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 42 of 92

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Rincon Valley Union School District has high attendance rates, low chronic absenteeism rates, and has no history of its 

charter middle school student dropping out of school.  The District also benefits from an extremely low suspension and 
expulsion rates in recent years.  The most recent Student Survey indicates that 82% of students often/always feel safe at 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School while 83% are often/always happy to be at their school.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
attendance rate at 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  Reduce district-wide P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
charter middle school drop-out 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 

1.  The Spring Creek Matanzas 
P-2 attendance rate was 95.8% 
for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  The Spring Creek Matanzas 
P-2 chronic absenteeism rate 
was 8.4% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  The Spring Creek Matanzas 
P-2 pupil suspension rate was 
4.4% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-

1.  Increase Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 attendance rate to 
96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  Reduce Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3. Reduce Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 pupil suspension 
rate to below 2.0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 

1.  Increase Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 attendance rate to 
96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  Reduce Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3. Reduce Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 pupil suspension 
rate to below 2.0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 

1.  Increase Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 attendance rate to 
96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  Reduce Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3. Reduce Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 pupil suspension 
rate to below 2.0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 43 of 92

and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4.  Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  Maintain district-wide P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy at 
school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.
       

economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
4.  The Spring Creek Matanzas 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% 
for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  The number of students who 
self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as 
measured by the Spring Creek 
Matanzas local student climate 
survey was 82% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 83% of 
students reported being happy 
at school "often/always".

learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
4.  Maintain Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 pupil expulsion 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
5.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Spring Creek Matanzas local 
student climate survey (82% of 
students report "often"/"always" 
feeling safe at school and 83% 
of students reported being 
happy at school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
4.  Maintain Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 pupil expulsion 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
5.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Spring Creek Matanzas local 
student climate survey (82% of 
students report "often"/"always" 
feeling safe at school and 83% 
of students reported being 
happy at school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
4.  Maintain Spring Creek 
Matanzas P-2 pupil expulsion 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
5.  Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Spring Creek Matanzas local 
student climate survey (82% of 
students report "often"/"always" 
feeling safe at school and 83% 
of students reported being 
happy at school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 44 of 92

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain counseling programs at each school.       Maintain counseling programs at each school. Maintain counseling programs at each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $87,636 Amount $89,500 Amount $91,500

       $87,636Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $87,636Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 45 of 92

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       Maintain clerical attendance support for each school. Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $153,770 Amount $155,000 Amount $157,000

       $153,770Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $153,770Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 46 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.       

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 47 of 92

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation.        

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       0 Amount 0 Amount 0

       0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 48 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.       

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 49 of 92

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.       

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 50 of 92

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 4 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special 
attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for reading by 3rd grade is a key indicator of subsequent student success in English 

language arts.  Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal that 52% of all Rincon Valley 3rd grade students met or exceeded 
the standard for English language arts.  For 6th grade, the last year in the district for most students, 58% of all students 
met the grade level criteria.  For English learners, 14% of 3rd and 46% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  
For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 35% of 3rd and 37% 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 30%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
50%.
4.  60% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the District as 
Medium (8.2 pts. above Level 3) 
for our Status and Maintained 
(+0.2 pts.) for our Change.  Our 
rubric color is Yellow.  However, 
these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 

1.  Increase the percent of all 
3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 40%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
4.  65% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1.  Increase the percent of all 
3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
4.  70% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1.  Increase the percent of all 
3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
85%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
4.  75% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 51 of 92

The Academic Performance 
Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, 
AP test participation, and EAP 
do not apply as the district does 
not serve high school students.
       

2016-17 LCAP year this update 
is intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark 
(STAR Reading) data:

District-wide:  68% of all 
students met benchmark; 29% 
of English learners met 
benchmark; 53% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.
Third grade: 64% of all students 
met benchmark; 40% of English 
learners met benchmark; 57% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

Early literacy screening 
(DIBELS) data for K-1:  70% of 
all students ready for "core" 
instruction, 51% of English 
learners ready for "core 
instruction; 56% of economically 
disadvantaged students ready 
for "core" instruction.

Kindergarten Readiness 
(READY) data:  52% of all 
students entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go", 28% of English 
earners entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go"; (economically 
disadvantaged status was not 
tracked for this data.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 52 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 53 of 92

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.       

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $64,989 Amount $68,000 Amount $71,000

       $64,989Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $64,989Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 54 of 92

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Kindergarten 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 55 of 92

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.         

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 56 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.       

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 57 of 92

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children.        

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 58 of 92

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children.        

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 59 of 92

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 5 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 6th 
grade students.         

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for math by 8th grade is a key indicator of student success in high school math 

courses.  As a primarily TK-6th grade district, students entering 7th grade that meet or exceed the 6th grade CAASPP 
standard are best equipped to continue their success in math through middle school.  Spring 2016 CAASPP results 
reveal that 43% of all Rincon Valley 6th grade students met or exceeded the standard for math.  For English learners, 
41% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 20% of 6th graders 
met or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 55%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 55%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the District as 
Medium (-17.0 pts. above Level 
3) for our Status and Declined (-
1.3 pts.) for our Change.  Our 
rubric color is Orange.  
However, these results are 

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 55%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 55%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 70%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 70%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
50%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 85%.
2.  Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 85%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
65%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 60 of 92

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.
       

relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP 
year, not the 2016-17 LCAP 
year this update is intended to 
address.

2016-17 Local Measures

We piloted a new local 
benchmark this year and our 
goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved 
difficult to manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could not be 
compared to Trimester 1 due to 
concerns about validity of scores 
in Trimester 1. If we set the 
benchmark at 70% correct for 
Trimester 2: District-wide:  37% 
of all students met benchmark; 
12% of English learners met 
benchmark; 22% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 61 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 62 of 92

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 63 of 92

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.       

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.       

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 64 of 92

Budget 
Reference       No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.       

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Action    6
Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 65 of 92

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.       

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Budget 
Reference Immaterial cost 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 66 of 92

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 6 Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner assessment (CELDT or ELPAC) and is on target and within timelines, 
as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need The California Dashboard results show that the percentage of English learners, plus RFEP students, demonstrating at 

least one level of growth on the 2015 CELDT from the 2014 CELDT was 69.4%.  This represents a status of Medium.  
These results were a Decline from the previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of English learners demonstrated at least one level 
of growth on the CELDT.  The percent of English learners reclassified at the October census for the 2016-17 school year 
was 17.2%.  This is a four year high and an increase of 4.8% over the prior year.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1.  The California School 
Dashboard will show a Status of 
High, with 75% or more of 
English learners demonstrating 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT, representing an 
Increase towards Change.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).
       

1.  61% of English learners 
district-wide increased at least 
one CELDT level.
2.  35.2% of district-wide English 
learners who have been in US 
schools for 5 years or less 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 
5) on CELDT.
3.  58.4% of district-wide English 
learners who have been in US 
schools for more than 5 years 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 
5) on CELDT.
4.  17.2% of English learners 
district wide were reclassified as 
Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) 
in the census-to-census count.

1.  The California School 
Dashboard will show a Status of 
High, with 75% or more of 
English learners demonstrating 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT, representing an 
Increase towards Change.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indictors will be frozen for at east 
two years due to the transition 
from the CELDT to the ELPAC.  
Therefore, the District is only 
including reclassification rates 
as the sole indicator for these 
two years.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1.  The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indictors will be frozen for at east 
two years due to the transition 
from the CELDT to the ELPAC.  
Therefore, the District is only 
including reclassification rates 
as the sole indicator for these 
two years.
2.  15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 67 of 92

The California Dashboard 
results show the percentage of 
English learners, plus RFEP 
students, demonstrating at least 
one level of growth on the 2015 
CELDT from the 2014 CELDT 
was 69.4%.  This represents a 
status of Medium.  These results 
were a Decline from the 
previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of 
English learners demonstrated 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT.

The percent of English learners 
reclassified at the October 
census for the 2016-17 school 
year was 17.2%.  This is a four 
year high and an increase of 
4.8% over the prior year.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 68 of 92

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Implement the selected designated ELD program.       Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 69 of 92

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 70 of 92

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long-term English 
learner.       

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 71 of 92

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.       

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Budget 
Reference Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Budget 
Reference Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 72 of 92

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $6,855 Amount $8,000 Amount $9,000

       $6,855Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $6,855Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 73 of 92

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.       

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $16,500 Amount $17,500 Amount $18,500

       $16,500Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $16,500Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Amount       $30,817 Amount $31,000 Amount $32,000

       $30,817Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $30,817Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 74 of 92

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $119,161 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: 5.77%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or 
quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
SCMCS does not receive Concentration funds.  Supplemental funds for the 2017-18 school year will be used for our Multi Tiered System of Support (MSTS) 
programs.  The components of our MTSS program funded with supplemental funding include a range of intervention support, an ELD Summer Academy, to 
support a district-wide ELD coordinator, support the district's restorative practices program, fund a summer learning program, fund a portion of our family liaisons, 
and fund a portion of our EL assistants.   (Averill & Rinaldi, 2011; California Department of Education, 2015)

Intervention Programs:  These resources are principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction to students who are not 
meeting grade level CAASPP and/or local assessment targets.  While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups 
comprise the majority of students benefiting from the services.  Intervention services are provided within an extensive MTSS system that includes Student 
Support Coordinators, classroom teachers, and intervention teachers.  Student Support Coordinators provide direct instruction to students, monitor the progress 
of all students being served with support services and meet with grade level teams and principals to review the progress of groups and individuals.  English 
language arts and mathematics are the targeted subjects for identifying and supporting students.  Supplemental funds are used for Student Support Coordinator 
and intervention teachers' salaries and benefits.  (California Department of Education, 2015)

Cost of the Intervention Programs charged to Supplemental Funds:  $64,989, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Codes 0652)

Summer ELD Academy:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction and monitoring of student progress 
within our overall system of supports.  Students participating in the Summer ELD Academy are English learners at the Intermediate level as measured by 
CELDT.  The goal of this service is to accelerate English language acquisition so that English learners do not become long term ELs.  Summer EL Academy 
classroom teachers provide the instruction.  Supplemental funds are used for Summer ELD Academy classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and 
benefits and instructional materials. (Ward-Singer, 2007; California Department of Education, ELD Standards Appendix C, 2015)

Cost of the Summer ELD Academy charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Code ELDA)

EL Coordinator:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by coordinating and monitoring of EL student progress within our overall 
system of supports. Supplemental funds are used for EL Coordinator salary and benefits. (Schmoker, 2006)

Cost of the EL Coordinator charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 10000-3000- (Management Code ELDC)

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 75 of 92

Restorative Practices:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used to support the training for certificated and classified personnel in the use of the Restorative Practices protocols.  This effort will result in district-wide 
implementation of this practice.  (International Institute for Restorative Practices, 2007)

Cost of expanding Restorative Practices charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code MAAD)

Summer Learning:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are not 
strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used for Summer Learning classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Smith, ASCD, 2012)

Cost of the Summer Learning program charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 0650)

Family Liaison:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing school-to-home related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Family Liaisons provide 
an important link between our schools and families.  These individuals provide support for families across a wide range of school attendance, social/emotional 
needs, and connecting to community-wide resources.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Breiseth, Robertson & 
Lafond, 2015)

Cost of the Family Liaisons charged to Supplemental Funds:  $6,855, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 4201)

EL Assistants:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing instructional services.  EL Assistants provide direction 
instructional support to our EL students.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Robertson & Ford, 2013)

Cost of the EL Assistants charged to Supplemental Funds:  $47,317, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 4203)

The District is increasing services by directing all new Supplemental funds to services that are principally directed towards our unduplicated students.  All new 
and ongoing Supplemental funding is directed towards our Multi Tiered System of Support services.  Detailed information concerning the use of these funds are 
included in Section 3:A.  -------
-------

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 
Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service
Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Funding Sources 8,428,708.00 8,568,092.00 2,824,961.00 2,892,275.00 3,003,275.00 8,720,511.00
LCFF 8,046,118.00 8,238,631.00 2,736,617.00 2,798,775.00 2,904,775.00 8,440,167.00
Supplemental 382,590.00 329,461.00 88,344.00 93,500.00 98,500.00 280,344.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types 8,428,708.00 8,568,092.00 2,824,961.00 2,892,275.00 3,003,275.00 8,720,511.00

1,416,277.00 1,720,977.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted 7,012,431.00 6,847,115.00 2,824,961.00 2,892,275.00 3,003,275.00 8,720,511.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 8,428,708.00 8,568,092.00 2,824,961.00 2,892,275.00 3,003,275.00 8,720,511.00

LCFF 1,416,277.00 1,720,977.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted LCFF 6,629,841.00 6,517,654.00 2,736,617.00 2,798,775.00 2,904,775.00 8,440,167.00
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 382,590.00 329,461.00 88,344.00 93,500.00 98,500.00 280,344.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
Goal 1 2,464,394.00 2,523,275.00 2,624,275.00 7,611,944.00

Goal 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 3 241,406.00 244,500.00 248,500.00 734,406.00

Goal 4 64,989.00 68,000.00 71,000.00 203,989.00

Goal 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 6 54,172.00 56,500.00 59,500.00 170,172.00

Goal 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 1 of 91

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.

LEA Name Village Charter School

----------Contact Name and
Title

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.
Superintendent

Email and 
Phone

troehrick@rvusd.org
(707) 542-7375

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

This document serves as the key needs assessment resource for the revision of the 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 LCAP.  
The data included comprises that which is required under each of the State's eight priority areas.  Village Charter School 
conducted a parent engagement needs assessment using the PTA National Standards for Family-School Partnerships 
Assessment.  The results from each of these needs assessment tools were used as the basis for identifying critical areas 
to address within the new LCAP.        

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

The 2017-18 Village Charter School (VCS) LCAP builds upon our prior year goals and initiatives.  We have retained our 
six goals that address the State's eight priority areas.  In doing so, we have made adjustments to our annual measurable 
outcomes to incorporate the new California School Dashboard accountability metrics.  VCS has take the approach to 
weave parent involvement throughout our goals.  We have defined parent involvement to comprise of three components:
1. Parents as leaders (e.g., site council)
2. Parents as partners (e.g., attending parent/teacher conferences)
3. Parents as learners (e.g., parent education)

Goal #1 addresses the foundational aspects of effective schools (Basic Supports) to include:
1. Highly qualified teachers
2. Standards aligned instructional materials
3. Facilities in good repair
4. Deep involvement of parents as leaders

Items 1 - 3 above are required by the State to address.  VCS has added parent leadership as an additional foundational 
pillar because we know that deep involvement by parents in leadership roles is a key indicator of a healthy and vibrant 
learning community.  In the prior LCAP year, our outcome was to ensure each school had a functioning parent 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/49708966052070/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 91

organization, a site council, and an English Learner Advisory Council (ELAC).  This LCAP year requires us to have these 
leadership groups fully constituted as measured by each groups' bylaws.

Goal #2 addresses course access.  As a K-6 grade school, students have access to nearly every curricular or program 
we offer.  The exceptions are our Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) and Special Education programs.  Students 
must meet certain criteria to receive services under these programs. We spent the prior LCAP year analyzing our 
participation rates in these three options.  Our results have been incorporated in our 2017-18 LCAP with specific 
strategies to close our identified gaps.

Goal #3 addresses safe and positive school environments.  This has been an area of emphasis for the VCS.  In 2015-16, 
we committed extensive fiscal resources to bring full-time counselors to our schools.  We also created an office clerk 
position to assist us better monitor and address attendance issues.  Other efforts include expanding school-wide 
programs that intentionally provide students with the tools they need to be thoughtful and respectful members of our 
society.  We believe we have made tremendous progress in this area.  We are now moving beyond the implementation 
phase of our efforts to fine-tuning how we use our new resources to ensure students continue to experience safe and 
nurturing learning environments.

Goal #4 addresses our expectations concerning language arts achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 3rd grade as our overarching goal.  We have 
done this because of the extensive research clearly linking end of 3rd grade status in reading as an indicator of future 
success as learners.

Goal #5 addresses our expectations concerning mathematics achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 6th grade as our overarching goal.

Goal #6 addresses the progress of our English learners in attaining English proficiency.  In the prior LCAP year, our 
metrics were tied to the former State English learner accountability model.  We have adjusted our metrics to align with 
the California Dashboard.  However, with the change in the State assessment that measures English learner progress in 
attaining English, the California School Dashboard will be in a holding pattern during much of the three years this LCAP 
represents.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, 
what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may 
include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, 
English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

The LCFF Rubrics that are the underpinning of the California School Dashboard were released for the first 
time this year based on the spring 2015 and 2016 results.  At VCS, we are in the Yellow zone for English 
language arts (ELA) for all students with a Status of Medium (7.2 pts. above Level 3) and a Change of 
Maintained (+4.4 pts.).  For ELA, English learners Increased (+10.9 pts.) and Students with Disabilities 
Increased Significantly (+20.8 pts.).

Our California School Dashboard results for English learner progress was also promising.  This measure 
the percent of students who have made increased one level on the CELDT from the prior year.  Our Status 
was Medium (70.3%) and our Change was Increased (3%).  This placed us in the Green zone on the LCFF 
Rubric.  Other measures attest to our solid gains in English learner progress.  Our reclassification rate, 
based on the October 2016 census, shows 17.2% of English learners were reclassified.  Our LCAP goal for 
2016-17 was 15%.  This gain is a four year high for our district.  Though the current English learner 
accountability system is going away, we were able to meet two of the three State AMAO goals for this year.

1. 61% of English learners district-wide increased at least one CELDT level (Goal was 63.5%).
2. 35.2% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less reached
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 26.7%).
3. 58.4% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years reached
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 54.7%).

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 3 of 91

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to 
address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

Our greatest area of need is in math performance.  At VCS, we are in the Orange zone for mathematics for 
all students with a Status of Medium (12.2 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of Declined (-4.0 pts.).    Our 
English learner results for math are even less promising.  We are in the red zone English learners with a 
Status of Low (38.0 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of Declined Significantly (-14.3 pts.).  Socio-
economically Disadvantaged students are in the Orange zone with a Status of Low (39.3 pts. below Level 
3) and a Change of Declined (-5.5 pts.).

VCS is refocusing professional development for teachers in our math program as our primary strategy to 
improve our outcomes.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 4 of 91

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was 
two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

None of our subgroups were two or more performance levels below the all student performance.  

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services 
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
The key improved service for English learners is the provision of a comprehensive and daily designated ELD program that will be 
delivered to English leaners based on their current status on the continuum of acquiring English.  Extensive professional development 
for all teachers is occurring over the summer.   Site and district administrators have also received this training and are therefore, better 
equipped to guide the implementation of this new ELA/ELD curriculum.  We also have two full-time consulting teachers that will assist 
teachers.  Our administrative team will continually review their observations of practice so we understand the success of our 
implementation.  While none of this improved service is funded through supplemental funding, it does demonstrate the District's 
commitment to closing our achievement gap and accelerating reclassification for our English
learners.
        

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $3,005,456

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$1,808,219.00

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the 
LCAP.

All of the site's expenditures that support our LCAP goals are embedded with each goal.  Additional General Fund 
expenditures support our core mission as an educational organization.  These include, but are not limited to clerical, 
custodial, maintenance, food service, and other related administrative costs.        

$3,000,715 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 5 of 91

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to 
the California State adopted standards as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.
4.  Parent groups have multiple opportunities to advise individual 
schools and the District as evidenced by school and district 
calendared events.
      

1. Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher credentials.
2. Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in all core 
subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3. Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for being in good 
repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections.
4. Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in leadership groups 
including PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District Advisory Committees, 
and ELAC/DELAC, that consult and advise individual schools and the District.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 6 of 91

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Ensure every student receives all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.       

ACTUAL
Every student received all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $19,046 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $19,057

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,648,209 

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,624,993

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0 

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

ACTUAL
Every student was provided standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.         

ACTUAL
Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 8150  LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 8150  LCFF $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide opportunities for parent participation in leadership 
groups, such as PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and 
District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, that consult 
and advise individual schools and the District.       

ACTUAL
Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in 
leadership groups including PTA/PTO, School Site Council, 
School and District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, 
that consult and advise individual schools and the District.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 7 of 91

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The actions and services for this goal were fully implemented. Our annual analysis of teacher assignments 
revealed that all teachers are highly qualified and posses the appropriate credentials for their assignments. 
Our annual sufficiency resolution as adopted by the Governing Board verifying that every student was in 
possession of all adopted core instructional materials. Our annual inspections of individual school facilities 
noted that all campuses were in either good or exceptional condition. As in past years, individual schools 
and the district have been successful in garnering parent participation on school and district leadership 
committees and groups.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The district's actions and services to meet this goal and metrics have been fully met, therefore, the stated 
actions and services were highly effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Ensure 
every student is provided with standards aligned instructional materials in all core subject areas). The 
District spent $17,493 less than expected (17.9% less). The actual cost for replacement materials was 
lower than budgeted and the District met its obligation to provide every student with standards aligned, 
Board adopted, instructional materials in all core subjects. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 3 (Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet 
the State criteria for being in good repair). The District spent an additional $304,700 than expected (21.5% 
greater). The additional expenses were a result of needed repairs due to water intrusion in classrooms and 
other school buildings due to extensive rain this past winter. The district office also required unexpected 
roof repairs due to a large tree falling over and landing on the roof.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District has met all of the its Williams Act indicators. As a result, the district can assert that it 
continues to attract and hire highly qualified and appropriately credential teachers for all vacancies. Core 
adopted instructional materials are available in sufficient supply to ensure each student is provided with all 
core adopted materials. The district continues to provide school facilities that are in great condition as 
evidenced by our annual site inspections and lack of concern as reported by our greater community. 
Parents continue to be deeply involved in site and district leadership committees and groups.

Change: Since the District is meeting its Wiliams Act indicators, no changes to the revised LCAP have 
been made.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 8 of 91

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Participation of students in the District's GATE and special education 
programs mirror the demographics of the District's students, especially 
for English learner and socio-economically disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of the sub-group participation in each 
program.        

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the demographics of our district as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and 
Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special 
education and related services revealed over representation of two subgroups of 
students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the special 
education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total 
population, 44% of the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 43% of our 
special education population).
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 9 of 91

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Review the District's GATE identification process to ensure 
each component fairly identities students regardless of English 
language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who are identified as gifted 
revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino 
(27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the 
GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged 
students (33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE 
population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Review the District's special education identification process to 
ensure each evaluation fairly identities students regardless of 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who have been identified as 
being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students: 
English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of 
the special education population). The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our 
total population, 43% of our special education population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The District actions this year to achieve the goal of equity of access across our Gate and Special 
Education and programs was to establish benchmarks of access gaps among our significant subgroups of 
students.

--------

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 10 of 91

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The Districts's actions to meet this goal were effective as we now have baseline data and identified gaps in 
access. We have identified future actions and/or services to close and eliminate these gaps.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

here were no material differences between budgets and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District determined there are participation gaps within each of the three programs its 
provides that are not offered to all students. These include lower participation rates for English learners 
and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students in GATE and higher participation rates for English 
learners and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students and lower participation rates for White students 
in Special Education.

Change: We have amended our expected outcomes, metrics, and actions and services to specifically 
address the gaps we identified in order to close and eventually eliminate the identified gaps among our 
significant subgroups of students.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 11 of 91

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Increase P-2 attendance rate to 96% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
2. Reduce P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged, and special education students.
3. Reduce P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
5. Maintain P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
6. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a 
school where they feel safe to 100% as measured by the district-wide 
local student climate survey (73 percent of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe)

As an elementary charter school, high school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.
      

1.  The Village P-2 attendance rate was 95.9% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  The Village P-2 chronic absenteeism rate was 7.6% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  The Village P-2 pupil suspension rate was 0.5% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  The Village P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  The number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the Village local student climate survey was 65% of 
students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 67% of students reported 
being happy at school "often/always".
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 12 of 91

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain counseling programs at each school.       

ACTUAL
Counseling resources were maintained at each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $45,653 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $51,118

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       

ACTUAL
Clerical attendance support personnel were maintained at 
each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $64,757 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $65,112

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand school site participation in Restorative Practices.       

ACTUAL
Restorative Practices training was expanded to all schools 
beyond the pilot sites. Counselors are assisting teachers 
implement the practice.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand the PlayWorks program to increase student 
participation.        

ACTUAL
Yard Duty II personnel, who deliver the recess activities, are 
in place at all schools.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as Back to School Night, 
Open House, Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and 
other site-based community events.       

ACTUAL
School-based activities that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events were provided.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 13 of 91

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate district-wide in the Sonoma Leadership Network 
(SCOE) which will focus on culturally responsive teaching 
practices.       

ACTUAL
Each school selected a team of two teachers and the site 
administrator to join district personnel in the SLN. Teams are 
working to bring a coherent, district-wide plan focus on 
equity.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year was to improve the overall school climate for students through school counseling 
programs and the implementation/maintenance of social-emotional learning programs. The result of this 
was increased attendance and decreased suspension rates. The implementation of the social emotional 
learning programs has gone well and is beginning to be shared with parents. Counseling and office support 
have been maintained and contribute to the low chronic absenteeism and truancy rates.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Counselors have supported parent education initiatives and have monitored attendance at their school 
sites. They support the principals in school-wide campaigns to improve peer interactions and build student 
skills. These have shown a reduction in the number of referrals to the school office for discipline issues, 
however has not decreased the number of overall suspensions. The specific incidents of suspension will 
be reviewed to determine if there are trends.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Maintain 
counseling programs at each school). The District spent $54,287 less than expected (33.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to moving the difference in expenses to the MediCal budget.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: Based on the student suspension rate going up slightly, additional analysis will be conducted to 
determine if there is trend that is not being addressed. Attendance rates will continue to be addressed 
through the school counseling program and the office clerks.

Change: No significant changes are being recommended at this time. Further analysis of suspension 
incidents will guide any necessary changes.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 14 of 91

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 15 of 91

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
4

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with 
special attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 55%.
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 3rd students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 25%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 30%.
4.  60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each 
trimester.

The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high 
school students.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report designates the 
school as Medium (7.2 pts. above Level 3) for our Status and Maintained (+4.4 pts.) 
for our Change.  Our rubric color is Yellow.  However, these results are relevant to 
the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to 
address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark (STAR Reading) data:

School-wide:  57% of all students met benchmark; 25% of English learners met 
benchmark; 50% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
Third grade: 52% of all students met benchmark; 23% of English learners met 
benchmark; 35% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.

Early literacy screening (DIBELS) data for K-1:  62% of all students ready for "core" 
instruction, 49% of English learners ready for "core instruction; 47% of economically 
disadvantaged students ready for "core" instruction.

Kindergarten Readiness (READY) data:  39% of all students entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go", 25% of English earners entered Kindergarten "ready to go"; 
(economically disadvantaged status was not tracked for this data.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 16 of 91

      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

ACTUAL
Implemented a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand and utilize the Student Support Model for students not 
meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.       

ACTUAL
Expanded and utilized the Student Support Model for 
students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or 
local benchmark assessment targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental  
$42,088  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$47,762

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

ACTUAL
Participated in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for primary grade students 
not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 17 of 91

MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State ELA/ELD standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State ELA/ELD standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that provides strategies for families 
to support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.        

ACTUAL
Provided school-based parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading skills, such as, 
decoding, fluency, and comprehension, for their children.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget   

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish three family library/computer lab evening events per 
school to provide access to these resources among our 
families and to promote home-based literacy support for 
students.         

ACTUAL
Due to fiscal restraints and a need to focus Student Support 
resources, this action was not implemented.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget   

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 18 of 91

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year was to solidify instructional and assessment practices in early literacy and expanding 
our support services for students who are not yet at standard in language arts. The two actions related to 
parent and family support were not implemented (family library time) or not implemented on a large enough 
scale (parent education to support reading) to affect long-term change.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on Trimester 2 data, our actions were effective in meeting our goals. Our next step is to see how 
well our local data matches the CAASPP data.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Expand 
and utilize the Student Support Model for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local 
benchmark assessment targets). The District spent $83,385 less than expected (35.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to personnel savings due to a Support Coordinator vacancy that was only 
partially filled during the school year. There was also a material difference in what was budgeted and the 
actual expenditures for Action 4 (Provide a summer school program for primary grade students not on track 
to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets). The District spent $35,000 less than what was budgeted (100%) 
due to its inability to hold summer school due to extensive summer facility work being conducted on every 
campus.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: Based on local benchmark measure, District student performance is meeting prior year LCAP 
expected outcomes. Since Spring 2017 CAASPP results will not be available at the time of adoption, these 
measure are not included in the District's analysis of its ability to meet its 2016-17 LCAP goals. This 
analysis will occur during the Annual update for the 2016-17 school year as part of the development of the 
2018-19 LCAP.

Change: Since the available measurable outcome show the District exceeding its performance goals, no 
significant changes are proposed.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 19 of 91

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
5

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 
6th grade students (as a predictor of 8th grade student success).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 50%.
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 25%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 70%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP standard.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report designates the 
School as Medium (-12.2 pts. below Level 3) for our Status and Declined (-4 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  However, these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address.

We piloted a new local benchmark this year and our goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved difficult to manage and our Trimester 2 data could not 
be compared to Trimester 1 due to concerns about validity of scores in Trimester 1. If 
we set the benchmark at 70% correct for Trimester 2: School-wide:  40% of all 
students met benchmark; 13% of English learners met benchmark; 26% of 
economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 20 of 91

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement intervention programs for students not meeting 
CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

ACTUAL
Partial implementation of intervention programs for students 
not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State Math standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State Math standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.       

ACTUAL
Provided limited training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost   

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 21 of 91

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and practices 
embedded within the new California State standards.       

ACTUAL
Schools held a Family Math Night as a tool to strengthen 
parent understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the new California State 
standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Immaterial cost     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Immaterial cost    

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our implementation of the actions for math was inconsistent across the district, with some schools ready 
and able to begin this work and other schools that needed to focus on building capacity or systems before 
beginning this work.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The local benchmark platform that we piloted this year was not effective. It was cumbersome to create and 
distribute benchmark assessments and the data was not friendly or easily accessible. However, as an 
intervention and practice platform, the program shows promise. Schools who have used the program for 
systematic intervention in math have seen a strong correlation to prior CAASPP scores and have seen 
growth in student achievement in math. The program's placement test seems to be strongly correlated to 
the SmarterBalanced rigor and format.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgeted and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District recognizes the performance of students in mathematics is below our expectations. 
Improvement is necessary and a specific strategy to address performance has been developed and 
implemented.

Change: We plan to use the end-of-module assessments from our adopted core instructional program 
(Engage New York/Eureka Math) to identify students' "status" in math and use our intervention program 
(MobyMax) placement test to monitor "change" in students' progress toward end of year standards. The 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 22 of 91

data from these two assessments should give us an accurate picture of students' math performance and 
help us predict how well they will do on the state summative assessment.

We will change our focus grade level from 8th grade to 6th grade. Since a large percent of our 8th grade 
students did not attend our elementary schools, it is not accurate to use that group as an indicator of our 
overall system performance. Since most of our students leave our district at the end of 6th grade, it is more 
accurate to evaluate our system performance at that grade level.

We are also strengthening our teachers' capacity to constantly implement math instruction as intended. 
Site administrator monitoring of classroom practices is a key strategy.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 23 of 91

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
6

Every English learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  63.5% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. 
(2016-17 Title III AMAO 1).
2.  26.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years 
or less will meet reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.  (2016-17 
Title III target AMAO 2a).
3.  54.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for more 
than 5 years will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.  (2016-17 
Title III target AMAO 2b).
4.  15% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).
      

1.  54.2% of English learners increased at least one CELDT level.
2.  29.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
3.  61.9% of English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
4.  17.8% of English learners were reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) in 
the census-to-census count.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Pilot new designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 
school year.       

ACTUAL
Piloted new designated ELD programs and adopted 
Benchmark Advance for the 2017-18 school year.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 24 of 91

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No cost   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
Integrated ELD.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness    

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English learners 
at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their acquisition 
of English toward reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as long-term English learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their 
acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as long-term English learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.       

ACTUAL
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $10,418 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $10,489

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.        

ACTUAL
Provided instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 25 of 91

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 4203 0000 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $4,831 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 4203 0000 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $4,859

MGMT 4203 0000 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined LCFF $0 MGMT 4203 0000 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Integrated ELD and support for ELs in the classroom was a district focus at the beginning of the school 
year, with schools continuing this work based on the numbers and needs of English learners at their sites. 
Our largest-scale action this year was examining, piloting, and adopting a new ELA/ELD program to better 
support Integrated and Designated ELD in the classroom.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on our actual outcomes, our actions and services for English learners in the past two years have 
been effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Pilot new 
designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 school year). The District spent $28,308 more than 
expected (130.12% more). The additional expenses was charged against this account for additional 
support required in this effort by the District's EL Coordinator. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 6 (Provide adult English classes for parents who are 
English learners). The District spent $6,307 less than expected (85.4%). This was due to not being fully 
staffed in the position of English learner Assistants. Therefore, we did not utilize what was budgeted. We 
did end the year fully staffed and are expected to be so at the beginning of the 2017-18 school year.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District met three of its four annual measurable outcomes for the 2016-17 LCAP for this goal. 
English learners are acquiring English to the level as expected by the State. However, we know we have 
pockets of English learners that are not making annual progress and improved outcomes for these 
students are needed.

Change: The implementation of the new K-6 ELA/ELD program next year will be a big change and will 
require an examination of the role of our EL Assistants. Extensive professional development for the new 
program will be required for certificated, classified, and administrative staff.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 26 of 91

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

Introduction

The Village Charter School is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and understand this is an integral part in developing an effective strategic plan.  As such, VCS 
used a variety of site and district-based meetings and events to involve and hear from our stakeholders.  These included a series of site-based meetings for each of our 
stakeholder groups led by our principals throughout the Annual Update, a series of site-based meetings, co-presented by the principals and the superintendent, to review the 
initial draft of the new LCAP, and a series of district-wide meetings with other stakeholder groups, such as employees (CTA, CSEA, non-represented), District English Learner 
Advisory Committee (DELAC), Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and students.
       

Village School Parents Club met on November 2, 2016. Village's Faculty met on November 3, 2016. Village's ELAC met on December 7, 2016. Village Site Council met on
December 21, 2016. These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input. Each group discussed progress in
meeting current goals. Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged.
       

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on January 19, 2016. The group reviewed the site-based feedback
gathered during October through December 2015 and made recommendations for the 2016-17 LCAP.
       

Parent Advisory Committee met on March 2, 2016. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and
actions/services for the next three years.
       

Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee met on March 10, 2016. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on March 15, 2016. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting
goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

District English Learner Advisory Council met on February 22, 2017. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

The District held eight community-wide LCAP input meetings on February 15, 2017 (Village), February 21, 2017 (Austin Creek), February 22, 2017 in Spanish (Madrone),
February 23, 2017 (RVCS-Matanzas), February 27, 2017 (Whited), March 2, 2017 (Binkley), March 6, 2017 (Madrone), and March 7, 2017 (Sequoia). The group reviewed
progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

The District met with our teachers' association, RVUTA, On February 14, 2017. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals,

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 27 of 91

measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

The District met with our classified employees association, CSEA, On March 28, 2016. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals,
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

Governing Board met on April 11, 2017. Trustees reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for
the next three years.
       

Governing Board met on May 9, 2017. Trustees held a Public Hearing on the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP. At the same meeting, there was a public hearing on the 2017-
18 Budget.
       

Governing Board met on June 13, 2017. Trustees approved the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-29 LCAP and 2017-18 Budget.       

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

Village stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the expansion of Restorative Practices and have noticed a positive impact on school climate
• Appreciate the scholar switch scheduling that allows for more precise and direct ELA instruction (SIPPS)
• Concern that over attention to meeting certain benchmarks impedes students having fun while learning
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Strengthening strategies to increase parent involvement
• Increase parent training in how to support their children at home in math
       

Administrative Council stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the focus the LCAP provides and how these goals align to site-based school plans
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Provide site leaders with training on using social media and in strategies to engage the parent community
• Focus the math goal on 6th grade, rather than 8th grade
All questions were answered at the meeting. The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Parent Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the progress the district has made in creating social-emotional programs and related services
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to support literacy, especially in the primary grades
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Strengthen parent education efforts, including creating web-based resources rather than just face-to-face presentations
All questions were answered at the meeting. The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 28 of 91

The Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Student's view counselors as an important resource for themselves individually and for others
• Appreciate restorative circles as a way to resolve problems and get to know more about one another
• Appreciated field trips and special school events that bring the community together and make school life more engaging
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Students report having friends at school is a critical aspect of feeling connected and wanting to come to school each day. Students suggest schools develop strategies to
foster students getting to know others outside of their friendship groups.
• Suggest math instruction is highly differentiated so high achieving students are continually challenged, while students at other levels have meaningful instruction
All questions were answered at the meeting. The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The District English Learner Advisory Council feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the goals in place to support learning for all students, especially EL students
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to strengthen both integrated and designated ELD instruction
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Development of additional strategies to improve communication with parents of EL students, such as the creation of video series to provide specific information on various
programs such as integrated and designated ELD, ELACs and DELAC, Summer ELD Academy, Latino Family Literacy
All questions were answered at the meetings. The DELAC did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Community-wide LCAP stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the effort of the district to focus on the whole student, i.e., academic and social emotional programs and support
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Build upon current parent education programs, especially to provide strategies for parents to assist their children with math
• Utilize social media more in communication from the district and from individual schools
• Provide additional options for parent to network with one another
All questions were answered at the various meetings.
       

RVUTA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• RVUTA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting. The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

CSEA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• CSEA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting. The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

At the April 11, 2017 Regular meeting, Trustees reviewed the draft LCAP for the 20017-18 school year. Trustees appreciated the incorporation of the California Dashboard into the
document.
       

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 29 of 91

At the May 9, 2017 Regular meeting, The Governing Board provided an opportunity for community comment.       

At the June 13, 2017 Regular meeting, the Governing Board approved the 2017-18, 2018019, 2019-20 LCAP as presented.       

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 30 of 91

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student benefits when they are provided core instruction from highly qualified teachers, are provided standards 

aligned instructional materials, and are housed in facilities in good repair.  The Rincon Valley Union School District 
consistently provides every student with these Basic Supports and is committed to continue to do so.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1. Every student received all 
core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers as defined by 
the State of California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all 
teacher credentials.
2. Every student was provided 
standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject 
areas as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as 
verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every student was housed in 
facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair 
as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 31 of 91

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.
       

4. Parents were provided 
multiple opportunities to 
participate in leadership groups 
including PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and District 
Advisory Committees, and 
ELAC/DELAC, that consult and 
advise individual schools and 
the District.

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 32 of 91

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.       

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $19,398 Amount $20,000 Amount $21,000

       $19,398Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $19,398Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Amount       $1,607,715 Amount $1,700,000 Amount $1,800,000

       $1,607,715Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $1,607,715Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and 
site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 33 of 91

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 34 of 91

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.         

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 35 of 91

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.          

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.   

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.   

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 36 of 91

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student in the Rincon Valley Union School District has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.  

As a core K-6 district, courses are provided through grade level classes.  In the charter middle school (grades 7-8), 
every student maintains a similar schedule, differing by elective choice.  Programs such as GATE, advanced coursework 
(grades 7-8), and special education are only offered to students who meet predefined criteria.

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged students 
(33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of the special 
education population).  The examination also identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 
43% of our special education population).

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

An examination of students who 
are identified as gifted revealed 
three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a 
whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 11% of the 
GATE population), English 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 37 of 91

the sub-group participation in 
each program.        

Learners (10% of our total 
population, 0% of the GATE 
population), and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who 
have been identified as being 
eligible for special education and 
related services revealed over 
representation of two subgroups 
of students:  English Learners 
(10% of the total population, 
18% of the special education 
population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
the total population, 44% of the 
special education population).  
The examination also identified 
an under represented group: 
White (58% of our total 
population, 43% of our special 
education population).

the sub-group participation in 
each program. 

the sub-group participation in 
each program. 

the sub-group participation in 
each program. 

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 38 of 91

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Participation of students in the District's GATE and 
special education programs mirror the demographics of 
the District's students, especially for English learner and 
socio-economically disadvantaged students as measured 
by an annual audit of the sub-group participation in each 
program.         

Strengthen the case study process for GATE 
identification by using non-traditional instruments (such 
as a parent interview rather than a written survey for 
English Learner parents) in conjunction with traditional 
instruments (such as the Raven Progressive Matrices).

Strengthen the case study process for GATE 
identification by using non-traditional instruments (such 
as a parent interview rather than a written survey for 
English Learner parents) in conjunction with traditional 
instruments (such as the Raven Progressive Matrices).

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 39 of 91

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training for teachers and administrators 
in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of giftedness and 
how to report these observations in the case study 
process.       

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 40 of 91

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training to school sites on pre-referral 
interventions and to assessment teams on characteristics 
of students who are English Learners or who are 
identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  Training will 
focus on language differences and lack of experience 
characteristics as compared to characteristics of a 
disability.         

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 41 of 91

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Village Charter School has demonstrated good attendance rates and low chronic absenteeism rates.  P-2 attendance 

95.9%.  Village Charter School also benefits from low suspension rates.   Student Climate Survey results indicate that 
67% of Village students are often/always happy to be at that school and 65% report often/always feeling safe at school.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Maintain district-wide P-2 
attendance rate at 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce district-wide P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3. Maintain district-wide P-2 
charter middle school drop-out 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 

1.  The Village P-2 attendance 
rate was 95.9% for all students 
and significant subgroups to 
include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
2.  The Village P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate was 7.6% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3.  The Village P-2 pupil 
suspension rate was 0.5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.

1. Increase the Village P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce Village P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3. Maintain Village P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.

1. Increase the Village P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce Village P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3. Maintain Village P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.

1. Increase the Village P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce Village P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 4.7% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
3. Maintain Village P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 42 of 91

and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4. Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Maintain district-wide P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy at 
school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.
       

5.  The Village P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6.  The number of students who 
self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as 
measured by the Village local 
student climate survey was 65% 
of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 67% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

4. Maintain Village P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Village local student climate 
survey (65% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 67% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

4. Maintain Village P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Village local student climate 
survey (65% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 67% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

4. Maintain Village P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Village local student climate 
survey (65% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 67% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 43 of 91

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain counseling programs at each school.       Maintain counseling programs at each school. Maintain counseling programs at each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $48,450 Amount $49,000 Amount $50,000

       $48,450Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $48,450Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 44 of 91

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       Maintain clerical attendance support for each school. Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $61,983 Amount $64,000 Amount $65,000

       $61,983Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $61,983Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 45 of 91

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.          

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.   

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.   

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 46 of 91

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation.        

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       0 Amount 0 Amount 0

       0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 47 of 91

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.       

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 48 of 91

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.       

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 49 of 91

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 4 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special 
attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for reading by 3rd grade is a key indicator of subsequent student success in English 

language arts.  Spring 2015 CAASPP results reveal that 45% of Village 3rd grade students met or exceeded the 
standard for English language arts.  For 6th grade, the last year in the district for most students, 46% of all students met 
the grade level criteria.  For English learners, 12% of 3rd and 0% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For 
socio-economically disadvantaged students, 20% of 3rd and 67% 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 30%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
50%.
4. 60% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the District as 
Medium (8.2 pts. above Level 3) 
for our Status and Maintained 
(+0.2 pts.) for our Change. Our 
rubric color is Yellow. However, 
these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 40%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
4. 65% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
4. 70% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
85%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
4. 75% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 50 of 91

The Academic Performance 
Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, 
AP test participation, and EAP 
do not apply as the district does 
not serve high school students.
       

2016-17 LCAP year this update 
is intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark 
(STAR Reading) data:

District-wide: 68% of all students 
met benchmark; 29% of English 
learners met benchmark; 53% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.
Third grade: 64% of all students 
met benchmark; 40% of English 
learners met benchmark; 57% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

Early literacy screening 
(DIBELS) data for K-1: 70% of 
all students ready for "core" 
instruction, 51% of English 
learners ready for "core 
instruction; 56% of economically 
disadvantaged students ready 
for "core" instruction.

Kindergarten Readiness 
(READY) data: 52% of all 
students entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go", 28% of English 
earners entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go"; (economically 
disadvantaged status was not 
tracked for this data.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 51 of 91

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 52 of 91

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.        

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $55,376 Amount $57,000 Amount $59,000

       $55,376Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $55,376Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 53 of 91

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 54 of 91

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.       

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 55 of 91

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.       

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 56 of 91

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.       

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 57 of 91

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children.        

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 58 of 91

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 5 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 6th 
grade students (as a predictor of 8th grade student success).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for math by 8th grade is a key indicator of student success in high school math 

courses.  Village will monitor 6th grade student progress as a predictor to 8th grade success.  Spring 2015 CAASPP 
results reveal that 39% of Village 6th grade students met or exceeded the standard for math.  For English learners, 0% 
of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 67% of 6th graders met 
or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 55%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 55%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4. Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the District as 
Medium (-17.0 pts. above Level 
3) for our Status and Declined (-
1.3 pts.) for our Change. Our 
rubric color is Orange. However, 
these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 55%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 55%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4. Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 70%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 70%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
50%.
4. Improve growth from the 
previous year for the local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 85%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 85%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
65%.
4. Improve growth from the 
previous year for the local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 59 of 91

       2016-17 LCAP year this update 
is intended to address.

2016-17 Local Measures

We piloted a new local 
benchmark this year and our 
goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved 
difficult to manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could not be 
compared to Trimester 1 due to 
concerns about validity of scores 
in Trimester 1. If we set the 
benchmark at 70% correct for 
Trimester 2: District-wide: 37% 
of all students met benchmark; 
12% of English learners met 
benchmark; 22% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 60 of 91

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.         

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.  

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 61 of 91

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.         

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 62 of 91

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.       

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark 
assessment.       

Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark 
assessment.

Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark 
assessment.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 63 of 91

Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.       

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 64 of 91

Action    6
OR

ACTIONS/SERVICES

       . .

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 65 of 91

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 6 Every English learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need The California Dashboard results show that the percentage of English learners, plus RFEP students, demonstrating at 

least one level of growth on the 2015 CELDT from the 2014 CELDT was 69.4%. This represents a status of Medium. 
These results were a Decline from the previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of English learners demonstrated at least one level 
of growth on the CELDT. The percent of English learners reclassified at the October census for the 2016-17 school year 
was 17.2%. This is a four year high and an increase of 4.8% over the prior year.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. The California School 
Dashboard will show a Status of 
High, with 75% or more of 
English learners demonstrating 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT, representing an 
Increase towards Change.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).
       

1. 61% of English learners 
district-wide increased at least 
one CELDT level.
2. 35.2% of district-wide English 
learners who have been in US 
schools for 5 years or less 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 
5) on CELDT.
3. 58.4% of district-wide English 
learners who have been in US 
schools for more than 5 years 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 
5) on CELDT.
4. 17.2% of English learners 
district wide were reclassified as 
Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) 
in the census-to-census count.

1. The California School 
Dashboard will show a Status of 
High, with 75% or more of 
English learners demonstrating 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT, representing an 
Increase towards Change.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1. The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indictors will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC. Therefore, the District is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1. The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indictors will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC. Therefore, the District is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 66 of 91

The California Dashboard 
results show the percentage of 
English learners, plus RFEP 
students, demonstrating at least 
one level of growth on the 2015 
CELDT from the 2014 CELDT 
was 69.4%. This represents a 
status of Medium. These results 
were a Decline from the 
previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of 
English learners demonstrated 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT.

The percent of English learners 
reclassified at the October 
census for the 2016-17 school 
year was 17.2%. This is a four 
year high and an increase of 
4.8% over the prior year.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 67 of 91

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Implement the selected designated ELD program.       Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 68 of 91

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.        

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD. 

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness 

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 69 of 91

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.       

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 70 of 91

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.       

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 
cost

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 
cost

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 
cost

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged
Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 71 of 91

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $10,247 Amount $12,000 Amount $14,000

       $10,247Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $10,247Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 72 of 91

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.        

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants. 

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $5,050 Amount $5,500 Amount $6,000

       $5,050Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $5,050Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 73 of 91

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $70,673 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: 5.74%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or 
quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
VCS does not receive Concentration funds.  Supplemental funds for the 2017-18 school year will be used for our Multi Tiered System of Support (MSTS) 
programs.  The components of our MTSS program funded with supplemental funding include a range of intervention support, an ELD Summer Academy, to 
support a district-wide ELD coordinator, support the district's restorative practices program, fund a summer learning program, fund a portion of our family liaisons, 
and fund a portion of our EL assistants.   (Averill & Rinaldi, 2011; California Department of Education, 2015)

Intervention Programs:  These resources are principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction to students who are not 
meeting grade level CAASPP and/or local assessment targets.  While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups 
comprise the majority of students benefiting from the services.  Intervention services are provided within an extensive MTSS system that includes Student 
Support Coordinators, classroom teachers, and intervention teachers.  Student Support Coordinators provide direct instruction to students, monitor the progress 
of all students being served with support services and meet with grade level teams and principals to review the progress of groups and individuals.  English 
language arts and mathematics are the targeted subjects for identifying and supporting students.  Supplemental funds are used for Student Support Coordinator 
and intervention teachers' salaries and benefits.  (California Department of Education, 2015)

Cost of the Intervention Programs charged to Supplemental Funds:  $55,376, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Codes 0652)

Summer ELD Academy:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction and monitoring of student progress 
within our overall system of supports.  Students participating in the Summer ELD Academy are English learners at the Intermediate level as measured by 
CELDT.  The goal of this service is to accelerate English language acquisition so that English learners do not become long term ELs.  Summer EL Academy 
classroom teachers provide the instruction.  Supplemental funds are used for Summer ELD Academy classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and 
benefits and instructional materials. (Ward-Singer, 2007; California Department of Education, ELD Standards Appendix C, 2015)

Cost of the Summer ELD Academy charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Code ELDA)

EL Coordinator:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by coordinating and monitoring of EL student progress within our overall 
system of supports. Supplemental funds are used for EL Coordinator salary and benefits. (Schmoker, 2006)

Cost of the EL Coordinator charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 10000-3000- (Management Code ELDC)

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 74 of 91

Restorative Practices:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used to support the training for certificated and classified personnel in the use of the Restorative Practices protocols.  This effort will result in district-wide 
implementation of this practice.  (International Institute for Restorative Practices, 2007)

Cost of expanding Restorative Practices charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code MAAD)

Summer Learning:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are not 
strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used for Summer Learning classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Smith, ASCD, 2012)

Cost of the Summer Learning program charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 0650)

Family Liaison:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing school-to-home related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Family Liaisons provide 
an important link between our schools and families.  These individuals provide support for families across a wide range of school attendance, social/emotional 
needs, and connecting to community-wide resources.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Breiseth, Robertson & 
Lafond, 2015)

Cost of the Family Liaisons charged to Supplemental Funds:  $10,247, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3999 (Management Code 4201)

EL Assistants:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing instructional services.  EL Assistants provide direction 
instructional support to our EL students.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Robertson & Ford, 2013)

Cost of the EL Assistants charged to Supplemental Funds:  $5,050, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3999 (Management Code 4203)

The District is increasing services by directing all new Supplemental funds to services that are principally directed towards our unduplicated students.  All new 
and ongoing Supplemental funding is directed towards our Multi Tiered System of Support services.  Detailed information concerning the use of these funds are 
included in Section 3:A.  -------
-------

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service
Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Funding Sources 1,835,002.00 1,823,390.00 1,808,219.00 1,907,500.00 2,015,000.00 5,730,719.00
LCFF 1,732,012.00 1,709,162.00 1,689,096.00 1,784,000.00 1,886,000.00 5,359,096.00
Supplemental 102,990.00 114,228.00 119,123.00 123,500.00 129,000.00 371,623.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types 1,835,002.00 1,823,390.00 1,808,219.00 1,907,500.00 2,015,000.00 5,730,719.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted 1,835,002.00 1,823,390.00 1,808,219.00 1,907,500.00 2,015,000.00 5,730,719.00
0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 1,835,002.00 1,823,390.00 1,808,219.00 1,907,500.00 2,015,000.00 5,730,719.00

LCFF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0000: Unrestricted LCFF 1,732,012.00 1,709,162.00 1,689,096.00 1,784,000.00 1,886,000.00 5,359,096.00
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 102,990.00 114,228.00 119,123.00 123,500.00 129,000.00 371,623.00
0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

LCFF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
Goal 1 1,627,113.00 1,720,000.00 1,821,000.00 5,168,113.00

Goal 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 3 110,433.00 113,000.00 115,000.00 338,433.00

Goal 4 55,376.00 57,000.00 59,000.00 171,376.00

Goal 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 6 15,297.00 17,500.00 20,000.00 52,797.00

Goal 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Village Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 1 of 89

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.

LEA Name Rincon Valley Union School District

----------Contact Name and
Title

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.
Superintendent

Email and 
Phone

troehrick@rvusd.org
(707) 542-7375

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

This document serves as the key needs assessment resource for the revision of the 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 LCAP.  
The data included comprises that which is required under each of the State's eight priority areas.  Whited Charter School 
conducted a parent engagement needs assessment using the PTA National Standards for Family-School Partnerships 
Assessment.  The results from each of these needs assessment tools were used as the basis for identifying critical areas 
to address within the new LCAP.        

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

The 2017-18 Whited Charter School (WCS) LCAP builds upon our prior year goals and initiatives.  We have retained our 
six goals that address the State's eight priority areas.  In doing so, we have made adjustments to our annual measurable 
outcomes to incorporate the new California School Dashboard accountability metrics.  WCS has take the approach to 
weave parent involvement throughout our goals.  We have defined parent involvement to comprise of three components:
1. Parents as leaders (e.g., site council)
2. Parents as partners (e.g., attending parent/teacher conferences)
3. Parents as learners (e.g., parent education)

Goal #1 addresses the foundational aspects of effective schools (Basic Supports) to include:
1. Highly qualified teachers
2. Standards aligned instructional materials
3. Facilities in good repair
4. Deep involvement of parents as leaders

Items 1 - 3 above are required by the State to address.  WCS has added parent leadership as an additional foundational 
pillar because we know that deep involvement by parents in leadership roles is a key indicator of a healthy and vibrant 
learning community.  In the prior LCAP year, our outcome was to ensure each school had a functioning parent 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/49708966052047/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 89

organization, a site council, and an English Learner Advisory Council (ELAC).  This LCAP year requires us to have these 
leadership groups fully constituted as measured by each groups' bylaws.

Goal #2 addresses course access.  As a K-6 grade school, students have access to nearly every curricular or program 
we offer.  The exceptions are our Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) and Special Education programs.  Students 
must meet certain criteria to receive services under these programs.  We spent the prior LCAP year analyzing our 
participation rates in these three options.  Our results have been incorporated in our 2017-18 LCAP with specific 
strategies to close our identified gaps.

Goal #3 addresses safe and positive school environments.  This has been an area of emphasis for the WCS.  In 2015-
16, we committed extensive fiscal resources to bring full-time counselors to our schools.  We also created an office clerk 
position to assist us better monitor and address attendance issues.  Other efforts include expanding school-wide 
programs that intentionally provide students with the tools they need to be thoughtful and respectful members of our 
society.  We believe we have made tremendous progress in this area.  We are now moving beyond the implementation 
phase of our efforts to fine-tuning how we use our new resources to ensure students continue to experience safe and 
nurturing learning environments.

Goal #4 addresses our expectations concerning language arts achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 3rd grade as our overarching goal.  We have 
done this because of the extensive research clearly linking end of 3rd grade status in reading as an indicator of future 
success as learners.

Goal #5 addresses our expectations concerning mathematics achievement.  Our metrics include State assessment 
results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we are attentive to the progress of all of our 
students, we have specifically identified being at grade level at the end of 6th grade as our overarching goal.

Goal #6 addresses the progress of our English learners in attaining English proficiency.  In the prior LCAP year, our 
metrics were tied to the former State English learner accountability model.  We have adjusted our metrics to align with 
the California Dashboard.  However, with the change in the State assessment that measures English learner progress in 
attaining English, the California School Dashboard will be in a holding pattern during much of the three years this LCAP 
represents.
        

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, 
what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may 
include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, 
English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

The LCFF Rubrics that are the underpinning of the California School Dashboard were released for the first 
time this year based on the spring 2015 and 2016 results.  At WCS, we are in the Yellow zone for 
mathematics for all students with a Status of Low (25.9 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of Maintained (-
0.9 pts.).  For math, all of or subgroups: Socio-economically Disadvantaged Maintained (+4.6 pts.), and 
Students with Disabilities Increased Significantly (+26.7 pts.).

Our California School Dashboard results for English learner progress was also promising.  This measure 
the percent of students who have made increased one level on the CELDT from the prior year.  Our Status 
was Medium (70.3%) and our Change was Increased (3%).  This placed us in the Green zone on the LCFF 
Rubric.  Other measures attest to our solid gains in English learner progress.  Our reclassification rate, 
based on the October 2016 census, shows 17.2% of English learners were reclassified.  Our LCAP goal for 
2016-17 was 15%.  This gain is a four year high for our district.  Though the current English learner 
accountability system is going away, we were able to meet two of the three State AMAO goals for this year.

1.  61% of English learners district-wide increased at least one CELDT level (Goal was 63.5%).
2.  35.2% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 26.7%).
3.  58.4% of district-wide English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years reached 
proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT (Goal was 54.7%).

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 3 of 89

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to 
address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

Our greatest area of need is in English language arts performance.  At WCS, we are in the Orange zone for 
English language arts (ELA) for all students with a Status of Low (9.5 pts. below Level 3) and a Change of 
Declined (-10.6 pts.).  For ELA, all of or subgroups declined:  English learners (-10.0 pts.), Socio-
economically Disadvantaged (-1.0 pts.), and Students with Disabilities (-4.1 pts.).

WCS is adopting a new ELA/ELD program as our primary strategy to improve our outcomes.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 4 of 89

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was 
two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

None of our subgroups were two or more performance levels below the all student performance.  

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services 
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
The key improved service for English learners is the provision of a comprehensive and daily designated ELD program that will be 
delivered to English leaners based on their current status on the continuum of acquiring English.  Extensive professional development 
for all teachers is occurring over the summer.   Site and district administrators have also received this training and are therefore, better 
equipped to guide the implementation of this new ELA/ELD curriculum.  We also have two full-time consulting teachers that will assist 
teachers.  Our administrative team will continually review their observations of practice so we understand the success of our 
implementation.  While none of this improved service is funded through supplemental funding, it does demonstrate the District's 
commitment to closing our achievement gap and accelerating reclassification for our English
learners.
        

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $3,406,072

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$2,023,066.00

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the 
LCAP.

All of the site's expenditures that support our LCAP goals are embedded with each goal.  Additional General Fund 
expenditures support our core mission as an educational organization.  These include, but are not limited to clerical, 
custodial, maintenance, food service, and other related administrative costs.        

$3,347,163 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 5 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by an audit of all teacher credentials.
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to 
the California State adopted standards as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.
4.  Parent groups have multiple opportunities to advise individual 
schools and the District as evidenced by school and district 
calendared events.
      

1. Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher credentials.
2. Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in all core 
subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each teacher.
3. Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for being in good 
repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections.
4. Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in leadership groups 
including PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District Advisory Committees, 
and ELAC/DELAC, that consult and advise individual schools and the District.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 6 of 89

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Ensure every student receives all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.       

ACTUAL
Every student received all core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $16,993 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Kindergarten Assistants salary and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $16,291

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,772,459 

Maintain highly qualified teachers and site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: Unrestricted LCFF $1,752,747

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0 

District staff salary and benefits (MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

ACTUAL
Every student was provided standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.         

ACTUAL
Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 8150  LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 8150  LCFF $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide opportunities for parent participation in leadership 
groups, such as PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and 
District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, that consult 
and advise individual schools and the District.       

ACTUAL
Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in 
leadership groups including PTA/PTO, School Site Council, 
School and District Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC, 
that consult and advise individual schools and the District.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 7 of 89

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The actions and services for this goal were fully implemented. Our annual analysis of teacher assignments 
revealed that all teachers are highly qualified and posses the appropriate credentials for their assignments. 
Our annual sufficiency resolution as adopted by the Governing Board verifying that every student was in 
possession of all adopted core instructional materials. Our annual inspections of individual school facilities 
noted that all campuses were in either good or exceptional condition. As in past years, individual schools 
and the district have been successful in garnering parent participation on school and district leadership 
committees and groups.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The district's actions and services to meet this goal and metrics have been fully met, therefore, the stated 
actions and services were highly effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Ensure 
every student is provided with standards aligned instructional materials in all core subject areas). The 
District spent $17,493 less than expected (17.9% less). The actual cost for replacement materials was 
lower than budgeted and the District met its obligation to provide every student with standards aligned, 
Board adopted, instructional materials in all core subjects. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 3 (Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet 
the State criteria for being in good repair). The District spent an additional $304,700 than expected (21.5% 
greater). The additional expenses were a result of needed repairs due to water intrusion in classrooms and 
other school buildings due to extensive rain this past winter. The district office also required unexpected 
roof repairs due to a large tree falling over and landing on the roof.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District has met all of the its Williams Act indicators. As a result, the district can assert that it 
continues to attract and hire highly qualified and appropriately credential teachers for all vacancies. Core 
adopted instructional materials are available in sufficient supply to ensure each student is provided with all 
core adopted materials. The district continues to provide school facilities that are in great condition as 
evidenced by our annual site inspections and lack of concern as reported by our greater community. 
Parents continue to be deeply involved in site and district leadership committees and groups.

Change: Since the District is meeting its Wiliams Act indicators, no changes to the revised LCAP have 
been made.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 8 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

Participation of students in the District's GATE and special education 
programs mirror the demographics of the District's students, especially 
for English learner and socio-economically disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of the sub-group participation in each 
program.        

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the demographics of our district as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), English 
Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and 
Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special 
education and related services revealed over representation of two subgroups of 
students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the special 
education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total 
population, 44% of the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 43% of our 
special education population).
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 9 of 89

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Review the District's GATE identification process to ensure 
each component fairly identities students regardless of English 
language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who are identified as gifted 
revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino 
(27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the 
GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged 
students (33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE 
population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Review the District's special education identification process to 
ensure each evaluation fairly identities students regardless of 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.       

ACTUAL
An examination of students who have been identified as 
being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  
English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of 
the special education population).  The examination also 
identified an under represented group: White (58% of our 
total population, 43% of our special education population).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The District actions this year to achieve the goal of equity of access across our Gate and Special 
Education programs was to establish benchmarks of access gaps among our significant subgroups of 
students.

--------

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 10 of 89

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The Districts's actions to meet this goal were effective as we now have baseline data and identified gaps in 
access. We have identified future actions and/or services to close and eliminate these gaps.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgets and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District determined there are participation gaps within each of the three programs its 
provides that are not offered to all students. These include lower participation rates for English learners 
and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students in GATE and higher participation rates for English 
learners and Socio-economically Disadvantaged students and lower participation rates for White students 
in Special Education.

Change: We have amended our expected outcomes, metrics, and actions and services to specifically 
address the gaps we identified in order to close and eventually eliminate the identified gaps among our 
significant subgroups of students.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 11 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1. Maintain P-2 attendance rate at 96% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
2. Reduce P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all students 
and significant subgroups to include English learner, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged, and special education students.
3. Reduce P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
5. Maintain P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students.
6. Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a 
school where they feel safe to 100% as measured by the district-wide 
local student climate survey (78 percent of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe)

As an elementary charter school, high school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.
      

1.  The Whited School P-2 attendance rate was 95.8% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  The Whited School  P-2 chronic absenteeism rate was 7.1% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  The Whited School  P-2 pupil suspension rate was 3.3% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
4.  The Whited School  P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and significant 
subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  The number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the Whited School local student climate survey was 
75% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 78% of students 
reported being happy at school "often/always".
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 12 of 89

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain counseling programs at each school.       

ACTUAL
Counseling resources were maintained at each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $40,551 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $45,471

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       

ACTUAL
Clerical attendance support personnel were maintained at 
each school.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $79,232 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $78,778

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand school site participation in Restorative Practices.       

ACTUAL
Restorative Practices training was expanded to all schools 
beyond the pilot sites. Counselors are assisting teachers 
implement the practice.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand the PlayWorks program to increase student 
participation.        

ACTUAL
Yard Duty II personnel, who deliver the recess activities, are 
in place at all schools.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as Back to School Night, 
Open House, Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and 
other site-based community events.       

ACTUAL
School-based activities that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events were provided.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 13 of 89

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate district-wide in the Sonoma Leadership Network 
(SCOE) which will focus on culturally responsive teaching 
practices.       

ACTUAL
Each school selected a team of two teachers and the site 
administrator to join district personnel in the SLN. Teams are 
working to bring a coherent, district-wide plan focus on 
equity.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year was to improve the overall school climate for students through school counseling 
programs and the implementation/maintenance of social-emotional learning programs. The result of this 
was increased attendance and decreased suspension rates. The implementation of the social emotional 
learning programs has gone well and is beginning to be shared with parents. Counseling and office support 
have been maintained and contribute to the low chronic absenteeism and truancy rates.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Counselors have supported parent education initiatives and have monitored attendance at their school 
sites. They support the principals in school-wide campaigns to improve peer interactions and build student 
skills. These have shown a reduction in the number of referrals to the school office for discipline issues, 
however has not decreased the number of overall suspensions. The specific incidents of suspension will 
be reviewed to determine if there are trends.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Maintain 
counseling programs at each school). The District spent $54,287 less than expected (33.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to moving the difference in expenses to the MediCal budget.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: Based on the student suspension rate going up slightly, additional analysis will be conducted to 
determine if there is trend that is not being addressed. Attendance rates will continue to be addressed 
through the school counseling program and the office clerks.

Change: No significant changes are being recommended at this time. Further analysis of suspension 
incidents will guide any necessary changes.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 14 of 89

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 15 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
4

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with 
special attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 69%.
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 3rd students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 32%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 43%.
4.  60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each 
trimester.

The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high 
school students.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report designates the 
School as Low (9.5 pts. below Level 3) for our Status and Declined (-10.6 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  However, these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark (STAR Reading) data:

School-wide:  56% of all students met benchmark; 39% of English learners met 
benchmark; 54% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.
Third grade: 65% of all students met benchmark; 42% of English learners met 
benchmark; 60% of economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.

Early literacy screening (DIBELS) data for K-1:  68% of all students ready for "core" 
instruction, 50% of English learners ready for "core instruction; 48% of economically 
disadvantaged students ready for "core" instruction.

Kindergarten Readiness (READY) data:  45% of all students entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go", 30% of English earners entered Kindergarten "ready to go"; 
(economically disadvantaged status was not tracked for this data.

      

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 16 of 89

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

ACTUAL
Implemented a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Expand and utilize the Student Support Model for students not 
meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.       

ACTUAL
Expanded and utilized the Student Support Model for 
students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or 
local benchmark assessment targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental  
$52,398  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$53,286

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

ACTUAL
Participated in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for primary grade students 
not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 17 of 89

MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State ELA/ELD standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State ELA/ELD standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that provides strategies for families 
to support reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.        

ACTUAL
Provided school-based parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading skills, such as, 
decoding, fluency, and comprehension, for their children.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget   

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Establish three family library/computer lab evening events per 
school to provide access to these resources among our 
families and to promote home-based literacy support for 
students.         

ACTUAL
Due to fiscal restraints and a need to focus Student Support 
resources, this action was not implemented.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in Student Support Budget     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in Student Support Budget    

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 18 of 89

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our focus this year was to solidify instructional and assessment practices in early literacy and expanding 
our support services for students who are not yet at standard in language arts. The two actions related to 
parent and family support were not implemented (family library time) or not implemented on a large enough 
scale (parent education to support reading) to affect long-term change.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on Trimester 2 data, our actions were effective in meeting our goals. Our next step is to see how 
well our local data matches the CAASPP data.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 2 (Expand 
and utilize the Student Support Model for students not meeting DIBELS screening, CAASPP, and/or local 
benchmark assessment targets). The District spent $83,385 less than expected (35.1% less). The 
reduction in expenses as due to personnel savings due to a Support Coordinator vacancy that was only 
partially filled during the school year. There was also a material difference in what was budgeted and the 
actual expenditures for Action 4 (Provide a summer school program for primary grade students not on track 
to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets). The District spent $35,000 less than what was budgeted (100%) 
due to its inability to hold summer school due to extensive summer facility work being conducted on every 
campus.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: Based on local benchmark measure, District student performance is meeting prior year LCAP 
expected outcomes. Since Spring 2017 CAASPP results will not be available at the time of adoption, these 
measure are not included in the District's analysis of its ability to meet its 2016-17 LCAP goals. This 
analysis will occur during the Annual update for the 2016-17 school year as part of the development of the 
2018-19 LCAP.

Change: Since the available measurable outcome show the District exceeding its performance goals, no 
significant changes are proposed.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 19 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
5

Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 
6th grade students (as a predictor of 8th grade student success).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 50%.
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting 
or exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 25%.
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 27%.
4.  Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP standard.
      

Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was adopted, 
therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated into the 2018-19 LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report designates the 
School as Low (-25.9 pts. below Level 3) for our Status and Maintained (-0.9 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Yellow.  However, these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address.

We piloted a new local benchmark this year and our goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved difficult to manage and our Trimester 2 data could not 
be compared to Trimester 1 due to concerns about validity of scores in Trimester 1. If 
we set the benchmark at 70% correct for Trimester 2: School-wide:  35% of all 
students met benchmark; 5% of English learners met benchmark; 22% of 
economically disadvantaged students met benchmark.

      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 20 of 89

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Implement intervention programs for students not meeting 
CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.       

ACTUAL
Partial implementation of intervention programs for students 
not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional costs - included in goal 4 ELA   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full alignment of instruction to 
the new California State Math standards.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the new California State Math standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.       

ACTUAL
Provided a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into Math instruction.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness Funds   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.       

ACTUAL
Provided limited training to teachers and principals in the 
implementation of a new local math benchmark assessment.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No additional cost   

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 21 of 89

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and practices 
embedded within the new California State standards.       

ACTUAL
Schools held a Family Math Night as a tool to strengthen 
parent understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the new California State 
standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Immaterial cost     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Immaterial cost    

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Our implementation of the actions for math was inconsistent across the district, with some schools ready 
and able to begin this work and other schools that needed to focus on building capacity or systems before 
beginning this work.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The local benchmark platform that we piloted this year was not effective. It was cumbersome to create and 
distribute benchmark assessments and the data was not friendly or easily accessible. However, as an 
intervention and practice platform, the program shows promise. Schools who have used the program for 
systematic intervention in math have seen a strong correlation to prior CAASPP scores and have seen 
growth in student achievement in math. The program's placement test seems to be strongly correlated to 
the SmarterBalanced rigor and format.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between budgeted and actual expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District recognizes the performance of students in mathematics is below our expectations. 
Improvement is necessary and a specific strategy to address performance has been developed and 
implemented.

Change: We plan to use the end-of-module assessments from our adopted core instructional program 
(Engage New York/Eureka Math) to identify students' "status" in math and use our intervention program 
(MobyMax) placement test to monitor "change" in students' progress toward end of year standards. The 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 22 of 89

data from these two assessments should give us an accurate picture of students' math performance and 
help us predict how well they will do on the state summative assessment.

We will change our focus grade level from 8th grade to 6th grade. Since a large percent of our 8th grade 
students did not attend our elementary schools, it is not accurate to use that group as an indicator of our 
overall system performance. Since most of our students leave our district at the end of 6th grade, it is more 
accurate to evaluate our system performance at that grade level.

We are also strengthening our teachers' capacity to constantly implement math instruction as intended. 
Site administrator monitoring of classroom practices is a key strategy.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 23 of 89

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
6

Every English learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

1.  63.5% of English learners shall increase at least one CELDT level. 
(2016-17 Title III AMAO 1).
2.  26.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years 
or less will meet reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.  (2016-17 
Title III target AMAO 2a).
3.  54.7% of English learners who have been in US schools for more 
than 5 years will reach proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.  (2016-17 
Title III target AMAO 2b).
4.  15% of English learners will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP).
      

1.  46.7% of English learners increased at least one CELDT level.
2.  21.4% of English learners who have been in US schools for 5 years or less 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
3.  77.8% of English learners who have been in US schools for more than 5 years 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 5) on CELDT.
4.  35.4% of English learners were reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) in 
the census-to-census count.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Pilot new designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 
school year.       

ACTUAL
Piloted new designated ELD programs and adopted 
Benchmark Advance for the 2017-18 school year.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 24 of 89

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No cost   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide support and professional development for 
teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
integrated ELD.       

ACTUAL
Continued to provide support and professional development 
for teachers and principals toward full implementation of 
Integrated ELD.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness     

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
No Additional Cost - Educator Effectiveness    

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English learners 
at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their acquisition 
of English toward reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as long-term English learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate their 
acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as long-term English learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.       

ACTUAL
Provide parents of English learners support and resources in 
order for them to assist their children with homework.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional cost   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

ACTUAL
Provided adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $10,418 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $10,489

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.         

ACTUAL
Provided instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.  

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 25 of 89

Expenditures
BUDGETED
MGMT 4203 0000 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $4,664 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
MGMT 4203 0000 0000: Unrestricted Supplemental $4,691

MGMT 4203 0000 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0 MGMT 4203 0000 0000: Unrestricted LCFF $0

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Integrated ELD and support for ELs in the classroom was a district focus at the beginning of the school 
year, with schools continuing this work based on the numbers and needs of English learners at their sites. 
Our largest-scale action this year was examining, piloting, and adopting a new ELA/ELD program to better 
support Integrated and Designated ELD in the classroom.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Based on our actual outcomes, our actions and services for English learners in the past two years have 
been effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There was a material difference in what was budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 1 (Pilot new 
designated ELD programs and adopt for the 2017-18 school year). The District spent $28,308 more than 
expected (130.12% more). The additional expenses was charged against this account for additional 
support required in this effort by the District's EL Coordinator. There was a material difference in what was 
budgeted and the actual expenditures for Action 6 (Provide adult English classes for parents who are 
English learners). The District spent $6,307 less than expected (85.4%). This was due to not being fully 
staffed in the position of English learner Assistants. Therefore, we did not utilize what was budgeted. We 
did end the year fully staffed and are expected to be so at the beginning of the 2017-18 school year.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Analysis: The District met three of its four annual measurable outcomes for the 2016-17 LCAP for this goal. 
English learners are acquiring English to the level as expected by the State. However, we know we have 
pockets of English learners that are not making annual progress and improved outcomes for these 
students are needed.

Change: The implementation of the new K-6 ELA/ELD program next year will be a big change and will 
require an examination of the role of our EL Assistants. Extensive professional development for the new 
program will be required for certificated, classified, and administrative staff.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 26 of 89

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

Introduction

The Whited Charter School is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and understand this is an integral part in developing an effective strategic plan.  As such, WCS 
used a variety of site and district-based meetings and events to involve and hear from our stakeholders.  These included a series of site-based meetings for each of our 
stakeholder groups led by our principals throughout the Annual Update, a series of site-based meetings, co-presented by the principals and the superintendent, to review the 
initial draft of the new LCAP, and a series of district-wide meetings with other stakeholder groups, such as employees (CTA, CSEA, non-represented), District English Learner 
Advisory Committee (DELAC), Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and students.
       

Whited School held a community session on November 3, 2016. Whited's ELAC met on November 30, 2016. These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by
the District LCAP Committee for site-based input. Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals. Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were
encouraged.
       

Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee met on March 10, 2016. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on March 15, 2016. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting
goals in 2015-16 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

District English Learner Advisory Council met on February 22, 2017. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable
outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

The District held eight community-wide LCAP input meetings on February 15, 2017 (Village), February 21, 2017 (Austin Creek), February 22, 2017 in Spanish (Madrone),
February 23, 2017 (RVCS-Matanzas), February 27, 2017 (Whited), March 2, 2017 (Binkley), March 6, 2017 (Madrone), and March 7, 2017 (Sequoia). The group reviewed
progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

The District met with our teachers' association, RVUTA, On February 14, 2017. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals,
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

The District met with our classified employees association, CSEA, On March 28, 2016. The group reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals,
measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years.
       

Governing Board met on April 11, 2017. Trustees reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 27 of 89

the next three years.
       

Governing Board met on May 9, 2017. Trustees held a Public Hearing on the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP. At the same meeting, there was a public hearing on the 2017-
18 Budget.
       

Governing Board met on June 13, 2017. Trustees approved the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-29 LCAP and 2017-18 Budget.       

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

Whited stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate Family Math nights and support their being continued
• Appreciate social-emotional programs to include Advocacy Programs, Kimochis, and Restorative Practices
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Incorporating student mediation process rather than detentions
• Expand play options for students during recess
• Provide parents more resources to support math instruction at home, such as a list of websites for students to access at home
• Expand parent education opportunities, especially on the topic of supporting students in core subjects such as math and language arts
• Develop an tangible partnership with parents to provide incentives for students to arrive at school on time and for good attendance
       

Administrative Council stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the focus the LCAP provides and how these goals align to site-based school plans
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Provide site leaders with training on using social media and in strategies to engage the parent community
• Focus the math goal on 6th grade, rather than 8th grade
All questions were answered at the meeting. The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Parent Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the progress the district has made in creating social-emotional programs and related services
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to support literacy, especially in the primary grades
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Strengthen parent education efforts, including creating web-based resources rather than just face-to-face presentations
All questions were answered at the meeting. The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Student's view counselors as an important resource for themselves individually and for others
• Appreciate restorative circles as a way to resolve problems and get to know more about one another
• Appreciated field trips and special school events that bring the community together and make school life more engaging

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 28 of 89

Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Students report having friends at school is a critical aspect of feeling connected and wanting to come to school each day. Students suggest schools develop strategies to
foster students getting to know others outside of their friendship groups.
• Suggest math instruction is highly differentiated so high achieving students are continually challenged, while students at other levels have meaningful instruction
All questions were answered at the meeting. The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

The District English Learner Advisory Council feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the goals in place to support learning for all students, especially EL students
• Appreciate the efforts of the district to strengthen both integrated and designated ELD instruction
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Development of additional strategies to improve communication with parents of EL students, such as the creation of video series to provide specific information on various
programs such as integrated and designated ELD, ELACs and DELAC, Summer ELD Academy, Latino Family Literacy
All questions were answered at the meetings. The DELAC did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

Community-wide LCAP stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• Appreciate the effort of the district to focus on the whole student, i.e., academic and social emotional programs and support
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• Build upon current parent education programs, especially to provide strategies for parents to assist their children with math
• Utilize social media more in communication from the district and from individual schools
• Provide additional options for parent to network with one another
All questions were answered at the various meetings.
       

RVUTA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• RVUTA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting. The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

CSEA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2016-17 goals included:
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district
Suggestions for the 2017-18 LCAP include:
• CSEA did not provide specific suggestions
All questions were answered at the meeting. The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded to in writing.
       

At the April 11, 2017 Regular meeting, Trustees reviewed the draft LCAP for the 20017-18 school year. Trustees appreciated the incorporation of the California Dashboard into the
document.
       

At the May 9, 2017 Regular meeting, The Governing Board provided an opportunity for community comment.       

At the June 13, 2017 Regular meeting, the Governing Board approved the 2017-18, 2018019, 2019-20 LCAP as presented.       

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 29 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic Supports).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student benefits when they are provided core instruction from highly qualified teachers, are provided standards 

aligned instructional materials, and are housed in facilities in good repair.  The Rincon Valley Union School District 
consistently provides every student with these Basic Supports and is committed to continue to do so.  

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured by 
an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1. Every student received all 
core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers as defined by 
the State of California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all 
teacher credentials.
2. Every student was provided 
standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject 
areas as supported by the State 
textbook adoption criteria as 
verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every student was housed in 
facilities that meet the State 
criteria for being in good repair 
as verified by annual FIT site 
inspections.

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

1. Every teacher providing core 
instruction is classified as highly 
qualified as defined by the State 
of California's Highly Qualified 
teacher criteria and measured 
by an audit of all teacher 
credentials.
2. Every student is provided core 
instructional materials that align 
to the California State adopted 
standards as supported by the 
State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional 
Materials Order Form submitted 
by each teacher.
3. Every school and learning 
facility operated by the District 
meets the State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 30 of 89

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.
       

4. Parents were provided 
multiple opportunities to 
participate in leadership groups 
including PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and District 
Advisory Committees, and 
ELAC/DELAC, that consult and 
advise individual schools and 
the District.

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.

4. Each school has full parent 
leadership participation on 
parent groups, site councils, and 
ELACS for schools with 50 or 
more English learners, as 
defined by each groups' bylaws.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 31 of 89

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.       

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

Ensure every student receives all core instruction from 
highly qualified teachers.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $12,978 Amount $14,000 Amount $15,000

       $12,978Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $12,978Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3)

Amount       $1,797,065 Amount $1,900,000 Amount $2,000,000

       $1,797,065Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $1,797,065Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and 
site staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 
0100, Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Maintain highly qualified teachers and site 
staff– salary and benefits (Mgmt 0100, 
Obj.  11-3) 

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
District staff salary and benefits  (MGMT 
5100, obj. 1-3)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 32 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.       

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

Ensure every student is provided with standards aligned 
instructional materials in all core subject areas.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 33 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.         

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

Ensure every student is housed in facilities that meet the 
State criteria for being in good repair.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Budget 
Reference 8150

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 34 of 89

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.          

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.   

Ensure each school has full parent leadership 
participation on parent groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English learners, as defined 
by each groups bylaws.   

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 35 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Every student in the Rincon Valley Union School District has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.  

As a core K-6 district, courses are provided through grade level classes.  In the charter middle school (grades 7-8), 
every student maintains a similar schedule, differing by elective choice.  Programs such as GATE, advanced coursework 
(grades 7-8), and special education are only offered to students who meet predefined criteria.

An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE population), 
English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE population), and Economically Disadvantaged students 
(33% of our total population, 14% of the GATE population).

An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for special education and related services 
revealed over representation of two subgroups of students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% of the 
special education population) and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of the total population, 44% of the special 
education population).  The examination also identified an under represented group: White (58% of our total population, 
43% of our special education population).

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

An examination of students who 
are identified as gifted revealed 
three subgroups are 
underrepresented based on the 
demographics of our district as a 
whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 11% of the 
GATE population), English 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

Participation of students in the 
District's GATE and special 
education programs mirror the 
demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English 
learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as 
measured by an annual audit of 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 36 of 89

the sub-group participation in 
each program.         

Learners (10% of our total 
population, 0% of the GATE 
population), and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
our total population, 14% of the 
GATE population).

An examination of students who 
have been identified as being 
eligible for special education and 
related services revealed over 
representation of two subgroups 
of students:  English Learners 
(10% of the total population, 
18% of the special education 
population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (33% of 
the total population, 44% of the 
special education population).  
The examination also identified 
an under represented group: 
White (58% of our total 
population, 43% of our special 
education population).

the sub-group participation in 
each program.  

the sub-group participation in 
each program.    

the sub-group participation in 
each program.   

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 37 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen the case study process for GATE 
identification by using non-traditional instruments (such 
as a parent interview rather than a written survey for 
English Learner parents) in conjunction with traditional 
instruments (such as the Raven Progressive Matrices).       

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

Refine the implementation of changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to unfairly identify 
students based on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or socio-economic 
background.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 38 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training for teachers and administrators 
in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of giftedness and 
how to report these observations in the case study 
process.       

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

Continue to provide ongoing training for teachers and 
administrators in the traits, attributes, and behaviors of 
giftedness and how to report these observations in the 
case study process.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 39 of 89

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing training to school sites on pre-referral 
interventions and to assessment teams on characteristics 
of students who are English Learners or who are 
identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  Training will 
focus on language differences and lack of experience 
characteristics as compared to characteristics of a 
disability.         

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.

Continue to provide ongoing training to school sites on 
pre-referral interventions and to assessment teams on 
characteristics of students who are English Learners or 
who are identified as Economically Disadvantaged.  
Training will focus on language differences and lack of 
experience characteristics as compared to characteristics 
of a disability.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 40 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.        

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Whited Charter School has demonstrated good attendance rates and low chronic absenteeism rates.  P-2 attendance is 

95.8%.   Whited Charter School also benefits from low suspension rates.   Student Climate Survey results indicate that 
78% of Whited students are often/always happy to be at that school and 75% report often/always feeling safe at school. 

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Maintain district-wide P-2 
attendance rate at 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce district-wide P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3. Maintain district-wide P-2 
charter middle school drop-out 
rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 

1.  The Whited School P-2 
attendance rate was 95.8% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2.  The Whited School  P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate was 
7.1% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3.  The Whited School  P-2 pupil 
suspension rate was 3.3% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.

1. Increase Whited School P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce Whited School P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
4.7% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3. Reduce Whited School P-2 
pupil suspension rate below 
2.0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.

1. Increase Whited School P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce Whited School P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
4.7% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3. Reduce Whited School P-2 
pupil suspension rate below 
2.0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.

1. Increase Whited School P-2 
attendance rate to 96% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
2. Reduce Whited School P-2 
chronic absenteeism rate to 
4.7% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.
3. Reduce Whited School P-2 
pupil suspension rate below 
2.0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, 
and special education students.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 41 of 89

and special education students 
as measured by CALPADS.
4. Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil 
suspension rate below 1.1% for 
all students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Maintain district-wide P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
6. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy at 
school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.
       

4.  The Whited School  P-2 pupil 
expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5.  The number of students who 
self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as 
measured by the Whited School 
local student climate survey was 
75% of students report 
"often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 78% of students 
reported being happy at school 
"often/always".

4. Maintain Whited School P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Whited School local student 
climate survey (75% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy 
at school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

4. Maintain Whited School P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Whited School local student 
climate survey (75% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy 
at school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

4. Maintain Whited School P-2 
pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include English 
learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special 
education students.
5. Increase the number of 
students who self-identify they 
attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by 
the Whited School local student 
climate survey (75% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% of 
students reported being happy 
at school "often/always".

As an elementary district, high 
school drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 42 of 89

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain counseling programs at each school.       Maintain counseling programs at each school. Maintain counseling programs at each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $48,597 Amount $50,000 Amount $51,000

       $48,597Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $48,597Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MNGMT 6150

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 43 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.       Maintain clerical attendance support for each school. Maintain clerical attendance support for each school.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $84,007 Amount $85,000 Amount $86,000

       $84,007Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source

       $84,007Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT OFFC

Budget 
Reference

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 44 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.          

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.   

Strengthen school site participation in Restorative 
Practices.   

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT MAAD

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 45 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation.        

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation.   

Strengthen recess activity programs to increase student 
participation.   

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Part of designated reserve

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 46 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.       

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote 
school to home/school collaboration such as Back to 
School Night, Open House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-based community events.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Budget 
Reference No additional costs

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 47 of 89

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.       

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

Continue district-wide efforts to implement culturally 
responsive teaching practices.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 48 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 4 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special 
attention to 3rd grade students.         

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for reading by 3rd grade is a key indicator of subsequent student success in English 

language arts.  Spring 2015 CAASPP results reveal that 59% of Whited 3rd grade students met or exceeded the 
standard for English language arts.  For 6th grade, the last year in the district for most students, 59% of all students met 
the grade level criteria.  For English learners, 22% of 3rd and 22% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For 
socio-economically disadvantaged students, 33% of 3rd and 50% 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 30%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
50%.
4. 60% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the District as 
Medium (8.2 pts. above Level 3) 
for our Status and Maintained 
(+0.2 pts.) for our Change. Our 
rubric color is Yellow. However, 
these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 40%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
60%.
4. 65% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
70%.
4. 70% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

1. Increase the percent of all 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
85%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learners 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for language arts to 
80%.
4. 75% of students will meet or 
exceed local benchmarks at 
each trimester.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 49 of 89

The Academic Performance 
Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, 
AP test participation, and EAP 
do not apply as the district does 
not serve high school students.
       

2016-17 LCAP year this update 
is intended to address.

Trimester 2 local benchmark 
(STAR Reading) data:

District-wide: 68% of all students 
met benchmark; 29% of English 
learners met benchmark; 53% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.
Third grade: 64% of all students 
met benchmark; 40% of English 
learners met benchmark; 57% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

Early literacy screening 
(DIBELS) data for K-1: 70% of 
all students ready for "core" 
instruction, 51% of English 
learners ready for "core 
instruction; 56% of economically 
disadvantaged students ready 
for "core" instruction.

Kindergarten Readiness 
(READY) data: 52% of all 
students entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go", 28% of English 
earners entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go"; (economically 
disadvantaged status was not 
tracked for this data.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 50 of 89

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).       

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

Maintain a systematic reading instructional program (K-3 
SIPPS).

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 51 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.        

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $65,045 Amount $66,000 Amount $67,000

       $65,045Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $65,045Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652)

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 52 of 89

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.       

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

Participate in the Sonoma County READY Program to 
measure school readiness of all Kindergarten students.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 53 of 89

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.       

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for primary grade 
students not on track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT 0650

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 54 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.       

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 55 of 89

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.       

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to train staff in 
effective integration of technology into ELA instruction.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 56 of 89

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children.        

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

Provide parent education that provides strategies for 
families to support reading skills, such as, decoding, 
fluency, and comprehension, for their children. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Budget 
Reference Included in Student Support Budget 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 57 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 5 Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 6th 
grade students (as a predictor of 8th grade student success).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Obtaining grade level expectations for math by 8th grade is a key indicator of student success in high school math 

courses.  Whited will monitor 6th grade student progress as a predictor to 8th grade success.  Spring 2015 CAASPP 
results reveal that 36% of Whited 6th grade students met or exceeded the standard for math.  For English learners, 0% 
of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 17% of 6th graders met 
or exceeded this standard.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 55%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 55%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4. Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

Spring 2017 CAASPP results 
are unavailable at the time the 
LCAP was adopted, therefore 
the districts progress in meeting 
the expected annual outcomes 
will be included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 2018-19 
LCAP.

Based on CAASPP results, the 
California School Dashboard 
report designates the District as 
Medium (-17.0 pts. above Level 
3) for our Status and Declined (-
1.3 pts.) for our Change. Our 
rubric color is Orange. However, 
these results are relevant to the 
2015-16 LCAP year, not the 

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 55%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 55%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
35%.
4. Establish a baseline for local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 
meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 70%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 70%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
50%.
4. Improve growth from the 
previous year for the local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

1. Increase the percent of all 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP 
standard for math to 85%.
2. Increase the percent of 
English learner 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard for math 
to 85%.
3. Increase the percent of socio-
economically disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP math to 
65%.
4. Improve growth from the 
previous year for the local 
benchmark assessments to 
ensure students are on track to 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 58 of 89

       2016-17 LCAP year this update 
is intended to address.

2016-17 Local Measures

We piloted a new local 
benchmark this year and our 
goal was to establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted proved 
difficult to manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could not be 
compared to Trimester 1 due to 
concerns about validity of scores 
in Trimester 1. If we set the 
benchmark at 70% correct for 
Trimester 2: District-wide: 37% 
of all students met benchmark; 
12% of English learners met 
benchmark; 22% of 
economically disadvantaged 
students met benchmark.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

meet 6th grade CAASPP 
standard.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 59 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets.        

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets. 

Strengthen intervention programs for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark targets. 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Budget 
Reference No additional cost

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] Special Education

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 60 of 89

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.       

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

Provide a summer school program for intermediate grade 
students not on track to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math 
targets.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Budget 
Reference No additional cost - Included in Goal 4 #2

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Continue to provide support and professional 
development for teachers and principals towards full 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 61 of 89

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.       

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

alignment of instruction to the California State Math 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Budget 
Reference No additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness Funds

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.          

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.   

Continue to support teachers and principals in the 
effective use of the local math benchmark assessment.   

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 62 of 89

Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.       

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

Provide parent education that strengthens parent 
understanding of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the California State 
standards.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Budget 
Reference No additional costs, cost embedded in 

other budgetary areas

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 63 of 89

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 6 Every English learner is on target and within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need The California Dashboard results show that the percentage of English learners, plus RFEP students, demonstrating at 

least one level of growth on the 2015 CELDT from the 2014 CELDT was 69.4%. This represents a status of Medium. 
These results were a Decline from the previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of English learners demonstrated at least one level 
of growth on the CELDT. The percent of English learners reclassified at the October census for the 2016-17 school year 
was 17.2%. This is a four year high and an increase of 4.8% over the prior year.

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. The California School 
Dashboard will show a Status of 
High, with 75% or more of 
English learners demonstrating 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT, representing an 
Increase towards Change.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).
       

1. 61% of English learners 
district-wide increased at least 
one CELDT level.
2. 35.2% of district-wide English 
learners who have been in US 
schools for 5 years or less 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 
5) on CELDT.
3. 58.4% of district-wide English 
learners who have been in US 
schools for more than 5 years 
reached proficiency (Level 4 or 
5) on CELDT.
4. 17.2% of English learners 
district wide were reclassified as 
Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) 
in the census-to-census count.

1. The California School 
Dashboard will show a Status of 
High, with 75% or more of 
English learners demonstrating 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT, representing an 
Increase towards Change.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1. The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indictors will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC. Therefore, the District is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

1. The California School 
Dashboard English learner 
indictors will be frozen for at 
least two years due to the 
transition from the CELDT to the 
ELPAC. Therefore, the District is 
only including reclassification 
rates as the sole indicator for 
these two years.
2. 15% of English learners 
district wide will be reclassified 
as Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP).

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 64 of 89

The California Dashboard 
results show the percentage of 
English learners, plus RFEP 
students, demonstrating at least 
one level of growth on the 2015 
CELDT from the 2014 CELDT 
was 69.4%. This represents a 
status of Medium. These results 
were a Decline from the 
previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of 
English learners demonstrated 
at least one level of growth on 
the CELDT.

The percent of English learners 
reclassified at the October 
census for the 2016-17 school 
year was 17.2%. This is a four 
year high and an increase of 
4.8% over the prior year.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 65 of 89

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Implement the selected designated ELD program.            Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

Strengthen designated ELD programs and deepen 
Implementation.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 66 of 89

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.        

Maintain support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

Maintain support and professional development for 
teachers and principals with full implementation of 
integrated ELD.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Budget 
Reference No Additional Cost - Educator 

Effectiveness 

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 67 of 89

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.       

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

Provide a summer ELD academy that targets English 
learners at the intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward reclassification thereby 
preventing their classification as a long term English 
learner.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $0 Amount $0 Amount $0

       $0Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $0Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
MGMT ELDA

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 68 of 89

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.       

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

Provide parents of English learners support and 
resources in order for them to assist their children with 
homework.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Budget 
Reference Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Budget 
Reference Included in MGMT 0652 - no additional 

cost

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.       

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

Provide adult English classes for parents who are English 
learners.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 69 of 89

Amount       $10,498 Amount $11,500 Amount $12,500

       $10,498Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

       $10,498Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.         

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.  

Provide instructional support to EL students with EL 
Assistants.  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $4,876 Amount $5,200 Amount $5,700

       $4,876Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 70 of 89

       $4,876Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 71 of 89

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $80,419 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: 5.50%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or 
quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
WCS does not receive Concentration funds.  Supplemental funds for the 2017-18 school year will be used for our Multi Tiered System of Support (MSTS) 
programs.  The components of our MTSS program funded with supplemental funding include a range of intervention support, an ELD Summer Academy, to 
support a district-wide ELD coordinator, support the district's restorative practices program, fund a summer learning program, fund a portion of our family liaisons, 
and fund a portion of our EL assistants.   (Averill & Rinaldi, 2011; California Department of Education, 2015)

Intervention Programs:  These resources are principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction to students who are not 
meeting grade level CAASPP and/or local assessment targets.  While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups 
comprise the majority of students benefiting from the services.  Intervention services are provided within an extensive MTSS system that includes Student 
Support Coordinators, classroom teachers, and intervention teachers.  Student Support Coordinators provide direct instruction to students, monitor the progress 
of all students being served with support services and meet with grade level teams and principals to review the progress of groups and individuals.  English 
language arts and mathematics are the targeted subjects for identifying and supporting students.  Supplemental funds are used for Student Support Coordinator 
and intervention teachers' salaries and benefits.  (California Department of Education, 2015)

Cost of the Intervention Programs charged to Supplemental Funds:  $65,045, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Codes 0652)

Summer ELD Academy:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction and monitoring of student progress 
within our overall system of supports.  Students participating in the Summer ELD Academy are English learners at the Intermediate level as measured by 
CELDT.  The goal of this service is to accelerate English language acquisition so that English learners do not become long term ELs.  Summer EL Academy 
classroom teachers provide the instruction.  Supplemental funds are used for Summer ELD Academy classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and 
benefits and instructional materials. (Ward-Singer, 2007; California Department of Education, ELD Standards Appendix C, 2015)

Cost of the Summer ELD Academy charged to Supplemental Funds:  See DIstrict Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management Code ELDA)

EL Coordinator:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by coordinating and monitoring of EL student progress within our overall 
system of supports. Supplemental funds are used for EL Coordinator salary and benefits. (Schmoker, 2006)

Cost of the EL Coordinator charged to Supplemental Funds:  See DIstrict Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 10000-3000- (Management Code ELDC)

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Page 72 of 89

Restorative Practices:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used to support the training for certificated and classified personnel in the use of the Restorative Practices protocols.  This effort will result in district-wide 
implementation of this practice.  (International Institute for Restorative Practices, 2007)

Cost of expanding Restorative Practices charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code MAAD)

Summer Learning:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  While these services are not 
strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are 
used for Summer Learning classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Smith, ASCD, 2012)

Cost of the Summer Learning program charged to Supplemental Funds:  See District Budget, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 0650)

Family Liaison:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing school-to-home related services.  While these services are 
not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students benefiting from the services.  Family Liaisons provide 
an important link between our schools and families.  These individuals provide support for families across a wide range of school attendance, social/emotional 
needs, and connecting to community-wide resources.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Breiseth, Robertson & 
Lafond, 2015)

Cost of the Family Liaisons charged to Supplemental Funds:  $10,498, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3999 (Management Code 4201)

EL Assistants:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing instructional services.  EL Assistants provide direction 
instructional support to our EL students.  Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Robertson & Ford, 2013)

Cost of the EL Assistants charged to Supplemental Funds:  $4,876, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3999 (Management Code 4203)

The District is increasing services by directing all new Supplemental funds to services that are principally directed towards our unduplicated students.  All new 
and ongoing Supplemental funding is directed towards our Multi Tiered System of Support services.  Detailed information concerning the use of these funds are 
included in Section 3:A.  -------
-------

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service
Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Funding Sources 1,976,715.00 1,961,753.00 2,023,066.00 2,131,700.00 2,237,200.00 6,391,966.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 86,000.00 86,000.00
LCFF 1,868,684.00 1,847,816.00 1,894,050.00 1,999,000.00 2,015,000.00 5,908,050.00
Supplemental 108,031.00 113,937.00 129,016.00 132,700.00 136,200.00 397,916.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types 1,976,715.00 1,961,753.00 2,023,066.00 2,131,700.00 2,237,200.00 6,391,966.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 86,000.00 86,000.00
0000: Unrestricted 1,976,715.00 1,961,753.00 2,023,066.00 2,131,700.00 2,151,200.00 6,305,966.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 1,976,715.00 1,961,753.00 2,023,066.00 2,131,700.00 2,237,200.00 6,391,966.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 86,000.00 86,000.00
LCFF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0000: Unrestricted LCFF 1,868,684.00 1,847,816.00 1,894,050.00 1,999,000.00 2,015,000.00 5,908,050.00
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 108,031.00 113,937.00 129,016.00 132,700.00 136,200.00 397,916.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
Goal 1 1,810,043.00 1,914,000.00 2,015,000.00 5,739,043.00

Goal 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 3 132,604.00 135,000.00 137,000.00 404,604.00

Goal 4 65,045.00 66,000.00 67,000.00 198,045.00

Goal 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 6 15,374.00 16,700.00 18,200.00 50,274.00

Goal 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Goal 10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

Whited Charter School 2017-18, 2018-19, 201-20 LCAP, Approved by the Govenring Board June 13, 2017



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 11.8 

Subject:  Board Policy Updates – CSBA July 2017 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: The District contracts with the California School Boards Association (CSBA) for 
Policy services.  CSBA, through their GAMUT portal, provides four updates per 
year of recommended changes to Board Policy and Administrative Regulations.  
The policies and administrative regulations this month represent the July 2017 
CSBA update.  Changes to these documents reflect new laws and regulations and 
ensures the district is compliant with these new requirements.  

 
Behind this cover sheet is CSBA’s summary of the changes included in each 
policy and administrative regulation.  This will allow trustees to easily identify the 
changes that are included.  The attached documents, with any recommended 
changes, will return in September for Board adoption. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: CSBA Update Guidesheet, July 2017 
 Recommended Board Policy and Administrative Regulations 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only. 
 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
July 2017 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts should review the sample materials 
and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
BP/AR 0000 - Vision 
(BP revised; AR deleted) 

Policy updated to address data sources for vision setting, set expectations that the district's vision will drive 
all board decisions and district operations, and align the process of reviewing the district's vision with the 
process for reviewing and updating the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). Regulation deleted and 
key concepts incorporated into the BP. 

 
BP 0100 - Philosophy 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to strongly encourage boards to engage in thoughtful discussions and develop their own 
statements of district philosophy. Sample statements expanded to add items related to nondiscrimination, the 
influence of teachers and educational support staff on student achievement, the importance of professional 
development for staff and the board, the board's responsibility to engage in advocacy, and the link between 
financial stability and attainment of district goals.  

 
E 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight 
(E revised) 

Exhibit updated to add requirements for charter schools to (1) adopt a suicide prevention policy; (2) provide 
student athletes and their parents/guardians with information on sudden cardiac arrest, pursuant to NEW 
LAW (AB 1639, 2016); (3) submit verification of students' high school graduation to the Cal Grant program; 
(4) develop a transportation safety plan that includes procedures to ensure that a student is not left unattended 
on a bus, pursuant to NEW LAW (SB 1072, 2016); (5) comply with specified requirements if the charter 
school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available in order to provide emergency medical aid to persons 
suffering from an opioid overdose, pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 1748, 2016); and (6) post specified 
information on the school's web site related to the prohibition against discrimination under Title IX.  Exhibit 
also reflects the repeal of state regulation containing the LCAP template. 

 
BP 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to provide that the responsibility for determining the criteria, schedule, method(s), and 
instrument(s) for superintendent evaluation rests with the board, although input may be sought from the 
superintendent. Updated policy clarifies that, although the evaluation may be discussed in closed session, the 
law does not permit discussion or action on any proposed change in compensation during closed session, 
with limited exceptions. Policy also reflects court decision holding that personal performance goals are not 
subject to disclosure to the public unless they are specifically stated in the employment contract. 

 
AR 4112.2 - Certification 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to (1) add verification of temporary certificates for employees whose credential 
applications are being processed by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing; (2) add section reflecting 
requirements for the Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave, as added by NEW STATE REGULATIONS 
(Register 2016, No. 34); and (3) add authorization for the holder of the Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave, 
Provisional Internship Permit, or Short-Term Staff Permit to provide substitute teaching services as specified. 

 
 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
July 2017 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 
BP/AR 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61 - Employment References 
(BP deleted; AR revised) 

Policy deleted and key concepts incorporated into regulation. Regulation also updated to more directly reflect 
state law regarding the authority of employers to communicate certain information about current or former 
employees to prospective employers. 

 
BP/E 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
(BP/E revised) 

Policy and exhibit updated to delete material defining the "sufficiency" of instructional materials as meaning 
that students enrolled in the same course have identical materials from the same adoption cycle, and to delete 
optional material reflecting the authorization to purchase the newest adopted materials for schools in deciles 
1-3 of the Academic Performance Index, as those laws have repealed on their own terms.  Updated policy 
also reflects the requirement to address the sufficiency of instructional materials in the district's LCAP and 
reflects NEW LAW (AB 575, 2016) which provides that the State Board of Education may adopt 
instructional materials for grades K-8 at least once, but not more than twice, every eight years. 

 
BP 7212 - Mello-Roos Districts 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1666, 2016) which requires an agency that has formed a 
community facilities district (CFD) to post specified financial reports on its web site. Policy also expanded 
to include additional requirements regarding the submission of a petition to form a CFD, timelines for 
proceedings to form a CFD, consistency with the district's debt management policy, attendance priority for 
students residing within the CFD, and procedures for levying special taxes or incurring bonded indebtedness. 

 
BB 9121 - President 
(BB revised) 

Bylaw updated to reorganize and revise the duties of the board president for consistency with information 
provided in CSBA's Board President's Workshop, and to add an optional component on providing training 
for the president to enhance his/her leadership skills. 

 
BB 9220 - Governing Board Elections 
(BB revised) 

Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 415, 2015) which, effective January 1, 2018, requires a district to 
move the date of its board election to be concurrent with a statewide election whenever holding an election 
on a nonconcurrent date has resulted in a significant decrease in voter turnout, as defined. Bylaw encourages 
districts to review recent voter turnout and, if necessary, adopt a plan before the January 1, 2018 deadline in 
order to delay consolidation until November 8, 2022. Bylaw also reflects NEW LAWS which require public 
hearings before and after drawing maps of proposed trustee areas (AB 350, 2016), authorize districts to permit 
board candidates to submit candidate statements for electronic distribution (AB 2010, 2016), allow districts 
to establish a dedicated fund to make public funds available to persons seeking elective office under specified 
conditions (SB 1107, 2016), and require prospective plaintiffs who allege that the election method violates 
the California Voting Rights Act to notify the district before filing a complaint (AB 350, 2016). 
 

BB 9230 - Orientation 
(BB revised) 

Bylaw updated to delete section on "Board Candidate Orientation" and move that material to BB 9220 - 
Governing Board Elections. Bylaw also clarifies that an orientation meeting must be conducted in open 
session if a majority of the members of the board will be discussing district business, provides examples of 
topics and materials to be addressed in the orientation, and provides information about CSBA trainings for 
new and first-term board members. 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
July 2017 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 
BB 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation 
(BB revised) 

Bylaw updated for consistency with CSBA's online board self-evaluation tool and facilitator services.  Bylaw 
also links board self-evaluation to the identification of strategies for strengthening board performance, 
including board trainings. 

 
 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0000(a) 
 
VISION 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that a clearly stated purpose and direction for the district 
provide the foundation for continuous improvement and accountability. The Board shall 
adopt a long-range vision for district programs and activities that focuses on the achievement 
and well-being of all students and reflects the importance of preparing students for the future 
academically, professionally, and personally. The vision shall recognize the unique role of 
students, parents/guardians, staff, and community partners in contributing to a high-quality 
education for all students. The district's vision may be incorporated into its mission or 
purpose statement, philosophy or motto, long-term goals, short-term objectives, and 
comprehensive plans such as the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). 
 
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall recommend an appropriate process, with clearly 
defined procedures, timelines, and responsibilities, for establishing, reviewing, and updating 
the district's vision statements. This process shall include a review of relevant district 
documents and data including, but not limited to, information about student demographics, 
student achievement, current programs, and emerging educational issues. The process shall 
incorporate an analysis and identification of district strengths and areas in which growth is 
needed. Input shall be solicited from parents/guardians, students, staff, and community 
members through methods such as surveys, focus groups, advisory committees, and/or public 
meetings and forums. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
The Board shall review the district's vision statements annually, in conjunction with the 
update to the LCAP, to ensure consistency among all documents that set direction for the 
district. Following these reviews, the Board may revise or reaffirm the direction it has 
established for the district. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's vision to staff, 
parents/guardians, and the community. 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
 
Board decisions regarding curriculum, policies, the budget, collective bargaining agreements, 
and other district operations shall be aligned with the district's vision. In addition, the 
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that staff's implementation of district programs and 
activities supports attainment of the district's vision. 
 



 BP 0000(b) 
 
 
VISION  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding district progress 
toward the vision. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The School Board Role in Creating the Conditions for Student Achievement: A Review of the Research, 
May 2017 
Governing to Achieve: A Synthesis of Research on School Governance to Support Student 
Achievement, August 7, 2014 
Defining Governance, Issue 4: Governance Decisions, Governance Brief, June 2014 
Defining Governance, Issue 3: Governance Practices, Governance Brief, April 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0100(a) 
 
PHILOSOPHY 
 
 
In order to establish and support a guiding vision for the district, the Governing Board shall 
develop, articulate, and regularly review an overarching set of fundamental principles which 
describe the district's core beliefs, values, and tenets. The Board and district staff shall 
incorporate these principles into all programs, activities, and operations of the district. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
It is the philosophy of the district that: 
 
1. All students can learn and succeed. 
 
2. Every student should have an opportunity to receive a quality education regardless of 

his/her social, cultural, or economic background. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
3. Every student in the district has a right to be free from discrimination, harassment, 

intimidation, and bullying, as prohibited by law or district policy. 
 
4. The future of our nation and community depends on students possessing the skills to 

be lifelong learners, collaborative and creative problem solvers, and effective, 
contributing members of a global and technologically advanced society. 

 
5. Highly skilled and dedicated teachers and educational support staff have the capacity 

to guide students toward individual achievement and growth, and have a direct and 
powerful influence on student learning and life experiences. 

 
6. A safe, nurturing environment and positive school climate are necessary for learning, 

academic achievement, and student development. 
 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
 
7. Parents/guardians have a right and an obligation to be engaged in their child's 

education and to be involved in the intellectual, physical, emotional, and social 
development and well-being of their child. 

 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
8. The needs of the whole child must be addressed, as the ability of children to learn is 

affected by social, health, and economic conditions and other factors outside the 
classroom. 



 BP 0100(b) 
 
 
PHILOSOPHY  (continued) 
 
 
9. Early identification of learning and behavioral difficulties and timely and appropriate 

support and intervention contribute to student success. 
 
10. Students and staff are encouraged and motivated by high expectations and recognition 

for their accomplishments. 
 
11. School improvement is a dynamic process requiring flexibility and innovation to meet 

the needs of students in a changing world. 
 
12. Professional development for the Board and district staff is essential for the growth 

and success of the district and its students. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
13. The diversity of the student body and school staff enriches the learning experience, 

promotes cultural awareness and acceptance, and serves as a model for citizenship in 
a global society. 

 
14. A common set of norms and protocols is crucial to effective governance. 
 
15. Communication, trust, respect, collaboration, and teamwork strengthen the 

relationship among Board members and between the Board and Superintendent, and 
contribute to the effectiveness of the governance team. 

 
16. The community and district are inextricably connected partners, wherein the 

community's engagement in issues that impact the schools enhances the district's 
programs and student learning. 

 
(cf. 1000 - Concepts and Roles) 
 
17. Two-way communication with all stakeholders is essential for establishing continuity, 

support, and shared goals both within the district and with the surrounding 
community. 

 
18. The Board has a responsibility to advocate on behalf all students, keep current on 

legislative issues affecting education, and build positive relationships with local, 
state, and federal representatives. 

 
19. A fiscally sound budget which is reflective of the district's vision is imperative to the 

financial stability of the district and to the attainment of its goals. 
 



 BP 0100(c) 
 
 
PHILOSOPHY  (continued) 
 
 
20. Responsibility for district programs and operations is shared by the entire educational 

community, with ultimate accountability resting with the Board as the basic 
embodiment of representative government. 

 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
51002  Local development of programs based on stated philosophy and goals 
51019  Definition of philosophy 
51100-51101  Parental involvement 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The School Board Role in Creating the Conditions for Student Achievement: A Review of the Research, 
May 2017 
Governing to Achieve: A Synthesis of Research on School Governance to Support Student 
Achievement, August 7, 2014 
Defining Governance, Issue 2: Governing Commitments, Governance Brief, February 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
National School Climate Center: http://schoolclimate.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans E 0420.41(a) 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT 
 
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS 
 
Charter schools shall be subject to the terms of their charters, any memorandum of 
understanding with their chartering authority, and other legal requirements that are expressly 
applicable to charter schools, including, but not limited to, requirements that each charter 
school: 
 
1. Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all 

other operations  (Education Code 47605) 
 
2. Not discriminate against any student on the basis of the characteristics listed in 

Education Code 220  (Education Code 47605) 
 
3. Not charge tuition  (Education Code 47605) 
 
4. Not charge student fees for any activity that is an integral component of the 

educational program, except as authorized by those Education Code provisions that 
explicitly apply to charter schools 

 
5. Adhere to all laws establishing the minimum age for public school attendance 

(Education Code 47610) 
 
6. Serve students who are California residents and who, if over 19 years of age, are 

continuously enrolled in a public school and making "satisfactory progress" toward a 
high school diploma as defined in 5 CCR 11965  (Education Code 47612) 

 
7. Serve students with disabilities in the same manner as such students are served in 

other public schools  (Education Code 47646, 56145) 
 
8. Admit all students who wish to attend the school, according to the following criteria 

and procedures: 
 
a. Admission to the charter school shall not be determined according to the 

student's place of residence, or that of his/her parents/guardians, within the 
state, except that any existing public school converting partially or entirely to 
a charter school shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission preference 
to students who reside within the school's former attendance area.  (Education 
Code 47605) 
 
If a charter school will be physically located in a public elementary school 
attendance area in which 50 percent or more of the student enrollment is 
eligible for free or reduced-price meals, it may also establish an admission  
 
 



 E 0420.41(b) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 

 
preference for students who are currently enrolled in the public elementary 
school and for students who reside in the public school attendance area.  
(Education Code 47605.3) 

 
b. If the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the 

school's capacity, attendance, except for existing students of the charter 
school, shall be determined by a public random drawing. Preference shall be 
extended to students currently attending the charter school and students who 
reside in the district, except as provided for in Education Code 47614.5.  
(Education Code 47605) 

 
c. Other admission preferences may be permitted by the chartering district on an 

individual school basis consistent with law.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
9. Immediately enroll a homeless student, except where such enrollment would conflict 

with Education Code 47605(d)  (Education Code 48850; 42 USC 11431-11435) 
 
10. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding the 

enrollment and placement of foster youth  (Education Code 48853.5, 48859) 
 
11. If the school offers a kindergarten program:  (Education Code 48000) 

 
a. Offer a transitional kindergarten (TK) program to students whose fifth 

birthday is from September 2 through December 2 
 
b. Ensure that any credentialed teacher first assigned to teach a TK class after 

July 1, 2015 meets the qualifications specified in Education Code 48000 by 
August 1, 2020 

 
12. Require its teachers to hold a certificate, permit, or other document issued by the 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) equivalent to that which a teacher in 
other public schools would be required to hold  (Education Code 47605) 

 
13. Provide annual training on child abuse and neglect reporting requirements to 

employees and persons working on the school's behalf who are mandated reporters, 
within the first six weeks of each school year or within six weeks of employment  
(Education Code 44691) 

 
14. Not hire any person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony except as 

otherwise provided by law, and, if the school contracts with an entity for specified 
services, verify that any employee of that entity who will have contact with students 
has had a criminal background check  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1, 45125.1) 

 



 E 0420.41(c) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
15. Report to the CTC any change in a certificated employee's employment status 

(dismissal, nonreelection, resignation, suspension, unpaid administrative leave for 
more than 10 days, retirement, or other decision not to employ or reemploy) as a 
result of an allegation of misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending 
(Education Code 44030.5) 

 
16. Meet the requirements of Education Code 47611 regarding the State Teachers' 

Retirement System  (Education Code 47610) 
 
17. Meet the requirements of Government Code 3540-3549.3 related to collective 

bargaining in public education employment  (Education Code 47611.5) 
 
18. If the school serves students in grades 7-12, adopt a policy on suicide prevention, 

intervention, and postvention with specified components (Education Code 215) 
 
19. If the school serves students in grade 9, adopt a fair, objective, and transparent 

mathematics placement policy with specified components (Education Code 51224.7) 
 
20. Meet all statewide standards and conduct any statewide assessments applicable to 

noncharter public schools  (Education Code 47605, 47612.5, 60605, 60850-60859) 
 
21. Until July 31, 2018, grant a high school diploma to any student who completed grade 

12 in the 2003-04 school year or a subsequent school year and who has met all 
applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit 
examination  (Education Code 60851.6) 

 
22. Offer at least the number of instructional minutes required by law for the grade levels 

provided by the charter school  (Education Code 47612.5) 
 
23. If the school provides independent study, meet the requirements of Education Code 

51745-51749.3, except that the school may be allowed to offer courses required for 
graduation solely through independent study as an exception to Education Code 
51745(e)  (Education Code 47612.5, 51747.3; 5 CCR 11705) 

 
24. Identify and report to the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) any portion of its 

average daily attendance that is generated through nonclassroom-based instruction, 
including, but not limited to, independent study, home study, work study, and 
distance and computer-based education  (Education Code 47612.5, 47634.2; 5 CCR 
11963.2) 

 
25. If the school offers competitive athletics, annually post on the school's web site or on 

the web site of the charter operator the total enrollment of the school classified by  
 



 E 0420.41(d) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
 gender, the number of students who participate in competitive athletics classified by 

gender, and the number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by 
competition level  (Education Code 221.9) 

 
26. If the school offers an athletic program, annually provide information sheets about 

concussions/head injuries and sudden cardiac arrest to athletes and their 
parents/guardians, which must be signed and returned to the school before the athlete 
initiates practice or competition. In the event that an athlete is suspected of sustaining 
a concussion or head injury, passes out, or faints during or immediately after 
participation in an athletic activity, he/she shall be immediately removed from the 
activity for the remainder of the day and shall not be permitted to return to the activity 
until he/she is evaluated by a licensed health care provider and receives written 
clearance to do so.  (Education Code 33479-33479.5, 49475) 

 
27. On a regular basis, consult with parents/guardians and teachers regarding the school's 

educational programs  (Education Code 47605) 
 
28. Provide students the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press including, 

but not limited to, the use of bulletin boards; the distribution of printed materials or 
petitions; the wearing of buttons, badges, and other insignia; and the right of 
expression in official publications  (Education Code 48907, 48950) 

 
29. Maintain written contemporaneous records that document all student attendance and 

make these records available for audit and inspection  (Education Code 47612.5) 
 
30. If a student subject to compulsory full-time education is expelled or leaves the charter 

school without graduating or completing the school year for any reason, notify the 
Superintendent of the school district of the student's last known address within 30 
days and, upon request, provide that district with a copy of the student's cumulative 
record, including a transcript of grades or report card, and health information 
(Education Code 47605) 

 
31. If the school serves high school students, submit to the Student Aid Commission, for 

use in the Cal Grant program, the grade point average (GPA) of all students in grade 
12 and verification of high school graduation or its equivalent for students who 
graduated in the prior academic year. However, such information shall not be 
submitted when students opt out or are permitted by the rules of the Student Aid 
Commission to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA.  (Education Code 69432.9, 
69432.92) 

 
32. Develop a transportation safety plan that includes procedures to ensure that a student 

is not left unattended on a school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care  
 



 E 0420.41(e) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
 motor vehicle and procedures and standards for designating an adult chaperone, other 

than the driver, to accompany students on a school activity bus (Education Code 
39831.3) 

 
33. Comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and enforced by the 

local building enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the charter 
school is located, unless the charter school facility meets either of the following 
conditions:  (Education Code 47610, 47610.5) 

 
a. The facility complies with the Field Act pursuant to Education Code 17280-

17317 and 17365-17374. 
 
b. The facility is exclusively owned or controlled by an entity that is not subject 

to the California Building Standards Code, including, but not limited to, the 
federal government. 

 
34. Provide reasonable accommodations on campus to a lactating student to express 

breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding  
(Education Code 222) 

 
35. Ensure the availability and proper use of emergency epinephrine auto-injectors by:  

(Education Code 49414) 
 
a. Providing school nurses or other voluntary, trained personnel with at least one 

regular and one junior device for elementary schools and, for secondary 
schools, one regular device if there are no students who require a junior device 

 
b. Distributing a notice at least once per school year to all staff requesting 

volunteers and describing the training that volunteers will receive 
 
c. Providing defense and indemnification to volunteers for any and all civil 

liability from such administration 
 
36. If the school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available to persons suffering, or 

reasonably believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose, comply with the 
requirements of Education Code 49414.3, including, but not limited to, providing 
training to personnel who volunteer to administer the opioid antagonist 

 
37. Promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries from the district, the county office of 

education, or the SPI, including, but not limited to, inquiries regarding the school's 
financial records  (Education Code 47604.3) 

 
 



 E 0420.41(f) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
38. Annually prepare and submit financial reports to the district Governing Board and the 

County Superintendent of Schools in accordance with the following reporting cycle: 
 
a. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year. For a charter school 

in its first year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter 
petition pursuant to Education Code 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement.  
(Education Code 47604.33) 

 
b. By July 1 each year, an update of the school's goals and the actions to achieve 

those goals as identified in the charter, developed using the local control and 
accountability plan template adopted by the State Board of Education. This 
report shall include a review of the progress toward the goals, an assessment 
of the effectiveness of the specific actions toward achieving the goals, a 
description of changes the school will make to the specific actions as a result 
of the review and assessment, and a listing and description of expenditures for 
the fiscal year implementing the specific actions.  (Education Code 47604.33, 
47606.5, 52064) 

 
 When conducting this review, the governing body of the school may consider 

qualitative information including, but not limited to, findings that result from 
any school quality reviews conducted pursuant to Education Code 52052 or 
any other reviews. To the extent practicable, data shall be reported in a 
manner consistent with how information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. The update shall be developed in consultation with teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents/guardians and 
students.  (Education Code 47606.5) 

 
c. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year 

reflecting changes through October 31.  (Education Code 47604.33) 
 
d. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year 

reflecting changes through January 31.  (Education Code 47604.33) 
 
e. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year.  The report 

submitted to the Board shall include an annual statement of all the charter 
school's receipts and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.  (Education 
Code 42100, 47604.33) 

 
f. By December 15, a copy of the charter school's annual, independent financial 

audit report for the preceding fiscal year, unless the charter school's audit is 
encompassed in the district's audit. The audit report shall also be submitted to 
the State Controller and the California Department of Education.  (Education 
Code 47605) 



 E 0420.41(g) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
39. Post specified information related to the prohibition against discrimination under Title 

IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 in a prominent and conspicuous location 
on the school web site or on the web site of the charter operator (Education Code 
221.61) 

 
40. If a direct-funded charter school, adopt and implement uniform complaint procedures 

to resolve complaints of unlawful discrimination or alleged violation of a state or 
federal law or regulation governing educational programs, in accordance with 5 CCR 
4600-4670  (5 CCR 4600) 

 
41. Annually adopt a school accountability report card (Education Code 47612; 

California Constitution, Article 16, Section 8.5) 
 
In addition, charter schools shall comply with the state and federal constitutions, applicable 
federal laws, and state laws that apply to governmental agencies in general, such as the 
Brown Act requirements in Government Code 54950-54963 and the conflict of interest laws 
in Government Code 1090-1099 and 87100-91014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
version: July 2017 



Administration BP 2140(a) 
 
EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to establish an evaluation system that 
enables a fair assessment of the Superintendent's effectiveness in leading the district toward 
established goals, serves to support his/her continued growth in leadership and management 
skills, and provides a basis for Board decisions regarding contract extension and 
compensation. The Board shall annually conduct a formal evaluation of the Superintendent's 
performance and may provide additional opportunities throughout the year to review the 
Superintendent's progress toward meeting established goals. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
The Board shall determine, with the Superintendent's input, the criteria, schedule, method(s), 
and instrument(s) to be used for the Superintendent's evaluation. Evaluation criteria shall 
include, but are not limited to, district goals and success indicators; educational, 
management, and community leadership skills; and the Superintendent's professional 
relationship with the Board. 
 
(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 
(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards) 
 
Prior to the evaluation, the Superintendent shall provide to the Board for its review a report 
of progress toward district goals, the Superintendent's self-appraisal of accomplishments and 
performance, and a statement of actions taken to address any Board recommendations from 
the previous evaluation. 
 
Each Board member shall independently evaluate the Superintendent's performance based 
upon the evaluation criteria, after which the Board shall produce a single document that 
integrates the individual evaluations and represents the consensus of the Board. 
 
(cf. 9121 - President) 
 
The evaluation shall provide commendations in areas of strength and achievement and 
recommendations for improving effectiveness in any areas of need, concern, or 
unsatisfactory performance. 
 
The Board shall meet in closed session with the Superintendent to discuss the evaluation.  
(Government Code 54957) 
 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 
 



 BP 2140(b) 
 
 
EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT  (continued) 
 
 
At this meeting, the Superintendent shall have an opportunity to ask questions, respond 
verbally and in writing to the evaluation, and present additional information regarding his/her 
performance or district progress. 
 
The discussion shall include the establishment of performance goals for the next year and 
may identify professional development opportunities for the Superintendent and/or the entire 
governance team to address areas of concern, strengthen the relationship between the 
Superintendent and Board, or enhance the Superintendent's knowledge of current educational 
issues and leadership and management skills. 
 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation) 
 
After the Board and Superintendent have discussed the evaluation, the Board president and 
Superintendent shall sign the evaluation and it shall be placed in the Superintendent's 
personnel file. The evaluation, including personal performance goals, shall be confidential to 
the extent permitted by law. 
 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
6254.8  Public Records Act; employment contracts 
54957  Closed session, personnel matters 
COURT DECISIONS 
Versaci v. Superior Court, (2005) 127 Cal.App.4th 805 
Duval v. Board of Trustees, (2001) 93 Cal.App.4th 902 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Certificated Personnel AR 4112.2(a) 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
 
Verification of Credentials 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall verify that each employee in a position requiring 
certification qualifications possesses a valid certification document issued by the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC). Such verification shall occur not later than 60 
days after the commencement of employment or the renewal of a credential.  (Education 
Code 44857) 
 
(cf. 4112.21 - Interns) 
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners) 
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall verify that any person who is employed by the district 
while his/her application for certification is being processed by the CTC possesses a 
temporary certificate based on a demonstration of basic skills and completion of a criminal 
background check.  (Education Code 44332, 44332.5, 44332.6) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the appropriate certification of all 
employees serving in certificated positions. 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
 
Basic Skills Proficiency 
 
The district shall not initially hire a person in a position requiring certification, on a 
permanent, temporary, or substitute basis, unless that person has demonstrated basic skills 
proficiency in reading, writing, and mathematics or is specifically exempted from the 
requirement by law.  (Education Code 44252, 44252.6, 44830) 
 
The district may hire a certificated employee who has not taken a test of basic skills 
proficiency if he/she has not yet been afforded the opportunity to take the test, provided that 
he/she takes the test at the earliest opportunity. The employee may remain employed by the 
district pending the receipt of his/her test results.  (Education Code 44830) 
 
An out-of-state prepared teacher shall meet the basic skills requirement within one year of 
being issued a California preliminary credential by the CTC unless he/she has completed a 
basic skills proficiency test in another state or is otherwise exempted by law.  The district 
shall develop a basic skills proficiency test, which shall be at least equivalent to the district 
test required for high school graduation, for purposes of assessing out-of-state prepared 
teachers pending completion of the basic skills requirement.  (Education Code 44252, 
44274.2; 5 CCR 80071.4, 80413.3) 



 AR 4112.2(b) 
 
 

CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency) 
(cf. 6162.5 - High School Exit Examination) 
 
Any person holding or applying for a "designated subjects special subjects" credential which 
does not require possession of a bachelor's degree shall pass a district proficiency test in lieu 
of meeting the state basic skills proficiency requirement.  (Education Code 44252, 44830) 
 

The district may charge a fee to cover the costs of developing, administering, and grading the 
district proficiency test.  (Education Code 44252, 44830) 
 
Short-Term Staff Permit 
 

The district may request that the CTC issue a short-term staff permit (STSP) to a qualified 
applicant whenever there is a need to immediately fill a classroom based on unforeseen 
circumstances, including, but not limited to:  (5 CCR 80021) 
 
1. Enrollment adjustments requiring the addition of another teacher 
 

2. Inability of the teacher of record to finish the school year due to approved leave or 
illness 

 
3. The applicant's need for additional time to complete preservice requirements for 

enrollment into an approved intern program 
 

4. Inability of the applicant to enroll in an approved intern program due to timelines or 
lack of space in the program 

 

5. Unavailability of a third-year extension of an intern program or the applicant's 
withdrawal from an intern program 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the applicant possesses a bachelor's or 
higher degree from a regionally accredited college or university, has met the basic skills 
proficiency requirement unless exempted by state law or regulations, and has satisfied the 
coursework/experience requirements specified in 5 CCR 80021 for the multiple subject, 
single subject, or education specialist STSP as appropriate.  (5 CCR 80021) 
 

When requesting issuance of an STSP, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the 
CTC:  (5 CCR 80021) 
 

1. Verification that the district has conducted a local recruitment for the permit being 
requested 

 
2. Verification that the district has provided the permit holder with orientation to the 

curriculum and to instruction and classroom management techniques and has assigned 
a mentor teacher for the term of the permit 



 AR 4112.2(c) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance) 
 
3. Written justification for the permit signed by the Superintendent or designee 
 
The holder of an STSP may be assigned to provide the same service as a holder of a multiple 
subject, single subject, or education specialist credential in accordance with the 
authorizations specified on the permit.  (5 CCR 80021) 
 
Provisional Internship Permit 
 
Before requesting that the CTC issue a provisional internship permit (PIP), the district shall 
conduct a diligent search for a suitable credentialed teacher or intern, including, but not 
limited to, distributing job announcements, contacting college and university placement 
centers, and advertising in print or electronic media.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 
 
Whenever a suitable credentialed teacher cannot be found after a diligent search, the 
Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue a PIP to an applicant who 
possesses a bachelor's or higher degree from a regionally accredited college or university, has 
met the basic skills proficiency requirement unless exempted by state law or regulations, and 
has satisfied the coursework/experience requirements specified in 5 CCR 80021.1 for the 
multiple subject, single subject, or education specialist PIP as appropriate.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
When submitting the request for a PIP, the district shall provide verification of all of the 
following:  (5 CCR 80021.1, 80026.5) 
 
1. A diligent search has been conducted for a suitable credentialed teacher or suitable 

qualified intern as evidenced by documentation of the search. 
 
2. Orientation, guidance, and assistance shall be provided to the permit holder as 

specified in 5 CCR 80026.5. 
 
The orientation shall include, but not be limited to, an overview of the curriculum the 
permit holder is expected to teach and effective instruction and classroom 
management techniques at the permit holder's assigned level. The permit holder also 
shall receive guidance and assistance from an experienced educator who is a 
certificated district employee or a certificated retiree from a California district or 
county office of education and who has completed at least three years of full-time 
classroom teaching experience. 

 
 
 



 AR 4112.2(d) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
3. The district shall assist the permit holder in developing a personalized plan through a 

district-selected assessment that would lead to subject-matter competence related to 
the permit. 

 
4. The district shall assist the permit holder to seek and enroll in subject-matter training, 

such as workshops or seminars and site-based courses, along with training in test-
taking strategies, and shall assist the permit holder in meeting the credential subject-
matter competence requirement related to the permit. 

 
5. A notice of intent to employ the applicant in the identified position has been made 

public. 
 
The district shall submit a copy of the agenda item presented at a public Governing 
Board meeting which shall state the name of the applicant, the assignment in which 
the applicant will be employed including the name of the school, subject(s), and 
grade(s) that he/she will be teaching, and that the applicant will be employed on the 
basis of a PIP. The district also shall submit a signed statement from the 
Superintendent or designee that the agenda item was acted upon favorably. 

 
6. The candidate has been apprised of steps to earn a credential and enroll in an intern 

program. 
 
The holder of a PIP may be assigned to provide the same service as a holder of a multiple 
subject, single subject, or education specialist credential in accordance with the 
authorizations specified on the permit.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave 
 
Whenever there is an anticipated need for the district to temporarily fill the teaching 
assignment of a teacher of record who will be on sick leave, differential sick leave, industrial 
accident or illness leave, pregnancy disability leave, or family care and medical leave under 
the federal Family and Medical Leave Act or California Family Rights Act, the 
Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue a Teaching Permit for Statutory 
Leave (TPSL) to a qualified individual who will be serving as the interim teacher of record. 
Prior to submitting an application to the CTC, the district shall provide the applicant with 45 
hours of preparation in the content areas listed in 5 CCR 80022.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
(cf. 4161.1 - Personal Illness and Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4161.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
(cf. 4161.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
A request for the TPSL shall only be submitted if the district has made reasonable efforts to 
hire a substitute with a full teaching credential that matches the setting and/or subject for the 
statutory leave position and no such candidate is available.  (5 CCR 80022) 



 AR 4112.2(e) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
The district shall verify to the CTC that it will provide the interim teacher:  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
1. An orientation to the assignment before or during the first month of service in the 

statutory leave assignment 
 
2. An average of two hours of mentoring, support, and/or coaching per week through a 

system of support coordinated and/or provided by a mentor who possesses a valid life 
or clear credential that would also authorize service in the statutory leave assignment 

 
3. Lesson plans for the first four weeks of the assignment as well as continued assistance 

in the development of curriculum, lesson planning, and individualized education 
programs 

 
The holder of the TPSL may serve as the interim teacher of record for up to the full length of 
the leave(s) during the school year.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain documentation on the assignment in 
accordance with 5 CCR 80022. He/she shall annually report data on the use of the TPSL to 
the County Superintendent of Schools for assignment monitoring pursuant to Education Code 
44258.9.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may annually request renewal of the TPSL, provided that no 
substitute with a full teaching credential is available for the assignment. The application for 
each reissuance shall include verification that the interim teacher has completed an additional 
45 hours of preparation and the district is continuing to provide mentoring in accordance with 
items #2-3 above.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
Long-Term Emergency Permits 
 
As necessary, the Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue an emergency 
resource specialist permit, emergency teacher librarian services permit, emergency 
crosscultural language and academic development permit, or emergency bilingual 
authorization permit.  (5 CCR 80024.3.1, 80024.6, 80024.7, 80024.8) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide any first-time recipient of an emergency 
teaching permit with an orientation which, to the extent reasonably feasible, shall occur 
before he/she begins a teaching assignment. The Superintendent or designee may vary the 
nature, content, and duration of the orientation to match the amount of training and 
experience previously completed by the emergency permit teacher. The orientation shall 
include, but not be limited to, the curriculum the teacher is expected to teach and effective  
 



 AR 4112.2(f) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
techniques of classroom instruction and classroom management at the assigned grade-level 
span. The emergency permit holder also shall receive guidance and assistance from an 
experienced educator who is a certificated district employee or a certificated retiree from a 
California district or county office of education and who has completed at least three years of 
full-time classroom teaching experience.  (5 CCR 80026.5) 
 
(cf. 4117.14/4317.14 - Postretirement Employment) 
 
Substitute Teaching Permits 
 
The district may employ a person whose credential or permit authorizes substitute teaching 
services, provided that: 
 
1. A person holding an emergency 30-day substitute teaching permit, STSP, PIP, TPSL, 

or any valid teaching or services credential that requires at least a bachelor's degree 
and completion of the California Basic Educational Skills Test, shall not serve as a 
substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school year. He/she 
shall not serve as a substitute in a special education classroom for more than 20 days 
for any one teacher during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025, 80025.3, 80025.4) 

 
2. A person with an emergency career substitute teaching permit shall not serve as a 

substitute for more than 60 days for any one teacher during the school year.  (5 CCR 
80025.1) 

 
3. A person with an emergency substitute teaching permit for prospective teachers shall 

not serve as a substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school 
year and not more than 90 days total during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025.2) 
 

4. A person with an emergency designated subjects 30-day substitute teaching permit 
for career technical education shall teach only in a program of technical, trade, or 
vocational education and shall not serve as a substitute for more than 30 days for any 
one teacher during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025.5) 

 
Before employing a person with an emergency substitute permit pursuant to item #1 or #4 
above, the Superintendent or designee shall prepare and keep on file a signed Statement of 
Need for the school year. The Statement of Need shall describe the situation or circumstances 
that necessitate the use of a 30-day substitute permit holder and state either that a 
credentialed person is not available or that the available credentialed person does not meet 
the district's specified employment criteria.  (5 CCR 80025, 80025.5) 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: July 2017 



All Personnel AR 4112.61 
 4212.61 
EMPLOYMENT REFERENCES 4312.61 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for processing requests for employment 
references, letters of recommendation, or information about the reasons for separation 
regarding all district employees other than himself/herself. All letters of recommendation to 
be issued on behalf of the district for current or former employees shall be approved by the 
Superintendent or designee. At his/her discretion, the Superintendent or designee may refuse 
to give a recommendation. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may communicate information about the job performance or 
qualifications of a current or former district employee when such information is based upon 
credible evidence and is given to a prospective employer without malice and at the 
prospective employer's request.  (Civil Code 47) 
 
Any reference, letter of recommendation, or information provided about the reasons for 
separation issued on behalf of the district shall provide a truthful and accurate account of the 
employee's job performance and qualifications. 
 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 
 
No certificated employee shall write or sign any letter or memorandum which intentionally 
omits significant facts, or which states as facts matters which the writer does not know of 
his/her own knowledge to be true, relating to the professional qualifications or personal 
fitness to perform certificated services of any person who the writer knows will use the letter 
or memorandum to obtain professional employment.  (5 CCR 80332) 
 
No certificated employee shall agree to provide a positive letter of recommendation which 
misrepresents facts as a condition of another employee's resigning or withdrawing action 
against the district.  (5 CCR 80332) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

LABOR CODE 
1050-1054  Reemployment privileges 
CIVIL CODE 
47  Privileged communication 
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
527.3  Labor disputes 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
80332  Professional candor and honesty in letters or memoranda of employment recommendation 
COURT DECISIONS 
Randi W. v. Muroc Joint Unified School District et al., (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 1066 

 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: July 2017 



Instruction BP 6161.1(a) 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad 
spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect society's diversity, and enhance the use of 
multiple teaching strategies and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials 
based on a determination that such materials are an effective learning resource to help 
students achieve grade-level competency and that the materials meet criteria specified in law. 
Textbooks, technology-based materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with 
academic content standards and the district's curriculum to ensure that they effectively 
support the district's adopted courses of study. 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 
 
The Board shall select instructional materials for use in grades K-8 that have been approved 
by the State Board of Education (SBE) or have otherwise been determined to be aligned with 
the state academic content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the 
Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8.  (Education 
Code 60200, 60210) 
 
The Board shall adopt instructional materials for grades 9-12 upon determining that the 
materials meet the criteria specified in law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 
60400) 
 
Review Process 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials 
shall be reviewed for recommendation to the Board. Toward that end, he/she may establish 
an instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional 
materials. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 
The review process shall involve teachers in a substantial manner and shall encourage the 
participation of parents/guardians and community members.  (Education Code 60002) 
 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
In addition, the instructional materials review committee may include administrators, other 
staff who have subject-matter expertise, and students as appropriate. 
 



 BP 6161.1(b) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
If the district chooses to use instructional materials for grades K-8 that have not been adopted 
by the SBE, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a majority of the participants in 
the district's review process are classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or 
grade level of the materials.  (Education Code 60210) 
 
Individuals who participate in the selection or review of instructional materials shall not have 
a conflict of interest, as defined in administrative regulation, in the materials being reviewed. 
 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
The committee shall review instructional materials using criteria provided in law and 
administrative regulation, and shall provide the Board with documentation supporting its 
recommendations. 
 
All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the 
district office. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
 
The district may pilot instructional materials, using a representative sample of classrooms for 
a specified period of time during a school year, in order to determine how well the materials 
support the district's curricular goals and academic standards. Feedback from teachers 
piloting the materials shall be made available to the Board before the materials are adopted. 
 
Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 
 
The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the sufficiency of the 
district's textbooks and other instructional materials.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
OPTION 1:  The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first 
day students attend school for that year.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
OPTION 2:  The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first 
day of the school year of any district school that operates on a multitrack year-round calendar 
that begins its school year in August or September.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, interested community 
members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. Ten days prior to the hearing, the 
Superintendent or designee shall post a notice in three public places within the district 
containing the time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take place 
during or immediately following school hours.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 



 BP 6161.1(c) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
At the hearing(s), the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in 
each school, including each English learner, has sufficient textbooks or instructional 
materials which are aligned to the state content standards adopted pursuant to Education 
Code 60605 or the Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 
60605.8 and which are consistent with the content and cycles of the state's curriculum 
frameworks. Sufficiency of instructional materials shall be determined in each of the 
following subjects:  (Education Code 60119) 
 
1. Mathematics 
 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
 
2. Science 
 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 
 
3. History-social science 
 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 
 
4. English language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program 
 
(cf. 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
5. World/foreign language 
 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 
 
6. Health 
 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
 
The Board shall also determine the availability of science laboratory equipment, as 
applicable to science laboratory courses offered in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient 
textbooks and/or instructional materials to use in class and to take home.  However, this does 
not require that each student have two sets of materials. The materials may be in a digital 
format as long as each student, at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the 
class and to take home as all other students in the same class or course in the district and has  
 
 



 BP 6161.1(d) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
the ability to use and access them at home. However, the materials shall not be considered 
sufficient if they are photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 
materials copied to address a shortage.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks or instructional materials, it shall 
provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, for each school in 
which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-
aligned textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the reasons that each 
student does not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials. The Board shall take 
any action, except an action that would require reimbursement by the Commission of State 
Mandates, to ensure that each student has sufficient materials within two months of the 
beginning of the school year in which the determination is made.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
The degree to which every student has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional 
materials shall be included in the district's local control and accountability plan.  (Education 
Code 52060) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
Complaints 
 
Complaints concerning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with law, 
Board policy, and administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 6161.1(e) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
220  Prohibition against discrimination 
1240  County superintendent, general duties 
33050-33053  General waiver authority 
33126  School accountability report card 
35272  Education and athletic materials 
44805  Enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and regulations 
49415  Maximum textbook weight 
51501  Nondiscriminatory subject matter 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60000-60005  Instructional materials, legislative intent 
60010  Definitions 
60040-60052  Instructional requirements and materials 
60060-60063.5  Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 
60070-60076  Prohibited acts (re instructional materials) 
60110-60115  Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education 
60119  Public hearing on sufficiency of materials 
60200-60210  Elementary school materials 
60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 
60350-60352  Core reading program instructional materials 
60400-60411  High school textbooks 
60510-60511  Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials 
60605  State content standards 
60605.8  Common Core State Standards 
60605.86-60605.88  Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core State Standards 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
9505-9530  Instructional materials 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Instructional Materials FAQ 
01-05  Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, rev. January 2015 
Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Association of American Publishers:  http://www.publishers.org 
California Academic Content Standards Commission, Common Core State Standards: 
http://www.scoe.net/castandards 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Instruction E 6161.1(a) 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 
 
Resolution On Sufficiency Of Instructional Materials 
 
Whereas, the Governing Board of the (name of school district), in order to comply with the 
requirements of Education Code 60119, held a public hearing on (date), at (time) o'clock, 
which is on or before the eighth week of school (between the first day that students attend 
school and the end of the eighth week from that day) and which did not take place during or 
immediately following school hours, and; 
 
Whereas, the Board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing by posting it in at 
least three public places within the district stating the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, 
and; 
 
Whereas, the Board encouraged participation by parents/guardians, teachers, members of the 
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 
 
Whereas, information provided at the public hearing detailed the extent to which sufficient 
textbooks or instructional materials were provided to all students, including English learners, 
in the (name of school district), and; 
 
Whereas, the definition of "sufficient textbooks or instructional materials" means that each 
student, including each English learner, has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional 
materials to use in class and to take home, which may include materials in a digital format 
but shall not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 
materials copied to address a shortage, and; 
 
Whereas, textbooks or instructional materials in core curriculum subjects should be aligned 
with state academic content standards adopted by the State Board of Education pursuant to 
Education Code 60605 and/or the Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to 
Education Code 60605.8; 
 
Finding of Sufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials 
 
Whereas, sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials that are consistent 
with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks were provided to each student, 
including each English learner, in the following subjects: 
 
 Mathematics:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for 

each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 



 E 6161.1(b) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
 Science:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each 

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 History-social science:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this 

subject for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 English language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject 
for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 World/foreign language:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this 

subject for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Health:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each 

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
Whereas, laboratory science equipment was available for science laboratory classes offered 
in grades 9-12, inclusive; 
 
Therefore, it is resolved that for the (year) school year, the (name of school district) has 
provided each student with sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials 
that are consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks. 
 
Finding of Insufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials 
 
Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the Board at the public meeting 
detailed that insufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials were provided 
to students in the following subjects and grade levels at district schools:  (For each school, 
list the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials in mathematics, science, history-social science, English language 
arts, world/foreign language, and health.) 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 



 E 6161.1(c) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
Whereas, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were not provided at each school 
listed above due to the following reasons:  (For each school at which there is an 
insufficiency, list the reasons that each student does not have sufficient instructional 
materials in each subject and grade level listed above.) 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Therefore, it is resolved, that for the (year) school year, the (name of school district) has not 
provided each student with sufficient textbooks or instructional materials that are consistent 
with the cycles and content of the curriculum framework, and; 
 
Be it further resolved, that the following actions will be taken to ensure that all students have 
sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials in all subjects that are 
consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks within two months of 
the beginning of the school year in which this determination is made.  (List actions to be 
taken to resolve insufficiency.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ______ day of ___________, ________ at a meeting, by 
the following vote: 
 
 AYES:______ NOES:______ ABSENT:______ 
 
Attest: 
 
    
Secretary President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
version: July 2017 



Facilities BP 7212(a) 
 
MELLO-ROOS DISTRICTS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to provide adequate facilities in order to enhance student 
learning and to help the district achieve its vision for educating district students. Toward that 
end, the Board may order the formation of a community facilities district (CFD) (Mello-Roos 
district) for the acquisition or improvement of school facilities when, in the Board's 
judgment, it is in the best interest of district students and the community. The issuance of 
debt through the CFD shall be consistent with law and the district's debt management policy. 
 
(cf. 3470 - Debt Issuance and Management) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 
(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 
(cf. 7211 - Developer Fees) 
(cf. 7213 - School Facilities Improvement Districts) 
 
Proceedings to establish a CFD may be instituted at the Board's discretion. In addition, such 
proceedings shall be instituted when a written request to establish a CFD has been filed by 
any two Board members, or a petition has been submitted by at least 10 percent of registered 
voters residing within the territory of the proposed CFD or by the owners of at least 10 
percent of the area of land to be included within the proposed CFD.  (Government Code 
53318) 
 
Prior to initiating proceedings to form a CFD, the Board shall consider and adopt local goals 
and policies that include the following elements:  (Government Code 53312.7) 
 
1. The priority that various facilities shall have for financing through the Mello-Roos 

Community Facilities Act, including public facilities to be owned and operated by 
other public agencies and services to be provided by other public agencies 

 
2. The credit quality to be required of bond issues and criteria to be used in evaluating 

the credit quality 
 
3. Steps by which prospective property purchasers will be fully informed about their 

related taxpaying obligations 
 
4. Criteria for evaluating the equity of tax allocation formulas, including desirable and 

maximum amounts of special tax to be levied against any parcel 
 
5. Definitions, standards, and assumptions to be used in appraisals required by 

Government Code 53345.8 
 
6. To the extent authorized by law, priority for students residing within the CFD to 

attend schools financed in whole or in part by the CFD, in a manner that reflects the 
proportion of each school's financing provided through the CFD 

 
(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 



BP 7212(b) 
 
 
MELLO-ROOS DISTRICTS  (continued) 
 
 
Within 45 days of receiving a written request or petition to establish a CFD, the Board shall 
determine a fee to be paid by the requesters or petitioners which shall be sufficient to 
compensate the district for the costs incurred in conducting proceedings to create the CFD. 
Proceedings for establishing the CFD shall only be initiated after payment of the fee.  
(Government Code 53318) 
 
Upon Board action to form a CFD, or within 90 days after the receipt of a petition or request 
to form a CFD and the payment of any applicable fee, the Board shall adopt a resolution of 
intention and conduct a hearing in accordance with law. The resolution shall fix the time and 
place for holding a public hearing on the establishment of the CFD, which shall be within 30-
60 days after the adoption of the resolution. Notice of the hearing shall be given by 
publishing the text or a summary of the resolution of intention once, in a newspaper of 
general circulation published in the area of the proposed CFD, at least seven days before the 
hearing, and shall include other requirements specified in Government Code 53322.  Notice 
of the hearing may also be sent by first-class mail to each registered voter and to each 
landowner within the proposed CFD.  (Government Code 53320, 53321, 53322, 53322.4) 
 
If, after the hearing, the Board decides to establish a CFD, the Board shall adopt a resolution 
of formation in accordance with law.  (Government Code 53325, 53325.1) 
 
If a special tax is proposed to be levied in the CFD, the Board shall submit the resolution of 
formation and other information specified in Government Code 53326 to the elections 
official within three business days after the adoption of the resolution of formation, and the 
question of levying the special tax shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the proposed 
CFD in accordance with law.  (Government Code 53326) 
 
Upon approval by two-thirds of the voters in the proposed CFD, the tax may be levied in 
accordance with Government Code 53340.  (Government Code 53328) 
 
Whenever the Board deems it necessary for the CFD to incur a bonded indebtedness, it shall 
follow the procedures specified in Government Code 53345-53365.7, as applicable. 
 
The proceeds of any bonds, notes, or other securities issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos 
Community Facilities Act shall be deposited or invested in accordance with Government 
Code 53356.03. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall, within seven months after the last day of each fiscal 
year, prominently display the following reports on the district's web site:  (Government Code 
53343.2) 
 
1. A copy of an annual report for that fiscal year, if requested pursuant to Government 

Code 53343.1 
 



BP 7212(c) 
 
 
MELLO-ROOS DISTRICTS  (continued) 
 
 
2. A copy of the report provided to the California Debt and Investment Advisory 

Commission pursuant to Government Code 53359.5 
 
3. A copy of the report provided to the State Controller's Office pursuant to Government 

Code 12463.2 
 
(cf.  3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
15300-15425  School facilities improvement districts 
17060-17066  Joint venture school facilities construction projects 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
6061  One time notice 
12463.2 Reports 
17556  Payment of costs mandated by the state 
53311-53368.3  Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
53753  Assessment notice and hearing requirements 
53753.5  Exemptions 
54954.1  Mailed notice to property owners 
54954.6  New or increased tax or assessment; public meetings and hearings; notice 
65970-65981  School facilities development project 
65995  Levies against development projects 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
1859-1859.106 School facility program 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, 2012 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 
Coalition for Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9121(a) 
 
PRESIDENT 
 
 
The Governing Board shall elect a president from among its members to provide leadership 
on behalf of the governance team and the educational community it serves. 
 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
(cf. 9100 - Organization) 
 
To ensure that Board meetings are conducted in an efficient, transparent, and orderly manner, 
the president shall: 
 
1. Call such meetings of the Board as he/she may deem necessary, giving notice as 

required by law 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
 
2. Consult with the Superintendent or designee on the preparation of Board meeting 

agendas 
 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 
3. Call the meeting to order at the appointed time and preside over the meeting 
 
4. Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order 
 
5. Enforce the Board's bylaws related to the conduct of meetings and help ensure 

compliance with applicable requirements of the Brown Act 
 
6. Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor 

from disturbance or interference 
 
7. Facilitate the Board's effective deliberation, ensuring that each Board member has an 

opportunity to participate in the deliberation and that the discussion remains focused 
 
8. Rule on issues of parliamentary procedure 
 
9. Put motions to a vote, and clearly state the results of the vote 
 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
The president shall have the same rights as other members of the Board, including the right 
to discuss and vote on all matters before the Board. 
 
 
 



 BB 9121(b) 
 
 
PRESIDENT  (continued) 
 
 
The president shall perform other duties in accordance with law and Board policy including, 
but not limited to: 
 
1. Signing all instruments, acts, orders, and resolutions necessary to comply with legal 

requirements and carry out the will of the Board 
 
2. Working with the Superintendent or designee to ensure that Board members have 

necessary materials and information 
 
3. Subject to Board approval, appointing and dissolving all committees 
 
(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 
 
4. In conjunction with the Superintendent or designee, representing the district as the 

Board's spokesperson in communications with the media 
 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
 
5. Leading the Board's advocacy efforts to build support within the local community and 

at the state and national levels 
 
The president shall participate in the California School Boards Association's Board 
President's Workshop and other professional development opportunities to enhance his/her 
leadership skills. 
 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
When the president resigns or is absent, the clerk shall perform the president's duties. When 
both the president and clerk are absent, the Board shall choose a president pro tempore to 
perform the president's duties. 
 
(cf. 9123 - Clerk) 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BB 9121(c) 
 
 
PRESIDENT  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35022  President of the board 
35143  Annual organizational meetings; dates and notice 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2015 
Board Presidents' Handbook, revised 2002 
CSBA Professional Governance Standards, 2000 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9220(a) 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 
 
 
Board Member Qualifications 
 
Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, 
if he/she is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district, a 
registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office.  Any person who has 
been convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, 
embezzlement or theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such 
crime, under California law or the law of another state, the United States of America, or 
another country, is not eligible to be a candidate for office or elected as a Board member 
except when he/she has been granted a pardon in accordance with law.  (Education Code 
35107; Elections Code 20) 
 
A district employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her employment before being sworn 
in or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office.  
(Education Code 35107) 
 
(cf. 9224 - Oath of Affirmation) 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board 
members. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with information that 
will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board 
member, including information regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with general information about 
school programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities. 
 
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
Consolidation of Elections 
 

To reduce costs associated with conducting elections, the Board may consolidate Board 
elections with the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in accordance 
with Elections Code 1302. 
 

In addition, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a statewide election 
date results in a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the 
average local turnout for the previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take 
action to consolidate Board elections with statewide elections. The district shall move its 
election to the next state statewide election date, unless the Board has adopted a plan by 
January 1, 2018 to consolidate Board elections not later than the November 8, 2022 statewide 
general election.  (Elections Code 14051, 14052) 
 
 
 



 BB 9220(b) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
 
In order to consolidate elections based on either circumstance described above, the Board 
shall adopt a resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors for approval not 
later than 240 days prior to the date of the currently scheduled district election.  (Elections 
Code 10404.5) 
 
Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, 
the terms of office of incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next 
applicable election.  (Elections Code 10404.5) 
 
(cf. 9110 - Terms of Office) 
 
Elections Process and Procedures 
 
 (Election using "at-large" voting method) 
 
Board members may reside anywhere within the district's boundaries and shall be elected by 
all voters in the district. 
 
To ensure ongoing compliance with the California Voting Rights Acts, the Board may review 
the district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary due 
to changes in the district's population or any of its racial, color, or language minority group 
composition.  The review shall be based on the Superintendent or designee's report to the 
Board after the release of each decennial federal census. 
 
If the Board determines that a change is necessary, it shall hold public hearings in accordance 
with Elections Code 10100 before adopting a resolution at an open meeting specifying the 
change(s), and shall, in accordance with Education Code 5019, obtain approval from the 
county committee on school district organization having jurisdiction over the district. 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
Campaign Conduct 
 
All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by 
local, county, state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donations, funding, and 
expenditures. 
 
A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the 
purpose of seeking elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for 
those seeking election to the Board, provided that the funds are available to all candidates 
who are qualified pursuant to Education Code 35107 without regard to incumbency or 
political preference.  (Government Code 85300) 
 



 BB 9220(c) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's 
confidence in the Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere 
to the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
Statement of Qualifications 
 
On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or 
his/her designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to 
the county elections official describing both of the following:  (Elections Code 10509) 
 
1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which 

offices, if any, are for the balance of an unexpired term 
 
2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of 

qualifications pursuant to Elections Code 13307 
 
(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 
 
Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for 
inclusion in the voter's pamphlet.  Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 
words.  (Elections Code 13307) 
 
When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a 
candidate for the Board may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for 
inclusion in the mailed voter's pamphlet, prepare and submit a candidate statement for 
electronic distribution. 
 
The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or 
electronically distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a 
condition of having candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter's 
pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these 
costs to the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307. 
 

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 
 
Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been 
elected to the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie 
votes of the time and place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before 
the Board.  The Board at that time shall determine the winner by lot.  (Education Code 5016) 
 
 
 



 
 BB 9220(d) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
1006  Qualifications for holding office, county board of education 
5000-5033  Elections 
5220-5231  Elections 
5300-5304  General provisions (conduct of elections) 
5320-5329  Order and call of elections 
5340-5345  Consolidation of elections 
5360-5363  Election notice 
5380  Compensation (of election officer) 
5390  Qualifications of voters 
5420-5426  Cost of elections 
5440-5442  Miscellaneous provisions 
7054  Use of district property 
35107  Eligibility; school district employees 
35177  Campaign expenditures or contributions 
35239  Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70 ADA 
ELECTIONS CODE 
20  Public office eligibility 
1302  Local elections, school district election 
2201  Grounds for cancellation 
4000-4008  Elections conducted wholly by mail 
10010  District boundaries 
10400-10418  Consolidation of elections 
10509  Notice of election by secretary 
10600-10604  School district elections 
13307  Candidate's statement 
13308  Candidate's statement contents 
13309  Candidate's statement, indigence 
14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act 
14050-14057  California Voter Participation Rights Act 
20440  Code of Fair Campaign Practices 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1021  Conviction of crime 
1097  Illegal participation in public contract 
12940  Nondiscrimination, Fair Employment and Housing Act 
81000-91014  Political Reform Act 
PENAL CODE 
68  Bribes 
74  Acceptance of gratuity 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BB 9220(e) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

PENAL CODE (continued) 
424  Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers 
661  Removal for neglect or violation of official duty 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 2, Section 2  Voters, qualifications 
Article 7, Section 7  Conflicting offices 
Article 7, Section 8  Disqualification from office 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 52 
10301-10508  Voting Rights Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
Rey v. Madera Unified School District, (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223 
Randall v. Sorrell, (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479 
Sanchez v. City of Modesto, (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660 
Dusch v. Davis, (1967) 387 U.S. 112 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002) 
83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000) 
81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 94 (1998) 
69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986) 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections, January 2017 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Secretary of State's Office:  http://www.sos.ca.gov 
Fair Political Practices Commission: http://www.fppc.ca.gov 
Institute for Local Self Government:  http://www.ca-ilg.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9230(a) 
 
ORIENTATION 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of providing all newly elected or appointed 
Board members with support and information to assist them in becoming effective members 
of the Board. Incoming Board members shall be provided an orientation designed to build 
their knowledge of the district and an understanding of the responsibilities of their position. 
Such orientation may include the provision of information, support, and/or training related to 
Board functions, policies, protocols, and standards of conduct. 
 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9220 - Governing Board Elections) 
(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 
 
As early as possible following the election or appointment of Board members, one or more 
orientation sessions shall be held during open meeting(s) of the Board. The Board president 
and the Superintendent or designee shall develop an agenda for the meeting(s) and shall 
identify resources that may be useful for incoming Board members. 
 
(cf. 9121 - President) 
 
Upon their election or appointment, incoming Board members shall be provided a copy of 
the Brown Act and informed that, pursuant to Government Code 54952.1, they must conform 
to the Act's requirements as if they had already assumed office. Additional information for 
incoming Board members may include, but is not limited to, Board bylaws related to the 
limits of individual Board member authority, the conduct of Board meetings, and other Board 
operations; governance standards for ethical conduct; legal requirements related to conflict of 
interest and prohibited political activity; protocols for speaking with district staff, members 
of the public, and the media; and publications on effective governance practices. 
 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
(cf. 9010 - Public Statements) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 
(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority) 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall provide incoming Board members with 
specific background information regarding the district, including, but not limited to, the 
district's vision and goals statements, local control and accountability plan and other 
comprehensive plans, student demographic data, student achievement data, district policy 
manual, district budget, and minutes of recent open Board meetings. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 



 BB 9230(b) 
 
 
ORIENTATION  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee may offer incoming Board members a tour of district schools 
and facilities, and may introduce them to district and school site administrators and other 
staff. 
 
Incoming members are encouraged, at district expense and with approval of the Board, to 
attend the California School Boards Association's Orientation for New Trustees, Institute for 
New and First-Term Board Members, and workshops and conferences relevant to the needs 
of the individual member, the Board as a whole, or the district. 
 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
33360  Department of Education and statewide association of school district boards; annual 
workshops 
33362-33363  Reimbursement of expenses; board member or member-elect 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 
54952.1  Member of a legislative body 
54952.2  Open meeting laws; posting agenda; board actions 
54952.7  Copies of Brown Act to board members 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Professional Governance Standards for School Boards 
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9400(a) 
 
BOARD SELF-EVALUATION 
 
 
The Governing Board shall annually conduct a self-evaluation in order to demonstrate 
accountability to the community and ensure that district governance effectively supports 
student achievement and the attainment of the district's vision and goals. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
 
The evaluation may address any area of Board responsibility, including, but not limited to, 
Board performance in relation to vision setting, curriculum, personnel, finance, policy 
development, collective bargaining, community relations, and advocacy. The evaluation may 
also address objectives related to Board meeting operations, relationships among Board 
members, relationship with the Superintendent, understanding of Board and Superintendent 
roles and responsibilities, communication skills, or other governance or boardsmanship 
skills. 
 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
The Board shall evaluate itself as a whole. Individual Board members are also expected to 
use the evaluation process as an opportunity to assess and set goals for their own personal 
performance. 
 
Each year, the Board, with assistance from the Superintendent, shall determine an evaluation 
method or instrument that measures key components of board responsibility and previously 
identified performance objectives. Visual and/or audio recordings of a Board meeting may 
only be used as an evaluation tool when consent is given by all Board members. 
 
Any discussion involving the Board's self-evaluation shall be conducted in open session. 
 
At the request of the Board, a facilitator may be used to assist with the evaluation process. 
The Board may invite the Superintendent or other individual(s) with pertinent information to 
provide input into the evaluation process. 
 
Following the evaluation, the Board shall set goals, define and/or refine protocols, and 
establish priorities and objectives for the following year's evaluation. The Board shall also 
develop strategies for strengthening Board performance based on identified areas of need, 
including, but not limited to, Board trainings such as those offered by the California School 
Boards Association. 
 
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 



 BB 9400(b) 
 
 
BOARD SELF-EVALUATION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963  Brown Act; board self-evaluations not covered 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Professional Governance Standards 
Defining Governance, Issue 3: Governance Practices, Governance Brief, April 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
CSBA Board Self-Evaluation: http://bse.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Action Item 12.1 
 
Subject: Tax Levy Resolution #08-17-01 
 
Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business 
   
Background:   
 
An election was held in the Rincon Valley Union School District on June 3, 2014 for the 
issuance and sale of general obligation bonds of the District for various school facility 
improvements in the maximum amount of $35,000,000 (the “Measure F”).  The schedule for 
issuing the next series of bonds authorized under Measure F (the “Bonds”) currently anticipates 
selling such Bonds after the time that the Auditor-Controller calculates the taxes to be levied for 
District bonded debt during fiscal year 2017-18.  Therefore, Resolution No. 08-17-01 is being 
brought before the Board of Education now to formally request that, pursuant to Education Code 
Sections 15252-15254, the Board of Supervisors of the County adopt a tax rate and levy a tax for 
the Bonds.  The tax rate will be based upon an estimated debt service schedule prepared by the 
District.  The Resolution further authorizes the District officials to file a certified copy of the 
Resolution with the Board of Supervisors of the County and to deliver copies of the Resolution 
to the Auditor-Controller and Treasurer and Tax Collector of the County.   

Adoption of this Resolution is necessary to ensure that property taxes are levied during fiscal 
year 2017-18 for the payment of the Bonds.  The Bonds are expected to be sold during Fiscal 
Year 2017-18. 

 

Attachments:  Resolution #08-17-01 

Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund resulting from the issuance of the Bonds.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution #08-17-01, RESOLUTION REQUESTING BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF SONOMA TO ESTABLISH TAX RATE FOR 
BONDS OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT EXPECTED TO BE 
SOLD DURING FISCAL YEAR 2017-18, AND AUTHORIZING NECESSARY ACTIONS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH. 

 
 



 

 
DOCSSF/137750v3/200387-0003 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-17-01 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION REQUESTING BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY 

OF SONOMA TO ESTABLISH TAX RATE FOR BONDS OF THE RINCON 
VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT EXPECTED TO BE SOLD DURING 
FISCAL YEAR 2017-18, AND AUTHORIZING NECESSARY ACTIONS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, this Board of Education (the “Board”) of the Rincon Valley Union School 
District (the “District”), located in Sonoma County (the “County”), California, is authorized to, and 
intends to, issue a series of its bonds for purposes authorized by the voters of the District on June 3, 
2014 (“Measure F”); 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County is required to take action approving a 
tax rate for payment of indebtedness of the District during Fiscal Year 2017-18, and it is the 
responsibility of the Auditor-Controller of the County to calculate the several tax rates for the Board 
of Supervisors’ action thereon;  

WHEREAS, this Board has determined that it is not possible or advisable to sell the District’s 
bonds in time to permit the Auditor-Controller, or other appropriate County official, of the County to 
calculate the tax rates necessary to pay debt service on such bonds in order that such tax rates may be 
reflected on 2017-2018 property tax bills of taxpayers in the District;  

WHEREAS, the Education Code provides that the Board of Supervisors of each county shall 
annually, at the time of making the levy of taxes for county purposes, estimate the amount of money 
required to meet the payment of the principal of and interest on the bonds authorized by the electors 
of the District and not sold, and which the Board of  Education of the District informs the Board of 
Supervisors in their belief will be sold before the next tax levy, and further provides that said Board 
of Supervisors shall levy a tax sufficient to pay the principal and interest so estimated; and 

WHEREAS, this Board deems it necessary and desirable to issue a series of the District’s 
bonds during Fiscal Year 2017-18, as authorized by the Government Code, and that the County levy 
a tax for payment on debt service estimated to come due on such bonds during Fiscal Year 2017-18, 
and believes that said bonds will be sold during said Fiscal Year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT: 

Section 1. Recitals.  All of the above recitals are correct. 

Section 2. Estimate of Tax Levy. The Superintendent or the Deputy Superintendent, 
Business of the District or such other officer of the District as either authorized officer may designate 
(each, an “Authorized District Representative”), are hereby authorized and directed to prepare, or 
cause the financial advisor to the District, to prepare, an estimate of all payments of principal and 
interest which shall become due on a series of Measure F bonds of the District expected to be sold 
prior to the making of the tax levy for Fiscal Year 2017-18, and to cause the debt service schedule so 



 

 
DOCSSF/137750v3/200387-0003 

prepared to be provided to the Board of Supervisors and the Auditor-Controller of the County and to 
any other officers of the County responsible for preparing the tax levy for bonds of the District and 
for levying said tax. The District estimates that the sale of its next series of bonds shall be in the 
amount of $17,000,000, an amount within the District’s authorized but unissued bond allowance, and 
shall be issued during Fiscal Year 2017-18. 

Section 3. Request to County to Levy Tax. The Board of Supervisors of the County is 
hereby requested, in accordance with Education Code Sections 15252-15254, to adopt a tax rate for 
bonds of the District expected to be sold during Fiscal Year 2017-2018, based upon the estimated 
debt service schedule prepared by officers of the District, and to levy a tax in Fiscal Year 2017-18 on 
all taxable property in the District sufficient to pay said estimated debt service.  The proceeds of such 
tax shall be deposited into the debt service fund of the District established pursuant to the Education 
Code for bonds of the District. 

Section 4.  Application of Tax Proceeds. In the event that the bonds of the District are not 
sold during Fiscal Year 2017-18, or sold in such amount and on such terms that the proceeds of the 
tax requested in Section 3 hereof, or any portion thereof, are not required for payment of debt service 
due on the bonds, or payment of other outstanding bonds of the District payable from the debt service 
fund of the District, this Board hereby requests that the Auditor-Controller, or other appropriate 
official of the County cause the remaining proceeds of the tax to be held in the debt service fund and 
applied to debt service on outstanding bonds of the District coming due in Fiscal Year 2018-19. 

Section 5. Filing of Resolution. The Secretary of this Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file forthwith a certified copy of this Resolution with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
of the County, and to cause copies of this Resolution to be delivered to the Auditor-Controller and 
the Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County. 

Section 6. Further Authorization. The President of this Board, the Secretary of this Board, 
or any Authorized District Representative, shall be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 
take such additional actions consistent with the intent of this Resolution in connection with the sale 
of the bonds of the District, which any of them deem necessary and desirable to accomplish the 
purpose hereof. 



 

 
DOCSSF/137750v3/200387-0003 

Section 7.  Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of August, 2017, by the following vote: 

 
 AYES:  
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT:  
 
 ABSTENTIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 President of the Board of Education of the 
 Rincon Valley Union School District 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Secretary to the Board of Education of the 
Rincon Valley Union School District 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Action Item 12.2 
 
Subject: Consideration of Approval of Construction Change Orders #5 –for 

Binkley and Madrone 
 
Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent-Business 
   
Background:  Attached are the most recent change orders for both the Binkley and 

Madrone construction projects.  The Madrone change order total was 
$134,196 and the total for Binkley was $89,467.  Most of the change 
orders were related to issues with the soil condition and were required to 
be made in order to complete the project.  Also, changes to the drainage of 
the tracks were made in order to stop water from draining over the tracks 
which would have voided the manufacturers warrantee.  As the projects 
near completion, we believe that we at the point where there should be no 
significant change orders on either project  

 
 The last page of the change order summary includes the original contract 

amount, the amount of change orders to date, the total of the current 
changer order, and the total cost of the change orders for each project.  A 
large amount of scope was added to these projects which included the 
installation of the tracks, grading the fields, replacement of the roof and 
repainting Madrone.  Therefore, the amount of change orders for these two 
projects is greater than what we anticipate in future projects given that the 
design team has more time to develop the full scope of work.    
 

 
Attachments: Change Orders for Binkley and Madrone 
   
 
Fiscal Impact: $89,467 for Binkley 
 $134,196 for Madrone 
  
 
 
Recommendation: Approve 
  
 
 



 

1

CHANGE ORDER 
July 20, 2017 
 

Project Name Binkley New Classroom 
Building 

Change Order # 005 

Owner Rincon Valley Union School 
District 

Issuance Date 7/20/17 

Contractor Arntz Builders, Inc. DSA Application # 01-114720 

Architect Dan Hardin DSA File # 49-101 

The work shall be carried out in accordance with the following additional project requirements issued in accordance with the Contract 

Documents.  All changes in Contract Sum or Contract Time are as included in this document. 

1. PCO# 025 
Title: Added Transformer Fencing 
Reason: Added fencing to encompass the solar city transformer 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $3,869.79 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: Architect Sketch 
 
 
 

2. PCO# 028 
Title: Damaged Water Main A Bldg. 
Reason: Damage of recently installed water main 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $643.12 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: 
 
 
 

3. PCO# 034 
Title: Shade Structure Custom Colors 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $1,283.42 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents:  
 
 
 

4. PCO# 035 
Title: Class Rm. Amp Power 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $5,928.83 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD #031 
 
 
 
 



 

2

5. PCO# 036 
Title: Track Field Grading 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $30,000.36 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD #033 
 
 
 

6. PCO# 037 
Title: MP Bldg. Windows 
Reason: Demo existing windows, replace w/4 fixed nail-on windows 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $9,481.35 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD #034 
 
 
 

7. PCO# 038 
Title: Mech Well Access Doors 
Reason: Supply and frame in 4 openings in mech well walls for access doors 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $6,064.19 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: RFI #073 
 
 
 

8. PCO# 039 
Title: Revised Roof Flashing & Gutters 
Reason: Includes gutter labor credit 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $10,502.05 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD #032 
 
 
 

9. PCO# 040 
Title: Lunch Area Fence & Gate 
Reason: Fence height was increased, this also increased the footing depth 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $13,957.37 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD #035 

 

10. PCO# 042 
Title: West Track Elevation 
Reason: LACO’s field report requested additional soil removal at West end of the track 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $7,736.82 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: RFI #075 

 

 



 

3

Original Contract Sum was:       $ 4,470,803.00 
New Change by Previously Authorized Change Orders    $ 699,285.00 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was:     $ 5,170,088.00 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this change order by:    $ 89,467.00 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be:    $ 5,259,555.00 
Total percentage of the Change Order Amounts to the original contract sum to date:             18% 
The Contract Completion Date is:  8/10/17 
New Completion Date change by previously authorized change orders  0 days 
Number of days added/subtracted by this change order:  0 days 
Revised contract Completion Date  8/10/17  
 
 
 
 
________________________________ ______________________________             _____________________________ 

Architect                                                                    Contractor                                                                  Owner 

 
___________________________________       __________________________________             __________________________________ 

By:                                                                             By:                                                                             By: 
 
 

___________________________________        _________________________________               __________________________________ 
Date:                                                                          Date:                                                                          Date: 

 

Danno
Typewritten text
Dan Hardin

Danno
Typewritten text
July 20, 2017



 

1

CHANGE ORDER 
July 18, 2017 
 

Project Name Madrone New Classroom 
Building 

Change Order # 005 

Owner Rincon Valley Union School 
District 

Issuance Date 7/18/17 

Contractor Arntz Builders, Inc. DSA Application # 01-114722 

Architect Dan Hardin DSA File # 49-101 

The work shall be carried out in accordance with the following additional project requirements issued in accordance with the Contract 

Documents.  All changes in Contract Sum or Contract Time are as included in this document. 

1. PCO# 010.1 
Title: Additional Window Replacement Labor Credit 
Reason: Additional credit for window swap 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: ($4,680.00) 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD 09 
 
 
 

2. PCO# 026 
Title: Fire Access Rd. Subgrade 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $2,316.32 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD 023 
 
 
 

3. PCO# 028 
Title: Shade Structure Custom Colors 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $1,822.13 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: Owner Request 
 
 
 

4. PCO# 029 
Title: Delete Conc. Curb Gutter S. Sport Track 
Reason: Credit for deleting type1 concrete curb & gutter 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: ($7,999.52) 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: RFI 041 
 
 
 
 



 

2

 
 

5. PCO# 030 
Title: Class Rm. Amp Power 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $5,941.47 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD 027 
 
 
 

6. PCO# 031 
Title: Eng. Fill at Sport Track 
Reason: Remove expansive soil and replace with engineered fill 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $36,648.96 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: Owner Request 
 
 
 

7. PCO# 032 
Title: Bldg. F Roof Dry Rot Repairs 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $20,236.81 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: RFI 042 
 
 
 

8. PCO# 033 
Title: Field Grading & Drainage Changes 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $21,738.26 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: CCD 30 
 
 
 

9. PCO# 035 
Title: EVA Rd. Yielding Subgrade 
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $44,807.33 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: LACO Report 7/5/17 
 
 
 

10. PCO# 036 
Title: Fascia Backing Bldg.’s A, C, D & E  
Reason:  
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $5,565.91 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: RFI 46 
 
 
 



 

3

11. PCO# 037 
Title: Damaged Transite Sewer Pipe  
Reason: Replace 100’ of existing sewer line 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $7,798.75 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: E-mail 
 

Original Contract Sum was:       $ 4,881,439.00 
New Change by Previously Authorized Change Orders    $ 954,887.00 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was:     $ 5,836,326.00 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this change order by:    $ 134,196.00 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be:    $ 5,970,522.00 
Total percentage of the Change Order Amounts to the original contract sum to date:             22.3% 
The Contract Completion Date is:  8/10/17 
New Completion Date change by previously authorized change orders  0 days 
Number of days added/subtracted by this change order:  0 days 
Revised contract Completion Date  8/10/17  
 
 
 
 
________________________________ ______________________________             _____________________________ 

Architect                                                                    Contractor                                                                  Owner 

 
___________________________________       __________________________________             __________________________________ 

By:                                                                             By:                                                                             By: 
 
 

___________________________________        _________________________________               __________________________________ 
Date:                                                                          Date:                                                                          Date: 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Action Item 12.3 
 
Subject: Ratification of Contract for Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for 

Business 
 
Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  
   
Background: Dr. Joseph Pandolfo serves as the deputy Superintendent, Business.  Dr. 

Pandolfo’s current contract expired on June 30, 2017; therefore, this 
document was executed prior to Board approval. Trustees are asked to 
ratify the Superintendent’s action to execute the agreement.  The attached 
contract is for two years.  The contract has been amended such that Dr. 
Pandolfo’s’s Masters and Doctoral degrees, car allowance, cell phone, and 
data stipends have been folded into his salary. 

 
 
 

 
Attachments: Contract for Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent Business, July 1, 

2017 through June 30, 2019 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
  
Recommendation:   Ratify 



              RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT  

CONTRACT 
 
This agreement is entered into as of June 30, 2017 between the Governing Board (hereinafter 
"the Board") of and on behalf of the Rincon Valley Union School District (hereinafter "the 
District") and Joseph Pandolfo (hereinafter "the Deputy Superintendent"). 
 

1. Term.  The District hereby employs the Deputy Superintendent- for a period of two (2) 
years, beginning on the July 1 2017 and terminating on the 30th day of June 2019. 

 
2. Salary.  The Superintendent and Governing Board will review the Deputy 

Superintendent’s salary annually and provide an increase that all other administrators 
receive, if any. All salary adjustments shall be effective July 1 of the contract year.  In no 
event shall the Deputy Superintendent salary at anytime be reduced below the previous 
year’s salary, unless there is a district-wide salary reduction for all employees.    

 
For the term of this contract, the annual salary for the Deputy Superintendent shall be 
$161,900.  This includes the elimination of stipends for advanced degrees, car allowance, 
cell phone, and data. 

 
The Board reserves the right to change the Deputy Superintendent salary for any year of 
this contact with the mutual written consent of the Deputy Superintendent and the Board.  
A change in salary shall not constitute the creation of a new contract nor extend the 
termination date of this Agreement. 

 
3. Duties.  The Deputy Superintendent is employed to assist the District Superintendent and 

shall perform the duties as assigned by the District Superintendent, as prescribed by the 
laws of the State of California and the District’s job description for Deputy 
Superintendent. 

 
4. Outside Professional Activities.  By prior approval of the Superintendent, the Deputy 

Superintendent may undertake for consideration outside professional activities, including, 
but not limited to, consulting, speaking and writing, so long as such outside professional 
activities do not, in the Superintendent's sole judgment, interfere with the performance of 
his duties.  His outside professional activities shall not occur during work hours unless 
authorized by the Superintendent.  In no event will the District be responsible for any 
expenses attendant to the performance of such outside activities.  The Deputy 
Superintendent shall use vacation time to perform these activities.  

 
5. Powers and Duties of Deputy Superintendent.  All powers and duties which may lawfully 

and reasonably be delegated to the Deputy Superintendent by the District Superintendent 
and/or Governing Board, are to be executed in accordance with the policies adopted by 
the Governing Board.  Such acts which may require ratification by the Governing Board 
shall be referred to said Governing Board at the earliest opportunity. 

 
6. Evaluation Format.  The District Superintendent shall evaluate and assess in writing the 

performance of the Deputy Superintendent at least once a year during the term of this 
agreement.  Said evaluation and assessment shall be reasonably related to the position 
description of the Deputy Superintendent for the year in question.  The evaluation format 
shall be reasonably objective and the exact format may be determined by the 
superintendent. 

 



7. Evaluation.  In the event that the District Superintendent determines, in the course of the 
evaluation process, that the performance of the Deputy Superintendent is unsatisfactory 
in any respect, he/she shall describe in writing in reasonable detail, indicating specific 
instances of unsatisfactory performance.  The evaluation shall include recommendations 
as to the areas of improvement in all instances where the District Superintendent deems 
performance to be unsatisfactory and all other instances where the District 
Superintendent deems improvement to be necessary or appropriate.  A copy of the 
written evaluation shall be delivered to the Deputy Superintendent and the Deputy 
Superintendent - Business shall have the right to make a written reaction or response to 
the evaluation, which shall become a permanent attachment to the Deputy 
Superintendent – Business’s personnel file.  Within 30 days of the delivery of the written 
evaluation to the Deputy Superintendent - Business, the District Superintendent shall 
meet with the Deputy Superintendent - Business to discuss the evaluation. 

 
A copy of any evaluation the District superintendent deems to be of a negative nature, 
and a copy of the Deputy Superintendent - Business's response (if any) shall be delivered 
to the President of the Governing Board. 

 
8.  Termination of Contract.    
 

a. Mutual Consent.    This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual consent 
of the Board and the Deputy Superintendent upon thirty (30) days prior written notice. 
 
b. Nonrenewal of Agreement by the District.    The Governing Board may elect not to 
renew this Agreement for any reason by providing the Deputy Superintendent with forty-
five (45) days written notice prior to the expiration of this Agreement, in accordance with 
Education Code Section 35031.   
 
c. Termination of Status as a Classified Employee.  The Deputy Superintendent status as 
a permanent or probationary certificated employee of the District may be terminated in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of law. 
 
d. Termination as Deputy Superintendent for Cause.    The Deputy Superintendent’s 
rights under this Agreement may be terminated by the Board at any time for, but not 
limited to, breach of contract; any ground enumerated in the Education Code; or the 
Deputy Superintendent failure to perform his or her responsibilities as set forth in this 
agreement, as defined by law, or as specified in the Deputy Superintendent’s job 
description, if any.  The Board shall not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this 
paragraph (d) until a written statement of the grounds of termination has first been served 
upon the Deputy Superintendent.  The Deputy Superintendent shall then be entitled to a 
conference with the Board at which time the Deputy Superintendent shall be given a 
reasonable opportunity to address the Board’s concerns.  The Deputy Superintendent 
shall have the right to have a representative of his or her choice at the conference with 
the Board.  The conference with the Board shall be the Deputy Superintendent exclusive 
right to any hearing otherwise required by law. 
 
e. Early Termination.    The Board unilaterally and without cause may terminate this 
Agreement and the Deputy Superintendent status as Deputy Superintendent reassign the 
Deputy Superintendent to any available position which the Deputy Superintendent is 
credentialed to perform by providing the Deputy Superintendent a minimum of forty-five  
(45) days notice of termination and reassignment.  In consideration of the Board’s right to 
terminate this Agreement without cause, the District shall pay to the Deputy 
Superintendent his or her then current salary for the remainder of the term of this 



Agreement or for a period of six (6) calendar months following the effective date of 
termination or reassignment, whichever is less.  If the Deputy Superintendent elects not 
to accept the position to which the Deputy Superintendent has been reassigned, the 
Deputy Superintendent may resign and elect to receive the difference between the 
Deputy Superintendent then current monthly salary and the monthly salary rate for the 
position to which the Deputy Superintendent has been reassigned for the remainder of 
the term of this Agreement or for a period of six (6) calendar months following the 
effective date of termination and reassignment, whichever is less. 

 
9. Fringe Benefits.  The Deputy Superintendent - Business shall be afforded fringe benefits 

provided in Board Policy 4354.  The Deputy Superintendent shall receive at District 
expense a $50,000 term life insurance policy..  In addition, District will pay the Deputy 
Superintendent dues in one Santa Rosa area service club and annual fees for CASBO, 
ASBO. ACSA or other similar organizations.   The District shall pay for no more than two 
professional associations. 

 
10. Miscellaneous Expenses.  The Deputy Superintendent - Business is required to have a 

vehicle available at all times to exercise the powers and to perform the duties of the 
position. He shall be reimbursed for reasonable transportation outside the County at the 
District established mileage rate. 

 
11.  Sick Leave.  The Deputy Superintendent - Business shall be allocated 12 days of sick 

leave annually. 
 
12. Vacation.  The Deputy Superintendent - Business shall be required to render 12 months 

of full and regular service to the district during each annual period covered by this 
agreement except that he shall be entitled to 30 days of annual vacation with pay 
exclusive of holidays as defined in Education Code Section 37220 and 37221, which 
shall be accrued on a month-to-month basis.  If he desires to take more than two 
continuous days of vacation, he shall obtain approval from the Superintendent prior to the 
use of vacation time.  Vacation time may be accumulated from year to year but in no 
case shall a total of more than 30 days of vacation may be carried forward from one fiscal 
year to the next without written Superintendent approval.  If this agreement is terminated, 
he shall be compensated for all unused accrued vacation at the salary rate effective at 
the time of termination. 

 
13. General Provisions. 
 

a. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding 
between the parties.  There are no oral understandings, terns or conditions, and 
neither party has relied upon any representation, express or implied, not contained in 
this Agreement.            

 
b. No Assignment.  The Deputy Superintendent - Business may not assign or transfer any 

rights granted or obligations assumed under this Agreement. 
 

c. Seniority.  The Deputy Superintendent - Business shall not be considered a school site 
administrator for purposes of Education Code Section 44956.5. 

 
d. Modification.  This Agreement cannot be changed or supplemented orally.  It may be 

modified or superceded only by a written instrument executed by both of the parties. 
 



e. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

 
14. Applicable Law.  This agreement is subject to all applicable laws of the State of California, 

rules and regulations of the State Board of Education, and rules and regulations and 
policies of this Board, all of which are made a part of the terms and conditions of this 
contract as though set forth herein. 

 
 
 
______________________________________________ Date:  June 30, 2017 
Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 
 
15. Acceptance of Offer.  I hereby accept the above offer of employment and agree to comply 

with the terms and conditions thereof, and to fulfill all of the duties of Deputy Superintendent 
- Business to the Governing Board of the Rincon Valley Union School District during the 
term specified in the foregoing employment contract. 

 
 
Dated this 30th day of June, 2017 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Dr. Joseph Pandolfo 
 
 
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Action Item 12.4 
 
Subject: Amend Administrative Title of Vice Principal to Site Director 
 
Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  
   
Background: At the June 8, 2017 Special Board Meeting, Trustees were presented with 

a report form the Rincon Valley Charter School Revision Committee.  
Among the recommendations from the Committee was to change the Vice 
Principal’s title to Site Director.  The rationale for this change was to align 
the title with the lead role at most independent charter schools. The Vice 
Principal title is confusing to parents who want to speak to the individual 
in charge. Our Vice Principals truly are the lead site administrator for both 
RVCS campuses.  This change will add greater clarity for our community.  
There will be no changes made to the compensation package these 
professionals receive.   

 
 

 
Attachments:  None  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
  
Recommendation:   Approve 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: August 8, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Action Item 12.5 
 
Subject: Hiring of a Special Day Class Teacher for the Rincon Valley 

Partnership on the basis of a Provisional Internship Permit 
 
Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  
   
Background: The District has provided extensive outreach in its attempt to recruit and 

hire a fully credential teacher for the Rincon Valley Partnership (RVP) 
primary Social Emotional Learning Program (SELP) class.  However, the 
District was not successful in recruiting a fully credential teacher.  
Therefore, the District has selected a qualified intern candidate for this 
position.  

 
Amy Brent has been selected as an SDC teacher for RVP assigned to the 
primary SELP class.  Ms. Brent will be teaching 1st - 3rd grade students in 
the Social, Emotional Learning Program.  The class will be held at 
Madrone Elementary School.  Ms. Brent will be employed on the basis of 
a Provisional Internship Permit. 

 
 
 

 
Attachments:  None  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
  
Recommendation:   Approve 


	Bd Agn. 8-8-17
	Closed Session  3.1 Conference with Legal Counsel
	Closed Session  3.2  Personnel Issues
	Bd min spec 6-8-17
	Board Minutes 6-13-17
	Wm Quarterly  District
	June 2017 Con App Reports
	2015-16 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 24 Months
	2015-16 Title III, Part A Immigrant YTD Expenditure Report, 24 Months
	2015-16 Title III, Part A LEP YTD Expenditure Report, 24 Months
	HomelessEdPolicy (3).pdf
	2016-17 Title II, Part A Fiscal Year Expenditure Report, 12 Months
	2016-17 Title III, Part A Immigrant YTD Expenditure Report, 12 Months
	2016-17 Title III, Part A English Learner YTD Expenditure Report, 12 Months
	2016-17 Homeless Education Policy, Requirements, and Implementation

	TIA_PISchoolAct.pdf
	2016-17 Title I, Part A School Program Improvement Activities

	SubTimeAccounting.pdf
	2017-18 Certification of Assurances
	2017-18 Protected Prayer Certification
	2017-18 Application for Funding
	2017-18 Title III, Part A English Learner Student Program Subgrant Budget
	2017-18 Title III, Part A Immigrant Student Program Subgrant Budget
	2017-18 Substitute System for Time Accounting


	Auxiliary Rates
	2017-18 #08-17-02 Close RCSS Revolving Cash Fund
	2016 ProclamationSuperintendents Attendance Awareness Month
	Legal Retainer School and College
	SCLS-Retainer Addendum
	17-18 Psych_revised
	5-17 Packet w-o notes
	Purchase Orders
	Warrants
	Warrants 2
	Info Item 11.1 C & I
	2017-18 Before School Calendar
	Info Item 11.2 Student Services Report
	Info Item 11.3 Student  Transfer Report
	Transfer numbers 16-17
	Total Transfers Out -2010-2017
	Inter District Totals 2016-2017
	Intra Total 2016-2017
	Info Item 11.4 Facilities Update
	Info Item 11.5 SchoolWorks Report
	Rincon Valley Demographics 2016-17 FINAL
	Info Item 11.6 District Operations - Purpose Statements
	Purpose Statements
	Info Item 11.7 LCAP Revisions
	Binkley 2017-18 LCAP_Final
	RVCS 2017-18 LCAP_Final
	SC-Mat 2-17-18 LCAP_Final
	Village 2017-18 LCAP_Final
	Whited 2017-18 LCAP_Final
	Info Item 11.8 Board Policy Updates
	7-17 Guidesheet
	7-17 Packet w-o notes
	Action Item 12.1 Tax Levy
	DOCSSF-#137750-v3-Tax_Levy_Resolution_-_Rincon_Valley_Union_School_District_(Election_of_2014__GO_Bonds__Series_B) (1)
	Action Item 12.2 Change Orders
	CHANGE ORDER 005.Binkley
	CHANGE ORDER 005.Madrone
	Action Item 12.3 Contract Approval - Deputy Superintendent for Business
	jpandolfo_Contract_7-1-17-6-3020_v2
	Action Item 12.4 Amend Admin Title
	Action Item 12.5 SDC SELP Class
	Personnel



